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Part 1 - Annual Budget
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SPESIALE RAADSVERGADERING / SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
2016/03/31

_ INHOUDSOPGAWE / INDEX
Item Page
e ——r _ — x _._number
MUNISIPALE KONSEPBEGROTING EN HERSIENE '
GEINTEGREERDE ONTWIKKELINGSPLAN: FINANSIELE
JAAR 2016/2017 MTEF ! MUNICIPAL DRAFT BUDGET AND
REVISED INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT PLAN: FINANCIAL
YEAR 2016/2017 MTEF (5/1/1118 & 19/2)
HERNUWING VAN OORTROKKE BANKFASIHLITEITE
| RENEWAL OF BANK OVERDRAFT (5/19/1) |

FINALE MUNISIPALE KONSEPBEGROTING EN HERSIENE GEINTEGREERDE
ONTWIKKELINGSPLAN: FINANSIELE JAAR 2016/2017 MTEF / FINAL
MUNICIPAL DRAFT BUDGET AND REVISED INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT
PLAN: FINANCIAL YEAR 2016/2017 MTEF (511/11/18 & 19/2)

1. Agtergrond / Background o 1

In Hoofstuk 4 van die WMFB word die munisipale begrotingsproses duidelikI
viteengesit en Artikels 15 tot 27 handel oor die implementering van die jaarlikse
begroting. I

Artikel 25 en 34 van Hoofstuk 5 van die Stelselswet bepaal dal die Hersiene GOP
ock jaarliks aan die Raad voorgelé moet word vir goedkeuring.

Chapter 4 of the MFMA clearly outlines the municipal budget process and Sections
15 to 27 give effect to the implementation of the annual budget.

|
In terms of Section 25 and 34 of Chapter 5 of the Systems Act the revised IDP must |
also be submitted lo the Council annually for approval.

2. Regsimplikasies / Legal Implications

Daar moet voldoen word aan die bepalings van die betrokke artikels in die WMFB en
die Stelselswel.

Die Munisipale Konsepbegroting en Konsep-GOP moet vir 21 dae geadverteer word
vir openbare kommentaar in die plaaslike koerant, op die munisipale webtuiste, by
hiblioteke en die Munisipale Kantore,

The provisions of the relevant seclions of the MFMA and Municipal Systems Act
must be complied with,

The Draft Budget and Draft IDP must be advertised for 21 days for public comment
in the local newspaper on the municipal website, at libraries and the Municipal
Offices.
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3. Finansiéle Implikasies / Financial Implications

Alle uitgawes aangegaan vanaf 1 Julie 2016 sal in ooreenslemming wees met die
goedgekeurde begroting soos bepaal in die WMFB.

All expenditure incurred from 1 July 2016 will be in accordance with the approved
budget as set out in the MFMA.

4. Voorgestelde Aanbeveling / Proposed Recommendation
Dal die Raad kennis neem van:
1. Kommentaar van die Burgemeester oor -

1.1 Die Konsepbegroling vir Totale inkomste vir 2016/2017 wat R237 459 584 bedra.
1.2 Die Kansepbegroting vir Totale Kapitaal- en Bedryfsuitgawes vir 2016/2017 wat
R253 784 205 bedra, asook aanduidende lotale bedrae vir die tydperk van die
Mediumtermynuitgaweraamwerk:
1.2.1 Konsepbegroting vir Bedryfsuitgawes wat R232 847 651 bedra.
1.2.2 Konsepbegroling vir Kapitale Uilgawes wat R20 936 554 bedra.
1.2.3 aanwendingsbegrotingsposte volgens die regering se finansiélestatiestiek-
funksie.
1.3 Verhoging van tariewe soos per tariewe skedule
(i) Eiendomsbelasting
(i) Elektrisiteit
(iii)Water
(iv)Vullisverwydering
(v) Riolering / Sanitasie

1.4 Die Dienslewerings- en Begrotingsimplementeringsplan (DLBIP) vir elke
Direktoraat, dit wil sé Munisipale Bestuurder, Korporatiewe, Gemeenskaps-
en Ontwikkelingsdienste, Finansiéle Dienste en Infrastruktuur en Behuisings-
diensle, soos uiteengesit in elk van die Sleutelprestasiemetingsaanwysers wat
gekoppel is aan die Sleutelprestasie-areas.

2. Ander hegrotingsverwante dokumente

(a) ‘'n Opsomming van die Hersiene Geintegreerde Ontwikkelingsplan vir
2016/2017 wat gekoppel is aan die begroting scos uileengesit in die
Kapitaalbegroting en Bedryfsbegroting.

(b) die Hersiene Konsepeiendomsbelastingsbeleid

{c} die Hersiene Konsepkredielbeheerbeleid

(d} die Konsepklientediensbeleid

(e) die Hersiene Konsepbehoefltigheidsbeleid tesame met die begroting vir
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gesubsideerde gralis dienste soos water, elektrisiteit, vullisverwydering en
riolering

die Hersiene Konseptariefbeleid vir water, elektrisiteit en ander munisipale
dienste

die Konsepbeleggingsbeleid en Beleggingskedule

ander sake soos voargeskryf word in Artikel 17 (1)(a-g)

- Tabel van toekennings en subsidies ingevolge die Wet op Verdeling van
Inkomste

- Voargestelde vergoedingsuitgawes per tabel vir-

(a) (i) Raadslede
(ii) Burgemeester
(iii)Speaker
{(iv)Lede van die Uitvoerende Kamitee
(v) Ander gewone Raadslede

(b} (i) Munisipale Bestuurder
(i) Hoof- Finansiéle Beampte
(iii) Direkteur. Korporatiewe Dienste
(iv) Direkteur: Gemeenskapsdienste
(v) Direkteur: Infrastruktuur en Behuisingsdienste
(vi) Ander Artikel 56-bestuurders

That the Council take note of:
1. The Mayor's commenis on -

1.1The Draft Total Revenue Budget for 2016/2017 amounting to R237 459 584.
1.2 The Draft Total Capital and Operating Budget for 2016/2017 amounting to
R253 784 205 and alsa indicative total amounts for Medium Term Expenditure
Framework:
1.2.1 Draft Operating Budget amounting to R232 847 651,
1.2.2 Draft Capital Budget amounting to R20 936 554.
1.2.3 The appropriation voles as per Government Finance Stalistics (GF)
Functions

1.3 Increase in tariffs as per tariff schedule
(i} Rales and Taxes
(ii) Electricity
(fi\Water
(iv)Refuse
(v) Sewerage / Sanitation
(vi) Secondary Tariffs
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1.4 The Services Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) for each
directorate i.e Municipal Manager, Corporate, Community and Development
Services, Financial Services and Infrastructure and Housing Services as set out
in each of the key performance measurement indicators which are aligned to the
Key Performance Areas.

2. Other budget-related documents such as:

(a) A Summary of the Revised Integrated Development Plan for 2015/2016,
which is linked to the budget as ouflined in the Capital Budget and Operating
Budget.

(b} the Revised Draft Property Rates Policy

{c) the Revised Draft Credit Control Policy

{d) the Draft Customer Care Policy

(e) the Revised Draft Indigent Policy, together with the budget for subsidized free
basic services such as water, electricity, refuse and sewerage

{f) the Revised Draft Tariff Policy for water, electricity and other municipal
services

(9) the Draft Investment Palicy and Schedule of investments

(h} other matters as prescribed in Section 17(1){(a-¢)

(i) Revised SCM

(i) Revised Subsistence and Travel Policy

- Granis and_ subsidies schedule according to Division of Revenue Act
(DORA)
- Proposed remuneration expenditure as per schedule for-

(a) (i} Councillors
(i) Mayor
(iii} Speaker
(iv) Members of Executive Committee
(v) Other Ordinary Councitlors

(b) (i} Municipal Manager
(i) Chief Financial Officer
(iif}Director: Corporate Services
(iv)Director: Communily Services
(v) Director: Infrastructure and Housing Services
(vi)} Other Section 56 managers
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. Kommentaar deur die Rekenpligte Beampte / Artikel 82 van die Strukturewet &
Artikel 60 van die Wet op Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur / Comments by the
Accounting Officer / Section 82 of the Structures Act & Section 60 of the
MFMA
Die Raad moet kennis neem van die Konsepbegroting, Begrotingsbeleide soos
hierbo genoem en die Geintegreerde Ontwikkelingsplan.

Council must take note of the Draft Budget, Budget Policies set out above and Draft
~_Integrated Development Plan,
6. Aanhangsels / Attachments

1. Hersiene Geintegreerde Ontwikkelingsplan vir 2016/2017 word aangeheg as
RV tot RV.
. Hersiene Konsepsiendomsbelastingsbeleid word aangeheg as RV tot RV,
. Hersiene Konsepkredietbeheerbeleid word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
. Konsepklientediensbeleid word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
. Hersiene Konsepbehoeftigheidsbeleid en begroting vir gratis basiese dienste
word aangeheg as RV tot RV,
. Konsepbegrotingsbeleid word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
. Konsepbeleggingsbeleid en beleggingskedule word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
. Batebestuurbeleid word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
Konseptariefbeleid word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
10 Munisipale Voorsieningskanaalbestuurbeleid: Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur
Wet, 2003 word aangeheg as RV tot RV,
11. MFBW Omsendskrywes no. 78 en 79 word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
12. Konsepbegroting vir Inkomste en Uitgawe vir 2016/2017 volgens funksionele
klassifikasie (Opsommingsversiag) word aangeheg as RV tot RV.
13. Skedule van Beraamde Tariewe word aangeheg as RV tot RV.

1. Revised Integrated Development Plan for 2016/2017 is attached as RVto R .

2. Revised Draft Property Rates Policy is attached as RV to RV.

3. Revised Draft Credit Control Policy is attached as RV to RV.

4. Draft Customer Care Policy is atlached as RV to RV.

5. Revised Draft Indigent Palicy and budget for free basic services is attached as
RVtoRV.

6. Draft Budget Policy is attached as RV to RV.

7. Draft Investment Policy and schedule of investments is attached as RV to RV.

8. Asset Management Palicy is attached as RV to RV. :

9. Draft Tariff Policy is altached as RV to RV . |

10. Municipal Supply Chain Management Policy: Municipal Finance Management |
Act, 2003 is altached as RV to RV.

11. MFMA Circulars No. 78 and 79 are attached as RV to RV. -

12. The Operating Draft Income and Expenditure for 2016/2017 by Classification |
(Summary Report) is altached as RV to RV. .

13. Schedule of Estimated Tariffs is altached as RV to RV.
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10.5 HERNUWING VAN OORTROKKE BANKFASILITEITE /| RENEWAL OF BANK

OVERDRAFT (5/19/1)

1. Agtergrond / Background

Die cortrokke fasiliteit in die bank verval en moet hernu word. Aansoekvarms is van
die bank ontvang en slegs ‘n Raadsbesluit waarby die oortrekking gemagtig word,
word afgewag ten einde die ooreenkoms met die bank te sluit. Die ocoreenkoms is
geldig vir ‘n tydperk van 12 maande wat op 30 Junie 2016 hernu moet word.

ABSA Bank het ook verskeie wentelkredietfasiliteite aan Emthanjeni Munisipaliteit
toegestaan, wat ook op 30 Junie 2016 hernu moet word.

The bank overdraft facility will expire and must be renewed. Application forms have
been received from the bank and only a Council resolution authorizing the overdraft
is awaited in order to conclude the agreement with bank. The agreement is valid for
a period of 12 months to be renewed on 30 June 2016.

ABSA Bank also provided various revolving credit facilities to Emthanjeni
Municipality which must also be renewed on 30 June 2016.

|F_ 2. Regsimplikasies / Legal Implications

Aangesien die MFBW, Wet 56 van 2003, verwag dat plaaslike owerhede teen
30 Junie 2016, nie meer 'n oortrokke banksaldo mag hé nie, moet 'n fasilileit meat
ABSA onderhandel word vir die finansiéle jaar 1 Julie 2016 tot 30 Junie 2017.

Die betrokke banksaldo moet herstel word na ‘n gunstige banksaldo op 30 Junie
2016, wal sal meebring dat ons nie meer ‘n cortrokke banksaldo op 30 Junie 2016
sal hé nie,

Algemene Beleggings sal, indien nodig, op 30 Junie 2016 losgemaak moet word om
n gunstige banksaldo te bewerksiellig.

In view of the fact that the MFMA, Act 56 of 2003, requires that local authorities may
not have an overdraft balance on 30 June 2016, a facility must be negotiated with
ABSA for the financial year 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017.

The overdraft balance must be restored to a positive bank balance on 30 June 2016 '

which will result in us nat having a bank overdraft on 30 June 2016.

General Investments will, if necessary, have to be withdrawn on 30 June 2016 fo
creale a positive bank balance.
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. Finansiéle Implikasies / Financial Implications

Ingevolge Artike! 45(2)(3)(4) van die Wet op Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur, No 56
van 2003, kan ‘'n oortrokke bankfasiliteit (skuld) slegs aangegaan word indien

{a) 'n resolusie van die Munisipale Raad, onderieken deur die Burgemeester, die
skuldooreenkoms goedkeur, en

(b) die rekenpligtige beampte die ooreenkoms of ander dokument wat die skuld skep
of erken, onderteken word.

Section 45(2)(3){4) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003,
provides for a bank overdraft (debt) to be incurred only if

(a) a resolution of the Municipal Council, signed by the Mayor, has approved the
debt agreement, and

(b) the accounting officer has signed the agreement or ancther documen! which '
creates or acknowledges the deb!.

e - -

. Voorgestelde Aanbeveling / Proposed Recommendation

__'__.. S |

. Dat die banksaldo op 30 Junie 2016 gunstig moet wees met geen cortrokke
bankbalans nie.

. Dat die herstel van die banksaldo van oortrokke na gunstig uit die Algemene |
Beleggingsrekeninge gemaak woard, indien nodig.

. Dat 'n oortrokke fasiliteit van R2 000 000.00 met ABSA onderhandel word vir clue
finansiéle jaar 1 Julie 2016 tot 30 Junie 2017, indien van toepassing.

. That the bank balance on 30 June 2016 must be positive with no overdraft.

. That conversion of the overdraft into a positive bank balance be accomplished i
from the General Investments Accounts, if necessary.

. That an overdraft facility of R2 000 000.00 be negotiated with ABSA for thei
financial yaar 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017, if applicable. |

]

. Kommentaar deur die Rekenpligte Beampte / Artikel 82 van die Strukturewet &

Artikel 60 van die Wet op Munisipale Finansiéle Bestuur / Comments by the

Accounting Officer / Section 82 of the Struciures Act & Section 60 of the
MFMA







Executive Summary Draft Budget 2016/2017
MTEF

Council adopted the budget schedule at the end of August 2015 where after the IDP and the
Budget processes started in earnest. Several consultative meetings, such as “Council meets
the People”, IDP Rep forums, Ward committee meetings were conducted to silicate the
views, input, needs, elc. of the various communities of Emthanjeni Municipality. These will
be recorded and will be taken into consideration when the Budget is aligned to the IDP.

The budget was prepared in conjunction with the MFMA circulars and other regulations. The

Budget was prepared on a conservative approach as stipulated in MFMA Circulars
66, 67,70,71,72,74,75, 78 and 79.

A. IDP and linkage of IDP to budget (Capital Budget)

J An Revised IDP will be tabled to Council during March 2016 and thereafter it will published
1 D for comments before it will be adopted by Council during the final budget meeting of 31 May
2016.

Communities re-assess their needs which forms part of the revised IDP document during the
Budget feedback meetings. However ali needs cannot be achieved, realized or addressed in
one financial year or over one MTEF period.

Emthanjeni Municipality’s total direct Draft Capital Budget for 2016/2017 financial year
amounts to R20 936 554.

The current linkage of the IDP to the budget amount to R59 449 304, that includes grants in
kind of R37 903 000 which the municipality does not has control over.

The total is broken down as follows:

1. Capital Grants R14 602 000
.S 1.1 Municipal Infrastructure Grant R11 602 000
\.J 1.2 Integrated National Electricity Programme (INEP) R 3000000
2. Own Capital Funding R 6944 304
21 Resealing and construction of new streets R2 800 000
-R2 800 000 will be financed form surplus internal funding
2.2 Machinery and Equipment amounts o R 962765
2.3 Building Renovations R 643 370
2.4 Prepaid Electricity Meters R 600000
2.5  Grap Compliance/SCOA Readiness R1 305 668
26  \Vehicles R 220000
2.3  Other smaller Capital Projects estimated to R 412 501.
3. Borrowed Capital RO
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CAPITAL GRANTS IN KIND R37 903 000
Regional Bulk Infrastructure Grant (RBIG) Water R15 000 000
Eradication of the Bucket System R22 903 000

These grants are administered by the Department of Water Sanitation. The grant amounts have
decrease over the years. The majority of grants promulgated over the past financial years, never
realized or were taken away or not spent, These grants should directly be allocated to
Emthanjeni Municipality so that the municipality can administered these grants directly.
Emthanjeni Municipality has no control over the spending or realization of these grants.

B. OPERATING BUDGET

1.Budgeted Income

1.1.  Total expected Net Rates Income will be R 29 165 435
-Rates will be levied on the market value of properties as per our municipal valuation
roll.
-The Amendments MPRA played a crucial role in calculating the net revenue
-New property categories such solar renewable energy has been created will be
levied for the time on 01 July 2015
- Agriculture properties will be levied according the ratio of 1:0,25 as per MPRA.
Further rebates will be granted to agricultural property according to the Rates Policy.
-Vacant property and Renewal Energy property have its own tariff.

Other Levied Services budgeted income are almost R113 841 258
1 -Electricity amount to RS7 925 365

2 -Water amounts R27 952 647

.3 -Sewerage amounts to R17 568 115

4 -Refuse removal amounts to R10 277 230

5 -Other service charges amounts to R117 901.

1.3  Fines will be budgeted for at gross amounts of R6 542 895

1.4 Licenses and permits will be R1 978 232

1.5 Rental of facilities and equipment expected income will be R685 723

1.6 Interest Income will be R1 759 690

1.6.1 External Investments amounts to R805 600

1.6.2 Interest charged on Arrear accounts amounts to R954 090
1.7  Operating Grants and Subsidies amount to R41 660 000
1.7.1 - Equitable Share R36 197 000

1.7.2 -Finance Management Grant R1 625 000

1.7.3 -Municipal Systems Grant R 0

1.7.4 -Library Development Fund R1611 000

1.7.5 -EPWP R1 000 000

1.7.6 Primary Health Subsidy R1 227 000
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Since the Municipal Systems Grants have been allocated to the Provincial Government,
COGSHTA, we need to re-assess our Shared Service Agreement with Pixley Ka Seme
District. This is important as the Shared Service Accounts have been paid from the MSIG
that the municipality received over the years.

1.8 Other Budgeted Revenue R27 094 751

Prepaid Electricity Sales of R26 209 506 is included in the other budgeted revenue.

1.9 The Total Budgeted Revenue (Income) for the 2016/2017 Financial year
are R237 459 584. The total budgeted income consists out of

1.9.1 Capital Grants - R 14 602 000
1.9.2 Operating Grants and Subsidies - R 41 660 000
1.9.3 Borrowed Capital - R 0

1.9.4 Own generation of budgeted income - R 181 197 584

There is an increase in total budgeted income of between 7 and 8 % in relation to the
previous year.

The main reasons for the increase are:

(i)

(ii)
(i)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

All tariffs for Rates and Taxes, Water, Sewerage and Refuse will be

increase very conservatively by 6% in relation to the previous financial
ear.

électricity tariffs will be increased by 8% but NERSA final guidelines

and approval will have an impact on this final tariffs.

A very cautious and conservative approach were followed during the

budget preparations. The current payment patterns of consumers

played a crucial role in our budget approach.

The Anticipated Budgeted Revenue for the majority of services has

decrease from the previous year. This relates to the current economic

conditions that exist nationally and within Emthanjeni Municipality.

The general increment of service tariffs and levies was followed as per

MFMA guidelines.

The capital budget was separated between direct allocations that

Emthanjeni Municipality will received. The In Kind Grants that are

not administered or control by the municipality hence it does not

really forms part of our Draft Budget.

The general apathy of non-payment for municipal services by the

consumers were considered when tariff increments were

determined. funding, as well as the transfer of funds from

Investment portfolio.

Continuous Credit Control Mechanisms and the enforcement of

credit control policies together with all budgetary policies cannot

be more emphasize as it will impact negative or positive on the

operations of the municipality.

The budget has been prepared on the basis of sustainable

delivery and financial viability and cost effectiveness to render

municipal services to its communities, residents and consumers

on an ongoing, unstoppable basis.




2. Expenditure
2.1 Salary and wages

-The total salaries and social contributions for the year amounts to R70 201 232

(R66 803 570 in 2015/2016)

-Annual increase of 6.5 % has been provided as per Collective Wage Agreement as per
SALGBC (before the SALGBC official notice).

-The total salary package includes the salary of all the current personnel and some vacant
positions. Not all posts on the approved organogram have been budgeted for in the 2016-
2017 financial year. If we have to budget for all the positions, our salary budget will take up
more than 70% of the municipal operating budget

-Efficient and effective alignment of staff, should to be undertaken to ensure overall
productivity of staff within the municipality.

-The salary budget needs to be monitored as we must really assess the current staff and
positions. The productivity of staff need to be prioritized as much more work must be done
on this issue.

-The salary percentage to the Operating Budget is 32% and to the total capital and
operating budget is +/- 29%

2.2 Councillor Remuneration
-Councilor Remuneration amounts for R4 786 954 (R4 579 928 in 2015/2016).

-Councillor remuneration has been provided a 7.5% increase on the current Public Officers
Bearers Act, dated December 2015.

-the councilor remuneration percentage to the total capital and operating budget is +/- 1.6%

The total salaries and wages, social contributions and councilor remuneration is 26% in
relation to the {otal capital and operating budget.

2.3  Provision for Bad Debts, working capital reserve to R11 119 127 (R10 229 410
2015/2016).

2.4  Net Impairment of assets & depreciation estimated at R9 597 035
(R9 248 185 in 2015/2018)

2,5 Repair and maintenance total estimation are R 17 805 174 (R16 618 102 in
2015/2016) which is being be split between Materials and Contracted Services.
An amount of R3 900 000 is included for the Operating Vehicle Leases {Full
Maintenance Leases)

2.6 Contracted Services costs are budgeted for R11 395 198
(R11 654 783 in 2015/2016)

2.7 Capital Charges for interest on loans amounts to R5 633 340
(R3 555 663 in 2015/2016). The main reason for the 200% increase is due to the
augmentation of the fleet that will be according the full maintenance lease
agreement.

2.8  Bulk Purchases for Water and Electricity amounts to R57 390 803 (R 53 094 484
in 2015/2016). This increase represents mainly the Eskom’s tariff increment of

e ——— -

8% as stated in the MFMA Circular issued by National Treasury. The approved
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remuneration of Farmers for the mining of water whether through access or
damage should be finalise before the end of the current financial year. An
Equitable Damage costs for all farmers should be determine and concluded
before the end of 30 June 2016.

29 Operating Grants and subsidy expenditure amounts to R8 730 948
(R11 661 951 in 2015/2016), which are mostly spent on the Indigent Households
for the subsidized free basic services provide to approved Indigent
Households.

2.10 Capital Grants payments amounts to R14 602 000. These amounts are mainly
recognized on the income side and also on the expenditure side.

211 Capital projects that are finance from own funds amounts to R6 944 304
(R6 330 541 in 2015/2016).

2.12 The ward projects are finance from the repair and maintenance category of
R2 100 000. Each ward has an allocation of R300 000,

2.13  Other expenditure amounts to R37 616 391 (R27 708 488 in 2015/2016) include
some of activities that will take place amongst others:

-Employee Wellness R1 600 000.
-Audit Fees R3 647 241

-Telephone R1 029 568
-Departmental Accounts (Water, Electricity, Street lighting, etc.) R4 272 085
-Fuel and Qil R3 478 019
-General Valuation Costs R 650000
-Insurance R1 679 497
-Subsistence and Travel R1 589 779
-SALGA Membership R 715176
-Electrical Rural Pump Costs for Water provision R2 120 810
-Postage R 352604
-Stationery and Printing R 915250
-Skills Development and Training R 429906
-Security Services R2 658 000

The major types have been decrease in relation to the previous year. A marginal
increment was allocated at those expenditure types who increased. Real Budget
Austerity measures are being introduce to monitor expenditure. Proper planning must
be the order of the day when it comes to spending. The “NICE TO HAVES”
procurement must be stopped or eliminated as it will not assist the current plans and
reserves,

Strict control mechanisms must be enforced by Budget Drivers. Expenditure must be
prioritized. Travelling expenses must be managed properly and only meetings that
will add value to the municipality should be attended by Councillors and Officials of
the municipality.

The Budgeted Expenditure for 2016/2017 are R253 784 205 which comprise of
Operating Budget of R232 847 651 and the Capital budget of R20 936 554. This
represents a total increase of +-4% in the relation to the previous year's Budget.
The increase is almost insignificant as it is our attempt to enforce budgeting control.
The realization of revenue impacts on the expenditure management.




C.Tariff Increments

Tariffs expected increases for the 2016/2017 financial year are set out below. These

are

1. Rates and taxes

i
»
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Residential and Agricultural properties will increased by 6%
Other categories will increased see an exponential increments

The General Valuation Roll will be continued up and till June 2017.
Properties where values increase or decrease will not see huge tariff
increases

Agriculture properties will be levied according (residential properties) in
the ratio 1:0,25 and must apply for the rebate of 28% before the end of
August 2016.

The owner must be at least sixty (65) years of age and fotal gross
monthly income or earnings must not exceed

(i) an amount of R4 950 to qualify for a 50% rates rebate

(i) an amount of R5 550 to qualify for a 45% rates rebate

(iii) an amount of R6 200 to qualify for a 40% rates rebate

Mining and Industrial property will increase higher than the other
categories. Portions of farms which are exclusive used for renewable
or solar energy will be part of this category of properties.

2, Electricity

»

R
»

3. Water

Basic fee will increase by 8%

Conventional and Prepaid electricity tariffs will be increase (see tariff
schedule

1-50 kWh increase by 8 %
51-350 kWh increase by 8%
351 and more kWh units increase by 8%

Basic fee will increase by 6%.
Water consumption will be increased by 6% in all blocks

Water will be levied from the first kiloliter consumed for all consumers
that are not residential consumers.

A new block is being introduced for consumers who are consuming
more than 45kI.
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» Tariffs increased by 6%
5. Refuse removal
» Tariffs increased by 6%

6. All other secondary tariffs.

» Tariffs increased by 9%

D.Indigent households

A total of almost 4000 indigent households are expected to receive subsidized services
every month. The subsidizes services include

1. Rates RO
{the first R28 000 of municipal valuation s exempted from paying Rates and taxes)
2. 50 kWh of electricity R46. 74
3. Water R118.48
» Basic fee R69.35
» Consumption: 6000 liters (6kl) of water R30.64
» Consumption: 2000 liters (8kl) of water R18.49
(Policy makes provision that indigent Households will receive
8ki of water).
4. Monthly sewerage R171.71
5. Monthly refuse removal R107.08
Total monthly subsidized services to Indigent Households R444.01
Please nole: Free Basic services amounts include Value added Tax (VAT)
The re-application of all indigent Households for Subsidized services (FBS) can

continued and be process early in the 2016/2017 financial year. The process needs to
be completed by end of June 2016 in order to update our records and registers
annually. Auditors are auditing the application process very intensively.

J. CONCLUSION




The 2016/2017 budget is an budget to make services affordable to all consumers. It is a plan
to implement the cross-cutting of expenditure. The budget testifies of the continuation with
the developmental agenda to expand the infrastructure to new and higher levels. It also aims
to continue with the creation of jobs, fighting poverty and most of all ensure that we invest in
infrastructure assets of the Emthanjeni municipality.

The increases of tariffs are mainly focused on affordability and to ensure that we generated
all revenue as budgeted for. Hence the low increment of operating expenditure and
expenditure control that will be sharpened over the next financial year.

The Council commitment to create an conducive environment for Investors to invest in the
economy of Emthanjeni municipality cannot be underestimated. The various economic
initiatives are testimony of Council's commitment, readiness and ability to ensure that we
continue with the path of National Development Plan.

3.The budget is prepared under the auspices and principles from the Minister of
finance and the MEC of Finance that all sectors of government must ensure that
austerity measures are introduced. Sustainable service delivery still takes
precedence in this draft budget.
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1.2 Operating Revenue Framework

For Emthanjeni to continue improving the quality of services provided to its citizens it needs to
generate the required revenue. In these tough economic times, strong revenue management
is fundamental to the financial sustainability of every municipality. The reality is that we are
faced with development backlogs and poverty and socio economic conditions that affect rural




available funding; hence difficult choices have to be made in relation to tariff increases and
balancing expenditures against realistically anticipated revenues.

The municipality’s revenue strategy is built around the following key components:

. National Treasury's guidelines and macroeconomic policy;

. Growth in the Municipality and continued economic development;

. Efficient revenue management, which aims to ensure a 90 per cent annual collection
rate for property rates and other key service charges;

. Electricity tariff increases as approved by the National Electricity Regulator of South
Africa (NERSAY);

. Achievement of full cost recovery of specific user charges especially in relation to
trading services;

. Determining the tariff escalation rate by establishing/calculating the revenue
requirement of each service;

. The municipality's Property Rates Policy approved in terms of the Municipal Property
Rates Act, 2004 (Act 6 of 2004) (MPRA);

. Increase ability to exiend new services and recover costs;

. The municipality's Indigent Policy and rendering of free basic services; and

. Tariff policies of the Municipality.

. The recovering of outstanding arrears with the assistance of a debt collection firm.

The following table is a summary of the 2016/17 MTREF (classified by main revenue
source): Table 1 Summary of revenue classified by main revenue source

Description 201243 | 201314 | 2014H5 Current Year 2015H6 201617 Medium Term Revenue

Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audi| 2"0%¢! | Budget | Budget

Rhoussnd QOutcome | Qutcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast | outcome Year | Year#! | Year:Z

201617 | 201718 | 2018H9

Revenue By Source

Propertyrales 17220 21035 21905| 27503| 27503 27503| 27503 20165| 30915] 51010

Property rates - penalties & collection charges 103 150 170 - - - - - - -
Sendce charges - electicityrevenue AB279| 564BB| 59935 | 57935| 53635 53635| 53635| 57925| 61401] 108311
Senice charges - water revenue 16439 18746 20888 26111| 25411 2541%| 25411] 27953( 29630 48889
Sendce charges - sanitation revenug 94217 10302] 106917 14888 14888| 14888| 14888 17568| 18622| 30727
Senice charges - refuse revenue 9323 5705| 5822( 8937 8937 B9I7) 8937| 10277| 108%4]| 17975
Sendce charges - other 428 415 405 20 40 240 240 18 270 445
Rental of facilities and equipment 947 47 1189 652 652 652 652 GB6 732 885
Interest eamed - extemal investments 1595 1030 950 715 715 715 715 806 854 1409
Interest eamed - outstanding debtors 494 625 646 873 873 8713 am 954 1011 1669

Dividends received - - - - - - - - - -
Fines 12611 17785 23011| 7581 7581 7h81| 75B1| 6543 6935| 11444
Licences and permils 120 1305 1257 2099| 2099| 2099| 2099 1978 2097 3450

Agencysenices - & o 5 . = - = 5 5
Transfers recognised - operational 43510 45752 39550 40601 40601| 40601] 406017 41660 41753 47657
Other revenue G148 3223 T256| 23434 24234 42| 24234 27095 28688 | 47266
Gains on disposal of PPE K1} 164 979 130 130 130 130 110 139 148
Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers | 164039 | 183452 | 194653 | 211697 | 207497 | 207497 207497 222858 | 233942 | 364 285

and contributions)
I Table 2 Percentage growth in revenue by main revenue source
Description Current Year 2016/17 201617 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure Framework
— -————Yey —




Budget % 201617 +1 2017118 +2 2018119 5
Revenue By Source
13.21% 14.00%
13.09%
Property rates 77503 | 1325% 29165 30915 51010
Praperty rates - penalties & - - - - - -
collection chamges
25.85% 25.99% 26 25% 2781%
Service charges - electricity
fevenue 53635 57 925 61401 10131
Service cha[ges - water 25 an 1225% 27 953 12.54% 29 630 12 66% 48 889 1181%
revenue
7.18% 7.86% 7.96% 8.43%
Service charges - sanitation 14 888 17 568 18622 0727
revenue
4.31% 461% 4.66% 4.93%
SeNiCE chafges -refuse 8937 10 277 10 894 17 975
revenue
240 0.12% 118 0.05% 270 0.12% 445 0.12%
Service charges - other
0.31% 0.21% 0.31% 0.24%
Rental of facilities and 652 686 732 885
equipment
0.34% 0.36% 0.3"% 0.39%
Interest eamed - extemal 715 806 854 1409
invesimenis
0.42% 043% 0.43% 0.46%
Interest eamed - outstanding 873 954 101 1669
debtors
Dividends received
75681 3.65% 6543 294% 6935 296% 11444 3.14%
Fines
2099 1.01% 1978 0.89% 2097 0.89% 3460 0.95%
Licences and permils
Agency services
1957% 18.69% 17.84% 13.08%
operatignal
2424 | 1168% 27005 | 12.16% 28688 1226 47256 | 1297%
Other revenue
130 0.06% 130 0.06% 139 0.08% 148 0.04%
Gains on disposal of PPE
207 457 100% 222858 100% 233942 100% 364 285 100%
Total Revenue (exciuding
capital transfers a and
contributions)

in line with the formats prescribed by the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, capital
transfers and contributions are excluded from the operating statement, as inclusion of these
revenue sources would distort the calculation of the operating surplus/deficit.

Revenue generated from rates and services charges forms a significant percentage of the
revenue basket for the Municipality. Rates and service charge revenues comprise more than
ten percentage of the total revenue mix. In the 2016/17 financial year, revenue from rates and
services charges totalled R143, 007 million or 64.17 %. This increases to R151, 732 million,
and R250, 357 million in the respective financial years of the MTREF. A notable trend is the
increase in the total percentage revenue generated from rates and services charges which
increases from 8.67 per cent in 2016/17, to 5.75 per cent in 2017/18 and to 39.39 % in
2018/19. This growth can be mainly attributed to the increased share that the sale of electricity
contributes to the total revenue mix, which in turn is due to rapid increases in the demand of
electricity due to the various developments taking place in Emthanjeni Municipality. Eskom
tariffs for bulk electricity. The above table excludes revenue foregone arising from discounts
and rebates associated with the tariff policies of the Municipality. Details in this regard are
contained in Table 64 MBRR SA1.

The largest source of income is generated from Electricity which totals R57, 925. Property
Rates is the second largest revenue source totalling 13.09 per cent or R29, 165 million rand
and increases to R51, 010 million by 2018/19. The third largest source is water and it followed
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income received from permits and licenses, building plan fees, connection fees, transport fees
and advertisement fees. Departments have been urged to review the tariffs of these items on
an annual basis to ensure they are cost reflective and market related.

Operating grants and transfers totals R41, 660 million in the 2016/17 financial year and

steadily increases to R47, 256 million by 2018/19.

The following table gives a breakdown of the various operating grants and subsidies
allocated to the municipality over the medium term:

Table 3 Operating Transfers and Grant Receipts

Description 201213 | 201314 | 201415 Current Year 2015/16 2016/17 Medium Term Revenue
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | BU99°t | Budget | Budget
e Outcome | Qutcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast Year | Year+l | Year:2
201617 | 201718 | 201819
RECEIPTS:
Operating Transfers and Grants
Nationa! Government: 37623 | 38493 | 38876) 39459| 39459 39459 | 38822 38586 41307
Local Government Equilabie Share | 34323 | 34819 353427 35929 35929| 35929 36197 | 36886 39607
Finance Management 1500 1550 1600 1600 1600 1600 1625 1700 1700
Municipal Systems Improvement 800 890 934 930 930 930 - - -
EPWP Incentive 1000 1234 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 - -
Energy Efficiency and Demand Mar - - - - - - - - -
Provincial Government: 1683 4912 157 1142 1142 1142 2838 2527 2674
Health subsidy 1001 1150 - - - - 1227 1288 1363
Housing - 458 - - - - - - -
Sport and Recreation 682 679 757 1142 1142 1142 161 1239 1311
Department of Education - 235 - - - - - - -
Department of Roads - 2389 - - - - - - -
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -
Other grant providers: - 2050 - - - - - - -
Dapariment of Waler Affairs - 2050 - - - - - - -
Total Operating Transfers and Gran| 39306 | 45455| 38633} 40601| 40601 40601| 41660 41113 | 43981

Tariff-sefting is a pivotal and strategic part of the compilation of any budget. When rates, tariffs
and other charges were revised, local economic conditions, input costs and the affordability of
services were taken into account to ensure the financial sustainability of the Municipality.

National Treasury continues to encourage municipalities to keep increases in rates, tariffs and
other charges as low as possible. Municipalities must justify in their budget documentation all
increases in excess of the 6 per cent upper boundary of the South African Reserve Bank's
inflation target. Excessive increases are likely to be counterproductive, resulting in higher
levels of non-payment.

The percentage increases of both Eskom and Water bulk tariffs are far beyond the mentioned
inflation target. Given that these tariff increases are determined by external agencies, the
impact they have on the municipality's electricity and in these tariffs are largely outside the
control of the Municipality. Discounting the impact of these price increases in lower consumer
tariffs will erode the Municipality’s future financial position and viability.

It must also be appreciated that the consumer price index, as measured by CPI, is not a good
measure of the cost increases of goods and services relevant to municipalities. The basket of
goods and services utilised for the calculation of the CPI consist of items such as food, petrol
and medical services, whereas the cost drivers of a municipality are informed by items such as
the cost of remuneration, bulk purchases of electricity and water, petrol, diesel, chemicals,
cement etc. The current challenge facing the Municipality is managing the gap between cost
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drivers and tariffs levied, as any shortfall must be made up by either operational efficiency
gains or service level reductions. Within this framework the Municipality has undertaken the
tariff setting process relating to service charges as follows.

1.2.1 Property Rates

Property rates cover the cost of the provision of general services. Determining the effective
property rate tariff is therefore an integral part of the municipality’s budgeting process.

Property Rates tariffs increased very conservatively since 2009.

National Treasury’s MFMA Circular No. 51 deals, inter alia with the implementation of the
Municipal Property Rates Act, with the regulations issued by the Department of Co-operative
Governance. These regulations came into effect on 1 July 2009 and prescribe the rate ratio for
the non-residential categories, public service infrastructure and agricultural properties relative
to residential properties to be 0,25:1. The implementation of these regulations was done in the
previous budget process and the Property Rates Policy of the Municipality has been amended
accordingly.

The following stipulations in the Property Rates Policy are highlighted:

. The first R15 000 of the market value of a property used for residential purposes is
Excluded from the rate-able value (Section 17(h) of the MPRA). In addition to this
rebate, a further R13 000 reduction on the market value of a property will be granted in
terms of the Municipality’s own Property Rates Policy;

. 28 per cent rebate will be granted on all agricultural properties but must be applied for
before 31 August 2016 as per the rates policy.
. Mining and Industrial property will increase higher than the other categories. Portions of

farms which are exclusive used for renewable or solar energy will be part of this
category of properties.

. 100 per cent rebate will be granted to registered indigents in terms of the Indigent
Policy if the market value of their property is R28 000 or less.

. For pensioners a further rebate will be granted upon application and must the criteria as
set out in the Rates Policy

. The Municipality may award a 100 per cent grant-in-aid on the assessment rates of

rate-able properties of certain classes such as registered welfare organizations,
institutions or organizations performing charitable work, sports grounds used for
purposes of amateur sport. The owner of such a property must apply to the Chief
Financial Officer in the prescribed format for such a grant.

The categories of rate-able properties for purposes of levying rates and the proposed rates for
the 2016/17 financial year based on a percentage increases(decreases) from 1 July 2016 is
contained below:




Table 4 Comparison of proposed rates to be levied for the 2016/17 financial year

Category Current Tariff Proposed tariff
(1 July 2015) | (from 1 July 2016)
, c¢/R ¢/R
Residential properties 0.012860 0,013632
0.016934 0,016854
State owned properties
0.013396 0,013333
Business & Guesthouses
Industrial 0.017415 0,017093
Place of Worship 0.128610 0,128610
Public Benefit Organization 0.012861 0,012861
Mining 0.020344 0,017252
Vacant land 0.032550 0,017252
Farm property where a portion is used for 0,043460
renewable energy generation purpose 0.041000

1.2.2 Sale of Water and Impact of Tariff Increases

South Africa faces similar challenges with regard to water supply as it did with electricity, since
demand growth outstrips supply. Consequently, National Treasury is encouraging all
municipalities to carefully review the level and structure of their water tariffs to ensure:

+  Water tariffs are fully cost-reflective — including the cost of maintenance and renewal of
purification plants, water networks and the cost associated with reticulation expansion;

«  Water tariffs are structured to protect basic levels of service and ensure the provision of
free water to the poorest of the poor (indigent);, and

«  Water tariffs are designed to encourage efficient and sustainable consumption.

In addition National Treasury has urged all municipalities to ensure that water tariff structures
are cost reflective by 2015.

Better maintenance of infrastructure, new water provision construction programmes and cost-
reflective tariffs will ensure that the supply challenges are managed in future to ensure
sustainability. Emthanjeni Municipality will increase water tariffs by an average of 6 per cent
from 1 July 2016.

Emthanjeni Municipality has undertaken a critical assessment of its capital infrastructure
requirements. Regional Bulk Water's assessment indicates that for the extension of water
resources in De Aar and Water's current infrastructure is unlikely to sustain its long-term ability
to supply water and they had no other choice to upgrade infrastructure, hence the significant
increase in the cost of water.

A tariff increase of 6 per cent from 1 July 2016 for water is proposed. This is based on input
cost assumptions of between 6 to 15 per cent increase in the cost of bulk water to the water
farmers. In addition 6 kt water per 30-day period will again be granted free of charge to all
households.




A summary of the proposed tariffs for households (residential) and non-residential are as

follows:

Table 5 Proposed Water Tariffs

CURRENT TARIFFS PROPOSED TARIFFS
2B 2014/15 2016117
Rand per k€ Rand per k¢

RESIDENTIAL

Basic fee: Residential 57.39 £60.83

(i} 1 to 6 ke per 30-day period

(i) 7 to 15 ki per 30-day period 7.65 3.11

(i) 16 to 30 k& per 30-day period 8.69 9.21

{iv) 31 to 45 ki per 30-day period 10.13 10.74

(v} 46 k& and more per 30-day period 10.64 11.28
NON-RESIDENTIAL

Basic fee: Business 293.16 310.75

{i) 1 to 6 ki per 30-day period 4,23 4.48

{i) 7to 15kt per 30-day period 7.65 3.11

{ii) 16 to 30 k& per 30-day period 8.69 9.21

(ivy 31 to 45 kE per 30-day period 10.13 10.74

{v) 46 kt and more per 30-day period 10.64 11.28

The following table shows the impact of the proposed increases in water tariffs on the water

charges for a single dwelling-house:

Table 6 Comparison between current water charges and increases (Domestic)

Monthly Current amount Proposed Difference Percentage
amount (Increase) change
consumption Payable Payable
ke R R R
Basic Fee 60.83 60.83 3.44 6%
6 0%
15 68.85 72.99 414 6%
30 130.35 138.15 7.80 6%
45 151.95 161.10 9.15 6%
51 63.84 67.68 3.84 6%
100 521.36 575.28 53.92 6%

The tariff structure of the 2016/17 financial year has unchanged, however the tariff structure is
still designed to charge higher levels of consumption a higher rate, steadily increasing to a rate

of R11.28 per kilolitre for consumption in excess of 45ke per 30 day period.

1.2.3 Sale of Electricity and Impact of Tariff Increases

NERSA has announced the revised bulk electricity pricing structure. A 9.4 per cent increase in
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Considering the Eskom increases, the consumer tariff had to be increased by 8 per cent to
offset the additional bulk purchase cost from 1 July 2016. Furthermore, it should be noted that
given the magnitude of the tariff increase, it is expected to depress growth in electricity
consumption, which will have a negative impact on the municipality's revenue from electricity.

Registered indigents will again be granted 50 kWh per 30-day period free of charge.

The following table shows the impact of the proposed increases in electricity tariffs on the
water charges for domestic customers:

Table 7 Comparison between current electricity charges and increases (Domestic)

Percentage
Monthly Current amount Proposed amount | Difference change
consumption Payable Payable {Increase)
kWh R R R
100 80.75 98.00 7.25 8%
8%
250 149.68 162.00 12.32
8%
500 300.20 324.00 23.80
8%
750 350.63 378.00 27.37
8%
1 000 365.85 390.00 2415
8%
2 000 1447.38 1560.00 112.62

It should further be noted that Emthanjeni Municipality implemented the IBT as required by
NERSA. The effect thereof will be that the higher the consumption, the higher the cost per
kWh. The aim is to subsidise the lower consumption users (mostly the poor). Emthanjeni
Municipality has implemented the Incline Block Tariff {IBT) structure since 01 July 2009.

The inadequate electricity bulk capacity and the impact on service delivery and development
remains a challenge for the municipality. Most of the suburbs and network reticulation was
designed or strengthened during the 1980’s and 1990’s with an expected 20-25 year life-
expectancy. The upgrading of the municipality’s electricity network has therefore become a
strategic priority, especially the substations and transmission lines.

Owing to the high increases in Eskom’s bulk tariffs, it is clearly not possible to fund these

necessary upgrades through increases in the municipal electricity tariff — as the resultant tariff
increases would be unaffordable for the consumers.

1.2.4 Sanitation and Impact of Tariff Increases

A tariff increase of 6 per cent for sanitation from 1 July 2016 is proposed. This is based on the
input cost assumptions related to water. It should be noted that electricity costs contributes
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approximately between 20 - 30 per cent of waste water treatment input costs. The following
factors also contribute to the proposed tariff increase:

. Free sanitation will be applicable to registered indigent households; and
. The network extension and upgrade of exiting purification plants will impact on tariffs
over the MTEF period.

The total revenue expected to be generated from rendering this service amounts to R17, 568
million for the 2016/17 financial year.

The following table compares the current and proposed tariffs:

Table 8 Comparison between current sanitation charges and increases

CURRENT TAR!FF PROPOSED TARIFF
CATEGORY 2016/17 2016/17
Residential Households 142.10 150.62
Business 198.62 210.53
Government 267.82 283.88

1.2.5 Waste Removal and Impact of Tariff Increases

Currently solid waste removal is at a deficit. It is widely accepted that the rendering of this
service should at least break even, which is currently not the case. The Municipality will have
to implement a solid waste strategy to ensure that this service can be rendered in a
sustainable manner over the medium to long-term. Considering the deficit, it is recommended
that a comprehensive investigation into the cost structure of solid waste function be
undertaken, and that this include investigating alternative service delivery models. The
outcomes of this investigation will be incorporated into the next planning cycle.

A 6 percent increase in the waste removal tariff is proposed from 1 July 2016. Higher
increases will not be viable in 2016/17 owing to the significant increases implemented in
previous financial years as well as the overall impact of higher than inflation increases of other
services.

The following table compares current and proposed amounts payable from 1 July 2016:

Table 9 Comparison between current waste removal fees and increases

Service CURRENT TARIFFS PROPOSED TARIFFS
201617 201617

Tariff per households
container per month or part of
a month: 88.61 93.90

Tariff per Special refuse
removal * 155.07 163.60

Building rubble* 310.16 329.10




1.2.6 Overall impact of tariff increases on households

The following table shows the overall expected impact of the tariff increases on a large and
small household, as well as an indigent household receiving free basic services.

Table 10 MBRR Table SA14 — Household bills

002113 | 201314 | 2014015 Current Year 2015116 GG TR B GO TS UL RO
F ramework
Description Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Ful Year 8::::“ B::f:‘ ﬁ::ff: 3:;9:;
Outcome | Outcome | Outcome | Budget Budget | Forecast 201617 201617 201718 201818
Rand/cent % Incr.
Monthly Account for
Household - 'Middle Income
Range'
Rates and services charges:
Properly raies 63758 787.75 831.08 880.94 850 94 880.94 6.0% 933.80 99983 | 104922
Eleckicily Basic levy 104 94 1124 1735 13167 13167 13167 8.0% 142.20 147.94 156.82
Electricity. Consumplion 97774 ] 104267 111972 | 125633 | 125633 | 1256233 80% | 135684 | 146539 | 158262
Waker: Basc levy 4901 5196 54.55 57.82 57.82 57 82 0% 61.29 64 97 68.87
Waker: Consumpfion 168 96 17802 187 97 19925 19925 198.25 60% 211,20 22387 237.30
Sanitation 11875 125.86 13342 142.09 142,08 14208 6.0% 150.62 159 66 169.24
Reluse removal 74.05 78.49 8320 88.61 8861 8861 6.0% 93.92 99 56 105.53
Ober - - -
sub-total]l 213103 | 237699 | 252728 | 275671 275671 | 2756.M 70% | 294987 | 3151.22 | 336960
VAT on Services 209.08 22249 237.47 262.61 26261 262.61 41261 44117 47174
Total large household bill: 234011 ) 259948 2764.75| 301932 301932 301932 11.4% | 336248 | 359239 | 38414
% Increasel-decrease 1.1% 6.4% 9.2% - - 11.4% 6.8% 6.9%
Monghly Account for
Household - 'Affordabte
Range’
Rates and services charges:
Properly raies 58872 59608 628.87 666.60 666.60 666.60 6.0% 706.60 748 98 79363 |
Electicity: Basic levy 10494 111.24 1735 13167 131.67 13167 8.0% 14220 147 94 15682
Electicity: Cansumpton 65302 69521 74658 83766 837 66 837.66 80% 904.67 877.05 | 1085.21
Water. Basic levy 49 51.95 5455 57.82 5782 5782 6.0% 61.29 64 97 68.86
Water. Consurmpiion m:2u 140.04 147.04 155.86 15586 155.86 6.0% 165.21 17512 18563
Saniaion 1875 125 86 133.42 14209 14209 142.09 6.0% 150.62 159.65 169.23
Refise removal 7405 7848 83.20 8861 88 61 88.61 60% 9393 99.56 10554
Oter - - o S - - - - - =
sub-total|l 172060 | 179887 | 191101 | 208031 | 208031 | 2080.31 6.9% | 222452 237328 253822
VAT on Services 158 46 168.3% 179 50 197 92 187.92 19792 21214 227.40 243.78
Total small household blll: 1879.07 | 1967.27 | 205051 | 227823 | 2278.23| 227823 T0% | 243666 | 2600.68 | 2779.00
% increasel-decrease 4.7% §.3% 9.0% - - 7.0% 6.7% 6.5%
033 043 +1.00 -
ﬁonlhly Account for
Household - 'Indigent”
Household receiving free
Rates and services charges:
Property raes 3909 40.25 4246 45M 450 450 6.0% 471 5057 5361
Electicity Basic levy = - - - - - - - - -
Elecwicity: Consumplon 3218 3405 3650 4095 4095 4095 8.0% 44.23 47.76 5159
Water: Basic levy 4901 51.96 54 55 57.82 57.82 5782 6.0% 61.29 64.97 68.86
Water: Consumpion = = = S - - - - - -
Sanitation 11875 12586 13342 14209 142.09 14209 6.0% 15062 150 65 169 23
Refuse removal 7405 7849 8320 8861 8861 B8 61 6.0% 9393 99 56 105 54
Oter - - - - - - - - - -
sub-total]  312.08 330.61 350.13 374.48 374.48 37448 6.2% 397.78 422.5 448.83
VAT on Services 38.36 4065 4307 46.13 4613 4613 4901 5207 5533
Total small household bill: 351.43 N5 39321 420.61 420.61 42061 6.2% 446,79 474.58 §04.16
% increasel-decrease




1.3 Operating Expenditure Framework

Emthanjeni Municipality's expenditure framework for the 2016/17 budget and MTREF is
informed by the following:

+ The asset renewal strategy and the repairs and maintenance plan;

Balanced budget constraint (operating expenditure should not exceed operating
revenue) unless there are existing uncommitted cash-backed reserves to fund any
deficit;

Funding of the budget over the medium-term as informed by Section 18 and 19 of the
MFMA,

The capital programme is aligned to the asset renewal strategy and backlog eradication
plan;

Operational gains and efficiencies will be directed to funding the capital budget and other
core services; and

Strict adherence to the principle of no project plan no budget.

The following table is a high level summary of the 2016/17 budget and MTREF (classified per
main type of operating expenditure):

Table 11 Summary of operating expenditure by standard classification Item

NCO073 Emthanjenti - Table A4 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure} |
201617 Medium Term Revenue
Description 201213 | 2013H4 | 2014115 Current Year 2015116 & Expenditure Framework
Audited | Audited | Audited | Criginal | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit Budget | Budget | Budget
R Outcome | Qutcome ] Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast | outcome Year Year+1 | Year+2
20617 | 201718 | 2018M9
Expenditure By Type
Employee related cosls 56449 | 59894 | 66864 | 66804| 66804| 66804| 66804| 70201| 74514| 79842
Remuneration of councillors 3694 4157 4126 4 580 4 580 4 580 4 580 4787 5122 5481
Debt impairment 12035 53283 35712 11429) 10229 10229 10229 11119| 11786 19447
Depreciation & assetimpairment| 69275| 65214 61386 9248 9248 9248 9248 9597 | 10173 16775
Finance charges 1758 1608 1337 2556 3556 3356 3556 5623 6143 974
Bulk purchases IB781| 43536 47049 53094 53094| 53004 53004| 57391 60834 | 100377
Cther materials 2086 118611 11215 6648 | 16618| 16618| 16618| 17805| 18864| 30971
Contracted senices 8095 7228 7800 9629 10329 10329| 10329 9967 | 105865| 17432
Transfers and grants 305 750 225| 12938| 11662| 11662| 11662 8731 9255 15270
Other expenditure 25409 19739 21979 41969| 29743 29743 29743| 37616| 38877 | 58106
Loss on disposal of PPE 319 70 744 - - - - - - -
Total Expenditure 218175| 267088 | 258437 | 220896 | 215864 215854 | 215864 | 232848 | 246133 | 353431

The budgeted allocation for employee related costs for the 2016/17 financial year totals R70,
201 million, which equals 30.15 per cent of the total operating expenditure. Based on the three
year collective SALGBC agreement and as per National Treasury Budget Circular 79/2016,
salary increases have been factored at a percentage increase of 6.5 per cent for the 2016/17
financial year. As part of the Municipality's cost reprioritization and cash management strategy
vacancies only departmental prioritization of critical vacancies within the Municipality has been
budgeted for. In addition expenditure against overtime must significantly be managed to
reduced costs, with provisions against this budget item only being provided for essential
services and other critical functions.




The cost associated with the remuneration of councillors is determined by the Minister of Co-
operative Governance and Traditional Affairs in accordance with the Remuneration of Public
Office Bearers Act, 1998 (Act 20 of 1998). The most recent proclamation in this regard has
been taken into account in compiling the Municipality's budget.

The provision of debt impairment was determined based on an annual collection rate of 96 per
cent and the Debt Write-off Policy of the Municipality. For the 2016/17 financial year this
amount equates to R11, 119 million and escalates to R19, 447 million by 2018/19. While this
expenditure is considered to be a non-cash flow item, it informed the total cost associated with
rendering the services of the municipality, as well as the municipality's realistically anticipated
revenues.

Provision for depreciation and asset impairment has been informed by the Municipality's Asset
Management Policy. Depreciation is widely considered a proxy for the measurement of the
rate asset consumption. Budget appropriations in this regard total a Net of R9, 597 million for
the 2016/17 financial and equates to 4.1 per cent of the total operating expenditure. Note that
the implementation of GRAP 17 accounting standard has meant bringing a range of assets
previously not included in the assets register onto the register. This has resulted in a
significant increase in depreciation relative to previous years.

Finance charges consist primarily of the repayment of interest on long-term borrowing {(cost of
capital). Finance charges make up 2, 42 per cent (R5. 633 million) of operating expenditure
excluding annual redemption for 2016/17 and increases to R 9 731 million by 2018/19.

Bulk purchases are directly informed by the purchase of electricity from Eskom and water from
Farmers within the municipal boundaries. The annual price increases have been factored into
the budget appropriations and directly inform the revenue provisions. The expenditures
include distribution losses.

Other materials comprise of amongst others the purchase of fuel, diesel, materials for
maintenance, cleaning materials and chemicals. In line with the Municipality's repairs and
maintenance plan this group of expenditure has been prioritised to ensure sustainability of the
Municipality's infrastructure.

Contracted services have been identified as a cost saving area for the Municipality. As part of
the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF this group of expenditure was critically evaluated and
operational efficiencies were enforced. In the 2016/17 financial year, this group of expenditure
totals R9, 967 million and has increased since last year. For the two outer years growth has
been limited to 4.29 and 4.93 per cent. . Further details relating to contracted services can be
seen in Table 64 MBRR SA1.

Other expenditure comprises of various line items relating to the daily operations of the
municipality. This group of expenditure has also been identified as an area in which cost
savings and efficiencies can be achieved. Growth has been limited to 20.93 per cent for
2016/17 and curbed at 3.24 and 33.09 per cent for the two outer years, indicating that
significant cost savings have been already realised. Further details relating to contracted
services can be seen in Table 64 MBRR SAT1.

The following table gives a breakdown of the main operating expenditure categories for the
2016/17 financial year.
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Figure 1 Main operational expenditure categories for the 2016/17 financial year

1.3.1 Priority given to repairs and maintenance

Aligned to the priority being given to preserving and maintaining the Municipality's current
infrastructure, the 2016/17 budget and MTREF provide for extensive growth in the area of
asset maintenance, as informed by the asset renewal strategy and repairs and maintenance
plan of the Municipality. In terms of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations,
operational repairs and maintenance is not considered a direct expenditure driver but an
outcome of certain other expenditures, such as remuneration, purchases of materials and
contracted services. Considering these cost drivers, the following table is a consolidation of all
the expenditures associated with repairs and maintenance:

Table 12 Operational repairs and maintenance

201243 | 201314 | 201415 Current Year 201516 201617 Medium Term Revenue,

Budget | Budget | Budget
Year | Year+i | Year+2

201617 | 201718 | 2016/18

Description Audited | Audited | Audited | Origina! | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-zudit
Outcome | Outcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast { outcome

Rthousand
Repairs and Maintenance by
Expenditure ltem

Employee related costs - - - S s 5 - - - -
Other materials 5675 7663 7402| B646| O6648( 864B| B648| BB7| 9412 15485
Contracted Senices 2795 3948 3813 7970 7970 7970{ 7970| 8926| 9451( 15486
Other Expenditure - - - - s = - - - -

Total Repairs and Maintenance EX 8471 11611 11215| 16618| 16618 16618 16618( 17805( 18864) 30971

L _
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During the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF operational repairs and maintenance was
identified as a strategic imperative owing to the aging of the Municipality's infrastructure and
historic deferred maintenance. To this end, materials (repairs and maintenance) were
gradually increased by 6.67 per cent in the 2016/17 financial year, from R16, 618 million to
R17, 805 million. As part of the 2016/17 MTREF this strategic imperative remains a priority as
can be seen by the budget appropriations over the MTREF. The total allocation for 2016/17
equates to R17, 805 million a growth of 6.67 per cent in relation to the Adjustment Budget and
continues to grow at 5.61 and 39.09 per cent over the MTREF. In relation to the total operating
expenditure, repairs and maintenance comprises of 7.65, 7.66 and 8.76 per cent for the
respective financial years of the MTREF.

The table below provides a breakdown of the repairs and maintenance in relation to asset
class:

Table 13 Repairs and maintenance per asset class

. 2016117 Medium Term Revenue &
Description 2012H3 | 201314 | 2014015 Current Year 201516 Expenditure Framework
 thossand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year B:’,:ag:‘ ?}z':ff: 3:::’:;
Qutcome | Outcome | Outcome | Budget | Budge! | Forecast 201617 | 20078 | 201819
Repairs and Maintenance by Assel Class LA T8I W25 6618 T661Y T6 618 T7 805 TEE4 KUETA]
[ Inlradruciure - Road franspot 1368 1217 7 L] L35 (i1 528 562 1099 |
Tnkrasiruciure - EBCITERY TASS 079 T165 T3z TH? THZ T545 TEIE 7783
" Inkragruciure - Water 750 B07 [5:8 7135 1115 T35 1231 T30 7157
T Inkrasiructure - Sanfation T2 I — 228 (i 54 it} (i 70 16
Tnlrasiructure - OIher M 10U - TU7% 1975 T97% - - -
" Infaskucure 5136 LEX 7397 5143 5143 5143 RE3() J785 BI5T
Communiy 166 riL:) T J098 TU98 KR 2037 2302 T767 |
Hentage asses - - - - - = - - -~
T Inveseniproperies 58 - - - = - = = =
Oher assek 1651 7958 5a07 BT g3 B 377 17298 12777 0557
NAL ToB24 | 12601 25066) 25056 250806 | 2740¢ 8037 LYz

For the 2016/17 financial year, 19 per cent or R3, 470 million of total repairs and maintenance
will be spent on infrastructure assets. Electricity infrastructure has received a significant
proportion of this allocation totalling 8.6 per cent (R1, 545 million), water infrastructure at 6.9
per cent (R1, 231 million) and road at 3.5 per cent (R0, 628 million). Community assets have
been allocated R2, 037 million of total repairs and maintenance equating to 11.44 per cent.

1.3.2 Free Basic Services: Basic Social Services Package

The social package assists households that are poor or face other circumstances that limit
their ability to pay for services. To receive these free services the households are required to
register in terms of the Municipality Indigent Policy. The target is to register +/- 4 000 indigent
households during the 2016/17 financial year, a process reviewed annually by the end of June
2016. Detail relating to free services, cost of free basis services, revenue lost owing to free
basic services as well as basic service delivery measurement is contained in Table 27 MBRR
A10 (Basic Service Delivery Measurement) on The cost of the social package of the registered
indigent households is largely financed by national government through the local government
equitable share received in terms of the annual Division of Revenue Act.

1.4 Capital expenditure
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The following table provides a breakdown of budgeted capital expenditure by vote:
Table 14 2016/17 Medium-term capital budget per vote
Vole Description 201203 | 201314 | 201an5 Current Year 2015116 2“‘";;:::::’:;:2;:‘:’:“ &
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit | SU9g6t | Budgat | Budgat
G L Outcome | Outcome | Quicome | Budget Budget | Forecast | outcome et Year 41 s
9 201617 | 20178 | 2018ng
[Capital Expenditura - Standard
" Governance and adminisiration 518 578 183 205 1736 TI% |~ 1728 T35 7046 kFiil
Execulve and coundl B6 14 ] 759 B W EiE) TI7 a7 57
™ Hudgaland Teasury obcg a37 T7Z L] TI6H T369 T 369 7369 THT 1528 vEYil
Corporale services T20 5 iy 768 768 768 350 kLAl Bi1Z
I~ Community and public salely URLLY 778 179 B57 557 557 557 337 a7 599
[~ Communiy and sooal Servicas 53] [iX] T3 07 207 207 07 268 pAir ) 6T |
Cporland recreaion L.v4 T = 261 761 261 761 0 15 [
[~ Pubic sarly 7 = - B8 ik Lili] il LXS i1 62
Housng 2 IAL] LE] - - - - - - -
I Heal - = = = = = = = = =
Economic and environmental sem 2048 159 = 1737 737 7737 EERE TI32 10105 15267 |
[~ Planning and deveopment 5 EIY - 7 7 12 T2 13 T3 77
Road Fansporl 7033 15 407 = 7 TT72% 723 TT72H 1220 TOU9Z 15239
Envronmanal proecion = = = = = = = = = =
‘rading services Y0 KEiL] 13833 52 595 5102 5102 5102 T34 5 585 2158 |
Eecvicly 1745 7317 - B 726 7100 Z 100 7700 S 07 7047
L LK) TG61 13833 0100 LY TED 180 787 500 750
[~ Wask wakr managemont = - = TH U5 VL] VL ZTH TOOF [ 1450 |
—Wask managenment - = - ki TT kjS T Tz kLS 1
Cihear C - - - - - - - - -
Total Capital Expenditure - Standard 13721 21 552 14194 67 344 19121 19121 19129 20937 19 184 22006
Funded by:
[~ Nabonal Government T2 T30 15 313 T3 B33 55958 TZ 791 T77H TZ751 13997 T2457 TITE
(™ Provimcal Government = = - = = = = = = =
I Ohshicl Municpally = - - - = = = - - =
Oher ranskers and grans - - S = - - - - - =
| Transiers recognised - caplial 12139 53 73833 55958 12791 1278 1279 13992 12491 ik KL
Public cnniﬁﬁulions & danations - & = - - - - - e -
Bomrowing = = = 5045 = - = = = =
—Tnlernally generated funds 1502 t 239 3627 B 341 G331 B 331 B 331 FRLE) L) E 530 |
Total Capital Funding 13721 21 552 14 194 67 344 19124 19121 19124 20937 19 184 22 008

For 2016/17 an amount of R20, 937 million has been budgeted for the development of assets.
Infrastructure Assets represents 88.12 per cent of the total capital budget. In the outer years
this amount totals R16, 542 million, 86.22 per cent and R17, 794 million, 80.86 per cent
respectively for each of the financial years. Water department receives the highest allocation
of R7, 822 million followed by Electricity of RS, 400 million in 2016/17 financial years. Roads
will receive the highest allocation in 2017/18 as well as in 2018/19, this will amount to R10, 092
and R 5, 239 respectively.

‘ Further detail relating to asset classes and proposed capital expenditure is contained in Table

26 MBRR A9 (Asset Management). In addition to the MBRR Table A9, MBRR Tables SA34a,
b, ¢ provides a detailed breakdown of the capital programme relating to new asset
construction, capital asset renewal as well as operational repairs and maintenance by asset
class. Some of the salient projects to be undertaken over the medium-term includes, amongst
others:

| 1.5 Annual Budget Tables - Emthanjeni Municipality

The following eighteen pages present the ten main budget tables as required in terms of
section 8 of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations. These tables set out the
municipality's 2016/17 budget and MTREF as approved by the Council. Each table is
accompanied by explanatory notes on the facing page.




NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A1 Budget Summary
Description 201213 | 2013114 | 201415 Current Year 2015116

ZUTHITT Mediilin ferm Revenue

& Expenditure Framework
Budget | Budget | Budget

Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit

R thousands Year Year#1 | Year+2
Qutcome | Outcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast | outcome 201617 | 201718 | 201819
Financial Performance
Property rales 17323 | 21185 22075| 27503| 27503| 27503{ 27503| 20165| 30915| 51010
Senice charges 79889 91655 97741 108111 103110 103111 103111 113841 120816 199347
Investment revenue 1595 1030 950 715 715 715 715 806 854 1409
Transfers recognised - operational 43510 45752| 39550| 40601 40601| 406017 4060%| 41660 41753 47657
Other own revenue 217 23829 34337 34768| 35568 355681 35568 | 37385| 39603 | 64861
Total Revenue {excluding capital 164039 | 183452 | 194653 | 211697 | 207497 | 207497 { 207497 | 222858 233942 | 364285
transfers and contributions)
Employee costs 56449 59894 | 66864 66804 66804| ©66804] oG6BOA| 70201 74514 79842
Remuneration of councillors 3694 4157 4126 4 580 4580 4580 4580 4787 5122 5481
Depreciation & asset impairment 69275 65214| 61386 9248 6248 9248 9248 9597 | 10173 16775
Finance charges 1758 1608 1337 2556 3556 3556 3 556 5633 6143 g
Materials and bulk purchases 40837 S55146| 58263 61743 69713 69713| 69713| 75196| 79698 | 131348
Translers and grants 305 750 225 12938| 11662 11662 11662 8731 9265 15270
Cther expenditure 45858 | B0320| 66235 63028 50302| sS0302| 50302 58702| 61228 94985
Total Expenditura 218175 267088 | 258437 | 220896 | 215804 | 215864 | 215864 | 232848 246133 | 353431
Surplusi{Deficit) (54137)] (BIG36)| (63784 (9199) (BIETY (86T (8367T) (99%0) (12192) 10854
Transfers recognised - capita) 11451 13102 | 14694 56565 13398| 132308| 13398 14602 14343| 13798
| Connbuuons recognised - Capiar &
contributed assels - - - - - - - - - -
Surplus/Defieii} akter capital (42686)| (70534} (49091) 47 366 5031 5031 503t 4612 2151 24 652

transfers & contributions

Share of surplus/ (deficil} of associale - - - - =5 S = = - -

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year (42686)| (70534} (49091) 47366 5031 5031 5031 4612 2151 24 652
Capital expenditure & funds sources|
Capital expenditure 13721 215521 14184 67344 19121 19121 19121 20937 19184 | 22006
Transfers recognised - capital 12139 15313 13833 55088 12791 12791 12791 13992 12491 13118
Public contributions & donations - - - - - - - - - -
Borrowing - - - 5046 - - - - - -
Intemally generated lunds 1582 6239 362 6341 6331 6331 63N 6944 6694 8888
Tolal sources of capital funds 13729 21552 14194 | 67344 19121 19121 19121 | 20937 19184 | 22006
Financial position
Total current assets 139835 121847 | 125401 | 109842 99318 Q98| 998 | 115861 112571 | 112075
Total non cumrent assets 976067 | 932000 | 883982 | 944097 | 946897 | 946897 | 946897 | 937687 | 940181 | 943923
Total current liabiliies 40848 | 42302 45643 33313| 33327 | 33327| 33327 32428 2297 32018
Total non cument liabilities §2267| 52911 54198 67490 63471 63471 63471{ 37370 37737 | 38544
Community wealth/Equity 1022787 | 958633 | 909543 | 953136 | 949417 | 049417 | 049417| 979749 | 982798 | 985436
Cash flows
r Net cash from {used) operating 16875 12659| 14269| 55260| 25550 | 25550 25550 27784 17323| 23504
( ) Net cash from {used) investing {13186)] (20562)( (13008} (59374)| (18967) {180967) (1BS67)| (20807) (19046) (21858)
Net cash from (used) financing (2275) (2504) (2777) 1096 (894) {894) {894)]  (3125) 9P0 Il

Cashfcash aquivalents at the yearen| 10640 233 {1283) 606 4407 4407 4407 2867 1234 2951
Cash backingisurplus reconciliation|

Cash and imestments available 10 654 254 (1257)] 11503 4407 4407 4 407 289 1263 2980
Application of cash and investments (21650)] (10300)| (11391)] (11624)| (11666)] (11666) (11666)) (13546)] (12611)] (5 266)
Balance - surplus (shortfall) 32304 10554 10134 23127| 16073| 16073 16073 16442] 13874 8246
Asset management
Asset register summary (WDV) 975957 | 931972 | B8B3952| 935454 | 035454 | 935454 | 937575| 937575| 940067 | 943807
Depreciation & assetimpaiment 69275| 65214 61386 9248 9248 9248 9597 9597 101737 16775
Renewal of Existing Assels 5437 9253 32| 11386 6331 53N 633 6944 6572 8888
Repairs and Maintenance B471| ME6M( 1295| 16618| 16618| 16618| 17805| 17805 168864 | 30871
Free services
Cost of Free Basic Senices provided - - - - - - - - - -
Revenue cost of free senices provided - - - 8589 8589 8589 8569 8589 9204 9756
Households betowminimum service level
Waler: - - - - - - - - - -
Sanitationisewerage: 0 1 19 0 0 0 0 ¢ ] ]
Energy. 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Refuse: - - - - - - - - - -




Explanatory notes to MBRR Table A1 - Budget Summary

1. Table A1 is a budget summary and provides a concise overview of the Municipality’s budget
from all of the major financial perspectives (operating, capital expenditure, financial
position, cash flow, and MFMA funding compliance).

2. The table provides an overview of the amounts approved by Council for operating
performance, resources deployed to capital expenditure, financial position, cash and
funding compliance, as well as the municipality’s commitment to eliminating basic service

| delivery backlogs.

3. Financial management reforms emphasises the importance of the municipal budget being
funded. This requires the simultaneous assessment of the Financial Performance,
Financial Position and Cash Flow Budgets, along with the Capital Budget. The Budget
Summary provides the key information in this regard:

a. The operating surplus/(deficit) (after Total Expenditure) is positive over the MTREF
b. Capital expenditure is balanced by capital funding sources, of which

(i} Transfers recognised is reflected on the Financial Performance Budget;

(ii) Internally generated funds are financed from a combination of the current
operating surplus and accumulated cash-backed surpluses from previous
years. The amount is incorporated in the Net cash from investing on the
Cash Flow Budget. The fact that the municipality’s cash flow remains
positive, and is improving indicates that the necessary cash resources are
available to fund the Capital Budget.

4., The Cash backing/surplus reconciliation shows that in previous financial years the
municipality was not paying much atiention to managing this aspect of its finances, and
consequently many of its obligations are not cash-backed. This places the municipality in a
very vulnerable financial position, as the recent slow-down in revenue collections
highlighted. Consequently Council has taken a deliberate decision to ensure adequate
cash-backing for all material obligations in accordance with the adopted policies. This
cannot be achieved in one financial year. But over the MTREF there is progressive
improvement in the level of cash-backing of obligations. It is anticipated that the goal of
having all obligations cash-back will be achieved by 2016/17, when a small surplus is
reflected.

5. Even though the Council is placing great emphasis on securing the financial sustainability of
the municipality, this is not being done at the expense of services to the poor. The section
of Free Services shows that the amount spent on Free Basic Services and the reveriue
cost of free services provided by the municipality continues to increase. In addition, the
municipality continues to make progress in addressing service delivery backlogs. It is
anticipated that by 2016/17 the free basic water will remain at 8kl for Indigent Households.
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Table 15 MBRR Table A2 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure
by standard classification)

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A2 Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure by standard classification)

Standard Classification Description| 201213 | 201314 | 201415 CurrentYear 2015116 |20 1017 Medlum Term Revenue
& Expenditure Framework
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Su00¢t | Budget | Budget
ft thousand Outcome | Outcome | Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast Yoar | Year+l | Year+2
2016M17 | 2017118 | 201819
Revenue - Standard
Governance and administration 41938 43770 43014 46348 | 46348 | 46348 | 49681 50723 | 75457
Executive and council 5410 5639 5537 3335 3335 3335 4295 4090 6673
Budget and freasury office 36485| 38083 | 37390 42932 42932 42932| 45301| 46545| 68638
Corporale serices 42 48 84 80 80 80 84 g9 146
Community and public safety 17260 21917 | 25486 10229 10229 | 10229 10775 11072| 16774
Community and social senices 1394 1435 1516 1844 1844 1844 2192 1987 2545
Sport and recreation 355 7 112 114 114 114 123 13 216
Public safety 14291 19281 23180 8232 8232 8232 71 7623 12578
Housing 1220 101 678 39 39 38 41 44 72
Health - - - - - - 1227 1288 1363
Economic and environmental serv 5939 14819 41044| 13110) 13140 13110 3 686 2833 16430
Planning and development 746 1235 897 3395 3395 3395 1610 1692 2429
Road transport 5193 13584 10147 9715 9715 9715 2077 1141 14001
Environmenia! protection - - - - - - - - -
Trading services 110352 | 116048 | 129806 | 198576 | 151209 | 151209 | 173317 | 483656 | 269422
Electricity 52352| 60590| 66606 83494| 79994| 79994| 91961 94570 151918
Water 29792 | 25603 25602| 41 211| 30S11| 30511 | 40560( 46633 55012
Waste waler management 17737 18167 19576 59345 26178 26178 25918 26681 39288
Waste management 10472 11687 18021 14526 | 14526| 14526 14 879 15772 23204
Other - - - - - - - - -
Total Revenue - Standard 175490 | 196554 | 209347 | 268262 | 220895| 220895 237460 | 248284 | 378083
Expenditure - Standard
Govarnance and administration 38789 44755| 44414 46086 45463 | 45463 | 49395| 53437| 68877
Executive and council 15139 15360 16 148 13292 12819 | 12819 14140 15904 16958
Budget and freasury office 14896 | 18325 17363 20440 20290 20290 21638 23037 31844
Corporale senices 8755 11069 10902 12 354 12354 12354 13617 14496 | 20074
Community and pubiic safaty 23420 40283 | 41685 29019 29085; 29085| 30628 32178| 41078
Community and socia! senices 5895 19743 25058 11629| 11758 11758 12925 13307| 16510
Sport and recreation 3299 KNAT) 4142 4162 4167 4167 4721 5039 6209
Public safety 9304 12122 8026 10818| 10758 10758 10374 11047 15094
Housing 4843 4630 4452 2218 2218 2218 2419 2586 2936
Health 79 75 7 183 183 183 188 199 329
Economic and environmental serv] 16697 | 39053 | 38419 27157 27163 27163| 29093 | 29852 40384
Planning and development 6051 | 18450 19447 10663| 10670 10670 12190 11865| 15012
Road transport 10646 | 20604 | 18972 16493 | 16493 16493 | 16903 17987 25372
Envirenmental protection - - - - - - - - -
Trading services 137979 | 1413764 132297 | 117903 | 113414 | 113414 | 122958 | 129903 | 202072
Electricity 74911} 79689{ 79852| 69900( 69476 69476 7475t| 79294 | 127217
Water 26484 | 32710 28399; 15894 14794 14794 16901 17940] 28125
Wasle water management 16377 15771 12790 16925| 15060 15060| 17246| +7528| 26282
Waste management 20206] 13206| 11255 15184 14084 14084 14080 15142 20448
Other 1290 1621 1623 739 739 739 774 763 1020
Total Expenditure - Standard 218175 | 267088 | 258437 | 220896 | 215864 | 215864 | 232848 | 246133 | 353431
Surplusi(Deficit) for the year {42686) (70534)| (49091) 47366 S031| 5031 4612 2151| 24652
e — B —
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Explanatory notes to MBRR Table A2 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and
expenditure by standard classification}

1. Table A2 is a view of the budgeted financial performance in relation to revenue and
expenditure per standard classification. The modified GFS standard classification divides
the municipal services into 14 functional areas. Municipal revenue, operating expenditure
and capital expenditure are then classified in terms if each of these functional areas which
enables the National Treasury to compile ‘whole of government’ reports.

2. Note the Total Revenue on this table includes capital revenues {(Transfers recognised —
capital) and so does not balance to the operating revenue shown on Table A4.

3. Note that as a general principle the revenues for the Trading Services should exceed their
expenditures. The table highlights that this is the case for Electricity, Water and Waste
water functions, but not the Waste management function. As already noted above, the
municipality will be undertaking a detailed study of this function to explore ways of
improving efficiencies and provide a basis for re-evaluating the function's tariff structure.

4, Other functions that show a deficit between revenue and expenditure are being financed
from rates revenues and other revenue sources reflected under the Corporate Services.

Table 16 MBRR Table A3 - Budgeted Financial Performance {revenue and expenditure
by municipal vote)

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A3 Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure by municipal vote)
Vote Description 201213 | 201314 | 2014115 Current Year 2015/16 e
& Expenditure Framework
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full vear| Du9¢t | Budget | Budget
Rthousand Outcome | Outcome | Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast Year | Year+1 | Year+2
2016H7 | 201718 | 2018H9
Revenue by Vote
Vole 1- EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 5410 5639 5537 3335 3335 3335 4295 4090 6673
Vole 2 - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 36528 | 381310 37474 43012 43012] 43012 45385| 46634| 68784
Vote 3 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 746 1235 897 3395 339 3305 1610 1692 2429
Vote 4 -HEALTH - - - - - - 1227 12688 1363
Vote 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVWCES 1394 1435 1516 1844 1844 1844 2192 1987 2545
Vote 6 - PUBLIC SAFETY 14291 19281 23180 8232 8232 8232 7191 7623| 12578
Vole 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION 356 171 112 114 114 114 123 13 216
Vole 8 - ROAD TRANSPORT 5193 13584 10147 8715 9715 9715 2077 1141 14001
Vote 8- OTHER - - - - - - - - -
Vate 10 - HOUSING SERVICES 1220 1031 678 39 39 Kl 41 44 72
Vole 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT 10472 11687 18021 14526 14526 14526| 14879| 15772 23204
Vole 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 17737 18167 | 19576{ 59345 26178| 26178 25918| 26681| 39288
Vole 13- ELECTRICITY 52352 | 60590| 66606) 63494] 79994 79904 91961 94570| 151919
Vote 14 - WATER 20792 25603 25602| 41211) 30511 30511| 40560| 46633] 55012
Vote 15 - INAME OF VOTE 15] - - - - - - - - -
Total Revenue by Vote 175490 | 196554 | 209347 | 260262 | 220895| 220895! 237460 248284 | 378083
Expenditure by Vote to be appropriated
Vote 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 15139 15360 16148 13292 12B19| 12819 14140| 15904 | 16959
Vole 2 - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRAT ION 23650 20395| 28265| 32794 | 32644 32644 | 35256| 37532| 51918
Vote 3 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 6051| 18450| 19447 10663| 10670| 10670 12190 11865| 15012
Vote 4 -HEALTH 79 75 7 183 183 183 188 199 329
Vate 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVMCES| 5895 19743| 25058 11629| 41738 11758 12925( 13307| 16510
Vole 6 - PUBLIC SAFETY 9304 12122 8026 10818 10758 10758 10374 1047 15094
Vole 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION 3299 3N4 4142 4162 4167 4167 4724 5039 6209
Vote 8 - ROAD TRANSFORT 10646 20604 18972| 16493| 16493] 16493| 16903 17987 25372
Vote §- OTHER 1200 1621 1623 739 739 739 774 763 1020
Vole 10 - HOUSING SERVICES 4843 4630 4 452 2218 2218 2218 2419 2506 2936
Vole 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT 20206 13206| 112554 15184 | 14084 | 14084 | 14060) 15142 20448
Vole 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 16377 15771 12790 16925| 15060 15080 17246 17528| 26282
Vote 13 - ELECTRICITY 74911 79683 | 79852 69900 69476 69476| 74751 79294 | 127247
Vote 14 - WATER 26484} 32710| 28309 15894 | 14794 14794 16901 17940| 28125
Volz 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15) - - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditure by Vota 218175 | 267088 | 258437 | 220896 | 215864 | 215864 | 232848 | 246133 | 353431
Surplusi(Deficit) for the year (42 686)] (70534)] (49091)( 47 366 503 5031 4612 2151 24 652




- N

D

-

Explanatory notes to MBRR Table A3 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and
expenditure by municipal vote)

» Table A3 is a view of the budgeled financial performance in relation to the revenue and
expenditure per municipal vote. This table facilitates the view of the budgeted operating
performance in relation to the organisational structure of the Municipality. This means it is
possible to present the operating surplus or deficit of a vote. The following table is an
analysis of the surplus or deficit for the electricity and water trading services.

Table 17: Surplus/(Deficit) calculations for the trading services

Description W13 | 20034 | 2014115 Current Year 201516 L L DA T
Expenditure Framework

Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | CUU9St | Budget |o o ot vear

R thousand Year Year +1

Outcome | Outcome | Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast 01617 | 2017118 +2 2018119
Electriclty 52352 60500 66606 83494 | 79904 | 7oooa| ot961| o4s70| 151910
Total Revenue (incl capial
grants and fransters)
Operating Ex penditure 74914 79 689 79 852 69 900 69 476 69 476 74751 79204 12r 97

Surplus/(Deficit) forthe year| (22559)) (19099} (13 245) 13593 10517 10 547 17210 15276 24701

Percentage Surplus -4309%( -3152%| -19.89% 16.28% 13.15% 13.15% 18.71% 16.15% 16.26%
Water
- - 29792 25603 25602 1M 051 30511 40 560 46633 55012
Total Revenue {ind captal
granis and ransers)
Operating Expenditure 26484 32710 28 399 15 894 14794 14794 16901 17 940 28125

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year 3308 {7 106} {2797) 25 317 157117 15717 23658 28 693 26 887

Percentage Surplus MA0%| -27.76%| -1093% 61.43% 51.51% 51.561% 58.33% 61.53% 48.87%

= The electricity trading surplus increases over the 2016/17 MTREF in terms of rand value but
decreases in terms of percentage surplus, from 18.71 per cent to 16.26 per cent or R17,
210 million to R24, 701 throughout the MTREF. This is primarily as a result of capital
projects and grants as well as the high increases in Eskom bulk purchases and the tariff
setting policy of the municipality to buffer the impact of these increases on individual
consumers.

= The surplus on the water account remains positive over the MTREF translating into a
surplus of 58 per cent, 61 per cent and 48 per cent for each of the respective financial
years. The surplus excludes the capital expenditure that will be incur during the 2016/17
financial year.

= Note that the surpluses on these trading accounts are utilised as an internal funding source
for the capital programme for asset renewal, refurbishment and the development of new
asset infrastructure, and are not used to cross-subsidise other municipal services.

i




Table 18 MBRR Table A4 - Budgeted Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure)

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A4 Budgated Financial Performance {rovenue and expenditure,
Description 01213 | 200318 | 2014n5 Gurrent Year 2015116 2“”";;’:::::‘;‘::;:;‘::;"‘ &
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-auait | Budaet | Budget | Budget
ST Outcome | Outcome | Outcome | Budget Budget | Forecast | cutcome AL ML Ml
201617 | 2017118 | 201819
Revenue By Source
Propertly raes 17 220 21035 21 905 27 503 27 503 27 503 27 503 29165 30915 51010
Properly rates - penaliies & coflecion cha 103 150 170 - - - - - - -
Servica charges - elechricy revenue 48 279 56 408 59935 57935 53 635 53 635 51635 57 925 61401 101 314
Servica charges - waler revenue 16439 18 746 20 888 26111 25411 25411 25411 27 953 29 630 48 889
Service charges - saniaion revenue 9421 10 302 10 691 14 888 14 888 14 838 14 868 17 568 18 622 o7z
Service charges - reluse revenue 5323 5705 5822 8937 8937 8937 8937 10277 10 894 17 975
Service charges - oher 428 415 405 240 240 240 240 118 270 445
Rental of faciiies and equipment 947 747 1189 52 652 652 652 606 732 885
Interest earned - exiernal investmens 1595 1030 950 715 75 715 715 806 854 1409
Interest earned - oulstanding debbrs 494 625 646 873 873 873 873 954 1011 1669
Dwidends recemed - - - - - - - - - -
Fines 12611 17 765 23018 7581 7 581 7 581 7581 6543 6935 11 444
Licences and permis 1201 1305 1257 2099 2099 2099 2099 1478 2097 3460
Agency services - - - - - - - - - -
Transkers recognised - operatonal 43 510 45752 39 550 40 601 40 601 40 601 40 601 41660 41753 47 657
Oher revenua 6148 3223 7256 2344 24 234 24 234 2424 27 095 28 683 47 256
Gains on disposal of PPE 319 164 979 130 130 130 130 130 139 148
Total Revenus {excluding capital 164039 | 183452 | 194653 | 211697 207457 | 207497 207497 222858 | 233942 264265
transfers and contributions)
Expenditure By Type
Employse relaked cosls 56 449 59 894 66 864 66 804 66 804 66 804 66 804 70201 74 514 79842
Remuneraion of counaliors 3694 4187 4126 4 580 4580 4 580 4 580 4787 5122 5481
Debt impairment 12035 53283 5712 11429 10 229 10 229 10229 11119 11786 19 447
Dieprecaton & assetimpairment 69 275 65214 61386 9248 9248 9248 4248 9597 10173 16775
Finance charges 1758 1608 1337 2556 3556 3556 3 556 5633 6143 973
Bulk purchases 38781 43536 47 49 53094 53094 53 094 53094 57391 60 84 100 377
Other makerials 2056 11611 11215 8648 16 618 16618 16618 17 805 18 864 30 971
Confacked services 8085 7228 7 800 9629 10 329 10 329 10 329 9967 10 565 17 432
Transkers and grank 305 750 225 12 938 11662 11 662 11 662 8731 9255 15270
Other expendiure 25409 19739 21979 41963 29743 29743 29743 37616 38 877 58 106
Loss on disposal of FPE 319 70 T44 - - = - - - -
Total Expenditura 218175 | 267088 | 258437 | 220896 | 215864 215864 | 215864 | 232848 | 246133 3534M
Surplusi{Deficit) {54 137) {83 638} (63 784) {9 199} (8 367) {8 367) (8 367) (9990) {12 192) 10 854
Transkers recognised - capial 11 451 13 102 14 694 56 565 13398 13 398 13398 14 602 14 343 13 798
Contrbubons recognised - capital - - = - - - = - -
Contribuled asses = = - - - - - - - -
Surplusi{Delick) alter caplial translers (42 606) {70 534) {49 091) 47 366 50 50 5001 4612 2151 24 652
& contributions
Taxafion - - - - - - - - - -
Surplusi{Deficit) after taxation {42685)| (70534} {49091) 47 366 5031 5011 501 4612 2151 24 652
Afributable b mnorites - - - - - - - - - -
Surplusi{eTIcil) attributable to {42 6B6} {70 534) (45 091} 47 366 501 5011 5031 46812 2151 24 652
municipality
Share of surplus/ (delcil) of associae = = = = i z - 2 = s
Surplusi{Deficit) for the year {42686)] {(70534) ({49081) 47 366 5034 5031 5031 4612 2151 24 652

Explanatory notes to Table A4 - Budgeted Financial

expenditure)

Performance (revenue and




(A%
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1. Total revenue is R237, 460 million in 2016/17 and increases to R248, 284 million by

2017/18. This represents an increase of 6.97 per cent for the 2016/17 financial year and
increases by 4.36 per cent for the 2017/18 financial year.

. Revenue to be generated from property rates is R29, 165 million in the 2016/17 financial

year and increases to R30, 915 million by 2017/18 which represents 12.28 per cent of the
operating revenue base of the Municipality and therefore remains a significant funding
source for the municipality. It remains relatively constant over the medium-term and tariff
increases have been factored in at 6 per cent across the MTREF.

. Services charges relating to electricity, water, sanitation and refuse removal constitutes the

biggest component of the revenue basket of the Municipality totalling R113, 841 million for
the 2016/17 financial year and increasing to R120, 816 million by 2017/18 and increasing
to R199, 347 million by 2018/19. For the 2016/17 financial year services charges amount
to 47.94 per cent of the total revenue base and grows by 4.79 per cent per annum over the
medium-term. This growth can mainly be attributed to the increase in the bulk prices of
electricity and water.

4. Transfers recognised — operating includes the local government equitable share and other

operating grants from national and provincial government. It needs to be noted that in real
terms the grants receipts from national government fluctuates over the 2016/17 MTREF, in
2016/17 it increases 2.54 per cent and then increases again by 12.58 per cent 2018/19.
The percentage share of this revenue source declines due to the more rapid relative
growth in service charge revenues.

5. Bulk purchases have significantly increased over the 2012/13 to 2018/19 period escalating

from R38, 781 million to R100, 377 million. These increases can be attributed to the
substantial increase in the cost of bulk electricity from Eskom and water from the water
contracts with farmers. As well as the increase in demand for the above mentioned
commodities.

. Employee related costs and bulk purchases are the main cost drivers within the municipality

and alternative operational gains and efficiencies will have to be identified to lessen the
impact of wage and bulk tariff increases in future years.

Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, standard classification and funding source




NC073 Emth anjeni - Table AS Budgetad Cagpilal Expenditure by vote, standard classification and funding

2016/17 Medium Term Revenue &
Vote Description 2012113 201244 201415 Cument Year 201516 Expenditure Framework

Budget Budget Budget
Year Year +1 Year +2
201617 2017118 201819

Audited | Audited | Audited Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit

Rthousand Qutcome | Qutcome | Quicome | Budget Budget | Forecast | oufcome

Capital expenditure - Vote

Multi-year expendiiure to be appropriated

Vol 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL - - - - - - S = - =

Vol 2 - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION - - - - - - = - = =

Vol 3 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - - - - - - = - - =

Vol 4 - HEALTH - ~ - - - - - - - =

Vol 5- COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 798 - - - - - - - = =

Voie 6 - PUBLIC SAFETY - - - - - - - - - =

Vol 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION - - - - - - - - - -

Vo B - ROAD TRANSPORT - - - - - - = = - =

Vol 9 - OTHER - - - - - - - - - =

Vot 10 - HOUSING SERVICES - - - - - - - - - =

Vol 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT ~ - - - - - - - - =

Vol 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT - - - - - - = - 5 =

Vo 13- ELECTRICITY - - - - - - - - - =

Vol 14 - WATER 6810 - 13833 10000 - - - - - -
ol 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15] - - - - - - - - - -
Capital multi-year expendlture sub-lotal 7 608 - 13833 10000 - - - - - -
Single-yesr expenditure to be appropriated
Vo 1- EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL 86 585 9 159 89 89 B9 137 147 157
Vol 2 - FINANGE AND AGMINISTRATION 432 292 174 1897 163 1537 1637 1792 1 899 3133
Vo 3 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 5 500 - 12 12 12 12 13 13 22
Vol 4 - HEALTH - - - - - - - - - -
o 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 58 61 134 307 207 207 207 268 284 469
Vom & - PUBLIC SAFETY 204 - - B8 BY 88 i 93 98 162
Vot 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION 42 ] - 261 261 261 261 70 85 68
Vok 8 - ROAD TRANSPORT 2043 15401 - 1724 1724 11724 11724 4220 10092 15 239
Voie § - OTHER - - - - - - - - - -
Vor 10 - HOUSING SERVICES 2 714 45 - - - - - - -
Vol 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT - - - Ell Ell kil Ell 32 M 56
Vol 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT - - - 35958 2791 279 2791 1090 1450 300
Vol 13- ELECTRICITY 3145 2314 - 6726 2100 2100 2100 5400 4 601 20349
Vol 14 - WATER 5 1681 - 180 180 180 180 7822 500 350
Vol 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15 - - - - - - - - - -
Capital single-year expenditure sub-total 6113 21552 362 57 344 19121 19 124 19129 20937 19 184 22 006
Total Capital Expenditure - Vota 13719 29 552 14 194 67 344 19121 191429 19121 20937 19 184 22 066

Capital Expenditure - Standard

G and administration 518 arg 183 2056 1726 1726 1726 1929 2046 329t
Execuive and counci B85 585 9 159 89 89 89 137 147 157
Budgel and reasury ofice 432 172 49 1369 1363 1369 1 369 1441 1528 2521
Corporap servioes 120 125 528 268 268 268 350 kLAl 612

Communily and public salely 1194 778 179 657 557 §57 557 431 447 639
Community and social servioes 856 53 134 Jor 207 207 207 268 284 459
Sport and recreaton 42 1 - 261 261 261 261 70 65 68
Pubhc salely 294 - - B8 83 88 85 2] 98 162
Housing 2 714 45 - - - - - - -
Healh - - - - - - - - - -

Ei mic and envir al services 2048 15901 - 11737 11737 1737 1737 4232 10 106 15 261
Planring and devalopment 5 500 - 12 12 12 12 13 13 22
Road ransport 2043 15401 - 11724 11724 1174 N7 4 220 10092 15 239
Environmmntal probcton - - - - - - - - - -

Trading services 9 960 3935 13833 52 895 5102 5102 5102 14 344 6 505 2756
Elocyicity 3145 2314 - 6726 2100 2100 2100 5400 4 601 2 040
Waler EE] 1681 13833 10 160 180 180 180 7822 500 350
Waske wasr management - - - 35958 279 2791 2791 1090 1450 300
Waske managament - - - k]l k] ki kil 32 M 56

Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Capital Expenditure - Standard 1374 21552 14 194 67 344 19121 19121 19121 20937 19 184 22 006
Funded by;
Natonal Government 12139 15313 13833 55 958 12791 1279 12791 134992 1249 13118
Piovincial Government - - - - - - - - - -
Distict Municipaldy - - - - - - - - - -
Other vanskrs and grans - - - - - - - - - -

Transfers recognised - capital 12139 15313 1383 55 958 12791 1279H 1219 13992 12 491 13118

Public contributions & donations - - - - - - - - - -

Bomowing ~ - - 5046 - - - - - -

Intemally generated funds 1582 §233 362 6 341 B3N 63N 6331 § 944 6694 8 888

Total Capital Funding 13721 21552 14194 87 344 1912 19121 19121 20837 19 184 22 006

Explanatory notes to Table A5 - Budgeted Capital Expenditure by vote, standard




1. Table A5 is a breakdown of the capital programme in relation to capital expenditure by
municipal vote (muiti-year and single-year appropriations); capital expenditure by standard
classification; and the funding sources necessary to fund the capital budget, including
information on capital transfers from national and provincial departments.

2. The MFMA provides that a municipality may approve multi-year or single-year capital
budget appropriations. In relation to multi-year appropriations, for 2016/17 has been
allocated of the total RO capital budget.

3. Single-year capital expenditure has been appropriated at R20, 937 million for the 2016/17
financial year and remains relatively constant over the MTREF.

4. Unlike multi-year capital appropriations, single-year appropriations relate to expenditure
that will be incurred in the specific budget year such as the procurement of vehicles and
specialized tools and equipment. The budget appropriations for the two outer years are
indicative allocations based on the departmental business plans as informed by the IDP
and will be reviewed on an annual basis to assess the relevance of the expenditure in
relation to the strategic objectives and service delivery imperatives of the Municipality. For
the purpose of funding assessment of the MTREF, these appropriations have been
included but no commitments will be incurred against single-year appropriations for the two
outer-years.

5. The capitai programme is funded from capital and provincial grants and transfers, internally
generated funds from current year surpluses as well as borrowings from financial
institutions. For 2016/17, capital transfers totals R13, 992 million (66.83 per cent) and
decreases to R12, 491 million by 2017/18 (65.11 per cent). Internally generated funding
totaling R6, 944 million, R6, 694 million and R8, 888 million for each of the respective
financial years of the MTREF. The municipality does not plan to enter into any borrowings
over the 2016/17 MTREF.

These funding sources are further discussed in detail in 2.6 (Overview of Budget Funding).

Table 19 MBRR Table A6 - Budgeted Financial Position
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NCG73 Emthanjenl - Table A6 Budgeted Financial Position

Description 1213 | 201318 | 200415 Current Yoar 2015116 2“'52’:";:::::‘;':;:"::“‘:;““ &
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Yaar | Pro-auair | Bdget | Budget | Budget
UL Outcoma | Cutcome | Outcome | Budget Budget | Forecast | outcome ULy ALl Year +2
2016H47 | 201718 | 201819
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash 17196 12210 12282 3128 997 997 997 2130 2779 1721
Call mvesmen! deposis - - - 9070 2789 2769 2789 10075 9505 10 765
Consumer deblors 46 604 30 486 31918 20 584 18 472 18472 18472 22824 22305 20734
Other debbors 12 566 16 090 18 237 10167 10 167 10 167 10 167 127 11615 11855
Current porbon offong-ermreceivables 26 1 2 - - - - - - -
Invenlory 63424 63059 62963 66 894 66 094 66 894 66 894 £5 556 66 B67 67 01
Total cument assets 139 835 121 847 125 401 109 842 99 318 99 318 99 318 111 861 112571 12075
Non current assets
Lang-rm receivables 1 1 1 - - - - - - -
Invesimens 14 21 28 8575 111375 11375 11375 29 29 0
Invesiment property 5004 5004 5004 5004 5004 5004 5004 5004 5004 5004
Investment in Associale - - - - - - - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 970 415 926 564 g 712 930 037 930037 930037 930 037 G322 114 934 601 938 325
Agrcutural - - - - - - - - - -
Biological - - - - - - - - - -
Intangible 538 384 235 413 413 413 413 458 462 478
Other non-cutrent assels 95 5 3 68 £8 68 68 83 85 86
Total non cument assets 976 067 932 000 883 982 944 097 946 897 846 BS7 946 897 937 687 940 181 943 923
TOTAL ASSETS 1115902 | 1053847 | 1009383 | 1053938 | 1046245 1046215 | 1046215 | 1049548 1052752 | 1055098
LIABILITIES
Current labllities
Bank overdrat 6 557 11977 13 564 9269 10753 10753 10753 9328 10 550 9535
Borrowing 2485 2758 2478 3003 3003 3003 31003 1477 499 -
Consurmer deposi 1825 1949 2112 219 2191 213 2191 2289 2379 2 450
Trade and oher payables 78 680 24 205 26142 16752 15283 15283 15283 16 352 16 199 17 333
Provisions 1302 1414 1346 2097 2097 2097 2007 2972 2569 2700
Total currant liabitities 40 848 42 302 45643 13313 33327 33327 33327 32428 217 32018
Non current liabllities
Botrowing 6008 iz 37 747 14777 2348 2348 2348 1299 - -
Provisions 45 259 49 680 16 451 52713 61123 61123 61123 3B07 w77 38 544
Total non cument liabilities 52 267 52911 54 198 67 490 63 471 83 471 63471 373n0 ITT1I7 38 544
TOTAL LIABILITIES 93115 45 213 99840 | 100603 96 798 96 798 96 798 69799 69954 70 562
NET ASSETS 1022 787 958 633 909 543 953 136 949 417 948 417 949 417 979749 982 798 985 436
COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY
Accurmutaled Surplusi{Debal) 1022787 | 958633 | 909543 | 953136 949417 | 040417 949417 0979749 | 982798} 985436
Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY| 1022787 958 633 909 543 953 138 949 417 949 417 949 417 979749 982 798 985 416

Explanatory notes to Table A6 - Budgeted Financial Position

1. Table A6 is consistent with international standards of good financial management practice,
and improves understandability for councilors and management of the impact of the budget

on the statement of financial position (balance sheet).

2. This format of presenting the statement of financial position is aligned to GRAP1, which is
generally aligned to the international version which presents Assets less Liabilities as
“accounting” Community Wealth. The order of items within each group illustrates items in
order of liquidity; i.e. assets readily converted to cash, or liabilities immediately required to

be met from cash, appear first.

3. Table 66 is supported by an extensive table of notes {SA3 which can be found on page 102)

providing a detailed analysis of the major components of a number of items, including:
 Call investments deposits;
« Consumer debtors;

Property, plant and equipment;

» Trade and other payables;
« Provisions non - current;

« [




|
h
||

« Reserves

4. The municipal equivalent of equity is Community Wealth/Equity. The justification is that
ownership and the net assets of the municipality belong to the community.

5. Any movement on the Budgeted Financial Performance or the Capital Budget will inevitably
impact on the Budgeted Financial Position. As an example, the collection rate assumption
will impact on the cash position of the municipality and subsequently inform the level of
cash and cash equivalents at year end. Similarly, the collection rate assumption should
inform the budget appropriation for debt impairment which in turn would impact on the
provision for bad debt. These budget and planning assumptions form a critical link in
determining the applicability and relevance of the budget as well as the determination of
ratios and financial indicators. In addition the funding compliance assessment is informed
directly by forecasting the statement of financial position.

Table 20 MBRR Table A7 - Budgeted Cash Flow Statement

NGCO73 Emthanjeni - Table AT Budgetad Cash Flows

Description 201213 | 201318 | 2014115 Current Year 2015116 mag:p':::::‘::;:;:’:;"' s
& thousand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | FunlYesr | Pre-audit a::.gr“ 3:;’:':: ?(::ff;
| Outcome | Quicome | Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast | outcome 201607 | 20018 | 20188
:-. ) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Reteipts
Propery rakes, penattes & cofleckon charges 13593 17 407 23732 25578 25578 25578 25578 27 99 29239 43 909
Service charges 66 533 B6 506 50 909 93 481 97 831 97 831 97 811 108309 112127 147552
Oher revenue 12295 {2 750} 39 582 32048 32948 32848 32848 35489 36 608 53421
Government - operatng 38073 38678 36215 40 601 40 601 40 601 40601 41 660 42910 45 055
Government - capital 17 054 15152 14 694 56 565 13399 13 398 13398 14 602 14 343 13798
Ineres 1585 1030 1596 715 715 715 715 806 830 863
Dividends - - - - - - - - - -
Payments
Supphers and enployees (130205)] (140967| (151296) (ie4234)) (170203 (170203 (170203 (18689n)| (202336)| (261093
Finance charges {1758) {1608) {1337) {2 556) (3 556) (3 556) {3 556) {5 633} (6 143) (9731)
Transers and Grans {305) (7500 (225)1  (12938) (118662} (11662 (11662 (B5S6)] (10255)[ (15 270)
NET CASH FROMHUSED) OPERATING ACTIVITIE] 16 875 12 659 14 269 55 260 25 550 25550 25550 27T 784 17323 23504
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds on disposal of PPE 558 990 1186 124 124 124 124 130 139 148
Dectrease {Incraase) in non-currentdebiors - - - - - - - - - -
Decrease {increase) oher non-currentreceivables - - {0) - - - - - - -
Decrease (increase) in non.current invesments 79 - - 2 800 30 30 30 - - -
Payments
Capital assel (13822)) (21552) 14194y (62298 (evam| cvmem|  ei2n]  zooan| (91e4)] 22008
< NET CASH FROM/(USED) INVESTING ACTIVITIES| {13186}  {20562)] (13008) ¢503r4)] (vassm| (18%em| (1896nm| 0som] (19 046)] {21 858)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Shortermloans - - - - - - - - -
Borrowing long Brmveetnancing - - - 5046 - - - - - -
Increase (decrease) in consumer deposis - - - 135 135 135 135 98 90 71
Payments
Repaymentof barrowing {2 275) {2 504) {2777} {4 084) {1028) {1028) {1028) (3 222), - -
NET CASH FROMAUSED) FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (227%) (2 504) {2777) 1096 (894) {694) (834) [3 125) 90 "
NET INCREASE! (DECREASE) IN CASH HELD 1415 {10 407) {1 515) {3017) 5690 5690 5690 3852 {1633) 1717
Cashicash equivalents at he year begin: §225 10 640 FAX] | 1624 {1283) {1283) {12083) {985) 2867 114
Cashicash equivalents athe yaar end: 10 640 pAx] {1 uanl 606 4407 4 407 4 407 2 867 1234 2951

Explanatory notes to Table A7 - Budgeted Cash Flow Statement

1. The budgeted cash flow statement is the first measurement in determining if the budget is
funded.




2. It shows the expected level of cash in-flow versus cash out-flow that is likely to result from
the implementation of the budget.

(98]

. It can be seen that the cash levels of the Municipality increased slightly over the 2016/17
MTREF.

-

. The 2013/14 year provide for a net decrease in cash of R10,640 million for the 2013/14
financial year resulting in an overall cash position of R233 thousand at year end.

o

. In 2016/17 the Municipality will undertake an extensive debt collection drive resulting in
cash receipts on arrear debtors, these interventions translated into a net cash position.

[o}]

. The 2016/17 has been informed by the planning principle of ensuring adequate cash
reserves over the medium-term and after the adjustment budget process it became clear
that huge amount of funds would become necessary in the next financial year to acquire
new fleet which would curb raising costs of repairs and maintenance.

7. In the 2016/17 MTREF the municipality will enter into a lease contract in order to finance a
fleet of infrastructure vehicles, expected cash and cash equivalents totals R2.867 million
as at the end of the 2016/17 financial year and escalates to R2.951 million by 2018/19.

Table 21 MBRR Table A8 - Cash Backed Reserves/Accumulated Surplus Reconciliation

NC073 Emthanjeni - Table A8 Cash backed reservesfaccumulated surplus reconciliation

Description Re| iz | wtyu | 205 Current Year 201816 LU L
Expenditure Framework
R thousand Audited Audited Audlted Orfginal Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit | Budget Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Qutcoms | Outcome | Ouicome Budget Budget Forecast outcome 16117 + 2017110 | +2 2018119
Cash and investments avallable
Cashicash equiv alen's al he year end 1 16640 m {1263) 605 4407 4407 4407 2867 124 2951
Other cument invesiments > 90 day s o {0 ) 2322 M Ml () 0 - 0
Non cumend assels - Ingsments 1 14 bl % 8515 " 11375 1375 » i 0
Cash and Investments availabie: B3] 7] T2 117553 707 T 137 HEL T3 7980 |
Application of cash and investments
Unspen condanal Fanskrs 12120 70% 1761 1470 s - - - - -
Ungpent borrowing - - - - - - - - -
Sty fequrements 2 658 &7 %
(ther working Capial requirements 3 (3 770) {17 395) 115 152) {13 093} (14 666) (41 666) (ess) (16147 {15 376]| [ sua)g
Oer provisions 1942 2067 250
Long lerm invesments commified 4 - - - - - - - - - -
Reserves b be backed by cashimvesiments | § =
Total Applicaion of cash and Investments: ) L[ Q] EEL] REEHY m 1L L) T
Surplus(shortiall) k) LR Y
i Explanatory notes to Table A8 - Cash Backed Reserves/Accumulated Surplus
Reconciliation

1. The cash backed reserves/accumulated surplus reconciliation is aligned to the requirements
of MFMA Circular 42 — Funding a Municipal Budget.




R kil - = N e —

2. In essence the table evaluates the funding levels of the budget by firstly forecasting the
cash and investments at year end and secondly reconciling the available funding to the
liabilities/commitments that exist.

3. The outcome of this exercise would either be a surplus or deficit. A deficit would indicate
that the applications exceed the cash and investments available and would be indicative of
non-compliance with the MFMA requirements that the municipality's budget must be
“funded”.

4. Non-compliance with section 18 of the MFMA is assumed because a shorifall would
indirectly indicate that the annual budget is not appropriately funded.

5. From the table it can be seen that for the period 2012/13 to 2016/17 the surplus decreased
from R32 million to R16 million.

6. Considering the requirements of section 18 of the MFMA, it can be concluded that the
adopted 2016/17 MTREF was funded owing to the surplus.

7. As part of the budgeting and planning guidelines that informed the compilation of the
2016/16 MTREF the end objective of the medium-term framework was to ensure the
budget is funded aligned to section 18 of the MFMA.

Table 22 MBRR Table A9 - Asset Management '
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NCO73 Emthan]eni - Table AD Assel Managament
Description w1213 | 201314 | 2014n5 Current Year 2015118 20162:;;1:::::::.2:1:\;:\:::\:0 &
R thowsand Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Fuil vear B::’f:‘ 3:;’:’:: ?}::'r“:;
Qutcome | Quicome | Outcome Budget Budgst Forecast 201817 2017118 2018018
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Total Hew Assstn 8284 12298 131833 55 950 12 181 12 781 13 092 12 612 13 118
Infrastrictuna - Road transport 4 084 10 682 - B 500 8 500 8 500 1000 T212 12 118
Infrastructure - Elocirialy - 918 - 1 500 1 500 1 500 4 0O 3 965 1 000
Infrastructure - Waler - Gi9 13 833 10 000 ~ - 7322 =
Infrastructura - Sandation 4 200 . - a5 958 21 279 870 1435 -
Infrastructury - Other - - - - = - - -
inkas¥ucure i 284 12 299 13833 55958 12 791 12 791 13992 12612 13118
Community - - - - - - - - -
Heritage asselb = - - -
tnvasitaont piopadtes
Onher assels - - - - - - - -
Agriculural Asset - - - - - - -
Biologeal nssat - = - -~ = - - -
Intangiblas - - - - - = - - -
ota) Renewal of Existing Assets 5 437 g 253 262 11 386 & 331 683N 4 944 4 572 B 888
Infrastructure - Road fransport 761 4 640 = 2 800 2 800 2800 J 105 2744 2920
Infrastruciure - Eloctricty 412 6511 - 5 226 170 170 500 636 1049
infrasiruciuro - Walar 17 406 - 180 180 180 500 500 350
infrastrucire - Santation - - - - 220 15 J00
intrastruchrg - Cther 652 1312 N 31 31 32 34 56
infasyucure 1 842 G 969 - 8237 3181 3181 4 457 3929 4676
Commhily 1231 64 68 353 353 351 322 332 509
Hareage assats - - - -
Invasinen| properses - - - - - - -
Oheor assels 2 31m 2126 294 1913 1913 1913 2 165 2311 3704
Agnculural Assety - - - - = - - -
Biological agsot - - - - - - - =~
Intangibles 62 a3 - ;] 8B4 884 = -
Towal Capltal Expenditure
infrastnicture - Road fransport 4 845 15322 - 11 300 11 200 11300 4 105 9 956 15 038
inlrastrircture - Eleciricty 417 1528 - 5726 1670 1670 5200 4 601 2049
tnlrasirschure - Water 17 1 106 13 833 10 180 180 180 7822 500 350
infrastriicitcn - Sondation 4 200 = 35 958 2791 2791 1090 1450 300
Infrastructure - Qthar 652 1312 - 31 N El] 32 kLl 56
Inkas¥ucute 10 126 15 268 13 833 G4 195 15 972 159712 18 449 16 542 17 794
Community 1231 64 68 353 353 353 322 332 509
Hertage assab - - - - - - - - -
Investmant properies - - - - - - = - -
Oher assaly 2301 2126 204 1913 1913 1913 2 165 231 3704
Agricullural Assol - - - - - - - - -
Biological asgel - - - - - - - — -
Intangibles G2 93 - BB4 884 8B4 - - -
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE - Asset class 13721 21 552 14 194 7 344 19 121 19 121 20 937 18 184 22 006
ASSET REGISTER SUMMARY - PPE (WDV)
Infrastnictura - Road lransport 491 212 348 530 466 220 17410 7410 7410 318 515 318 774 318 530
Infrastructure - Electricity 51 035 56 646 72 304 55797 55 797 §5 797 56 978 57 5§79 56 629
Infrastruciute - Water 97 954 101 896 140 606 112 244 112 244 112 244 114 066 114 566 114 316
Inirastrugiure - Sandalion 112 358 118 142 38 185 143 738 141 736 143 738 143 826 144 276 134 876
infrastruciure - Other 1893 3357 12 102 3 861 3 861 3861 3893 3927 3 984
Inkastuckire 754 453 G628 571 729418 633 048 631048 633 048 637 279 639 123 640 615
Communiy 155 551 224 026 68 223324 223324 223 324 219 043 219 381 219 B30
Harltage assut - 6 959 6 959 - ~ — 6 559 6 959 5959
Invastnen| proparkes 5 004 5004 § 004 5 004 5 004 5 004 5 004 5 004 5 004
Cther assols 60410 67028 142 268 73 665 73 665 73665 68 B28 69 137 70 841
Agriculural Assots - - - = = " » = -
Biological nszets - - - - - = - £ =
ntangiblog 536 g4 235 413 413 413 458 462 478
TOTAL ASSET REGISTER SUMMARY - PPE (WDV 975 0857 931 872 883 952 935 454 935 454 935 454 937 575 940 087 843 807
EXPENDITURE QTHER {TEMS
wprecistion & a Ll 59 275 65 214 61 266 g 248 9 248 9 248 9 597 10173 16 775
Repalrs and M ance by Asset Class 8471 11611 11 215 16 618 16 616 16 618 17 BOS 18 864 30 971
Infrasiruciure - Road fransport § 368 1277 n7y 616 616 616 528 562 1099
fnfrasiructure - Elecincity 1495 929 1 165 1342 1342 1342 15485 1 848 2783
infrastructura - Water 750 897 689 1 145 1145 1145 124 1304 2152
infrastructure - Sandation 712 464 228 64 64 64 66 70 116
infrastructura - Other 711 1068 - 1975 1975 1975 = - -
Inkasrucure 5036 4435 2 399 5143 5 147 5143 3470 3785 4 151
C ommunily 1 626 2218 3409 3098 3098 3098 2037 2 302 4 263
Harkone assels - - - - - - - - -
{nvastmonl proportes 158 - - - - - ~ - -
Ohar assets 1651 4 958 5407 B 377 8377 83r? 12 298 12777 20 557
| TOTAL EXPENDITURE OTHER ITEMS 77 748 76 824 72 609 25 866 25 866 25 866 27 402 29 037 AT 748
R i of Existing Aasets a3 % of tolal capex 39.6% 42.9% 2.5% 16 9% 13.1% 33.1% 332% J4,3% 40.4%
Renwewal of Existing Assets as % of deprecn™ 7 B% 14. 2% 0.6% 123.1% 68.5% 68.5% 724% 64.6% 53.0%
REM a3 2 % of PPE 0.9% 13% 1.3% 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.5% 20% 3.3%
|Renewal and R&EM a3 & % of PPE 10% 20% 1.0% J 0% 2.0% 2 0% 3.0% 3.0% 4.0%

Explanatory notes to Table A9 - Asset Management
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1. Table A9 provides an overview of municipal capital allocations to building new assets and
the renewal of existing assets, as well as spending on repairs and maintenance by asset
class.

2. The following graph provides an analysis between depreciation and operational repairs and
maintenance over the MTREF. It highlights the municipality's strategy to address the
maintenance backlog.

Table 23 MBRR Table A10 - Basic Service Delivery Measurement

NCO73 Emthanjsni - Table A10 Basic service detivery moeasurement
2012013 2013014 2014018 Cutrant Year 2015/16 TAGAT Madlum Term Ravanus &
Dancription Eipenditure Framework
o - = Qrigina) Adjusted Pull Year Budgel Ya
L] L 2018417
[Houssnoid service targets
Water:
Fprerc) war et naKdn b niing o 2u8 1 798 TEEDY 1) 114 10 114 11 114 11 AN [EES 11 140
Fhpnsd wealnt 0mis y el T0ul 008 19y dwontling) - An1} A7 it e [ITeE D) 743 713
Linsg gudake 1 (a1 least aun sty ice loy ol) 21 471 a5 A5 A1k Alk A2 444 430
Qvret o nleer 3UpPly (it lnost g sesvch v d . 450 473 341 341 341 REE) 0 210
Mawinitan) Setuice §oved aexd Above Bob-toled R 109 10 14 12 iih 12 18 [EXTEY 1} T [ERTE 13 143
Uanwg gl &ag {= 1T sery G ey ad) 3
Orert v cvieer m1pply (< 1mun amvice kv el
N w nkar supply
Bariaw Miiony Senice Loved ki foled = : : -
Tolal humiber ol housshaolde " 308 10 a9 10 814 12 816 12 818 12 418 13 o0 13 04 13 143
Senitation/sewetsge
Flirah kiint (Connmc i 1D Sew rrakge} " AIE 7 i ronz Har 0 BAT 0847 W77 v 80d o 500
F lirnh iint {wolll a606c tank ) 1177 1027 LAY 2 2052 2 352 2 282 2 365 2425 & a8
Chwrnc il uidet 243 a3 27 15 7413 703 3l 1) 1425
il ikt (v nrvalaiet) 456 [IF) 450 Au8 458 431 ALY 402
CHIsol Kbl IOV IZIONS (> (1) 301y s lov al) .
) IAFurans Sorvic o Lovel ard AfRivo st tofad 4 258 10 058 10 541 12 302 12 202 12 202 12 B 17 W74 [ERT
\ Lhich ol kubnk CE) 517 EED) 353 53 53 A3 EFD) 310
CHIIF ikt Prow mions (< (1 S#rv IcH ke all A50 0124
No el prow imons . 0179 3
[niow Munrznan Servicn {ovel sub-fotal 07 1)) 15 Bhn %3 I3 I3 FED) EED) R
Total number of houssholds ® 211 11 021 20 448 12 8186 12 818 13 819 13 167 13 353 13 418
Cnecgy:
E R UICHy (a8 navtl 0110 Sty ook bevy ool EEID) 3 roa 3 02 ELET 530 ErE 3 BiHd 4 (K A 00
Elo¥scify - Hropumd {simin sarv icn v el) 4 993 2 443 5715 8 115 w115 195 e 0 2inl [ETE)

Adirsiraime Service Luvel ment Abova a1t H 11 2 B 37 11 Wby 11 1140 11 %3 T2 19k 12 205 12 40
Clnuiicily {< numn aervics iy ol 11 A0 44 A% At Anr 43% 41D A0
[ loc B iy - pregowd (= i nnrvicn kv nlp - AN A73 LLik] ey k) 1692 178 "z
D MINMHGY SOUIG Y . . = .

Lt MR S@1vicea L aved S fofd 11 @11 560 a7 B2 Ha2 034 504 [
Total numtet of houssholde &3 10 121 10 827 12 19 12 818 12 418 12 820 12 888 13 303
Rafuas
Lamar e

Reanov nd il lnas once n wehk [ETT] 10 121 1002 12 115 t7 s 12 413 13 124 13 DO 14 200
Iciartenn mrvice Lerved senl Abave sob-rotad 0921 161 121 10 827 [EXTIE) 12 015 12 415 12 1124 120 Gt 14 210

Ramoved es Bsgqumitly $Hin once nwank

Uning conumunasl iehise dump

Uit owh tofian duimp

Ottt cLbbisty divponnl

No ibbish deposal

ko ABIHATEED SNvICn Lovid E1dd)-fel ot . .

Toial number of houssholde 23 10 131 10 827 12 918 12 818 12 443 13 424 13 908 14 210
Houssholds receiving Fres Basia Bervice
mlknllhnl i houamiiold pen rhong) 2 4 T 720 2 B0 2 bO8 2 (on 3334 3 B34 4 004 LERN
SarutoBon (res amnum nv al e ce) 2 nud 2 120 2 GBb 2 G0l 2 W 7 334 EXTEL) A O LD
[ sCHiCity /ofinr anntdy (50w h par lumobol 2 b4 2 720 2 D ? g 2 non 3 134 3 B34 4 014 4 721
Finlusa (romovon s lnast ohce a wneth) 2 04 2 ran 2 1) 2 frolt 2 EEED 3 B 4 OHd 4 220
Coel of Fres Basic Servioss provided - Form el Setllements 1R coa)
Wikt (8 kdokEms por indigent Housshoki
5. {how sarvice i
E Mcticity roliwr oiwirgy (hilkwh perd Indigeny
Rehian (minovnd once o wesk tor indigen)
Cowt of Free Basio urvices provided - intg
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2.1 Overview of the annual budget process

Section 53 of the MFMA requires the Mayor of the municipality to provide general political
guidance in the budget process and the setting of priorities that must guide the preparation of
the budget. In addition Chapter 2 of the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations states
that the Mayor of the municipality must establish a Budget Steering Committee to provide
technical assistance to the Mayor in discharging the responsibilities set out in section 53 of the
Act.

The Budget Steering Committee consists of the Municipal Manager and senior officials of the
municipality meeting under the chairpersonship of the Mayor, who is also the chairperson of
the Finance Committee.

The primary aims of the Budget Steering Committee are to ensure:

«that the process foliowed to compile the budget complies with legislation and good
budget practices;

« that there is proper alignment between the policy and service delivery priorities set out in
the Municipality's IDP and the budget, taking into account the need to protect the
financial sustainability of municipality;

« that the municipality's revenue and tariff setting strategies ensure that the cash resources
needed to deliver services are available; and

e that the various spending priorities of the different municipal departments are properly
evaluated and prioritised in the allocation of resources.

i. Budget Process Overview

In terms of section 21 of the MFMA the Mayor is required to table in Council ten months before
the start of the new financial year (i.e. in August 2015) a time schedule that sets out the
process to revise the IDP and prepare the budget.

The Mayor tabled in Council the required the IDP and budget time schedule in September
2015. Key dates applicable to the process were:

. August 2015 - Strategic planning session of all the Councillors and
Management. Aim: to review past performance trends of the capital and
operating budgets, the economic realities and to set the prioritisation criteria for
the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF;

. November 2015 — Detail departmental budget proposals (capital and operating)
submitted to the Budget and Treasury Office for consclidation and assessment
against the financial planning guidelines;

. January 2016 - Review of the financial strategy and key economic and financial
planning assumptions by the Budget Steering Committee. This included financial
forecasting and scenario considerations;

25 January 2016 - Council considers the 2016/17 Mid-year Review and

Adjustments Budget;

. January 2016 - Multi-year budget proposals are submitted to the Executive
Committee for endorsement;

. February 2016 - Recommendations of the Executive Committee are

communicated to the Budget Steering Committee, and on to the respective
departments. The draft 2016/17 MTREF is revised accordingly;

. 31 March 2016 - Tabling in Council of the draft 2016/17 IDP and 2016/17
MTREF for public consultation;

. April 2016 — Public consultation;
. 25 April 2016 - Closing date for written comments;
. 6 to 21 May 2016 — Draftisation of the 2016/17 IDP and 2016/17 MTREF, taking




P

-

into consideration comments received from the public, comments from National
Treasury, and updated information from the most recent Division of Revenue Bill
and financial framework; and

. 31 May 2015 - Tabling of the 2016/17 MTREF before Council for consideration
And approval.

There were deviations from the key dates set out in the Budget Time Schedule tabled in
Council due to commitments that arose on the planned activities.

ii. IDP and Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan

The IDP as adopted by Council on 26 May 2016. It started in September 2015 after the tabling
of the IDP Process Plan and the Budget Time Schedule for the 2016/17 MTREF in August.

The Municipality's IDP is its principal strategic planning instrument, which directly guides and
informs its planning, budget, management and development actions. This framework is rolled
out into objectives, key performance indicators and targets for implementation which directly
inform the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan. The Process Plan applicable to
the revision cycle included the following key IDP processes and deliverables:

. Registration of community needs;

Compilation of departmental business plans including key performance indicators and
targets;

Financial planning and budgeting process;

Public participation process;

Compilation of the SDBIP, and

The review of the performance management and monitoring processes.

The IDP has been taken into a business and financial planning process leading up to the
2016/17 MTREF, based on the approved 2016/17 MTREF, Mid-year Review and adjustments
budget. The business planning process has subsequently been refined in the light of current
economic circumstances and the resulting revenue projections.

With the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF, each department/function had to review the
business planning process, including the setting of priorities and targets after reviewing the
mid-year and third quarter performance against the 2016/17 Departmental Service Delivery
and Budget Implementation Plan. Business planning links back to priority needs and master
planning, and essentially informed the detail operating budget appropriations and three-year
capital programme.

jiil. Financial Modelling and Key Planning Drivers

As part of the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF, extensive financial modelling was
undertaken to ensure affordability and long-term financial sustainability. The following key
factors and planning strategies have informed the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF:

Municipality's growth potential

Policy priorities and strategic objectives

Asset maintenance

Economic climate and trends (i.e. inflation, Eskom increases, househoid debt,

migration patterns)

. Performance trends The approved 2015/16 adjustments budget and performance
against the SDBIP

Cash Flow Management Strategy

Debtor payment levels

Loan and investment possibilities

The need for tariff increases versus the ability of the community to pay for

|
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services,
. improved and sustainable service delivery
. Solar Energy project potentials

In addition to the above, the strategic guidance given in National Treasury's MFMA Circulars
51 and 54 has been taken into consideration in the planning and prioritisation process.

iv. Community Consultation

The Draft Budget 2016/17 MTREF as tabled before Council on 31 March 2016 for community
consultation was published on the municipality’s website, and hard copies were made availabie
at customer care offices, municipal notice boards and various libraries.

Council held Budget Input meetings at venues in all wards of Emthanjeni municipality. Knock
and drops were distributed at § households to inform the communities about the meetings.
Advertisements of the notifications were sent to all organisations on the municipality’s
database, including ratepayer associations, community-based organisations and organised
business.

Ward Committees were utilised to facilitate the community consultation process from 01 to 15
March 2016, and included eight public briefing sessions with communities, and other
stakeholders. The applicable dates and venues were published in all the local newspapers
and were attended by the members of the community. This can be attributed to the additional
initiatives that were launched during the consultation process, including the specific targeting of
ratepayer associations. Individual sessions were scheduled with organised business and
imbizo’s were held to further ensure transparency and interaction. Other stakeholders involved
in the consultation included churches, non-governmental institutions and community-based
organisations.

Submissions received during the community consultation process and additional information
regarding revenue and expenditure and individual capital projects were addressed, and where
relevant considered as part of the Draftisation of the 2016/17 MTREF. Feedback and
responses to the submissions received are available on request. The following are some of
the issues and concerns raised as well as comments received during the consultation process:

Significant changes effected in the Draft 2016/17 MTREF compared to the draft
2015/16MTREF that was tabled for community consultation, include:

« The Draft Eskom bulk tariff increase, applicable to municipalities from 1 July 2016, was
factored into the proposed consumer tariffs, applicable from 1 July 2016. This resulted
in an increase of 8 per cent;

The SALGBC parties’ settlement regarding the salary negotiations have been Draftised
for in the 2016/17 financial year;

= The 2016 Division of Revenue Act (DORA) grant allocations were Draftized and aligned
to the gazetted allocations; and

- Funding was allocated to address metering discrepancies and unmetered premises.

2.2 Overview of alignment of annual budget with IDP

The Constitution mandates local government with the responsibility to exercise local
developmental and cooperative governance. The eradication of imbalances in South African
society can only be realized through a credible integrated developmental ptanning process.

Municipalities in South Africa need to utilise integrated development planning as a method to
plan future development in their areas and so find the best solutions to achieve sound long-
term development goals. A municipal IDP provides a five year strategic programme of action
short, medium and long term strategic and budget priori




plan aligns the resources and the capacity of a municipality to its overall development aims
and guides the municipal budget. An IDP is therefore a key instrument which municipalities
use to provide vision, leadership and direction to all those that have a role to play in the
development of a municipal area. The |DP enables municipalities to make the best use of
scarce resources and speed up service delivery.

Integrated developmental planning in the South African context is amongst others, an
approach to planning aimed at involving the municipality and the community to jointly find the
best solutions towards sustainable development. Furthermore, integrated development
planning provides a strategic environment for managing and guiding all planning, development
and decision making in the municipality.

It is important that the IDP developed by municipalities correlate with National and Provincial
intent. It must aim to co-ordinate the work of local and other spheres of government in a
coherent plan to improve the quality of life for all the people living in that area. Applied to the
Municipality, issues of national and provincial importance should be reflected in the IDP of the
municipality. A clear understanding of such intent is therefore imperative to ensure that the
Municipality strategically complies with the key national and provincial priorities.

The aim of this revision cycle was to develop and coordinate a coherent plan to improve the
quality of life for all the people living in the area, also reflecting issues of national and provingial
importance. One of the key objectives is therefore to ensure that there exists alignment
between national and provincial priorities, policies and strategies and the Municipality's
response to these requirements.

The national and provincial priorities, policies and strategies of importance include amongst
others:

Green Paper on National Strategic Planning of 2009;

Government Programme of Action;

Development Facilitation Act of 1995;

Provincial Growth and Development Strategy (GGDS);

National and Provincial spatial development perspectives;
Relevant sector plans such as transportation, legislation and policy;
National Key Performance Indicators (NKPIs); |l

Accelerated and Shared Growth Initiative (ASGISA);
National 2014 Vision;

National Spatial Development Perspective (NSDP) and
The National Priority Outcomes.

The Constitution requires local government to relate its management, budgeting and planning
functions to its objectives. This gives a clear indication of the intended purposes of municipal
integrated development planning. Legislation stipulates clearly that a municipality must not i

only give effect to its IDP, but must also conduct its affairs in a manner which is consistent with
its IDP. The following table highlights the IDP's five strategic objectives for the 2016/17
MTREF and further planning refinements that have directly informed the compilation of the
budget.

Table 24 IDP Strategic Objectives

2015/16 Financial Year 2016/17 MTREF
Ensure that all residents have access to | Provision of access to all basic services
1. sustainable free basic services and all other | rendered to residents within the available
services rendered resources.
Development and transformation of the | Development and transformation of the
2. institution with the aim of capacitating the | institution with the aim of capacitating the
municipality in meeting the municipality in meeting their objectives.
Objectives




Promote sustainable and representative
governance through the efficient, effective

Promote the equitable creation and
distribution of wealth in Emthanjeni Municipal
area.

Promote sustainable and representaiive
governance through the efficient, effective and
sustainable  utilization of resources in
consultation with the residents of Emthanjeni
Municipality.

Promote representative governance through
the sustainable utilization of available
resources in consultation with the residents
of Emthanjeni Municipality.

Create an effective, efficient, sustainable and
viable municipality through financial
management

Maintaining a financially sustainable and
viable Municipality.

Contribute to the creation of communities where
residents and visitors can work, live and play
without threat to themselves or their properties.

Contribute to the development and protection
of the rights and needs of all residents with a
particular focus on the poor.

Contribute to the development of caring
communities which promote and protect the right
and needs of all citizens, with a particular focus
on the poor.

Contribute to the creation of communities
where

residents and visitors can work, live and play
without threat to themselves or their
properties.

Ensure a healthy environment for all residents of
Emthanjeni through effective environmental
management.

provincial government.

In order to ensure integrated and focused service delivery between all spheres of government
it was important for the Municipality to align its budget priorities with that of national and
All spheres of government place a high priority on infrastructure
development, economic development and job creation, efficient service delivery, poverty
alleviation and building sound institutional arrangements.

Local priorities were identified as part of the IDP review process which is directly aligned to that
of the national and provincial priorities. The key performance areas can be summarised as
follows against the five strategic objectives:

1. Provision of quality basic services and infrastructure which includes, amongst others:

o Provide electricity;
Provide water;
Provide sanitation;

Provide waste removal;

0O 00

Provide housing;
Provide roads and storm water;
Provide public transport,

00 0oO0

Provide Municipality planning services; and
Maintaining the infrastructure of the Municipality.

2. Economic growth and development that leads to sustainable job creation by:
o Ensuring the is a clear structural plan for the Municipality,
o Ensuring planning processes function in accordance with set timeframes;
o Facilitating the use of labour intensive approaches in the delivery of services

and the building of infrastructure.

3.1 Fight poverty and build clean, healthy, safe and sustainable communities:

-y



(o]

Extending waste removal services and ensuring effective Municipality cleansing;
Ensuring all waste water treatment works are operating optimally;

Working with strategic partners such as SAPS to address crime:

Ensuring save working environments by effective enforcement of building and
heaith regulations;

Promote viable, sustainable communities through proper zoning; and

o Promote environmental sustainability by protecting wetlands and key open
spaces.

O 0 0O 0
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3.2 Integrated Social Services for empowered and sustainable communities
o Work with provincial departments to ensure the development of community
infrastructure such as schools and clinics is properly co-ordinated with the
informal settlements upgrade programme

4. Foster participatory democracy and Batho Pele principles through a caring, accessible
and accountable service by:
o Optimising effective community participation in the ward committee system; and
o Implementing Batho Pele in the revenue management strategy.

3.1 Promote sound governance through:
o Publishing the outcomes of all tender processes on the municipal website

9.2 Ensure financial sustainability through:
o Reviewing the use of contracted services
o Continuing to implement the infrastructure renewal strategy and the repairs and
maintenance plan

5.3 Optimal institutional transformation to ensure capacity to achieve set objectives
o Review of the organizational structure to optimize the use of personnel:

in line with the MSA, the IDP constlitutes a single, inclusive strategic plan for the Municipality.
The five-year programme responds to the development challenges and opportunities faced by
the Municipality by identifying the key performance areas to achieve the five the strategic
objectives mentioned above,

In addition to the five-year IDP, the Municipality undertakes an extensive planning and
developmental strategy which primarily focuses on a longer-term horizon; 15 to 20 years. This
process is aimed at influencing the development path by proposing a substantial programme of
public-led investment to restructure current patterns of settlement, activity and access to
resources in the Municipality so as to promote greater equity and enhanced opportunity. The
strategy specifically targets future developmental opportunities in traditional dormitory
settlements. It provides direction to the Municipality's IDP, associated sectoral plans and
strategies, and the allocation of resources of the Municipality and other service delivery
partners.

This development strategy introduces important policy shifts which have further been
translated into seven strategic focus areas/objectives as outlined below:

Developing dormant areas;

Enforcing hard development lines — so as to direct private investment;
Maintaining existing urban areas;

Strengthening key economic clusters:

Building social cohesion;

Strong developmental initiatives in refation to the municipal institution as a whole:
and

Sound financial fundamentals.

|
h

Working with the provincial department of health to provide primary health care ||
services;




Lessons learned with previous IDP revision and planning cycles as well as changing
environments were taken into consideration in the compilation of the fourth revised IDP,

including:
Ii . Strengthening the analysis and strategic planning processes of the Municipality;
. Initiating zonal planning processes that involve the communities in the analysis and

planning processes. More emphasis was placed on area based interventions, within
the overall holistic framework;

. Ensuring better coordination through a programmatic approach and attempting to focus
the budgeting process through planning interventions; and
. Strengthening performance management and monitoring systems in ensuring the
| objectives and deliverables are achieved.

The 2016/17 MTREF has therefore been directly informed by the IDP revision process and the
following tables provide a reconciliation between the IDP strategic objectives and operating
I revenue, operating expenditure and capital expenditure.

Table 25 MBRR Table SA4 - Reconciliation between the IDP strategic objectives and budgeted
" revenue
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Table 26 MBRR Table SA5 - Reconciliation between the IDP strategic objectives and
budgeted operating expenditure

NC073 Esthanjanl - Supporting Tsble SAS Reconclliation of IDP strstegic objectives and budpat {(operating sxpandltuse)
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Table 28 MBRR Table SA6 - NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA6 Reconciliation of
IDP strategic objectives and budget {capital expenditure)

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA5 Reconciliation of IDP strategic objectives and budget {capital expenditure)
Strategic Objective Goal Goal Code| 2012113 | 2013114 | 2014115 Current Year 201516 201617 Medium Term
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available resources demand and mainkin

existing infastucure
Mainkining a inancially | To render a skategic D 266 232 151 166 166 166 620 - S
sustainable and viable  |financial management
fwnicipality services b Emhanjeni

Municipality
Maintaining a dnancially | To svenghen and E 1010 1187 m 849 849 B49| 2165| 2311| 3704
sustainable and viable  |implement §nancial and
municipality asset management within

Emhanjeni Municipality
Contribue © he To provide Fafiic services F 420 241 157 | 1013 583 583 322 332 509
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visitors can work, live  |the community, law
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available resourcesin  |governance processes
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residents of Emhanjeni |Audit Plan {RBAP)
municipality
Allpcations to other priorities
Total Capital Expenditure 13724 21552 14194 | 67344 19421 | 19121 | 20937 | 19184 | 22006
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Supporting Table SA7 Measureable performance objectives

NC073 Emthanjen| - Supporting Table SAT Measurvable performance objectives
2016117 Medlum Term Revenus &
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Sub-lunction 1 - Wavte Water
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Longiuc] rew L madt No of kilsmelers 10% 40% 40% 40% 10% 40% 40% 10% 40%
Spent the spproved mal budget % o appioved A% A% Al% D% 3% 1I% 3% 23% A%
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2.3 Measurable performance objectives and indicators

Performance Management is a system intended to manage and monitor service delivery
progress against the identified strategic objectives and priorities. In accordance with legislative
requirements and good business practices as informed by the National Framework for
Managing Programme Performance Information, the Municipality has developed and
implemented a performance management system of which system is constantly refined as the
integrated planning process unfolds. The Municipality targets, monitors, assess and reviews
organisational performance which in turn is directly linked to individual employee's
performance.

At any given time within government, information from multiple years is being considered,;
plans and budgets for next year; implementation for the current year; and reporting on last
year's performance. Although performance information is reported publicly during the last
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continues through each of the planning, budgeting, implementation and reporting stages. The
planning, budgeting and reporting cycle can be graphically illustrated as follows:

t?)\narrs;iqu
by Parliament, provincial legistature or municipal council

B l
v

|
| Policy development

; identify desired impacts

| Assess and adjust Strategic Specify performance i
planning indicators

e SV

| INSTITUTION —— _
natlonal departmont [ Operational
End-year reporting provincial department ] planning and
municipallty
e ST J public entity budgeting

municipal entity

Monitor and take Implementation and Set targets and
corrective action in-year reporting allocate resources

Figure 2 Planning, budgeting and reporting cycle

The performance of the Municipality relates directly to the extent to which it has achieved
success in realising its goals and objectives, complied with legislative requirements and
meeting stakeholder expectations. The Municipality therefore has adopted one integrated
performance management system which encompasses:

Planning (setting goals, objectives, targets and benchmarks);

Monitoring (regular monitoring and checking on the progress against plan);
Measurement (indicators of success);

Review (identifying areas requiring change and improvement);

Reporting (what information, to whom, from whom, how often and for what Purpose);
and

. Improvement (making changes where necessary).

The performance information concepts used by the Municipality in its integrated performance
management system are aligned to the Framework of Managing Programme Performance
Information issued by the National Treasury:

|
|
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Figure 3 Definition of performance information concepts

The following table provides the main measurable performance objectives the municipality
undertakes to achieve this financial year.

The following table sets out the municipalities main performance objectives and
benchmarks for the 2016/17 MTREF.
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2.4 Performance indicators and benchmarks

2.4.1 Borrowing Management
Capital expenditure in local government can be funded by capital grants, own-source revenue
and long term borrowing. The ability of a municipality to raise fong term borrowing is largely
dependent on its creditworthiness and financial position. As with all other municipalities,
Emthanjeni’s borrowing strategy is primarily informed by the affordability of debt repayments.
The structure of the Municipality's debt portfolio is dominated by annuity loans. The following
financial performance indicators have formed part of the compilation of the 2016/17 MTREF:

+ Borrowing to asse! ratio is a measure of the long-term borrowing as a percentage of the
total asset base of the municipality. While this ratio is decreasing over the MTREF from
2.65 per cent to O per cent in 2018/19, it needs to that this decrease is due to the fact
that the municipality will pay off all loans over the MTREF.
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« Capital charges to operaling expenditure are a measure of the cost of borrowing in
relation to the operating expenditure. it can be seen that the cost of borrowing has
fluctuated from 1.38 per cent in 2016/17, O per cent in 2017/18 and O per cent in
2017/18. This decrease can be attributed to the paying off of loans by the municipality.

In summary, various financial risks could have a negative impact on the future borrowing
capacity of the municipality. In particular, the continued ability of the Municipality to meet its
revenue targets and ensure its forecasted cash flow targets are achieved will be critical in
meeting the repayments of the debt service costs. As part of the compilation of the 2014/15
MTREF the potential of smoothing out the debt profile over the longer term will be investigated.

2.4.2 Safety of Capital

. The debt-to-equity ratio is a financial ratio indicating the relative proportion of equity
and debt used in financing the municipality’s assets. The indicator is based on the total
of loans, creditors, overdraft and tax provisions as a percentage of funds and reserves.

During the 2016/17 financial year the ratio deteriorated to a level 0.1 per cent.

. The gearing ratio is a measure of the total long term borrowings over funds and JI

reserves. Between 2012/13 and 2018/19 the gearing ratio peaked at 0.01 per cent.
This was primarily a result of the increased borrowing levels and decreasing funds and
reserves. While the gearing ratio remain constant in the 2016/17 financial year, the
medium term strategy is to steadily increase the gearing ratio to a level that does not
exceed 5 per cent as a prudential limit.

2.4.3Liquidity
. Current ratio is a measure of the current assets divided by the current liabilities and as
a benchmark the Municipality has set a limit of 1, hence at no point in time should this
ratio be less than 1. For the 2016/17 MTREF the current ratio is 3.4 in the 2016/17
financial year. Going forward it will be necessary to maintain these levels.

. The liquidity ratio is 2 measure of the ability of the municipality to utilize cash and cash
equivalents to extinguish or retire its current liabilities immediately. Ideailly the
municipality should have the cash and cash equivalents on hand to meet at least the
current liabilities, which should translate into a liquidity ratio of 1. Anything below 1
indicates a shortage in cash to meet creditor obligations. For the 2016/17 financial year
the ratio was 0.2 and as part of the financial planning strategy it has been increased to
0.2 in the 2017/18 financial year. This is expected to reach optimal level by 2018/18.
This needs to be considered a pertinent risk for the municipality as any under collection
of revenue will translate into serious financial challenges for the Municipality. As part of
the longer term financial planning objectives this ratio will have to be set at a minimum
of 1.

2.4.4Revenue Management

. As part of the financial sustainability strategy, an aggressive revenue management
framework has been impiemented to increase cash inflow, not only from current billings
but also from debtors that are in arrears in excess of 90 days. The intention of the
strategy is to streamline the revenue value chain by ensuring accurate billing, customer
service, credit control and debt collection. A Debt Collection firm has been appointed to
recover arrear monies from consumers.

2.4.5Creditors Management

. The Municipality has managed to ensure that creditors are settled within the legislated
30 days of invoice. While the liquidity ratio is of concern, by applying daily cash flow

management the municipality has managed to ensure a 100 per
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of risk of doing business with the Municipality, which is expected to benefit the
Municipality in the form of more competitive pricing of tenders, as suppliers compete for
the Municipality’s business.

2.4.60ther Indicators

. The electricity distribution losses has decreased from 14.8 per cent in the 2012/13
financial year to 10.5 per cent in 2018/19. The initiatives to ensure these targets are
achieved include managing illegal connections and theft of electricity by rolling out
smart metering systems, including prepaid meters, and the hiring of a meter readers
that prevent increasing illegal connections.

. The water distribution losses have been significantly reduced from 19.2 per cent in
2012/13 to 14.5 per cent in 2018/19. This has been achieved with the introduction of a
water leakage report and action centre. Various awareness programmes are unfolding
to reduce these losses and also to repair these leakages.

. Employee costs as a percentage of operating revenue decreases over the MTREF.
This is primarily owing to the high increase in bulk purchases which directly increase
revenue levels, as well as increased allocation relating to operating grants and
transfers.

. Similar to that of employee costs, repairs and maintenance as percentage of operating
revenue is also decreasing owing directly to cost drivers such as bulk purchases
increasing far above inflation. In real terms, repairs and maintenance has increased as
part of the Municipality's strategy to ensure the management of its asset base.

2.5 Free Basic Services: basic social services package for indigent households

The social package assists residents that have difficuity paying for services and are registered
as indigent households in terms of the Indigent Policy of the Municipality. With the exception
of water, only registered indigents qualify for the free basic services.

For the 2015/16 financial year 3 334 registered indigents have been provided for in the budget
with this figured increasing to almost 4 000 by 2016/17. In terms of the Municipality's indigent
policy registered households are entitied to 8kt free water, 50 kwh of electricity, sanitation and
free waste removal once a week, as well as a discount on their property rates.

Further detail relating to the number of households receiving free basic services, the cost of
free basic services, highest level of free basic services as well as the revenue cost associated
with the free basic services is contained in Table 27 MBRR A10 (Basic Service Delivery
Measurement).

Note that the number of households in informal areas that receive free services and the cost of
these services (e.g. the provision of water through stand pipes, water tankers, etc) are not
taken into account in the table noted above.

2.6 Providing clean water and managing waste water

The Municipality is the Water Services Authority for the entire municipality in terms of the
Water Services Act, 1997 and acts as water services provider.

The Department of Water Affairs conducts an annual performance rating of water treatment
works, presenting a Blue Drop or Green Drop award respectively to potable water treatment
works and waste water treatment works that meet certain criteria of excellence.




Emthanjeni Municipality is striving to obtain full Blue Drop status in 2016/17, indicating that the
Municipality's drinking water is of exceptional quality.

The following is briefly the main challenges facing the Municipality in this regard:

. The infrastructure at most of the waste water treatment works is old and insufficient to
treat the increased volumes of waste water to the necessary compliance standard,

. Shortage of skilled personnel makes proper operations and maintenance difficult;

. Electrical power supply to some of the plants is often interrupted which hampers the

purification processes; and

2.7 Overview of budget related-policies

The Municipality's budgeting process is guided and governed by relevant legislation,
frameworks, strategies and related policies.

2.7.1 Review of credit control and debt collection procedures/policies

The Collection Policy as approved by Council in May 2015. While the adopted policy is
credible, sustainable, manageable and informed by affordability and value for money there has
been a need to review certain components to achieve a higher collection rate. Some of the
possible revisions will include the lowering of the credit periods for the down payment of debt.
In addition emphasis will be placed on speeding up the indigent registration process to ensure
that credit control and debt collection efforts are not fruitiessly wasted on these debtors.

As most of the indigents within the municipal area are unable to pay for municipal services
because they are unemployed, the Integrated Indigent Exit Programme aims to link the
registered indigent households to development, skills and job opportunities. The programme
also seeks to ensure that all departments as well as external role players are actively invoived
in the reduction of the number of registered indigent households.

The 2016/17 MTREF has been prepared on the basis of achieving an average debtors’
collection rate of 96 per cent on current billings. In addition the collection of debt in excess of
90 days has been prioritised as a pertinent strategy in increasing the Municipality's cash levels.
In addition, the potential of a payment incentive scheme is being investigated and if found to be
viable will be incorporated into the policy. The policy is currently being revised.

2.7.2 Asset Management, Infrastructure Investment and Funding Policy

A proxy for asset consumption can be considered the level of depreciation each asset incurs
on an annual basis. Preserving the investment in existing infrastructure needs to be
considered a significant strategy in ensuring the future sustainability of infrastructure and the
Municipality's revenue base. Within the framework, the need for asset renewal was
considered a priority and hence the capital programme was determined based on renewal of
current assets versus new asset construction.

Further, continued improvements in technology generally allows many assets to be renewed at
a lesser ‘real’ cost than the original construction cost. Therefore, it is considered prudent to
allow for a slightly lesser continual level of annual renewal than the average annual
depreciation. The Asset Management, Infrastructure and Funding Policy is therefore
considered a strategic guide in ensuring a sustainable approach to asset renewal, repairs and
maintenance and is utilised as a guide to the selection and prioritisation of individual capital
projects. In addition the policy prescribes the accounting and administrative policies and
procedures relating to property, plant and equipment (fixed assets). The policy is currently
being revised.
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2.7.3Budget Adjustment Policy

The adjustments budget process is governed by various provisions in the MFMA and is aimed
at instilling and establishing an increased level of discipline, responsibility and accountability in
the financial management practices of municipalities. To ensure that the Municipality
continues to deliver on its core mandate and achieves its developmental goals, the mid-year
review and adjustment budget process will be utilised to ensure that underperforming functions
are identified and funds redirected to performing functions. The policy is currently being
revised.

2.7.4Supply Chain Management Policy

The Supply Chain Management Policy was adopted by Council in September 2007. An
amended policy has been approved by council on the 26 May 2015. The policy is currently
being revised.

2,7.5 Budget and Virement Policy

The Budget and Virement Policy aims to empower senior managers with an efficient financial
and budgetary amendment and control system to ensure optimum service delivery within the
legislative framework of the MFMA and the Municipality’s system of delegations. The Budget
and Virement Policy was approved by Council in May 2009 and was amended during May
2014 in respect of both Operating and Capital Budget Fund Transfers. An amended policy has
been approved by council on the 26 May 2015. The policy is currently being revised.

2.7.6 Cash Management and Investment Policy

The Municipality’s Cash Management and Investment Policy was amended by Council in May
2015. The aim of the policy is to ensure that the Municipality's surplus cash and investments
are adequately managed, especially the funds set aside for the cash backing of certain
reserves. The policy details the minimum cash and cash equivalents required at any point in
time and introduce time frames to achieve certain benchmarks. An amended policy has been
been approved by council on the 26 May 2015. The policy is currently being revised.

2.7.7 Tariff Policies

The Municipality’s tariff policies provide a broad framework within which the Council can
determine fair, transparent and affordable charges that also promote sustainable service
delivery. The policies have been approved on various dates and a consolidated tariff policy is
envisaged to be compiled for ease of administration and implementation of the next two years.
An amended policy has been approved by council on the 26 May 2015. The policy is currently
being revised.

2.7.8 Financial Modelling and Scenario Planning Policy

The Financial Modelling and Scenario Planning Policy has directly informed the compilation of
the 2016/17 MTREF with the emphasis on affordability and long-term sustainability. The policy
dictates the approach to longer term financial modelling. The outcomes are then filtered into
the budget process. The model and scenario planning outcomes are taken to Council every
November and then translate into recommendations for the budget guidelines that inform the
compilation of the next MTREF. One of the salient features of the policy is the emphasis on
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financial sustainability. Amongst others, the following has been modelled as part of the
financial modelling and scenario planning process:

. Approved 2015/16 Adjustments Budget,

. Cash Flow Management Inlerventions, Initiatives and Strategies (including the
cash backing of reserves),

. Economic climate and trends (i.e Inflation, household debt levels, indigent

factors, growth, recessionary implications);

Loan and investment possibilities;

Performance trends;

Tariff Increases;

The ability of the community to pay for services (affordability);
Policy priorities;

Improved and sustainabile service delivery; and

Debtor payment levels.

All the above policies are available on the Municipality's website, as well as the following
budget related policies:

Property Rates Policy,

Funding and Reserves Policy;

Borrowing Policy;

Budget Policy; and

Basic Social Services Package (Indigent Policy).

The policy is currently being revised.

2.8 Overview of budget assumptions

The following assumptions were crucial and determining factors during
the budget process and the preparations of the budget.

2.8.1 ASSUMPTIONS
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National Treasury direction or guidelines on budget increases that must be in line
with the macro-economic strategy as reflected in the MFMA Budgetary Circular 79.

v

Inflation is just inside the Reserve Bank parameters of 6% but it does not really Il
reflect the real price increases on the ground.

Al

» NERSA tariff increase guideline stated that municipalities should budget for
increases of 8%. The average increment will be as from 01 July 2016 which, will not
only have a direct impact on the sale and procurement of electricity but to price hikes
in general. “

The current situation at ESKOM is also contributing the uncertainties and
uncontroliable factors experienced by South Africans as a whole.

v

» Salary increment negotiations have been not yet been DRAFTized for the new
three year cycle. Salary increase for the next Financial Year is estimated at 6.5%
as guided by the MFMA circular 79. But this guideline was not realistically
anticipated. "

v

Apart from the normal salary increments, Medical Aid Employers contributions
increments will be between 7% and 11 %. This places a heavier financial burden on
the revenue sources and impacts on the tariff calculation as a whole.

‘.’

General increases in purchasing or Cost price of normal items increase on average

between 8-15 % as in relation to the same period last year, “

» The weak Rand Foreign Exchange Rate and the increase of Oil prices are also not
favorable to the current economic outlook.

» The Macro Economic outlook impacts not only directly on municipalities but forced
|I municipalities to operate within its budgetary means. Expenditure control will be a
major controlling factor for the years to come. i

N

Repair and Maintenance Costs together with labour costs of ‘repairing municipal
assets also fall victim of the huge price hikes which needs to be taken into
consideration. This is an area where much more investment will be invested over the
next few years.

2.8.2 FORECASTING OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE

| REVENUE

1.1. RATES AND TAXES

I
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o Tariffs will increase and decrease depending the on valuation of the

o Conservative an increment of 6 % for properties are being anticipated, but
the main levy driver will be the valuation of properties. Various category of
properties are being levied differently including farm property where a
portion is used for renewable energy generation purpose Solar and Wind

o Electricity Tariffs will increase on a total average between 8% for the
block of 0-350 kWh and 8% for a consumption of 351 and more KWh
as from 01 July 2016 for prepaid and conventional electricity meters.
DRAFT approval for Electricity tariffs is still outstanding from NERSA.

o Al Economic active households will be levied from the first kilolitre of

o Only Indigent Households will be getting the first 8000 liters of water free
as it is included their Free Basic Services Basket.

property.
Mills or Turbines.
1.2. ELECTRICITY
1.3. WATER
o Water will increase by 6 %.
walter.
1.4. SEWERAGE AND REFUSE REMOVAL
o Both Tariffs will increase by 6%.
1.5. SECONDARY TARIFFS

o Secondary Tariffs will increase by + 9 % for the 2016/2017 financial year.

The total budgeted average increment for all revenue sources
will between 6-9 %.

EXPENDITURE

2.1

2.2

EMPLOYEE COSTS: SALARIES AND WAGES

o Salaries and wages has been provided at an increment of 6.5 %

EMPLOYEE COSTS: SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

o A provision of an average increment of 6.5 % has been provided

J|
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2.5

2.6

2.7
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o A provision of an average increment of 6.6 % will provided. However
Repair and Maintenance expenditure increased by almost 7% in relation
to last year. This show Council's commitment to the maintenance of all
assets, it also includes an amount for operating vehicle leases (full
maintenance lease).

BULK PURCHASES

o Electricity purchases will increase on a weighted average of 9.4 % from
01 July 2016 and water will increase on average of 6 %.

CAPITAL CHARGES

o Capital Charges will decrease due the redemption of External Loans
GENERAL COSTS

o A provision of an average increment of 9% will provided.

PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS

A provision of an average increment of 8% has been provided on all
o budgeted levied revenue.

BUDGET ANALYSIS

The overall increases during the 2016/2017 and 2017/2018 financial years
reflects an annual increment of + 10 % and in 2018/2019 budget year on
average decrease of 13% will be expected. This is mainly due to the non-
allocation of Capital Grant Funding as gazetted in the DORA

The total tariff increment will be +- 6% which is in line with the expectations of
National Treasury except the electricity tariff.

Electricity tariffs increments are as per NERSA's guidelines

The general tariff increment between 6-9% is also in line with the current
economic data available.

The budget is realistic and external or macro-economic factors as well as
micro economic factors were taken into consideration. However, the
municipality have no control over these macro conditions that impacts very
heavily on the operations of the municipality. These are interest rates, fuel
prices, inflation rates, high food prices, unemployment rate, and also statutory
levies imposed by National and Provincial Governments, etc.

The budget is very income generated driven and also focus on building and
maintain infrastructure development within the Emthanjeni Municipality.

All budgeted income will realised by the extensive efforts that will be enforced
by the officialdom.

» Strict expenditure mechanisms will be enforced to ensure that the key

I _




Strategic Objectives of the municipality are executed.

v

Budget is in line with the policies of council especially directed to the poorest
of the poor with the provision of Free Basic Services to all qualified indigent
Households.

v

Local Economic Development opportunities has been identified in order to
provide sustainable LED projects for the communities.

A\

The budget is also biased towards the Indigent Households within the
municipality.

BUDGET RELATED POLICIES

The following policies were tabled to council during Council Meeting held on 31
March 2016 of the Budget Meeting. The policies are

(i) Draft IDP

(i) Draft Budget Policy

(ii) Draft Credit Control Policy

(ii)  Draft Indigent Policy

(i)  Draft Tariff Policy

(iv)  Draft rates Policy

(v)  Draft Customer Care Policy

{(v)  Draft Investment and Cash Management policy
(vi)  Draft Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP)
(vii) Draft Revised Supply Chain Management Policy
(viii) Draft Asset Management Policy

CONCLUSION

The 2016/2017 budget is an budget to make services affordable to all consumers. It is a plan
to implement the cross-cutting of expenditure. The budget testifies of the continuation with
the developmental agenda to expand the infrastructure to new and higher levels. It also aims
to continue with the creation of jobs, fighting poverty and most of all ensure that we invest in
infrastructure assets of the Emthanjeni municipality.

The increases of tariffs are mainly focused on affordability and to ensure that we generated
all revenue as budgeted for. Hence the low increment of operating expenditure and
expenditure control that will be sharpened over the next financial year.

The Council commitment to create an conducive environment for Investors fo invest in the
economy of Emthanieni municiEalitz cannot be underestimated. The various economic
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continue with the path of National Development Plan.

1 The budget is prepared under the auspices and principles from the Minister of
finance and the MEC of Finance that all sectors of government must ensure that
austerity measures are introduced. Sustainable service delivery still takes

precedence in this draft budget.

2.9 Overview of budget funding

2.9.1 Medium-term outlook: operating revenue

The following table is a breakdown of the operating revenue over the medium-term:




Description 2016/17 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure
Framework
R thousand Budget Year Budget Year +1 | Budget Year +2
2016/17 2017118 2018118

Revenue By Source
Property rates 29 165 30915 51 010
Property rates - penallies & collection charges - - -
Service charges - eleclricity revenue 57 925 61401 101 3N
Service charges - water revenue 27 953 29630 48 889
Service charges - sanilation revenue 17 568 18 622 30727
Service charges - refuse revenue 10 277 10 894 17 975
Service charges - other 118 270 445
Rental of faciliies and equipment 686 732 885
Interest earned - external investments 806 854 1409
Interest earned - outstanding debtors 954 1011 1669
Dividends received - - -
Fines 6543 6935 11 444
Licences and permits 1978 2097 3 460
Agency services - - -
Transfers recognised - operational 41 660 41 753 47 657
Other revenue 27 095 28 688 47 256
Gains on disposal of PPE 130 138 148

Total Revenue {excluding capital transfers 222 B58 233 942 364 285

and contributions)

Surplus/{Deficit) {9 990) {12 192) 10 854
Transfers recognised - capital 14 602 14 343 13798

Surplus/{Deficit) for the year 4612 2151 24 652

Tariff setting plays a major role in ensuring desired levels of revenue. Getting tariffs right
assists in the compilation of a credible and funded budget. The Municipality derives most of its
operational revenue from the provision of goods and services such as water, electricity,
sanitation and solid waste removal. Property rates, operating and capital grants from organs of
state and other minor charges (such as building plan fees, licenses and permits etc).

The revenue strategy is a function of key components such as:

. Growth in the Municipality and economic development;

. Revenue management and enhancement; [

. Achievement of a 96 per cent annual coliection rate for consumer revenue,

. National Treasury guidelines;
Electricity tariff increases within the National Electricity Regulator of South
Africa (NERSA) approval;

. Achievement of full cost recovery of specific user charges;

. Determining tariff escalation rate by establishing/calculating revenue
requirements;

. The Property Rates Policy in terms of the Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004
(Act 6 of 2004) (MPRA), and

. And the ability to extend new services and obtain cost recovery levels.

The above principles guide the annual increase in the tariffs charged to the consumers and the
ratepayers aligned to the economic forecasts.

The proposed tariff increases for the 2016/17 MTREF on the different revenue categories are:
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Table 27 Proposed tariff increases over the medium-term

2016/17 proposed tariff | 2017/18 proposed tariff | 2018/19 proposed tariff |
Revenue calegory increase increase increase

% % %
Property rates 6 6 6
Sanitation 6 6 6
Solid Waste 6 6 6
Water 6 6 6
Electricity 8 9.5 10.5

Revenue to be generated from property rates is R29, 165 million in the 2016/17 financial year
and increases to R51, 010 million by 2018/19 which represents 14 per cent of the operating
revenue base of the Municipality. It remains relatively constant over the medium-term. With
the implementation of the Municipal Property Rates Act the basis of rating significantly
changed.

Operational grants and subsidies amount to R41,660 million, R41, 753 million and R47, 657
million for each of the respective financial years of the MTREF, or 18.69, 17.85 and 13.08 per
cent of operating revenue. It needs to be noted that in real terms the grants receipts from
national government are changing over the MTREF..

Investment revenue contributes marginally to the revenue base of the Municipality with a
budget allocation of R1, 760 million, R1, 865 million and R3, 078 million for the respective
three financial years of the 2016/17 MTREF. It needs to be noted that these allocations have
been conservatively estimated and as part of the cash backing of reserves and provisions.
The actual performance against budget will be carefully monitored. Any variances in this
regard will be addressed as part of the mid-year review and adjustments budget.

The tables below provide detail investment information and investment particulars by maturity.




Table 28 MBRR SA15 - Detail Investment Information

NCO73 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA1S Investment particulars by type | | | |
201617 Medlum Term Revenue &
2012143 | 01314 | 2004015 Curent Year 201516 Expenditure Framework
Investment type
Ret | Audited | Audited | Audited | Orginal | Adjusted | Fullvear | Dudoet | Buduet | Budgel
COutcome | Outcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast Uy ML RN A
: J 0167 | 20178 | 20189
R thousand
Parent municipality
Securibes - Nalona) Government
Lisied Corporate Bonds
Depusit - Bank 14 A % 17644 14 163 14163 10103 8534 10795
Depasts - Pubkc Invesment Commissioners
Deposts - Corparaton br Public Deposiss
Bankers Acceplance Cerficates
Negotable Cerficaies of Depost - Banks
Guaranteed Endowment Poficies (sinking)
Repurchase Agreement - Banks
Municpal Bonds
|Municipality sub-total 1 14 il % 17644 14163 14163 10103 5534 10795
IConsnlldaled total: 14 21 2% 17 644 14 163 14163 10103 9534 10795
Table 29 MBRR SA16 - Investment particulars by maturity
(NCOT3 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA1S Investment particul ars by maturity ]
N . .
i Capital arable Interest interest Partal
. Period of orFixed Commission| Commission | . . QOpening Premature | Investment| Closing
date
investrentsbyMatry | Rel | et (SRR | R o Rands)| Recpent |Tm o | nalace| °™° |witndeam| TopUp | Balance
i {Yes/No) . kX of realised i
Investment L)
Name finsttion Binuesimenti@ | 1 | T ONE
Parentmunicipaiiy | '
i Gengral Imeciment Yes  [FiredDepos] Yes [ Yes | 0075 0 0 JJER06| 1B48] TS 14153
-
1
i -
[Menicipality sub-ota L = EEERTTTS]
TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND INTEREST | 1 ) - - 1\

2.9.1 Medium-term outfook: capital revenue

The following table is a breakdown of the funding composition of the 2016/17 medium-term




I
I

Table 30 Sources of capital revenue over the MTREF

L. 2016/17 Medium Term Revenue & Expenditure
Vote Description Ref
Framework
Budget Year |Budget Year +1 |Budget Year +2
Rthousand " 20tenr 201718 201819
Funded by:
National Government 13992 12 491 13118
Provincial Government - - -
Disfrict Municipality - - -
Other transfers and grants - - -
Transfers recognised - capital 4 13992 12 491 13118
Public contributions & donations 5 - - -
Borrowing 6 - - -
Internally generated funds 6944 6694 84888
Total Capital Funding 7 20937 19184 22006

Sources of capital revenue for the 2016/17 financial year

Capital grants and receipts equates to 66.83 per cent of the total funding source which
represents R13, 992 million for the 2016/17 financial year and decreases to R12, 491 million or
65.11 per cent by 2017/18 then for 2018/19 it increases to R13, 118 million or 59.61 per cent.

Internally generated funds consist of a mixture between surpluses generated on the operating
statement of financial performance and cash backed reserves. In determining the credibility of
this funding source it becomes necessary to review the cash flow budget as well as the cash

backed reserves and accumulated funds reconciliation, as discussed below.

Internally

generated funds consist of R6, 944 million in 2016/17, R6, 694 in 2017/18 and R8, 888 million
in 2018/19. The percentage funding remains constant over the MTEF period. This reflects the
commitment of the municipality to invest in renewal of their existing assets.

The following table is a detailed analysis of the Municipality's borrowing liability,

Table 31 MBRR Table SA 17 - Detail of borrowings

FI




NCO073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA17 Borrowing
Borrowing - Categorised by type Ref| 201213 | 201314 | 201415 Current Year 201516 201617 Medium Term Revenue
Budget | Budget | Budget
Year | Year+1 | Year+2
2016/7 | 201718 | 201819

Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Fuil Year

R thousan
ousand Ouicome| Outcome | Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast

Parent municipality
Long-T erm Loans (annuityreducing balance) 6008 I23| 37747 T 2348 2348 1299 - -
Long-Tem Loans (non-annuity)

Local registered stock

{nstalment Credit

Financial Leases

PPP liabilities

Finance Granted By Cap Equipment Suppliet

Marketable Bonds

Non-Marketable Bonds

Bankers Acceplances

Financial derivatives

Other Securities
Municipality sub-total 1 6008 I 3ITTAT| 14777 2348 2348 1299 - -
Total Borrowing

Various External loans will be entered into during the 2016/17 Medium Term Revenue and
Expenditure Framework. These funds will be used to fund the following capital Projects:

« Development Bank of Southern Africa to fund Electricity network upgrades within the
Emthanjeni Municipal areas.

« These loans will be paid off in the 2016/17 financial year.

e
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Table 32 MBRR Table SA 18 - Capital transfers and grant receipts

INCO73 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SATS Transfers and grant receipts

201617 Medium Term Revenue
Description Ref | 201213 | 201314 | 201415 Current Year 201516 & Expenditure Framework
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year Budget | Budget | Budget
R thousand Outcome | Qutcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast Year | Yeartl | Year:2
2046M7 | 2017H8 | 201819
RECEIPTS: 1,2
Operating Transfers and Grants
National Government: 37623 | 38493 38876| 3945%| 39459 | 309453 38822 3IB586| 41307
Local Government Equitable Share 34323 34819 35342| 35029 35929 35929 361977 36886( 39607
Finance Management 1500 1550 1600 1600 1600 1600 1625 1700 1700
Municipal Systems Improvement 800 850 934 930 930 930 - - -
EPWP Incentive 1000 1234 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 - -
Energy Efficiency and Demand Management
Provincial Government: 1683 4912 757 1142 1142 1142 2838 2527 2674
Health subsidy 1001 1150 - - - - 1227 1288 1363
Housing - 458 - - - - - - -
Sport and Recrealion 682 679 757 1142 1142 1142 1611 1239 1314
Department of Education - 235 - - - - - - -
Department of Roads - 2389 - - - - - - -
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -
Other grant providers: - 2050 - - - - - - -
Depariment of Waler Affairs - 2050 - - - - - - -
Total Operating Transfers and Grants 5 39306 | 45455 39633 40601| 40601 40601 | 49660 41113]| 43981
Capital Transfers and Grants
National Government: 16141 13102 12708| 56565| 43398 132308 29602! 2442 13798
Municipal Infrastructure Grant {MIG) 16141] 13102| 12608( 11898| 11898 11898 11602| 12342] 12798
Regional Bulk Infrastructure - - 100 10000 - - 15000| 10000 -
Integrated National Electiification Programme - - - 1500 1500 1560 3000 2000 1000
Bucket Eradication Programme Grant - - - 33167 - - - - -
Provincial Government: - - - - - - - - -
District Municipality: - - - - - - - - -
Other grant providers: - - - - - - - - -
Department of Waler Af - - - - - - - - -
Total Capital Transfers and Granis 5 16141 13102 142708 56565 133098| 13398| 29602 24342 12798
TOTAL RECEIPTS OF TRANSFERS & GRANTS 55447 | 58557 52341 97166| 53999 53999| 71262| 65455| 57779

2.9.2 Cash Flow Management

Cash flow management and forecasting is a critical step in determining if the budget is funded
over the medium-term. The table below is consistent with international standards of good
financial management practice and also improves understandability for councillors and
management. Some specific features include:

. Clear separation of receipts and payments within each cash flow category;

. Clear separation of capital and operating receipts from government, which also enables
cash from ‘Ratepayers and other’ to be provide for as cash inflow based on actual
performance. In other words the actual collection rate of billed revenue., and

. Separation of borrowing and loan repayments (no set-off), to assist with MFMA
compliance assessment regarding the use of long term borrowing (debt).

]




Table 33 MBRR Table A7 - Budget cash flow statement

NCOT3 Emthanjeni - Table A7 Budgeted Cash Flows
Description Tnet | 201213 | 2013ma | 2014015 Current Year 201516 e
& Expenditure Framework
Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Ful Year | pre-auqie| Bud9et | Budaet | Budgat
Pl Quicome | Guicome | Outcome Bu(fgel Budgel Forecast | outcome \i.LJ LR R
201817 | 2017118 | 2018119
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recelpts
| Propertyrates, penalties & collection charges 13583| 17407 | 23732| 255/8) 255/8| 25578 25578| 27999| 29249] 48909
[Servce charges 66533| 665061 50003| O09481| 97831 97631 097831( 108309{ 12127 | 147562
Other revenue 12205| (2790} 3J9982| J204B| 3284B| 32846 J284B| 35480 36G0B| 53421
Govemment - Opefabng T | 38073 38678| 36215| 40601| 40601| 40601| 40601] 41660 42910 45055
Gowermmen - capial 1 17054 | 15152 14694| 56565| 13308| 13398| 13398| 14602| 14343] 13793
interest 1595] 1030| 15% 715 715 715 718 806 BY 863
Divdends 5 = = = = = = = = 5
Payments
Suppiiers and employees (130 205)] {140 G67)| {151 296); (V84 234)| (170 203)f (170 203)| {170 203)| (186 831)] 1202 336)] (261 ¥93)
Finance charges (1V758) (1608 (1337 2556) (I556) (3556) (3556) (5633) (6143)) (9731)
Transfers and Granls 1 @05)] (5m|  (225) (12938) (11662)] (11662) (1166)] (8556) (10255) (15270)
NET CASH FROMAUSED) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 16875 12659| 14260 55260 25550 25550 25550 27784 17323 23504
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds on disposal ol PPE 558 590 1186 124 124 124 124 130 EFE] 148
Decreasa (Increase} in non-current deblors - - - - - - - - - -
Decrease {incraase) other non-cumrent receivables - - (0} = = = & = = &
Decrease {increase) in non-cumrent imesiments 79 - - 2800 30 30 30 - - -
Payments
Capital assets (13822) (21552 (14198 (G2298) (19121 (19121)] (19121} (20937)f {19164)| (22 006}
NET CASH FROMKUSED) INVESTING ACTMITIES (13186)] (20562)] (13008) (59374) (18967) (18967) (18967) (20807)) (19048)| (21858
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Recelpts
Shor term loans - - - - - - - - -
Borrowing long termiefinancing - - - 5046 - - - - - -
Inctaase (decrease) m consumer deposils = = = 135 135 135 135 98 w7
Payments
Repaymen| of borrowing 25| (2504) @77 @08k (1028 (o8 (028 (3222 = =
INET CASH FROMHUSED) FINANCING ACTIVITIES @5 (2504) @7 10% ©a)l (94| s4| (3125 ] T
NET INCREASE! (DECREASE) IN CASHHELD 1415 (10407) (1515] (3017) 5680 5600 5680 3852| (16d3) 1717
Cashicash equivalents 3l he year begin. 2 9225| 10640 233 3624| (1283) (1283) (1283) (985)| 2867 1234
Cashicash equivalents al e year end, 7 | 10640 233| (1263)  606| 4407 4407| 4doT| 2867 128 2951

2.9.4 Cash Backed Reserves/Accumulated Surplus Reconciliation

This following table meets the requirements of MFMA Circular 42 which deals with the funding
of a municipal budget in accordance with sections 18 and 19 of the MFMA. The table seeks to
answer three key questions regarding the use and availability of cash:

. What are the predicted cash and investments that are available at the end of the
budget year?

. How are those funds used?

. What is the net funds available or funding shortfall?

A surplus would indicate the cash-backed accumulated surplus that wasf/is available. A
shortfall (applications > cash and investments) is indicative of non-compliance with section 18
of the MFMA requirement that the municipality's budget must be ‘funded’. Non-compliance
with section 18 is assumed because a shortfall would indirectly indicate that the annual budget
is not appropriately funded (budgeted spending is greater than funds available or to be
collected). It is also important to analyse trends to understand the consequences, e.g. the
budget year might indicate a small surplus situation, which in itself is an appropriate outcome,

but if in prior years there were much larger surpluses then this negative trend may be a
concern that requires closer examination.

J




Table 34 MBRR Table A8 - Cash backed reserves/accumulated surplus reconciliation

NCO73 Emthanjeni - Table AB Cash backed reservesfaccumulated surplus reconciliation
T

| Description Rl ity | i | 2ons Current Year 2015/%6 ZDIGHT Medlum Tetm Revenue &
Expenditure Framework
T Avdited | Audited | Awdited Original | Adjusted | Full fear | Pre-swdt | | Budget Yeas | Budget Year [ Budge Yex |
. Outcome | Outcoms | OCotcomae Budpget Budget Forecast | outcome MW7 | 11200718 | 422018119
Cash and investments availsble 1 T
Cashucash equivalents a he year end 1 10 640 233‘ 1283) &6 4 407 447 4407 2867 124 2957
Oter cumentinvestnents > 90 days o o ] 23 1 375) mas| s (] 5 3
Non curent assets - hivesimens 11 L} 2 ® 8575 1375 1375 175 3 n K]
Lash and investments available: 1 1065 59 11257 11502 440 41407 [¥1 1% 1263 2980
(Appltcation of cash and Investments
Unspent condibonal ¥ansiers 12120 To85 3761 1470 E - - - -
Urespént bomowing | - - - - - - - -
Staiory requirements 2| 658 597 %
Other working capial requrements 3 3770 s gssa paoeml o e oress)  mess)|  psun| (1537 {8513
Ober provisions 1942 2067 28
Long erm invesiments commitied 4 - - - - - - - - - -
Reserves i be hacked by cashinvesimens | § -
Total Appfication of cash and Investmenis: { ) b T m ) ALK i1 448) [ (3] 1261 15 268)
[Sorplosehortal) ] () BT w0l ‘_6'2: gl“ L] iw 1

From the above table it can be seen that the cash and investments available total R2, 867
million in the 2016/17 financial year however this increases to R2, 951 million by 2018/19,
including the projected cash and cash equivalents as determined in the cash flow forecast.
The following is a breakdown of the application of this funding:

Unspent conditional transfers (grants) are automatically assumed to be an obligation as the
municipality has received government transfers in advance of meeting the conditions.
Ordinarily, unless there are special circumstances, the municipality is obligated to return
unspent conditional grant funds to the national revenue fund at the end of the financial year, in
the past these have been allowed to ‘roll-over’ and be spent in the ordinary course of business,
but this practice has been discontinued. During the 2013/14 financial year the municipality was
required to supply National Treasury with a detailed analysis of the unspent grants as well as
an action plan of spending the grants.

There is no unspent borrowing from the previous financial years. In terms of the municipality’s
Borrowing and Investments Policy, borrowings are only drawn down once the expenditure has
been incurred against the particular project. Unspent borrowing is ring-fenced and reconciled
on a monthly basis to ensure no unnecessary liabilities are incurred.

. The main purpose of other working capital is to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet obligations as they fall due. A key challenge is often the mismatch
between the timing of receipts of funds from debtors and payments due to employees
and creditors. High levels of debtor non-payment and receipt delays will have a greater
requirement for working capital, as was experienced by the Municipality in 2016/17
resulting in cash flow challenges. For the purpose of the cash backed reserves and
accumulated surplus reconciliation a provision equivalent to one month’s operational
expenditure has been provided for. It needs to be noted that although this can be
considered prudent, the desired cash levels should be 60 days to ensure continued
liquidity of the municipality. Any underperformance in relation to collections could place
upward pressure on the ability of the Municipality to meet its creditor obligations.

. Most reserve fund cash-backing is discretionary in nature, but the reserve funds are not
available to support a budget unless they are cash-backed. The reserve funds are not
fully cash-backed. The level of cash-backing is directly informed by the municipality’s
cash backing policy. These include the rehabilitation of landfill sites and quarries.




2.9.3 Funding compliance measurement

National Treasury requires that the municipality assess its financial sustainability against
fourteen different measures that look at various aspects of the financial health of the
municipality. These measures are contained in the following table. All the information comes
directly from the annual budgeted statements of financial performance, financial position and
cash flows. The funding compliance measurement table essentially measures the degree to
which the proposed budget complies with the funding requirements of the MFMA. Each of the
measures is discussed below.

Table 35 MBRR SA10 - Funding compliance measurement

'NCOT) Emthanjeni Supporting Table SA10 Funding measuremen

i 01213 | 201314 | 201405 Curzent Year 201506 20167 Medium Term Revenue &

| Description :::; Rel E.\umtea Autited | Audited | Orlginal | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-audit B::::t 3:;“:: :::f::

. |t:)u.nu:m'nu Qutcome | Qutcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast | outcome 067 | 200ms | 20089

|Funding measutes [

I Cashicash equivalents at the year end - RO00 18(1)b 1 10640 23] (1283 606| 4407 4407 4407 2867 1234 2951
Cash +investments at the y end less applications - RU00 | 18(1)b 2 12304 105547 1093 23127] 6073 16073) 16073 16442) 138M4 B 246
Cash year endimonthly employeefsupplier payments 18{1jb 3 10 (1] ) 00 13 03 03 02 01 01

| Surplus/Deficit excluding depreciation offsets: RO00 18(1) 4 (42686) (70534 (49091N 56615| 14280| 14280| 14200 14 03] 123 1427

[ Senvice charge rev% change - macro CPIX largel exclusid 18{1)a(2)] & NA 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 00% 00%
Cash receips % of Ratepayer & Other revenue )| & | 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% 00% | 00% | @0% 0% 00% 0.0%
Debtimpaiment expense as a % ol lota! billable revenua | 18{1)22) T 124% | 412% | 298% B4% 8% T5% 78% 8% 8% 7.8%
Captal payments % ol capilal expanditure 18({1jc.19 8 100.7% | 1000% 000% | 925% | 1000% | 1000% | 1000% | 1000% | 1000% | 1000%
Bomowing rceipts % of capital expenditure (excl. ransiery  18(1jc 9 00% 0.0% 00% | 443% | 00% 00% 0.0% 0% 00% 08%

| Grants % ol Gout. legislaled/gaztied alloc ations 1{1ja 10 0.0% 00% 00%

| Cument consumer deblors % change - incridecr) 15{1ja " NA 21 1% 1| 00% 00% 19.1% 05%) 20
Long term receivables % change - incridecr) 18{1a 12 NA 0.0% BE% |00l 00% 0.0% 0.0% 00% 00% 00%

| R&M % of Property Plant & Equipment 20013} 1| 0%% 13% 1.3% 18% 18% 18% 19% 19% 20% 1%

|r Asset renewal % of capital budget 21)(v) 14 | 00% | 0.0% 0.0% 00% | 00% | 00% | 00% 00% 00% 0.0%

2.9.4.1 Cash/cash equivalent position

The Municipality's forecast cash position was discussed as part of the budgeted cash flow
statement. A ‘positive’ cash position, for each year of the MTREF would generally be a
minimum requirement, subject to the planned application of these funds such as cash-backing
of reserves and working capital requirements.

If the municipality’s forecast cash position is negative, for any year of the medium term budget,
the budget is very unlikely to meet MFMA requirements or be sustainable and could indicate a
risk of non-compliance with section 45 of the MFMA which deals with the repayment of short
term debt at the end of the financial year. The forecasted cash and cash equivalents for the
2016/17 MTREF shows R2, 687 million, R1, 234 million and R2, 951 million for each
respective financial year.

2.9.4.2 Cash plus investments less application of funds

The purpose of this measure is to understand how the municipality has applied the available
cash and investments as identified in the budgeted cash flow statement. The detail
reconciliation of the cash backed reserves/surpluses is contained in Table 25. The
reconciliation is intended to be a relatively simple methodology for understanding the budgeted
amount of cash and investments available with any planned or required applications to be
made. This has been extensively discussed above.

2.9.4.3 Monthly average payments covered by cash or cash equivalents

The purpose of this measure is to understand the level of financial risk should the municipality
be under stress from a collection and cash in-flow perspective. Regardless of the annual cash
position an evaluation should be made of the ability of the Municipality to meet monthly
payments as and when they fall due. It is especially important to consider the position should
the municipality be faced with an unexpected disaster that threatens revenue collection such
as rate boycotts. Notably, the ratio has been falling significantly for the period 2012/13 to
2018/19, moving from 1.0 to 0.9 with the adopted 2016/17 MTREF.

As part of the 2016/17 MTREF the municipalities improving cash position causes the ratio to
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indicated above the Municipality aims to achieve at least one month's cash coverage in the
medium term, and then gradually move towards two months coverage. This measure will have
to be carefully monitored going forward.

2.9.4.4 Surplus/deficit excluding depreciation offsets

The main purpose of this measure is to understand if the revenue levels are sufficient to
conclude that the community is making a sufficient contribution for the municipal resources
consumed each year. An ‘adjusted’ surplus/deficit is achieved by offsetting the amount of
depreciation related to externally funded assets. Municipalities need to assess the result of
this calculation taking into consideration its own circumstances and levels of backlogs. If the
outcome is a deficit, it may indicate that rates and service charges are insufficient to ensure
that the community is making a sufficient contribution toward the economic benefits they are
consuming over the medium term. For the 2016/17 MTREF the indicative outcome is a surplus
of R14, 209 million, R12, 324 million and R41, 427million.

It needs to be noted that a surplus does not necessarily mean that the budget is funded from a
cash flow perspective and the first two measures in the table are therefore critical.

2.9.4.5 Praoperty Rates/service charge revenue as a percentage increase less macro
inflation target

The purpose of this measure is to understand whether the municipality is contributing

appropriately to the achievement of national inflation targets. This measure is based on the

increase in ‘revenue’, which will include both the change in the tariff as well as any assumption

about real growth such as new property development, services consumption growth etc.

The factor is calculated by deducting the maximum macro-economic inflation target increase
{which is currently 3 - 6 per cent). The result is intended to be an approximation of the real
increase in revenue. Considering the lowest percentage tariff increase in relation to revenue
generated from rates and services charges is 6 per cent, with the increase in electricity at 8 per
cent it is to be expected that the increase in revenue will exceed the inflation target figures.
However, the outcome is lower than it might be due to the slowdown in the economy and a
reduction in consumption patterns. This trend will have to be carefully monitored and managed
with the implementation of the budget.

2.9.4.6 Cash receipts as a percentage of ratepayer and other revenue

This factor is a macro measure of the rate at which funds are ‘collected’. This measure is
intended to analyse the underlying assumed collection rate for the MTREF to determine the
relevance and credibility of the budget assumptions contained in the budget. It can be seen
that the outcome is at 95.4, 96.3 and 94.3 per cent for each of the respective financial years.
Given that the assumed collection rate was based on a 96 per cent performance target, the
cash flow statement has been conservatively determined. In addition the risks associated with
objections to the valuation roli need to be clarified and hence the conservative approach, also
taking into consideration the cash flow challenges experienced in the current financial year.
This measure and performance objective will have to be meticulously managed. Should
performance with the mid-year review and adjustments be positive in relation to actual
collections of billed revenue, the adjustments budget will be amended accordingly?

2.9.4.7 Debt impairment expense as a percentage of billable revenue

This factor measures whether the provision for debt impairment is being adequately funded
and is based on the underlying assumption that the provision for debt impairment (doubtful and
bad debts) has to be increased to offset under-collection of billed revenues. The provision has
been appropriated at 8.5, 8.2 and 7.8 per cent over the MTREF. Considering the debt
incentive scheme and the municipality’s revenue management strategy’s objective to collect
outstanding debtors of 90 days, the provision is well within the accepted leading practice.

'ﬂ
'!

i




|
FI
|
|
|

2.9.4.8 Capital payments percentage of capital expenditure

The purpose of this measure is to determine whether the timing of payments has been taken
into consideration when forecasting the cash position. It can be seen that a 2 per cent timing
discount has been factored into the cash position forecasted over the entire financial year. The
municipality aims to keep this as low as possible through strict compliance with the legislative
requirement that debtors be paid within 30 days.

2.9.4.9 Borrowing as a percentage of capital expenditure (excluding transfers, grants
and contributions)

The purpose of this measurement is to determine the proportion of a municipality's ‘own-

funded’ capital expenditure budget that is being funded from borrowed funds to confirm MFMA

compliance. Externally funded expenditure (by transfers/grants and contributions) has been be

excluded. It can be seen that borrowing equates to less than a per cent of own funded capital.

2.9.4.10 Transfers/grants revenue as a percentage of Government transfers/grants
available

The purpose of this measurement is mainly to ensure that all available transfers from national

and provincial government have been budgeted for. A percentage less than 100 per cent

could indicate that not all grants as contained in the Division of Revenue Act (DoRA) have

been budgeted for. The Municipality has budgeted for all transfers.

2.9.4.11 Consumer debtors change (Current and Non-current)

The purpose of these measures are to ascertain whether budgeted reductions in outstanding
debtors are realistic. There are 2 measures shown for this factor; the change in current
debtors and the change in long term receivables, both from the Budgeted Financial Position.
Both measures show a relatively stable trend in line with the Municipality's policy of settling
debtors accounts within 30 days.

2.9.4.12 Repairs and maintenance expenditure level

This measure must be considered important within the context of the funding measures criteria
because a trend that indicates insufficient funds are being committed to asset repair could also
indicate that the overall budget is not credible and/or sustainable in the medium to long term
because the revenue budget is not being protected. Details of the Municipality's strategy
pertaining to asset management and repairs and maintenance are contained in Table 60
MBRR SA34C.

2.9.4.13 Asset renewal/rehabilitation expenditure level

This measure has a similar objective to aforementioned objective relating to repairs and
maintenance. A requirement of the detailed capital budget {since MFMA Circular 28 which
was issued in December 2005) is to categorise each capital project as a new asset or a
renewal/rehabilitation project. The objective is to summarise and understand the
proportion of budgets being provided for new assets and also asset sustainability. A
declining or low level of renewal funding may indicate that a budget is not credible and/or
sustainable and future revenue is not being protected, similar to the justification for ‘repairs
and maintenance’ budgets. Further details in this regard are contained in Table 59 MBRR.
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2.9.5 Expenditure on grants and reconciliations of unspent funds

Table 36 MBRR SA19 - Expenditure on transfers and grant programmes

NCO73 Emthanjenl - Supporting Table SA19 Expenditure on transfers and grant programme

[

!

Description

2012113

2013114

2014115

Current Year 201516

201617 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

R thousand

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Quicome

Original
Budget

AdJusted
Budget

Full Year
Forecast

Budget
Year
2006017

Budget
Year +1
201718

Budget
Year +2
201819

EXPENDITURE:

Operating expenditure of Transfers and Grants

National Government:

Local Government Equiable Share

Finance Managemen!

Municipal Sysiems (mproverment

EPWP Incenfve

Energy Eficiency and Demand Management

Provincia! Govemment:

Heath subsidy

Housing

Sportand Recreaton

Departrent of Educaton

Deparient of Roads

District Municipality:

Other grant providers:

Department of Water Aflairs

Total operating expenditure of Transfers and Grants:

Capital expenditure of Transfers and Grants

Natlonal Government:

Municipal Infasruciire Grant [MIG)

Regional Bulk Inkasrucure

Inegrakd Natonal Elecriicaion Programme

Buckel Eradicaton Programme Granl

Provincial Government:

District Municipality:

Other grant providers;

Departmant of Water Al

Total capital expenditure of Transfers and Grants

TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF TRANSFERS AND GRANTS




Table 37 MBRR SA 20 - Reconciliation between of transfers, grant receipts and unspent
funds

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA20 Reconciliation of transfers, grant receipts and unspent funds | |

2016117 Medium Term Revenue &
Expenditure Framework

Description 201213 0114 2014115 Current Year 2015116

Audited Audited Audited Original Adjusted Full Year |[Budgel Year | Budget Year | Budget Year
Outeome | Outcome | Outcome Budget Budget Forecast 201617 +1 201718 | +2 2018119

R thousand

Operating transters and grants:

National Government:

Balan¢e unspent at beginning of the y ear
Current y ear receips 41 827 40 840 38793 39 459 39 459 39 459 g g2z 39226 44983
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Candilions st!l I be mel - tanskerred 1o Hiabilities
Provincial Government:

Balance unspent at beginning of ha year
Current year receipts 1683 4912 757 1142 1142 1142 2838 2527 2674
Conditlons met - transferred 10 revenun
Condibons sl b be mel - ranstersed o liabikbes
Distriet Municipality:

Balance unspenl al beginning of the year

Currenl year receipts

Conditions met - transierred to revenue
Zondiions stil b be met - vanskerred b liabiliies
Other grant providers:

Balance unspenl at beginning of the y ear

Current y ear receipls

Conditions met - transferred to ravenue
Conditons stll b be met - ranserred o lidxiies
Total operating transfers and granis ravenue

Total operating transters and grants - CTBM

Capital trangiers and grants:
Natlona! Government:

Balance unspent at beginning of be y ear
Current y ear receips 1211 15313 13833 55 958 127 1279 11492 12 491 13118
Conditions met - transferred to revenue
Condions Stil ¥ be mat - transkerrad % liabiiies
Provincial Government:

Balance unspent at beginning of the y ear

Cutrent year receipls

Conditions met - transferred 1o revenue
Conditions stll & be mal - tansiered bo liabilibes
District Municipality:
Balance unspent at beginning of e year

Currant y ear receipls

Conditlons maet - translerred to revenue
Conditons £4H ¥ ba mel - transferrad % listslites
Other grant providers:

Balance ungpent at beginning of he year

Curranl y 8ar receipts

Conditlons met - transferred 1o revenue
Condilions sl 0 be mel - transfered b liabiliies

Total eapital transfers and granis revenue

Tolal capital transfers and grants - CTBM - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS REVENUE
TOTAL TRANSFERS AND GRANTS - CTBM




2.9.6 Councillor and employee benefits
Table 38 MBRR SA22 - Summary of councillor and staff benefits

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA22 Summary councillor and staff benefits | | | |
Summary of Employee and Councillor 20123 | 201314 | 201415 |  CurrentYear201sng | 2016/17 Medium Term
remuneration Revenue & Expenditure
Audited | Audited | Audited [Original|Adjusted| U [Budget|Budget| Budgat
Rthousand Outcome! Outcome |Outcome| Budget | Budget Year | Year |Year 1) Year 42
Forecast| 2016117 | 2017/18 | 2018119
A B (5 (o] E F G H ]
Councillors {Political Office Bearers plus Other)
Basic Salaries and Wages 2475 2920 2962| 3170 3170 31470} 3278 3s508| 3753
Pension and UIF Contributions - 338 - - - - - - -
Medical Aid Contributions - 38 - - - - - - -
Motor Vehicle Allowance 825 629 95( 1051 1051 1051 1093 1169 1251
Cellphone Allowance 183 198 34 N3 313 33 368 394 422
Housing Allowances - - - - - - - - -
Other benefits and allowances 20 M - 47 47 47 48 51 55
Sub Total - Councillors 3503 4157 4261| 4580 4580| 4580 4787 | 5122) 5481
% increase 18.7% 25% | 75% - - 45% | 10%{ 70%
Senior Managers of the Municipality
Basic Salaries and Wages 2660 3102 J369| 3442 3442 3442 3861 4247 4672
Pension and UIF Contributions 441 489 560 608 608 608 642 706 776
Medical Aid Contributions 90 132 159 10 110 110 115 127 139
Owertime - - - - - - - - -
Performance Bonus - 475 - - - - - - -
Motor Vehicle Allowance 728 588 847 814 814 814 759 835 k]
Cellphone Allowance 47 177 1514 155 155 155 138 164 192
Housing Allowances - - - - - - - - -
Other benefits and allowances 575 168 217 240 240 240 245 257 271
Payments in lieu of leave - - - - - - - - -
Long senice awards - - - - - - - - -
Post-retirement benefit obligations - - - - - - - - -
Sub Total - Senior Managers of Municipality 4541 5112 5303, 5370 §370| 5370| 5760 6336| 6970
% increase 12.6% 7% 1.3% - - 7.3% | 10.0% | 10.0%
Other Municipal Staff
Basic Salaries and Wages 36570 | 35534| 43450 46748 46748 46748 [ 48864 | 53751 | 59126
Pension and UIF Contributions 6750 6403 7592 8057 8057| 8057 B8195| 9G14| 9915
Medical Aid Contributions 2605 2140 1505 1614 1614 1614 1810] 1991 2190
Owertime 419 2262 2070| 2006 2006| 2006| 22M| 2367| 2514
Performance Bonus - 2933 - - - - - - -
Motor Vehicle Allowance 892 1269 892 1050 10501 1050 1191] 1310 1441
Cellphone Allowance - 254 168 207 207 207 219 231 241
Housing Allowances 785 1124 702 733 733 733 762 797 820
Other benefits and allowances 189 2436 1230 963 963 963 1108] 1364 1664
Payments in lieu of leave - 366 - - - - - - -
Long serice awards - - - - - - - - -
Post-retirement benefit obligations 683 - 54 56 56 56 58 61 64
Sub Total - Other Municipal Staff 48893 | 54781 57662 | 61434 | 61434 61434 | 64441 70885 | 77974
% increase 12.0% 53%| 65% - - 49% | 10.0% | 10.0%
Total Parent Municipality 56 937 64051 | 67226| 71384 | 71384| 71384 ) 74988 | 52343 | 90424
l 12.5% 50%| 6.2% - - 50%| 98%| 98%
TOTAL SALARY, ALLOWANCES & BENEFITS 56937( 64051 | 67226 71384 | 71384 | 71384 74988 82343 | 90424
% Increase 125% 50%| 6.2% - - 50%| 98%| 98%
TOTAL MANAGERS AND STAFF 53434| 59694 | 62965| 66604 | 66804 66804 | 70201 | 77221 | 84943

| I




Table 39 MBRR SA23 - Salaries, allowances and benefits (political office
bearers/councillors/ senior managers)

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA23 Salaries, allowances & benefits (political office bearersicouncillorsisen

Salary Allowances |Performance| In-kind Total
Disclosure of Salaries, Allowances & Bonuses benefits Package
Benefits 1. No. Contributions
Rand per annum 1. 2,
Councillors
Speaker 1 457 798 4909 178 902 641610
Chief Whip - - - - -
Executive Mayor 1 572 248 5672 217 052 794 972
Deputy Executive Mayor - - - - -
Executive Committee 2 474 344 6876 210722 691 941
Total for all other councillors 0] 1773753 30 394 854 285 2658431
Total Councillors 14| 3278143 47 851 1 460 961 4 786 955
Senior Managers of the Municipality
Municipal Manager {MM) 1 933 970 170 428 389 922 - 1494 320
Chief Finance Officer 1 904 150 204 730 268 036 - 1376 316
Director of Corporate Services 1 605 856 159 653 160 552 - 926 061
Director of Infrastructuse Services 1 742 607 133 380 68 278 - 944 265
Director of Community Services 1 674 738 255 322 148 005 - 1078 066
Total Senior Managers of the Municipal §| 3861322 923 513 1034793 - 5819628
TOTAL COST OF COUNCILLOR,
DIRECTOR and EXECUTIVE 19| 7139465 971 364 2495754 - 10 606 582
REMUNERATION
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Table 40 MBRR SA24 — Summary of personnel numbers

NCG73 Emthanjen! - Supporting Table SA24 Summary of personnal numbers | |
Summary of Personnel Numbers 201415 Current Year 201516 Budgst Year 201617
Number Positions Permanent | Contract Positions Permanent| Contract Positions Permanent| Contract
employees | employees employees | employaas employees |employees
Municipal Council and Boards of Municipal Entities
Councillors {Polilical Otce Baarers plus Other Councillors) 14 2 12 14 2 12 14 2 12
Board Members of municipal enlities - - - - - - - - -
Municipal employees - - - - - - - - -
Municipal Manager and Senior Managers 5 5 5 5 5 - 5
Other Managers 7 6 1 7 [ 1 7 [ 1
Professionals 6 [ - 6 [ - [ 6 -
Finance 4 4 - 4 4 - 4 4 -
Spatiallown planning - - - - - - - - -
Information Technology 1 1 - 1 1 - 1 1 o
Roads - - - - - - - - -
Elecinicity 1 1 - 1 1 - 1 1 -
Water - - - - - -
Sanitaion - - - - - - - - -
Refuse - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - -
Technictans 33 ki) 2 33 3 2 kX] 31 2
Finance 5 3 2 5 3 2 5 3 2
Spatialiown planning - - - - = - - - =
Intormation Technology - - - - - - - - -
Foads 3 | - 3 k) - k) ] -
Electricity 8 6 & 6 6 6
Water 2 2 - 2 2 - 2 2 -
Sandation - - - - - - - - -
Refuse - - - - - - - - -
Other 17 17 - 17 17 - 17 17 -
Clerks (Clencal and administralive} 138 136 2 128 136 2 138 136 2
Sendce and sales workers - - - - - - - - -
Skilled agricultural and fisheryworkers - - - - - - - - -
Crafl and related trades 45 45 - 45 45 - 45 45 -
Ptant and Machine Operators 40 40 - 40 40 - 40 40 -
Elementary Occupations 170 160 10 170 160 10 170 169 10
ITOTAL PERSONNEL NUMBERS 458 426 32 458 426 kr} 458 435 2
%incraase ‘ - - - - 21% -
Total municipal employees headcount 359 o 18 359 340 19 52 32 20
Finance personnel headcount 44 7 7 44 7 7 45 39 [
Human Resources personnel headcount 3 k] - 3 3 - 3 3 -

2.9.7 Monthly targets for revenue, expenditure and cash flow




Table 41 MBRR SA25 - Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure

NCOT3 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table $A2S Budgeted montily sevenue and axpenditure

Descriplion Bodgel Ve TGN Wedium Tem Revenue and
Budget | Budget | Budget
R Ihousand July | Awgust | Sept | October | November{ December | January | February | Marh | Aprl hy June Yoar | Yeardd | Yemt2
W7 | 008 | 189
Ravenes By Source
Fropery raes 12912 4168 1069 19| e 1 1y 1n 1075 116 VIE| 1805 29065 0015 5101
Propery taes - penates & colecion charges - - - . - - - - - - - - - - -
Setvice dhayges - ecyily revenog 404 1645 40 032 12 krr!] 180 2n7 4610 532 718 BSaT| S795|  &40t| 1013n
Service charges - wales revenue 216 1m| 209 1362 2%el  amb| 28 1033 168 10 %) BBO| 27953} 6| 4389
Service charges - sanialon revenve 1359 130 1361 1359 1364 131 1 366 F34 134 14 131 2700 |  1rseE|  Be2| XTI
Service charges - rebuse revenoe ] ™ 78l T8 785 185 785 8 769 7 8% 1609 0¥y waE) 179
Servioe: charges - cher 10 10 10 W0 10 10 1 0 0 i} i 10 113 i L]
Rental ol fackles and equipment ! & ] n i H ] - - - - 183 666 ety 885
Ineregteaned- exkrral ivesen’s 16 13 ? ? ] 1" 1 1] 1] 1] [} v} L 854 1408
Ineregtearned - oubbndng debiors k] * M I 5 5% ] A 5 [} ) W 954 o 1668
Dreeends received - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Fines. 15 k1] 1% X% ¥ B ] 2 4] §75 126 e 6543 6935 1144
Licences and permés k] 5 k] kH kil A 3 7 22 B Ei| sz vl 2097 3D
Agency tervices - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Teanchers recognised - operaonal 1514 52 185 8| 10%0 234 o0 535] 06t m - ol o0 #7535
Ohér réveme 658 18 2115 202 2454 2009 KRLE) 2621 i 1448 1903 ] Zom| nes| 4%
Gas on disposal of PPE 19 1% 10 10 1) 1 10 10 10 1 10 2 136 13 14
Total Revanue (excluding capitaltranslersandd 7579 9703 03265) 12232 DW6| 3| 1578 1M DE| 13645 1SM8| 0865 28| 20842| pdas
Expenditure By Type
Emplyee retaied cosh siob sis00 sl sTse| ST S70f 690  STS0| 5780 S7S0f ST0|  STS0| AWXp MSW| 19842
Remunerafon of counclicrs k] ki k] 1% k] b % n k-] b 1% || oayp 5w s
Debl imparment - - - - - - - - - - 1Hg] el 1ids| 447
Depreaaton & assetmparment - - - - - - - - - - - 9597 9597 W] BN
France charges 1 17 5 554 554 59 555 58 =58 550 58 %5 56W{ 6wy 9
Buli prchases [aih 1951 7061 7081 195 3755 4068 7116 5041 4570 1784 1215 5791 6083 W0
Ot merenals 154 19% 1504 17 161 b6 1073 i) 256 1688 1y 1128|705 tABM| X9
Contaced servces 819 36 51 1085 m 182 46 1004 151 124 m 160 9%7| 10%s| 17w
Transkrs and grans % 751 ] % 75 % | ] m i &4 6l 8m|  9ms| 1520
Oher expendire N 106 295) 27000  eM| 313 2190] 2561 M| 51| 48] 224 X616 BT 806
Loss on deposal of PPE = - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Tots! Expenditure 1008 18w2| 1953|5066 1T040) 15390 16402 1BG2) 0052| 039 UTTH|  MIM| 22843 461 | 14
SurphishDekt) TR (6] GsR] @8] 61| 47| (Rl (800 a5k oob| e (333 @ (1] 108
Transiers recognised - capral A [0 - 1550 - 1500 - 1875 - 5547 - 1080 - MEE|  M43M3F 19798
Conrbulots recogrsed - captl - = 5 - . S 5 5 S s " 5 % 5
Conrbuled 2ssels = - B = - - - - = = -
:::::;ﬂ:ﬁ:“’ O UL wr| gon| wnel pew|  ses| esr| | ase|  ous| mew| pum| mas| ase| 2w as
Taszion - - - - - - - - - -
Arbuiable b mnores - - - - - - - - -
Share of srphis {defal} of asso0iE - - - - - - - - - - - - - . -
Surplysi{Delicil) 1872] (1063 MG {28 96% 4947 75 {8590 9145 6686 {138 (3% 1612 151 68




Table 42 MBRR SA26 - Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure
(municipal vote)

Description Budpat Year 2016117 Medium Temn R and

Budget | Budget ; Budgat
R thousand Dacember | January i Year Year H | Yearsd
w17 [ 0078

Revenue by Vols
Voie 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL TS 455 4090
Vol 2 - FINANC E AND ADMNISTRARION 1427 55| BEH
Voie 3 - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - - §610 1692
Vole 4 - HEALTH - - t2 1268
Voie 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES % 2192 1987
Vol b - PUBLIC SAFETY 7 760
Voie T - SPURT AND RECREATION k| 123 £
Voke 8 - ROAD TRANSPORT 1 un 114
Vo 9- OTHER - - -
Vole 10- HOUSING SERVICES 3 [} L]
Vol 11 WASTE MANAGEMENT 14079
Vol 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 2918|6081
Vole 13- ELECTRICTY 9| w50
Vo 14 - VATER 20560
Vol 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15) -

Total Revenus by Vote T 40

Expenditure by Vote to be appropriated
Vole 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL.
Vol 2- FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
Vole 3- PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Vo d- HEALTH - -
Vol 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 784
Vole 6 - PUBLIC SAFETY %
Voke 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION kit
Voie 8- ROAD TRANSPORT B9
Vol 9- OTHER €5
Voke 10~ HOUSING SERVICES 24
Vol 18 - WASTE MANAGEMENT 178
Vol 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 1006
Voe 13- ELECTRICTY 8
Vole 14 - WATER 107
Vol 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15] -

Total Expenditure by Vote 1953

Surplus/{Deficit) before assoe. [#TH6H

Tazaton - - = - -
Apbulsble bmnorses - - - - - - -
Share of surplug/ {defo of assonal -

Suplur/Defii) G TS RS EGE

Table 43 MBRR SA27 - Budgeted monthly revenue and expenditure (standard
classification)




NCGT) Emthanjen - Supporting Table SA2Y Budgated monthly revenue and sxpendilure {standard classiflcaticn)

[rescription

Budgel Yaar 2018117

Wedium Term Ravenue and
Expandilure Framework

R thousand

October

Dacembar | January

February

Budget
Year
2006017

Budgel
Year+1
201718

Budgat
Year ¢2
01819

Revenus - Standard
Govemance and administration
Execulve and councl
Budyget and Yeauty clice
- por 2 sefvioes
Community and public safely
Conrrundy and coddl mrvices
Sporl and recreaton
Pubiiz saisly
Housng
Heath
Economic and snvironmenial saf
Planrang and deveinpmant
Read ¥angpott
Envronmentl prolecion
Trading services
Elecrialy
Wawr
Wace wam managecrant
Waste monagecent
Gther

49631
4295
45301
84
10775
2182
123
719
4
12zt
3686
161¢
on
mur
91961
40560
25918
14879

0N
4080
46545
8%
Mz
1587
11
€2
a
1283
283}
1692
1141
183658
94570
46633
25681
15772

15457
6673

145
16114
2545
216
12578
72
1363
165400
2429
14001
149402
151918
5012
3268
23204

Total Revenus « Slandard

Expendilyre « Standarn]
Govemance and adminisiration
Execulve and counci
Budgel and Yeasury o
Corporale servicas
Communily and public sefety
Commundy and sood sstvoes
Sporiand receaton
Fuble s3aly
Houtr
Hedh
Economic and environmintal se
Pianning and davelopment
FRoad ranspori
Envronaental prolscion
Trading services
Bectery
Wkl
Wazae waler ronagemant
Watle managedent
Other

a37
95

784
u7
35
F223

1088
1019
869

12045
L3l
1079
1006
123

5

762
300
823
xw

FL
1001
583
&
2019
1M
1054
1305
65

T 450

248 284

2586
199
2852
1865
17 987
129903
79264
17 940
17528
15 142
183

B R3]

68877
16953
B
20074
41078
16519
6209
15084
20%
ks

40 304
15012
BN
w20
127217
8125
26282
20 428
1028

Total Expanditure - Standard

19541

15066

3431

16133

353431

SurplusiiDeflcit) belors sssoc.

(4 718)

{284}

(13 365}

151

14652

Surplus/{Daflcit)

14 718)]

12 834y

113 365)]

2151

M 652

Table 44 MBRR SA28 - Budgeted monthly capital expenditure {(municipal vote)




——
NCO73 Emthanjeni - Supparting Table SA28 Budgeted monthly capital expenditure (municipal vate) | | [ | | | |
Description Budget Year 2016/17 Medium Term Revenue
Budget | Budget | Budget
R thousand July |August|Sept.| October| Nov. |Dec. |January| Feb. |March | Apnit| May |June| Year | Year+#1| Year +2
201617 2017/18 | 201819
Wilti-year expenditure to be appropriated
Capital multi-year expenditure sub-total - - | - - -1 - - -] -] -] - - - -
Single-year expenditure fo be appropriafed
Voie 1 - EXECUTIVE AND COUNCIL - 1] - - 26| 59 - - 3] 4] - 137 147 157
Voke 2 - FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION - B0 7 Ml 706] - 7Ol 115( 382|106 - | - | 1792 1899 3133
Yol J - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - - 4 - 9] - - -1 -1 -1 - 13 13 2
Vole d - HEALTH - -| - - -] - - -l -] -1 - - - -
Vole 5 - COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES] - - | 100 - -1 9 18] - | 58] - | - 268 284 469
Vole 6 - PUBLIC SAFETY 10 -1 - 4| - Pl - 21 B - - %3 98 162
Vole 7 - SPORT AND RECREATION 2 - 2 3] - k] 3 B -] -] - 70 65 60
Voie 8 - ROAD TRANSPORT - 1178] - - | 12%65] - 5941 - {1183 - | - | -] 4220] 10082] 15238
Vole 9- OTHER - - - - - | - - -1 -1-1- - - -
Vole 10 - HOUSING SERVICES - -l - - -] - - -l -] -1~ - - -
Volg 11 - WASTE MANAGEMENT - 5| - - 10] - 7l -] -1 -1 - 32 M 56
Vo 12 - WASTE WATER MANAGEMENT 190 2| 5 - a1 M Ml 58] - || 9| -3 10%0] 1450] 300
Vo 13 - ELECTRICITY 10400 274 214 140 -~ | 566 - | 1687 - | 2800 - | 5400 460 | 2049
Vole 14 - WATER 24| 3166 - - | 2%66) - 126 -1 -] - | 91| 7822 500 350
Voke 15 - [NAME OF VOTE 15) - - | - - -1 - - -y -1-1- - - -
Capital single-year expenditure sub-total 1456 | 5033| 464 | 1396 ] 4328 753 728 [ 1903 ) 3242 383 | 10| 941 | 20937 | 19184 | 22006
Tota Capital Expendture 1456 | 5033 64| 1395 4328 753| 7128|1903 ] 32421 383 30| 41| 20097 | 19484 | 22006
Table 45 MBRR 5A29 - Budgeted monthly capital expenditure {standard classification)
NC073 Emthanjen! - Supporting Table 5A20 Budgsted monthiy capital expenditurs {standard classification) | | |
Description Budget Year 201617 M'::'ﬂ’“;;’;::;::‘“'
Budget | Budget | Budget
R thousand July |August|Sept.|October| Nowv. | Dac. |January| Feb. | March | April | May i June| Year | Year +1| Year 42
2016M7 | 2017118 | 201818
CapHal Expenditurs - Standard
Governance and administration - 368 79 14 72| 59 70 115 s 119 21| - 1929 | 2046 | 329
Execuive and coundl - 18] - - 26 59 - - - 13| 21 - 137 147 157
Budget and reasury ofioe - | 7 - 706 - - 115] 1o 1w0e| - | - | 1441 1528 2521
Corporaie services - 2| - 14 - | - 70 242 - 350 an 612
Community and public safaty 12 - | 13 43 4| 94 30 3] 20| o4 - | - 431 447 699
Cormmunily and social services - - | 100 - - 9 - 18 - 58] - - 268 284 469
Sportand recreabion 2 - 2 43 - 3 - 3 8] - - - 70 65 68
Public salety 10 - 1 - 4) - Wl - 2] 3] -] - 93 98 162
Housing - o = = = - i = - o - - - - =
Heath - - - - = = - - - - - - - = -
Economic and envionmental services| - | 1178 4 - 1274l - s94) - [1183] - | - | - | 4232] 10106 t5261
Planning and development - - 4 - g - - - - - - - 13 13 22
Road ¥anspart - | 1178] - - 15| - 594 - J1m] -] - | -] 4a220{ 10092] 15239
Environmental proecton - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Trading services 1444 | 3482 | 269 ) 1340 2317 | 600 34| 1768( 1687 { 170 | 269 | 941 ] 14344 | 6585] 2756
Elecricily 1040 ] 274 214 t30] - | 566 - - | 1e87| - {280| - | s400] ae601] 2049
Wakr 214§ 3166 ] - NEEIE - |12 - | - | - o4} 7a2e 500 350
Wask walet management 190 42| s6 - ar| u] s15] - o] 9| - | 1000] 1450 300
Wase management - 5] - - 10| - - 17 - - - - 3z 34 56
Other - - - - -1 - - - -l =-1-1- - - -
Total Capital Expenditure - Standard 1456 | 5033 464| 1395 ] 4328 | 753 726 | 1903 | 3242 | 383 ] 310 941 | 20937 [ 19184 | 22006
Funded by:
Nalional Governmenl 1456 | 3758 - - [ 4328 | - 38| 1003) 2158 - - - | 13992 | 12491 ] 13118
Provincial Government - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
District Municipality - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Cther ransiers and grank - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers recognised - capital 1456 | 3759 - - | 4328 - JAB | 1993 | 2158 § - - - 113992 | 12491 | 13118
Public contributions & donations - - - -~ - - - - - - - - - - -
Bomowing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Intemally generated funds = | 1274 464 1396 - | 753 340 - | 1084 ] 383| 310] 941 | 6944 ] 6694 | BB888
Total Capital Fending 1456 | 5033| 464 1396 | 4328 753 728 | 1903 | 3242 383 | 310 941 ] 20937 { 19184 | 22006

Table 46 MBRR SA30 - Budgeted monthly cash flow




|NGO73 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA30 Budgeted monthly cash flow { | | | | | | |
MONTHLY CASH FLOWS Budget Year 201617 - TETTPN P s
Budget | Budget | Budget
R thousand July | Asgust | Sept. |Octaber|Novembaer|December| January | February| March | Aprl | May | Juns Your | Year ¢t | Year+2
200617 | 2017118 | 201819
Cash Recelpts By Source 1
Property rales w773 1157 1303] 1098 1097 1183 | 1207 1067 959 | 1065) 1129) 1953 27909 29239| 4B90%
Propesty raes - penaltes & colecton charges - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sefvice charges - electicly revenus 4204 3976] 98] 4 3461 G164 | 3145 4292 | 4642 5189| 54787 4839 54450] 56454 | 71037
Sevvice charges - waker revenue 1449 1357 | 1179 1459 1276 1688 ) 1474 2185| 2492 1233 3460 5502| 26835} 27908 | 45467
Service charges - sarriaton ievenue 955 1974 1032 221 1087 1070 1109 1632 1627 16549 1871 | 1808 1704 | 17382 20347
Servis charges - telise revenue ™ 937 5 7 795 752 2 905 w 846 805 LX) 9866 | 10261 ] 10569
Service charges - other 10 10 10 10 10 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 118 123 132
Rental of boites and equipment &9 65 69 62 n 73 77 64 74 H 24 - 686 ] 770
Ineresi ganed - external investrenty 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 808 830 863
Inesesi earned - ing debirs. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends received - - - - - - - - - - - - - = -
Fines 125 33 116 893 B35 318 664 889 459 759 ki) 651 6543 6 870 7076
Licences and pefins 39 35 33 2 N 2 N 65 248 an 496 267 1478 2038 2099
Agency services - - - - = - - - - - - - - - -
Transier receptk - operatona 19 156 1365 - - 11 106 2129 605 - 7299 - - - 41660 42910 45085
Othes rgvenue 2652) 2162| 2086 | 22n 2082 1990 2054 2305 14004 2719 1509 2952| 26282 | 26067 43475
Cash Receipts by Source 3| 13128 | 10673 | 12 82 2154 15488 | 11 215] 13872| 20215 | 15955 | 15630 | 18962 | 214263 | 221 714 | 295 800
Other Cash Flows by Source
Transkr receipts - capal 435 - 525 - 4 5H - - - | 4593 - - $34| 14602| 143430 13798
Conribulons gnised - capkal & C - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Proceeds on disposal of PPE - - - 0 16 - 6 - - - - 7 130 139 148
Shoit lerm oans - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Borrowing long Eermieinancing - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Increase {decrease) in consumer deposds 9 10 9 10 1 5 [ 1 8 12 10 [ 98 90 7
Deoease (Increase) m non-cusrent deblors - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
[y {i } cher non-currentreceival - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Detrease (increase) in non-currentinvesimenty - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total Cash Recsipts by Sourte 4607 | 13139 | 11207 | 12963 248 532 15492 | 11227} 130883 | 24816 | 15967 ; 15640 | 19540 | 229092 | 226206 | 309 817
Cath Payments by Type
Employee relaed coss 5968 STB) 5165| 6644 6 667 6445 | 7158 §205) 5205; S5105] 5005| 5372 69691 73071| 77674
Remunesation ol councilors 348 358 358 358 358 158 1 435 435 435 435 428 4v4B| 4935 5269
Finance charges 1% 17? i 553 554 559 555 555 551 £62 573 658| 5633] 6143 9w
Buk purchases - Eleckicy 6 895 7396 6660] 1600 3755 143 | 1835 3280 | 4690 38| 4427] 1200| 503321 56359 | 90BS9
Buk purchases - Water & Sewer 155 0 135 61 17 224 195 13 218 217 75 1673 2440} 2738| 4315
Cther materials 12611 1234 14% T84 1608 392] 13691 1789{ 1893 1288 1161 | 1770) 16025| 17986) 30971
Contacked services B11 363 556 775 524 1180 612 1075 1012 763 54 73 8970 | 10565F 10608
Transiers and grants - ohey municpakies - - - - - - - - = - - - - -
Transkrs and grants - oher 675 LA 617 776 T04 666 73 766 121 7% 789 667 8586 | 10255) 15270
Ohiet expendise 3697 2314] 2937 2674 2 656 03] 2179 2222] 008 35| 3254 I506| 34685) 6633| 41397
Cath Pay by Typs 19931 | 180920 13400 | 14607 ] 18999 | 16420 | 47009 | 15649 ] 16509 | 16144 | 18442 | 14560 | 201080 | 217 ; 288094
Other Cash Flows/Payments by Type
Capinl asses 1456) 503 B4] 13% 4320 753 720 1903 3242 383 N3 941 | 20037 | 19164 22006
Repayment of borrowing 187 169 B45 192 192 195 197 654 152 192 192 196 3222 -
Omer Cash Flows/Payments - - - - - - - - - = - - - -
Tatal Cash Payments by Type 205741 23534 | 19509 | 16195 | 20598 97376 18034 | 13109 | 19943 | 46719 | 16944 15697 | 225240 | 237919 { 308101
:g;ucnwmnscnme;m CASH  1opas| cosss| wema) 23z  sona| rsen| wsom| wael asm| osaf e ase| ass| pes] 1w
[Cashicash equivalents &t he monhiyear begn: [985)) 26829) 1573 | 7432 4 300 9214 1IN 524 | {3792 1081 a0 | igtey| (985 2867 1234
Cashicash equivalents 2t he montvyear end: 26129 15734 7432 4200 1214 73 S24 1 (37920 1481 8 976)] 2467 2867 1234 2951

2.9.8 Annual budgets and SDBIPs - internal departments
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2.9.8.1 Water Services Department — Vote 14

The department is primarily responsible for the distribution of potable water within the
municipal boundary, which includes the purification of raw water, maintenance of the
reticulation network and implementation of the departmental capital programme.

There are currently no unfilled positions in the top management structure of the Water Services
Department. The top management structure consists of the Director of Infrastructural and
Housing Services, three Managers who report directly to him.

The departmental strategy is ensuring the economic value and useful life of the water
reticulation network and infrastructure is maintained. The departmental revenue base is
primarily informed by the sale of water of which budget appropriation for the 2016/17 financial
year is and has been informed by a collection rate of 96 per cent and distribution losses of 12
per cent.

The establishment of a water demand management unit has proven to be extremely successful
with the reduction of distribution losses by 2.6 per cent for the 2015/16 financial year. The
further expansion of this unit will inevitably result in the further lowering of the distribution
losses, thus paying for the unit itself and effecting additional savings for the municipality.

2.10 Contracts having future budgetary implications

In terms of the Municipality’s Supply Chain Management Policy, no contracts are awarded
beyond the medium-term revenue and expenditure framework (three years). In ensuring
adherence to this contractual time frame limitation, all reports submitted to either the Bid
Evaluation and Adjudication Committees must obtain formal financial comments from the
Financial Management Division of the Treasury Department.

2.11 Capital expenditure details

The following three table's present details of the Municipality's capital expenditure programme,
firstly on new assets, then the renewal of assets and daftly on the repair and maintenance of
assets.

|
il




Table 47 MBRR SA 34a - Capital expenditure on new assets by asset class

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table SA34a Capital expenditure on new assets by asset class

| I

Description

2012113

201314

201415

Currant Year 2015M16

2016/17 Medium Term

R thousand

Audited
Outcome

Audited
Qutcome

Audited
Qutcome

Original | Adjusted | Full Year
Budget

Budget | Forecast

Budget | Budgst | Budget
Year | Year +1 | Year +2
201617 | 2017118 | 2018M19

Capital expenditure on new assets by
Assat Class/Sub-class

infrastructure

Infraskucture - Road ransport

Roads, Pavements & Eridges

Storm water

Infrastructure - Electricily

Generation

Transmission & Reliculation

Street Lighting

Infraskucture - Water

Darns & Reservoirs

Waler purification

Reticuiation

Infrastuciure - Sanidation

Reliculation

Sewerage purification

Infrasyucture - Other

Waste Management

Transportation

Gas

Other

Community

Parks & gardens

Sporksfields & stadia

Swimming pools

Communily halls

Libraries

Recreaional faciliies

Fire, sakely & emergency

Security and policing

Buses

Clinics

Museums & Art Galleries

Cemelgries

Sotial rental housing

Obher

Heritage assets

Buildings

Other

Investment properties

Housing development

Other

Other assets

General vehicles

Spedialised vehicles

Plant & equipment

Compuiers - hardware/equipment

Furniture and other office equipment

Abatoirs

Markels

Civic Land and Buidings

Other Buildings

Other Land

Surplus Assek - (Investment or Inveniory)

Other

&rlcullural assels

List sub-class

Biologicat assets

List sub-class

Intangibles

Compulers - sofware & programming

Oter (fist sub-class}

Total Capital Expenditure on new assets

.




Table 48 MBRR SA34b - Capital expenditure on the renewal of existing assets by asset class

NC073 Emthanjeni - Supporting Table S A34b Capital expenditure on the renewal of existing assets by asset class |
Description 2012/13 | 201314 | 2014115 Current Year 201516 2016117 Medium Term

Audited | Audited | Audited |Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Bu0get| Budget|Budget

Year | Year+1| Year +2
Outcome | Outcome | Qutcome { Budget | Budget |Farecast 2016147 | 2017118 | 2018119

R thousand

===

existing assets by Asset ClassiSub-

class
Estmcture 1842 6 969 - 8 237 3181 3181 ] 4457 | 3929 | 4676
Infrastructure - Road fransport 761 4 640 - 2800 2 800 2800F 3105| 2744 | 2920
Roads, Pavernents & Bridges 761 4 640 - 2 800 2 800 2800 | 3105] 2744 | 2920
Storm watar -~ - - = -
Infrastructure - Eleciricity 412 611 - 5226 170 170 600 636 | 1049
Generation - - - - - - - - -
Transmission & Reticutation 412 611 — 5226 170 170 600 636 | 1049
Street Lighting - - - - - - - - -
Infrasfructure - Water 17 406 - 180 180 180 500 500 350
Dams & Reserwirs - - — - - - - - -
Water purification - - - 180 180 180 500 500 350
Reticufation 17 406 - - - - - - -
Infrastructure - Sanitaion - - - - - - 220 15 300
Raticulation - - - - - - -
Sewerage puriffication - - - - - - 220 15 300
Infrastructure - Other 652 1312 — 31 31 KL 32 4 56
Waste Management 652 1312 - 31 k) k] 32 34 56
Transportation - - - - - - - - -
(Gas - - - - - — - - -
Qther - - - - - - - -
Community 123 64 68 353 353 353 322 332 509
Parks & gardens 45 — - 22 22 22 25 25 30
Sporisields & stadia 50 1 - 39 39 39 45 40 38
Swimming pools 118 - - = - - - - -
Community halls 300 63 - 260 260 260 220 233 385
Libraries - - - - = - - - -
Recreatonal facilties - - - = - - - - -
Fire, salety & emergency - - - - - - - - -
Security and policing — - - = - - - - -
Buses - = - - - - — - -
Clinics - - — - - - - - -
Museums & Art Galleries - = - - - - - -
Cemeleries 300 - — kil 3 31 32 34 56
Social rental housing - = - = = = - -
Other 418 - 68 - = - - - - Il

Heritage assets - - = = = - - - -

Buildings = - = = = - - - =
Cther - - - - - - - - -
Investment properties - - - - - - - - -
Housing development - - - - - - -~ - -
Other - - - - - -
| Other assets 1701 2126 294 | 1913 1913 1913 | 2165| 231 | 3704
eneral vehicles - 959 - - - - - - -

Spedalised vehicles - -
Plant & equipment 71 153 16 845 845 845 473 517 754
Comguiers - hardware/equipment 535 - - 339 338 339 200 212 341
Furniture and other ofice equipment 375 515 157 189 189 189 226 240 396
Abafpirs - - - = - - - - - I

Markets - - - - - = - = =
Civic Land and Buildings - - - - = = = = —
Other Buildings - 500 122 540 540 540 333 353 582
Other Land - - - = = - - = —
Surplus Assets - (Investment or Inveniory) - - - = = = = = —
Oter - - - - - - 933 989 | 1631

Agriculturai assets - - - = = = - - -

List sub-class - - - - = = = — —

Biologlcal assets - - - - - 5 - - =
List sub-class - - - - - - = = —

| Intangibles 62 33 - 884 884 884 - - - Il
Compulers - sofware & programming 52 93 - 884 884 884 - - -
Other (st sub-class) - - - = = = - - -

Total Capital Expenditure on renewal of

existlng assets 4837 9253 362 | 11386 6 331 6331 ] 6944 | 6572 | &B8B

Table 49 MBRR SA34c - Repairs and maintenance expenditure by asset class




NC073 Enthanjeni - Supporting Table SA34c Repairs and maintenance expenditure by asset class

Description 2012113 | 201314 | 2014115 Current Year 2015/18

Davanya @l G ditira,

Audited | Audited | Audited |Originat| Adjusted | Full Year| 4986t | Budgat | Budgat
UCTLELT Outcome | Qutcome | Outcome | Budget | Budget | Forecast Year | Year 1] Yoar +2
201617 | 2017/18 | 201819
Repairs and maintenance expenditure by
Asset Clasa/Sub-class
Infrastructure 5036 4435 2 399 5143 5143 5143 3470 3785 6151
Infastucure - Road transport 1 368 1277 317 616 616 616 628 562 1099
Roatls, Pavemaonis & Bridges 1368 1277 17 322 22 322 329 259 575
Storm waler - - - 294 294 294 300 304 524
Inkastructure - Elecricity 1495 929 1165 1342 1342 1342 1545 1848 | 2783
Generalion - - - - - - - - -
Transmission & Relictiation 1495 929 832 995 995 995 1067 1362 ] 2153
Streel Lighting - - 333 347 347 347 478 486 631
Infrastructure - Walker 750 697 689 1145 1145 1145 1231 1304 | 2152
Dams & Reservoirs - - - 382 382 a2 200 212 350
Walar purification 750 697 689 - - - - - -
Retficulation - - - 763 763 763 1030 1092 1802
Inkastuciure - Sanitakon 712 464 228 64 64 64 66 70 116
Reliculation - - - 64 64 64 66 70 116
Sewerage purification 712 464 228 - - - - - -
Infraskructure - Other 711 1 068 - 1975 1975 1975 - - -
Wasto Management - 987 - 1975 1975 1975 - - -
Transporlation - - - - - - - - -
Gas - - - - - - - - -
Other 711 81 - - - - - - -
Community 1626 2218 3 409 3098 3098 3008 | 2037 2302 | 4263
Parks & gardens - 232 - 19 19 19 - - -
Sporisfields & stadia - 104 260 47 47 47 - - -
Swimming pools - - - 603 603 603 119 127 257
Comeunily halls - 244 77 692 692 692 - 227 73
Libraries - 128 - 47 a7 47 - - -
Recreatonal Bclites - - - - - - - - -
Fire, salkely & emergency - - - 1612 1612 1612 1918 1948 3 549
Security and policing - - - - - - - - -
Buses - - ~ - - - - - -
Clinics - = = - = = = = =
Museums & Art Galleries - - - - - - - - -
Cemekrias B - - - - - - - -
Social rental housing - - - - - -
Other 1626 1509 3071 79 79 79 - - B4
Heritage assets - - - - - - - - -
Buildings - - - - - - - - -
Oher - - - - - - - - -
Investment propertles 158 - - - - - - - -
Housing development - - - - - - - - -
Other 158 - - - - - - - -
Other assats 1651 4 958 4 767 7 068 7 068 7068 | 10774 | 11202 | 18 005
General vehicles - 2322 2188 3731 37N ari 6424 6864 | 11888
Specialised vehickes - - - - - - - - -
Plant & equipmant - 488 1209 774 774 774 963 1074 1260
Compulers - hardware/equipment . 430 133 380 380 380 624 633 770
Furniture and other ofice equipment - - - 631 631 631 891 965 999
Abalioirs - - - - - - - - -
Markets - - - - - - - - -
Civic Land and Buildings = - - - - - - - -
Other Buildings 1651 - - 1436 1436 1436 1697 1571 2 584
Cther Land - 1091 1147 - - - - - -
Surplus Assels - {Investment or Inveniory) - - - - - - - - -
Other - 627 90 116 116 116 176 95 503
Agricultural assets - - - - - - - - -
List sub-class - - - - - - - - -
Biological asssets - - - - - - - - -
List sub-class - - - - - - - - -
Intanglblas - - 640 1308 1308 1308 1523 1575 | 2552
Computers - sofware & programming - - 640 1308 1308 12308 1523 1575 2 6552
Other (ks sub-class) - - - - - - - - -
Total Rapairs and Malntenance Expenditure 8471 11 611 11215 | 16618 | 16618 | 16618 | 17805 | 18864 { 30971

2.12 Legislation compliance status




Compliance with the MFMA implementation requirements have been substantially adhered to
through the following activities:

1. In year reporting
Reporting to National Treasury in electronic format was fully complied with on a monthly
basis. Section 71 reporting to the Executive Mayor (within 10 working days) has
progressively improved and includes monthly published financial performance on the
Municipality's website.

2. Internship programme
The Municipality is participating in the Municipal Financial Management Internship
programme and has employed five interns undergoing training in various divisions of the
Financial Services Department. Three interns have been appointed, recruitment process
have commenced for the appointment of another three. Since the introduction of the
Internship programme the Municipality has successfully employed and trained 5 interns
through this programme and a majority of them were appointed either in the Municipality or
other Institutions such as Kgolo Institute, KPMG, Ernest &Young, SARS, Auditor General,
and National Treasury..

3. Budget and Treasury Office
The Budget and Treasury Office has been established in accordance with the MFMA.

4. Audit Committee

An Audit Committee has been established and is fully functional. Capacitation training wil
be provided to Audit Committee members.

5. Service Delivery and Implementation Plan

The detail SDBIP document is at a draft stage and will be Draftised after approvai of the
2016/17 MTREF in June 2016 directly aligned and informed by the 2016/17 MTREF.

6. Annual Report
Annual report is compiled in terms of the MFMA and National Treasury requirements.
7. MFMA Training

The MFMA training module in electronic format is presented at the Municipality’s internal
centre and training is ongoing.

8. Policies
An amendment of the Municipal Property Rates Regulations as published in Government

Notice 363 of 27 March 2009, was announced in Government Gazette 33016 on 12 March
2010. The ratios as prescribed in the Regulations have been complied with.
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2.13 Other supporting documents
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Table 51 MBRR Table SA2 - Matrix financial performance budget (revenue
source/expenditure type and department)
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Table 52 MBRR Table SA3 - Supporting detail to Statement of Financial Position

NCO073 Emthanjent - Supporting Table SA3 Supportinging detail to 'Budgeted Financial Position’ | | |

2016117 Medium Term Revenue &
212113 | 2013414 | 201415 Current Year 2015/16 Expenditure Framework
Description Audited | Audited | Audited | Original | Adjusted | Full Year | Pre-augit [ Buddet | Budget | Budget
QOutcome | Qutcome|Outcome| Budget | Budget | Forecast | outcome Ll WL ML AL
208617 | 217H8 | 201819
R thousand
ASSETS
Call investment deposits

Call deposik < 90 days - - ~ - - -

Oter currentinvesiments > 30 days 9070 2789 2769 2789 10075 9 505 10765
Total Call investment deposits - - - 9070 2769 2789 2789 10075 9 505 10 765
Consumer debtors

Consumer deblors 46604 | 30486F 31918 32013 32013 32013 32013 33543 34092 40181
|_Less' Provision for debt ivpairment {(11429Y  (13541) (135410 (33544 (1M 119] (11786)] (19447}
Total Consumer debtors 46604 | 30486 31918 20 584 18472 18472 18472 22824 22 305 20734
Debt impairment provigion

Balance at he beginning of he year - 2112 2112 2112 - - -
Coniribuions 1o he provision 1429 11429 11429 11429 11119 11786 19 447
Bad debts writen of 970415} 923698 | 15712 - - - - -
Balance at end of year 970415 | 923698 | 35712 11429 13541 13541 13 541 11 19 11786 19 447
Property, plant and equipment (PPE!

PPE at costvalualon {exd. nance leas] 1039690 | 991788 | 940098 | 1014178 | 1014178 | 1014176 | 1014178 ¢ 1025851} 1038511 | 1055010

Leases recognised as PPE - - - - - - - - -

Less: Accurmulaled depreciaion 63275 65214 61386 84141 84141 84 141 84141 93738 | 103911 120 666
Total Property, plant and equipment | 970415 | 926584 | 878712 | 930037 | 930037 | 930037 | 930037 932114 ] 934601 938325
LIABILITES
Current liabllitles - Barrowing

Short ermloans (oher han bank overdraff) - - - - - - -

Current porfion of long-erm kabilibes 2485 2758 2478 3003 3003 3003 3003 1477 499 -
Total Current liabilities - Bormowing 2 485 2758 2478 3003 3003 3003 3003 1477 499 -
Trade and other payables

I Trade and oher crediors 12349 1710 223 15 283 15 283 15283 15 283 16 352 16 198 17333

Unspent condifionat ranskers 12120 7085 3761 1470 - - - - - -

VAT 4211 - - - - - - -
Total Trade and other payables 28680 | 24205| 26142 16 752 15 283 15283 152683 16 352 16 199 17333
Non current liabilities - Borrowing

Borrowing 6008 32| N 14777 2348 2348 2348 1299 - -

Finance leases {including PPP asset element - = - - -
Total Non current llabilitles - Borrowll 6008 3231 | 3T W7 14777 218 2348 2348 1299 - -
Provisions - non-curment

Refrement benells 46259 | 49680 | 16451 52 661 52661 52661 52 661 26 31 28427 29005
List other magpr provision ftems
Reduse landil sie rehabilitation - - - 52 52 52 52 78 75 80
Oter - - - - 8410 8410 8410 9672 9235 9459
Total Provisions - non-current 46259 | 49680 16451 52713 61123 61123 61123 36071 nmm 38544
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Accumulated Surplusi{Deficit)
Accumulated Surphisi{Delial) - cpening] 1022787 | 956006 | 909543 | 9623B4 | 962184 | 962284 ) 962384 | O49417) 979249 | 982298
GRAP adjustments - - - - - - - - - -
Restaled balance 1022767 | 056006 | 909543 | 962364 | 962384 | 962384 | 9623684 | 949417 979249 | 982298
Surplus/{Debcif) (42 686)] (70 534)] (49091) 47 368 5031 500 5031 4612 2151 24 652
Appropriaions © Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Transkers Fom Reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Depredialon ofses - 9248 9248 9248 9248 9597 10173 16775
Omer adjusiments 42686 | 73162 43091 (65 BB (27247} (27 247y (27 247) 16 124 {8775)] (38 290}
Accumulated Surplusf{Delicit) 1022787 | 950633 | 909543 | 953136 | 949417 | 949417 | 949417 | 979749 | 982798 | O9B5436
Ee_sewes - - - - - - - - - -
Housing Development Fund - - - - - - - - - -
Capital replacement - - - - - - - - - -
Selfnsurance - - - - - - - - - -
Oher reserves - - - - - - - - - -
Revalualon - - - - - - - - - -
Total Reserves - - - - - - - - - - 1]
TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTHIEQUITY 1022787 | 958633 | 909543 | 953136 | 949417 | 949417 | 949497 | 979749 | 982798 | 985436
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DE AAR

Tel: 053 632 9100

Fax: 053 631 0105

E-mail: deaar@emthanjeni.co.za
Website: www.emthanjeni.co.za
Posbus/P.O.Box 42, De Aar, 7000

Alle komespondensie moet gerig word
aan die MUNISIPALE BESTUURDER

All Correspondence must be addressed
to the MUNICIPAL MANW office

Kantoor van die/Municipal Manager

HANOVER Office of the:

Tel: 053 643 0026

BRITSTOWN Verw. Nr/Ref. No:

e L . O —
Datum/Date:
Navrae/Enquiries:

MUNICIPAL MANAGER QUALITY CERTIFICATE

|, Isak Visser, municipal manager of Emthanjeni, hereby certify that the Draft Budget and
supporting documentation have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal Finance
Management Act and the regulations made under the Act, and that the annual budget and
supporting documents are consistent with the Integrated Development Plan of the
municipality.

Print Name Isak Visser

Municipal manager of

Signature

Date 0Y/04/2016

A

VISION
We, Emthanjeni Municipality, commit ourselves to a humane and caring saciety, living in a healthy and secure
erwironment, conducive to sustainable economic development.

MISSION STATEMENT
We strive to: Deliver quality services and promote development in our municipal area in
a non-sexist, non-racial and non-discriminating manner. We do this by creating
a climate of co-operative govemance with meaningful partnerships with all
stakeholders, especfally the members of the general public.
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EMTHANIENT MUNICIPALITY

ORAFT PROPERTY RATES POLICY

2016/17 MTREF

EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY

Space Access Opportunity

DRAFT RATES POLICY

2016/2017 MTREF
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1. PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

This purpose of this Palicy is to set out the quiding principles and legislative requirements that governs the compilation and
management of the municipal Valuation Roll. This palicy should at all times be read together with the Municipal Property
Rates Ac, 2004 AND the Municipal Property Rates Amendments Act, 2015.
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2,

DEFINITIONS

In this policy, definitions, words and expressions have the same meanings as assigned to them in the Act, unless the

context indicates otherwise: —

“accommadation” means accommodation in an accommodation establishment, a room, dwelling/ house or second

dwelling unit, self-catering room, self-catering apartment or free standing building let to transient guests consisting of three

or more lettable units;

“accommeodation establishments” - consists of one or more of the following lettable types of accommodation, consisting

of three or more lettable units -

{a)

{b)

()

(d)

(9)

{m

"Camping” {informal temporary accommodation in a unique environment) is defined by a property used for erection
of tents or other temporary structures for temporary accommedation for visitors or holiday-makers, which includes
ablution, cooking and other facilities that are reasonably and ordinarily related to camping , for use of such visiters,
and includes a caravan park, whether publicly or privately owned, but which excludes the alienation of land on the
basis of time sharing, sectional title share blocks or individual subdivision; and excludes resort accommodation or
mobile homes;

“Bed and Breakfast” (accommodation in a dwelling-house or second dwelling unit for transient guests) is defined by
a dwelling-house or second dwelling in which the owner of the dwelling supplies lodging and meals for compensation
to transient guests who have permanent residence elsewhere; provided that the primary use of the dwelling-house
concerned shall remain for the living accommodation of a single farmily and where not more than 3 guest rooms are
provided;

*Guest House” is defined by a dwelling-house which is used for the purpese of supplying lodging and meals to
transient guests for compensation, in an establishment which exceeds the restrictions of a bed and breakfast
establishment and may include business meetings, training sessions and conference facilities for resident
guests;(includes Self Catering units)

“Bed and Breakfasts" establishment means a dwelling house or second dwelling unit in which the occupant of the
dwelling house supplies lodging and meals for remuneration to transient guests who have permanent residence
elsewhere

“Self catering Accommodation” {accommeodation for non-permanent residents and transient guests) is defined by a
house, cottage, chalet, bungalow, flat, studio, apartment, villa, or similar accommodation where facilities and
equipment are provided for guests to cater for themselves. The facilities should be adequate to cater for the
maximum advertised number of residents the facility can accommodate;

"Self catering Apartments” (accommodation for non-permanent residents and transient guests) is defined by a
building or group of buildings consisting of separate accommodation units, each incorporating a kitchen / -ette
facility, and which may include other communal facilities for the use of transient guests, together with outbuildings
as are normally used therewith; which are rented for residential purposes and may include holiday flats; but does
not include a hotel, dwelling-house, second dwelling or group house;

“Backpackers Accommodation” {accommodatian and communal facilities in a building or free standing buildings for
transient guests) is defined by a building where lodging is provided, and may incorporate cooking dining and
communal facilities for the use of lodgers, together with such outbuildings as are normally used therewith and
includes a building in which dormitories/rooms/beds are rented for residential purposes, youth hostel, and
backpackers’ lodge; but does not include a hotel, dwelling house, second dwelling or group house;

"Boarding House” a dwelling-house or second dwelling which is used for the purpose of supplying lodging with or
without meals or self catering to non permanent/permanent residents for compensation; provided that the primary
use of the dwelling-house shall remain for the living accommodation of a single family;

(]



EMTHANIENT MUNICIPALITY

DRAFT PROPERTY RATES POLICY

2016/17 MTREF

3



EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY DRAFT PROPERTY RATES POLICY 2016/17 MTREF

“Act"” - means the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 {Act No 6 of 2004) and any amendment thereof;
“annually” - means once every financial year;

“bhusiness and commercial property” - means -

(a) property used for the activity of buying, selling or trading in commodities or services and includes any office or other
accommodation on the same property, the use of which is incidental to such activity; or

(b)  property on which the administration of the business of private or public entities take place;

"“Calendar year” shall mean 12 consecutive months of a financial year(s);

“categorvl' -
(a) in relation to a property, means a category of properties determined in terms of section 8(2) of the Act;
(b) in relation to the owners of property, means a category of owners determined in terms of section 15{2} of the Act;

“conservation area” -

(a) a protected area as listed in section 10 of the Protected Areas Act, 2003;

(b} a nature reserve established in accordance with the Nature and Environment Conservation Ordinance, noc 19 of
1974; or

{c) any land area zoned as open area zone 111 in accordance with the Municipality's zoning scheme regulations;
provided that such protected areas, nature reserves or land areas, with the exception of tourism facilities that may
be erected thereupon, be used exclusively for the conservation of the fauna and flora and the products of those land
areas may not be traded for commercial gain;

“axclusion” - in relation to a Municipality’s rating power, means a restriction of that power as provided for in sections 16
and 17 of the Act;

“exemption” - in respect of the calculation of a rate means an exermnption granted in terms of section 15(1)(a) of the Act;

“farm property or small holding used for agricultural purpose” - means property that is used for the cultivation of
soils for purposes of planting and gathering in of crops; forestry in the context of the planting or growing of trees in a
managed and structured fashion; the rearing of livestock and game or the propagation and harvesting of fish, but
excludes the use of a property for the purpose of eco-tourism; OR for the trading in hunting of game, accommedation of
members of the public for gain, and in the respect of property on which game is reared, trade or hunted, it excludes any
portion that is used for commercially for the hospitality of guests, or business purposes. In this definition such
properties could also be included within the urban edge of a town;

“farm property or small holding not used for any purpose” - means agricultural property or an agricuitural zoned
land which is not used for farming purposes, regardless of whether such portion of such property has a dwelling on it which
is used as a dwelling and must be regarded as residential property;

"Renewable Solar Energy farm or property and Wind Farms’ - means agricultural land as defined in the Subdivision
of Agricultural Land Act, 70 of 1970, on which energy producing solar energy panels have been erected for the purpose of
generating electricity, but which are dually used for agricultural purposes as defined as defined under “agricultural use”,
which are dually utilise and includes all land situated in the demarcated municipal area.

“Wind Farms" - means agricultural land as defined in the Subdivision of Agricultural Land Act, 70 of 1970, on which
energy-producing windmills or wind turbines have been erected for the purpose of generating electricity, but which are

4 |
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dually used for agricultural purposes as defined as defined under “agricultural use”, which are dually utilise and includes all
land situated in the demarcated municipal area.

This property or an agricultural zoned land where a portion is used for generating of electricity purposes, which is not
used for farming purposes, regardless of whether such portion of such property has renewable equipment and windmills
or wind turbines on it which is used as exclusively for renewable energy generation purposes and must be regarded as
renewable solar energy property and wind farms.

“financial year” - the period starting from 1 July in a year to 30 June the following year;

“industrial property” - means property used for construction, repair, trade or manufacturing, production, assembly or
processing of finished or partially finished products from raw materials or fabricated parts on such a large scale that capital
and labour are significantly involved, and includes any office or other accommodation on the same property, the use of
which is incidental to such activity;

"“local community” - in relation to the Municipality -
(@) means that body of persons comprising -
(i) the residents of the Municipality;
(i} the rate payers of the Municipality;
(iii)  any civic organisations and non-governmental, private sector or labour organisations or bodies which are
involved in local affairs within the Municipality; and
{iv) visitors and other people residing outside the Municipality, who, because of their presence in the Municipality,
make use of services or facilities provided by the Municipality; and
{b) includes, more specifically, the poor and other deprived sections of such body of persons;

“local Municipality” - a Municipality that shares municipal executive and legislative authority in its area with a district
Municipality within whose area it falls and which is described in section 155(1) of the Constitution as a category B
Municipality;

“market value” - in relation to a property, means the value of the property determined in accordance with section 46 of
the Act;

“multiple purposes” - in relation to a property, means the use of a property for more than one purpose as intended in
section 9 of the Act;

“municipal council” or “council” - is a municipal council referred to in section 18 of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998
{Act No 117 of 1998);

“municipal manager” - means a person appointed in terms of section 82 of the Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No
117 of 1998);

“municipal property” - is property registered or established in the name of the Example Municipality;

"Municipality” -

(a) as a corporate entity means a Municipality as described in section 2 of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 {Act No 32 of
2000); and

(b} as a geographical area, means a municipal area demarcated in terms of the Local Government: Municipal
Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No 27 of 1998);

51
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“occupier” - in respect of a property means a person in actual occupation of a property, whether or not that person has a
right to occupy the property;

“open space” - means land that is used as a park, garden, for passive leisure or maintained in its natural state and that is
zoned as open space;

“owner”-
(a) in relation to a property referred to in paragraph {a) of the definition of "property”, means a person in whose name
ownership of the property is registered;
{b) in relation to a right referred to paragraph (b) of the definition of “property” means a person in whose name the
right is registered,
{c) in relation to a land tenure right referred to in paragraph {c¢) of the definition of “property” means a person in whose
name the right is registered or to whom it was granted in terms of legislation; or
{d) in relation to public service infrastructure referred to in paragraph (d) of the definition of “property”, means the
organ of state which owns or controls that public service infrastructure, as envisaged in the definition in the Act of
the term “publicly controlled” provided that a person mentioned below may for the purpases of this Act be regarded
by a Municipality as the owner of a property in the following cases:-
0] a trustee, in the case of a property in & trust, excluding state trust land;
(i) an executor or administrator, in the case of a property in a deceased estate (the applicant must produce a
letter from the Master of the Court or appropriate legal proof to substantiate the appointment};
(i)  a trustee or liquidator, in the case of a property in an insolvent estate or in liquidation;
(iv) a judicial manager, in the case of a property in the estate of a person under judicial management;
(v) a curator, in the case of a property in the estate of a person under curatorship;
{vi) a person in whose name a usufruct or other personal servitude is registered, in the case of a property that is
subject to a usufruct or other personal servitude (the applicant must produce a letter from the Master of the
Court or appropriate legal proof to substantiate the appointment);
(vii) a lessee, in the case of a property that is registered in the name of a Municipality and is leased by it;
{viii} a buyer, in the case of a property that was sold by a municipality and of which possession was given to the
buyer pending registration of ewnership in the name of the buyer;

“permitted use” - in respect of 3 property means the limited purposes for which a property may be used in terms of the
following -
(a) any restrictions imposed by -
{i) a condition of title; or
{ii) a provision of a town planning or land use scheme; or
(i)  any fegistation applicable to any specific property or properties; or
(b) any alleviation of any such restrictions;

“private open space” means land that is privately owned and used for practising of sport, play- or leisure facilities or used
as a botanical garden, cemetery or nature area and which is joined as Private Open Space;

"privately owned townships serviced by the owner” - means single properties (group housing or single residential
erven), situated in an area not ordinarily being serviced by the Municipality, divided through subdivision or township
establishment in (ten or more) full-title stands and/or sectional title units and where all rates-related services inclusive of
installation and maintenance of streets, roads, sidewalks, lighting, storm water drainage facilities, parks and recreation
facilities, are installed at the full cost of the developer and are rendered and maintained by the residents, Home owners
association or management companies/ bodies of such estate;

G}
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“property” - means

{a) immovable property registered in the name of a person, including, in the case of a sectional title scheme, a sectional
title unit registered in the name of a person;

{b) a right registered against immovable property in the name of a person, excluding a mortgage bond registered
against the property;

{c) a land tenure right registered in the name of a person or granted to a person in terms of legislation; or

) public services infrastructure;

“property register” - a register of properties referred to in section 23 of the Act;

“public benefits organisation” means an organisation conducting specified public benefit activities as defined in the act
and registered in terms of the Income Tax Act for tax reductions because of tis activities.

“rate” - a municipal rate on a property envisaged in section 229(1)(a) of the Constitution;

“rateable property” - means property on which a Municipahty may in terms of section 2 of the Act levy a rate, excluding
property fully excluded from the levying of rates in terms of section 17 of the Act;

"rebate’” - in relation to a rate payable on a property, means a discount granted in terms of section 15 of the Act on the
amount of the rate payable on the property;

“reduction” - in respect of a rate payable on a property, means the lowering of the amount for which the property was
valued and the rating of that property at that lower amount;

“residential property” - means improved property that:-

(a) is used predominantly (60% or more) for residential purposes, including any adjoining property registered in the
name of the same owner and used together with such residential property as if it were one property. Any such
grouping shall be regarded as one residential property for rate rebate or valuation reduction purposes, if still used
daeminantly for residential purposes;

(b) is a unit registered in terms of the Sectional Title Act and is used predominantly for residential purposes;

(c) is owned by a share-block company and is used predominantly for residential purposes;

(d) is a residence used for residential purposes situated on a property used for educational purposes;

(e) is property which is included as residential in a valuation list in terms of section 48(2)(b) of the Act;

() are retirement schemes and life right schemes used predominantly (60% or more)} for residential purposes;

vacant properties (empty stands), hotels, hostels, cld-age homes and accommodation establishments, irrespective of their
zoning or intended use, have been specifically excluded from this property category;

“small holding” - means
{a) all agricultural zoned land units situated within an urban region with an area of one to three hectares; or
{b} any agricultural zoned land unit situated outside an urban region with an area of three hectares or less;

"public service infrastructure” - section 13 of the Amendment Act amends section 17(1) which prohibits the rating of
these category of property;

o
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"public services purposes” - property used by an organ of state for rendering of a service directly to the public such as
Health, education, police stations, court of law but exclude property contemplated in the definition of “Public Service
Infrastructure”

“state owned property” - excludes any property included in the valuation roll under the category ‘residential property’ or
‘vacant land’;

“vacant property” - means any land without any improvements thereon.
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3. OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY

The objectives of this policy are: -

3.1 to comply with the provisions of section 3 of the Act;
3.2 to determine criteria to be applied for -
3.2.1 levying differential rates for different property categories;
3.2.2 exemptions;
3.2.3 reductions;
3.2.4 rebates; and
3.2.5 rate increases.
3.3 to determine or provide criteria for the determination of the following -
{.r h,
3.31 property categories for the purpose of levying different rates; and L J
3.3.2 categories of owners of properties for the purpose of granting exemptions, rebates and reductions;
3.4 to determine how the Municipality’s power should be exercised in terms of multiple-used properties;
3.5 to identify and quantify the following for the Municipality in terms of costs and the benefit for the community
3.5.1 exemptions, rebates and reductions; and
3.5.2 exclusions.
3.6 to take into account the effect of rates on the indigent;
3.7 to take into account the effect of rates on organisations that perform activities for public benefit;
3.8 to take into account the effect of rates on the public services infrastructure;
3.9 to determine measures for promoting local economic and social development; and
3.10 to identify all rateable revenue not being rated.
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4. CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL FRAMEWORK

The Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 forms the legal basis of this pelicy. However, the following additional legal
references were observed during the compilation of this policy:-

. Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003;

. Municipal Systems Act, 2000;

. Municipal Property Rates Policy, as reviewed annually; and

. Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 as amended.

5. APPROVAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible for the submission of the Policy to Council to consider its adoption after
consultation with the AD. Council shall indicate the effective date for implementation of the policy.

The policy will take effect on 01 July 2015

6. POLICY PRINCIPLES

6.1 Apart from meeting legislative requirements, this policy also emanates from the objectives determined in

Council's anti-corruption policy.

6.2 The levying of rate on a property is an exclusive right of the Municipality which will be exercised:~

6.2.1 optimally and comprehensively within the Municipality; and

6.2.2 with consideration of the total revenue source of the Municipality.

6.3 The rating of properties will be done independently, justly, equitably and without prejudice and this principle will

alsa be applied with the determination of criteria for exemptions, reductions and rebates as provided for in
section 15 of the Act.

6.4 The levying of property rates must be implemented in such a way that: -

6.4.1 it is aimed at development;

6.4.2 it promotes sustainable local government by providing @ stable and constant revenue source within the
discretionary control of the Municipality; and

6.4.3 it promotes economic, social and local development.

6.5 Property rates will be levied to: -

6.5.1 correct the imbalances of the past; and

6.5.2 minimise the effect of rates on the indigent.

6.6 The market value of a property serves as basis for the calculation of property rates.

6.7 The rate tariff will be based on the value of all rateable properties and the amount the Municipality needs to fund

community and subsidised services, after taking into account any possible surplus generated from trading and
economic services and the amounts required to finance exemptions, rebates and reductions of rate, as approved
by council from time to time.

[0}
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6.8

6.9

6.10

Trade and economic services will be financially ring fenced and tariffs and service charges will as far as possible
be calculated in such a way that the revenue generated covers the cost of the services or generate a surplus.

The provision for operating capital and bad debt must be related to community and subsidised services and must
not include any provisions in respect of trade and economic services,

Property rates will be used to finance community and subsidised services.

Surpluses from trade and economic services may be used to subsidise community and subsidised services,

The revenue basis of the Municipality will be optimally protected by limiting the exemptions, rebates and
reductions.

7. CATEGORISATION OF SERVICES

7.1

7.1.1
7.1.2.1
7.1.2.2

7.1.2
7.1.2.3
7.1.2.4

7.1.3

7.1.3.1
7.1.3.2
7.1.3.3
7.1.3.4

7.1.3.5
7.1.3.6
7.1.3.7
7.1.3.8
7.1.3.9
7.1.3.10
7.1.3.11
7.1.3.12
7.1.3.13
7.1.3.14
7.1.3.15
7.1.3.16
7.1.3.17
7.1.3.18
7.1.3.19

The Chief Financial Officer must, subject to the guidelines provided by the National Treasury and Mayoral f"\.

[
\

Committee of council, make provision for the following categories of municipal services: - -

Trade services
Water
Electricity

Economic services
Waste removal
Sewerage

Comumunity services

Air poliution

Local tourism

Municipal planning

Municipal public works, in respect of the needs of the Municipality in the execution of its responsibilities and to
administer functions specially assigned to the Municipality under the Constitution or any other law :
Storm water management systems in built-up areas (‘_/1
Trade regulations

Advertising billboards and the display of advertisements in public piaces

Cemeteries

Control of public nuisances

Control over undertakings that sell alcohol to the public

Taownship development

Facilities for accommodation, care and burial of animals

Fencing and fences

Licensing of dogs

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public

Local amenities

Local sport facilities

Municipal parks and recreation

Municipal roads

1
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7.1.3.20
7.1.3.21
7.1.3.22
7.1.3.23
7.1.3.24
7.1.3.25
7.1.3.26
7.1.3.27
7.1.3.28
7.1.3.29
7.1.3.30
7.1.3.31
7.1.3.32

Noise pollution

Pounds

Public places

Street trading / Street lighting

Traffic control and parking

Building control

Licensing of vehicles and vehicle permits
Nature reserves

Child-care facilities

Ferry boats, jetties, piers and harbours
Markets

Cleaning

Beaches and entertainment, facllities.

8. CATEGORIES OF PROPERTIES

8.1

8.1.1
8.1.2
8.1.3

8.2

8.2.1
8.2,2
8.2,3

8.2.4

8.2,5

8.2.6
8.2.6.1
8.2.6.2

8.2.7

8.2.8

8.2.8.1
8.2.8.2
8.2.8.3
8.2.8.4
8.2.8.5

8.2.9

Subject to section 19 of the Act, Example Municipality may, in terms of the criteria set out in its rates policy, levy
different rates for different categories of rateable properties, which may include categories determined according

ta the {SAPOA vs City of Johannesburg (648/20111)[2012] ZASCA 157 {8 November 2012)): -

Predominant use of the property;
permitted use of the property; or
geographical area in which the property is situated,

Categories of rateable property that may be determined in terms of paragraph 5.1 include the following: -

residential (improved property);

property that Is vacant {empty stands) with zoning or proposed use earmarked for residential;

property that is vacant (empty stands) with zaning or proposed use earmarked for industrial, business or

commercial;

industrial;

business, commercial and guest houses;

farm properties used for -

agricultural purposes as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions;
residential purposes as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions;

farm properties not used for any purpose;

smallholdings used for -

agricultural purposes;

residential purposes;

industrial purposes;

cemmercial and business purposes; or

purpases other than those specified in subparagraphs (8.3.8.1) to (8.3.8.4),

state-owned property and public service purpose;
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8.2.10

8.2.11

8.2.12
8.2.12.1

8.2.12.2

8.2.13
8.2.14

B.2.15
8.2.16
8.2.17
8.2.18
8.2.19

8.2.20

municipal property;

public services infrastructure;

property

acquired through the Provision of Land and Assistance Act, 1993 (Act No 126 of 1993) or the Restitution of Land
Rights Act, 1994 (Act No 22 of 1994); or

which is subject to the Communal Property Assaciations Act, 1996 (Act No 28 of 1996);

protected areas;

properties used for any specific public benefit activities listed in Part 1 of the Ninth Schedule to the Income Tax
Act, 1962 (Act No S8 of 1962);

properties used for multiple purposes, subject to section 9 of the Act;

accommeodation establishments;

private open space; and

such other categories as may be determined by the council frem time to time.

Properties or sections of properties (solar renewable panels and windmills or wind turbines) where renewable
energy are generated which were specifically rezoned, where portions or properties are rented or leased to Solar
Businesses and where rental income is generated as defined in paragraph 2 under definitions

Public Benefit Organisation’s properties

9. CATEGORISATION OF OWNERS

9.1

2.1.1

5.1.2
9.1.2.1
9.1.2.2
9.1.3
9.1.4
9.1.5
9.1.6
9.1.7
9.1.8
9.1.9

For the purpose as described in section 3.2.1 of the policy the following categories of owners will be recognised in
terms of section 15(2) of the Act:-

Those owners who qualify and who are registered as indigent in terms of the adopted indigent policy of the
Municipality;

Owners of properties situated within an area affected by: -

a disaster within the meaning of the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No 57 of 2002); or

any serious adverse social or economic conditions.

Owners of agricultural properties as referred to in clause 12.1.1 of this policy;

Owners of farm properties that are used for residential purposes;

Owners of farm properties that are used for industrial, commercial and business purposes;

owners of smallholdings used for residential purposes;

Owners of smallholdings used for industrial, commercial and business purposes; and

Owners of developed properties not yet sold and transferred.

Owners or Occupiers of farm properties that are used for renewable energy or renewable solar energy and wind
mills or wind turbines

10, DIFFERENTIAL RATING

10.1

10.1.1

10.1.2

Criteria for differential rating on different categories of properties in terms of section 8(1) of the Act will be
according to -

the nature of the property including its sensitivity to rating, e.g. agricultural properties used for agricultural
purposes; and

the promotion of sociat and econamic development within the Municipality.
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10.2 Differential rating among the various property categories will be done by way of setting a different cent amount
in the rand for each property category; and

10.3 by way of reductions and rebates as provided for in this policy document.

11. EXEMPTIONS

11.1 Categories of properties

11.1.1 The following property categories are exempt from the payment of property rates; -
11.1.1.2 Municipal properties are exempted from paying property rates,
11.1.1.3 Residential properties

All residential property with a market value of less than the amount as annually determined by the Municipality,
are exempted from paying property rates. The impermissible rates of R28 000 contemplated in terms of section
17(1)(h) of the Act and can be suppiemented by council based on affordability, ratepayer profile and the
municipality’s predetermined level of support to the poor..

11.1.1.4 Public Service Infrastructure
Is exempted from paying rates as it provides essential services to the community.

11.3.1.5 i i isati -
Public Benefit Organisation Property means property owned by public benefit organisations and used for any
specified public benefit activity listed in item 1 (welfare and humanitarian), item 2 (health care), and item 4
{education and development) of part 1 of the Ninth Schedule to the Income Tax Act.

11.1.1.6 Exemptions in 11.1.1.1 to 11.1.1.4 will automatically apply and no application is thus required by the owners of
such property.

11.1.1.7 All possible Recreational organisations such as Country Club, Recreational clubs, Show Grounds, etc must apply
annually on the prescribe application form, by 31 August, for rebate exemnption of 40% for the financial year in
respect of which the application is made, If the exemption applied for is approved the exemption will be valid for
the full financial year. Applications received after 31 August for the financial year in respect of which the
application is made will only be applied for the remainder of that financial year if approved. The rates account
rmust in paid up to date otherwise the application will be unsuccessful.

11.1.1.8 A rate-exemption certificate as issued by the South African Revenue Service (SARS), as contemplated in terms of
Part 1 of the Ninth Schedule to the Income Tax Act, 1962 {(Act No 58 of 1962), may be submitted together with
the application.

11.1.1.9 The Municipality retains the right to refuse the application for exemption if the details supplied in the application

were incomplete, incorrect or false.

11.2 Impermissible Rates

In terms of section 17(1) of the Property Rates Act, 2004, the Municipality may, inter alia, not levy rates: -

11.2.1 on those parts of a special nature reserve, national park or nature reserve within the meaning of the National
Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act, 2003 (Act No 57 of 2003), or of a nationat botanical garden
within the meaning of the National Environmental Management Biodiversity Act, 2004 (Act No 10 of 2004), which
are not developed or used for commercial, business, residential or agricultural purposes.

11.2.2 on mineral rights within the meaning of paragraph (b) of the definition for “property"” in section 1 of the Act.

11.2.3 on a property belonging to a land reform beneficiary or his or her heirs, provided that the exclusion lapses ten

years from the date on which such beneficiary’s title was registered in the Deeds register.
14|
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11.2.4

on a property registered in the name of and primarily used as a place of public worship, including an official
residence registered in the name of the church that is occupied by an office-bearer who acts as officiant of the
church,

12. REBATES

12.1 Categories of properties

12.1.1
12.1.1.1

(a)
(b)
(c)
12.1.1.2
(a)
{b)

{c)
12.1.1.3

12.1.2
12.1.2.1

12,1.2.2

12.1.2.3
(=

(b)

Busin mmerg¢ial and in rig| pr

The Municipality may grant rebates to rateable undertakings that promote local, social or economic development
within the municipal jurisdiction. The fallowing criteria will apply: -

job creation in the municipal area;

social upliftment of the local community; and

creation of infrastructure for the benefit of the community.

Rebates will be granted on application subject to: -

a business plan issued by the directors of the company indicating how the local, social and economic
development objectives of the Municipality are going to be met;

a continuation plan issued by the directors and certified by the auditors stating that the abjectives have been met
and how they plan to continue meeting the objectives; and

an assessment by the municipal manager or his/her nominee indicating that the company qualifies.

Council will consider all LED requests on an individual basis according to merits.

R icultyr. r

the Municipality grants additional rates rebate {as set out below) in respect of properties used for agricultural
purposes only, after to the current property rates levy ratio of (1:0.25} is applied, which is the applicable rate for
properties used for agricultural purposes

Financial Year % Percentage Rebate Application date
2016/2017 28% 31 August 2016
2017/2018 25% 31 August 2017
201872019 18% 31 August 2018
2019/2020 10% 31 August 2019

In terms of section 84 of the Act the Minister for Provincial and Local Government, and in concurrence with the
Minister of Finance as required through section 19 of the Act, may determine that a rate levied by council on a
category of non-residential property may not exceed a prescribed ratio to the tariff levied on residential
properties. In the absence of any such promulgation the Municipality will apply a standard ratio for agricultural
properties frem 1:0.25 (75% impermissible on the tariff for residential properties). Before the start of 2009/2010
financial year the Minister had promulgated a ratio of 1:0.25 which remains unchanged for the 2015/2016
financial year. The Amendment Municipal Property Rates Act gives more clear interpretations on the
ratio{1:0.25).

The granting of additional rebates is subject to the following: -

All applications must be addressed in writing to the Municipal Manager indicating how service delivery and
development obligations of the Municipality and contribution to the social and economic welfare of farm workers
were met. This application will be required as a once-off requirement;

Any new applications must be addressed in writing to the Municipality by 31 August of the financial year in
respect of which the application is made. Applications are only valid for one financial year.

®
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(e

()

121,24

12.1.2.5

12.1.2.6

12.2

12.2.1

12.2.2
12.2.21

(a)

{b)

Council reserves the right to send officials or its agents on an annual basis to premises/households receiving
relief for the purposes of conducting an on-site audit of the details supplied. The onus also rests on recipients to
immediately notify Council of any changes in their original applications; and

The Municipality retains the right to refuse applications for rebates if the details supplied in the application form
were incomplete, incorrect or false,

No other rebates will be granted to properties that qualify for the agricultural rebate, In order to aveid doubt,
properties that qualify for the agricultural rebate will not be entitled to the residential rate exemption as set out
in paragraph 11.1.1.2 of this policy.

Rebates will be granted on prescribed application form.

Rebates will only be granted on vacant municipal properties which are being developed. Proper buildings
and plants must be erected within six months after registration at the deeds office. Construction must be
completed within one year in order to qualify for rates rebates, Failure to complete construction on these
praperties within one year after registration of properties at the deeds office, the municipality will used the
building plans amount as a basis of municipal property valuation, and levy the properties accordingly.
Rebates will only be granted on vacant municipal land. The rebates will be implemented as follows:

First Year {Year 1)

A rebate of 100% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Second Year (Year 2)

A rebate of 100% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Third Year (Year 3)

A rebate of 60% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties,
Fourth Year (Year 4)

A rebate of 40% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Fifth Year (Year 5)

A rebate of 20% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.
Sixth Year (Year 6)

A rebate of 0% on the municipal value will be allowed to these properties.

The rebates will be applicable on all these municipal properties where development has taken place
since 01 July 2012,

Categories of Owners

ndigent own -
The owners that qualify and are registered indigents in terms of the Municipality’s policy for indigents receive a
rebate on the payment of rates as specified in the Municipality’s policy for indigents.

R for retir nd di rson

Retired and disabled persons qualify for special rebates in accordance with their monthly household income.
Property owners who meet the following requirements may apply for a rebate: -

The property must be registered in the name of the applicant or the usufruct of the property must be established
in the name of the applicant.

The owner must be at least sixty (65) years of age and total gross manthly income or earnings must not exceed
an amount of R4 900 to qualify for a 50% rates rebate

16
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(i)
(i)

(c)
(d)

(e)

12.2.2.2

12,2.2.3

12.2.2.4

12,2.2.5

{a)

(b)

(@
(d)

an amount of RS 600 to qualify for a 45% rates rebate
an amount of R& 400 to qualify for a 40% rates rebate

The property owner may not be the owner of more than one property.
The owner must occupy the relevant property. Where the owner is unable to occupy the property due to no fault

of his/her own, the spouse or minor children rmay satisfy the occupancy requirement.
In the case of a semi-detached house, of which a section is rented out, only the rates paid on that section
occupied by the owner is subject to rebates.

Property owners must apply annually for a rebate on a prescribed form as stipulated by the Municipality, and
these applications must reach the Municipality by 30 September of the financial year in respect of which rates are
levied. If the rebate applied for is granted, the rebate will apply for the full financial year. Applications received
after 30 September for the financial year in respect of which the application is made will only be applied for the
remainder of that financial year if approved.

The Municipality retains the right to refuse the granting of rebates if the details supplied in the application were
incomplete, incorrect or false.

In the case of where the property has been sold during the financial year and where rebates have been granted,
the rebates amount will be written back or debited against the account of the owner. The rebate will be forfeited.
Applications for rebates must be completed on the official Emthanjeni Municipality’s Rebate application form and
must be accompanied by the following information: -

a certified copy of the identity document of the owner or any other proof of the owner's age which is acceptable
to the Municipality;

sufficient proof of income of the owner and the his/her spouse;

an affidavit from the owner;

if the owner is a disabled person, satisfactory proof submitted to the Municipality that the relevant  person
receives a disability pension payable by the state; and

13. REDUCTIONS

13.1

13.11
13.1.2

13.2
13.2.1

13.2.2

13.2.3

13.24

13.2.5

13.2.6

Reductions as contemplated in section 13 of the Act will be considered on an ad-hoc¢ basis in the event of the
following:-

Partial or total destruction of a property; or

Disasters as defined in the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act 57 of 2002).

The following conditions shall be applicable in respect of clause 13.1:-

The owner of the property referred to in clause 13.1.1 shall apply in writing for a reduction and the onus will rest
on such applicant to prove to the satisfaction of the Municipality that his property has been totally or partially
destroyed, He/ she will also have to indicate to what extent the property can still be used and the impact on the
value of the property.

Owners of property referred to in clause 13.1.2 will only qualify for a rebate if affected by a disaster as referred
to in the Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No, 57 of 2002),

A maximum reduction to be determined on an annual basis shall be allowed in respect of both clauses 13.1.1 and
13,1.2,.

An ad-hoc reduction will not be given for a period in excess of 6 months, unless the Municipality gives further
extension on application,

If rates were paid in advance prior to granting of a reduction the Municipality will give credit to such an owner as
from the date of reduction until the date of lapse of the reduction or the end of the period for which payment was
made whichever occurs first,

The CFD in consultation with the Executive Committee will determine the percentage (%) of reduction in rates

levy applicable to the damage caused by these properties.
17



EMTHANIJENT MUNICIPALITY DRAFT PROPERTY RATES POLICY 2016/17 MTREF

18



EMTHANJENT MUNICIPALITY DRAFT PROPERTY RATES POLICY 2016/17 MTREF

14. COST OF EXEMPTIONS, REBATES AND REDUCTIONS

14.1 The chief financial officer must inform council during the budgeting process of all the costs associated with the
proposed exemptions, rebates, reductions, phasing-in of rates and grants in the place of rates.

14.2 Provision must be made on the operating budget for ~

14.2.1 the full potential revenue associated with property rates; and

14.2.2 the full cost associated with exemptions, rebates and reductions.

15. MULTIPLE USE OF PROPERTIES

Properties used for multiple purposes which for example do not fall within the definition of Residential Properties and,
accordingly, do not qualify for the residential rate, may be included into the category of multiple-use properties, as per
section 9 (1) {c) of the Property Rates Act, for which an apportionment of value for each distinct use of the property will be
calculated by the municipal valuer and used for bifling at the appropriate and applicable rate, in cases where the municipal
valuer considers it reasonable to apply this category as per section 9 (1} {c} of the Property Rates Act.

16. PROPERTY REGISTER

16.1 A property register, divided into Sections A and B, regarding all properties in the municipal area of jurisdiction,
must be compiled and maintained by the Municipality.

16.2 Section A of the register will consist of the current valuation roll of the Municipality and will include all
supplementary valuations, as done from time to time.

16.3 Section B of the register will specify which properties on the valuation roll or any supplementary valuation roll are
subject to: -

16.3.1 exemption from rates in terms of section 15 of the Act;

16.3.2 a reduction or rebate in terms of section 15 of the Act;

16.3.3 the phasing in of tariffs in terms of section 21 of the Act; and

16.3.4 exclusions as referred to in section 17 of the Act.

164 The register will be open for inspection by the public during office hours at the head office of the Municipality or
on the internet website of the Municipality.

16.5 Section A of the register will be updated at least annually by the Municipality during the supplementary valuation
process.

16.6 Section B of the register will be updated annually as part of the implementation of the Municipality’s annual
budget.

17. NOTIFICATION OF RATES

17.1 Council will give notice at least 30 days before the rate approved during the annual budget meeting will come
into effect. Accounts furnished after the 30 days’ notice will be based on the new rates.
17.2 A notice containing the extent of council’'s resclution and the date on which the new rate will come into effect will

be displayed by the Municipality at places installed for this purpose.
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18,

18.1

18.2

18.2.1

18.2.2

18.2.3

18.2.4

18.2.5

19.

19.1

19.1.1
19.1.2
19.1.3
19.1.4
19.1.5

19.2

19.3

19.4

20.
20,1
20.1.1

20.1.2

20.2

CONSULTATION PROCESS

Befare council commands a new valuation in terms of the Act, a consultation process involving all interest groups
will be undertaken during which the purpose and method of valuation will be explained.

Before the Municipality accepts the rates policy the municipal manager will follow a process of public
participation, as prescribed in chapter 4 of the Municipal Systems Act, and comply with the following
requirements: -

Display the draft property rates palicy continuously for a peried of thirty (30) days at the Municipality’s head
office, satellite offices and on the website.

Publish a notice in the media stating that the draft property rates policy was compiled for submission to council
and that such a policy is available at the different municipal offices and on the website for public inspection.
Property owners and interested persons may obtain a copy of the draft policy from the municipal office during
office hours at a prescrbed cost per copy.

Property owners and interested parties are invited to address written suggestions or representations to the
Municipality within the period prescribed in the notice,

Council will consider all suggestions and/or representations received during the finalisation of the property rates
policy.

FURNISHING OF ACCOUNTS

The Municipality will furnish each person liable for the payment of a rate with a written account, specifying: -
the amount due for rates payable;

the date on or before which the amount is payable;

how the amount was calculated;

the market value of the property; and

exemptions, reductions and rebates or the phasing-in of rates, if applicable.

A person liable for the payment of rates remains liable for payment, whether or not that person has received a
written account from the Municipality, Inquiries must be addressed to the Municipality by such a person who has
not received a written account.

in the case of joint ownership the Municipality will, upon request, furnish wntten accounts to one or more

individual owners.

In the case of joint ownership the Municipality may, in order to limit costs and prevent unnecessary
administration, recover the rates continucusly from one of the joint owners.

PAYMENT OF RATES

Council may claim the payment of rates: -
on a monthly basis; or
annually before 30 September of each year.

Rate payers may choose to pay rates in one instalment annually on or before 30 September of each year. The
property owner subject to rates must notify the municipal manager or his/her norminee by no later than 30 June
20
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20.3
20.3.1
20,3.2

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.7

20.8

20.9

20.10

20.11

20.11.1
20.11.2
20.11.3

in any financial year, or such later date in the financial year as determined by the Municipality, that he/she
wishes to pay all rates in respect of such a property in annual instalments, after which such an owner shall be
entitled to pay all rates in the subsequent financial year and all subsequent financial years annually until he/she
withdraws this notice in similar manner.

If a rate is payable: -
in 2 single amount annually, it must be paid on or before a data determined by the Municipality.
in instalments, it must be paid on or before a date in each period determined by the Municipality.

Interest on rates in arrear, whether paid annually or in equal monthly instalments, shall be calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Municipality’s policy on credit cantrol and debt collection.

If a property owner wha in terms of this policy Is liable for the payment of property rates fails to pay such rates
in the prescribed manner, it will be recovered from him/her in accordance with the provisions of the Municipality’s
by-law on credit control and debt collection.

Rates in arrear shall be recovered from tenants, occupiers and agents for the owner in terms af section 28 and 29
of the Act and the Municipality's policy on credit control and debt collection,

[n the event of rates levied emanating from a supplementary valuation, payment thereof will be according to the
date determined by the Municipality and payment thereof may not be withheid pending an objection or appeal as
determined by section 78(2) of the Act.

In the event that a property has been transferred to a new owner and rates emanating from a supplementary
valuation become due and payable, the owner on date of the levy will be held responsible for the settlement of
the interim rates account.

Where the rates on a specific property have been incorrectly determined, whether because of an error or
omission on the part of the Municipality or false information provided by the property owner concerned, or a
contravention of the permitted use to which the property concerned may be put, the rates payable shall be
adjusted retrospectively for the period of the date on which the error or omission is detected, back to the date on
which rates were first levied in terms of the current valuation roll.

Where the error occurred because of false information provided by the property owner or as a result of a
contravention of the permitted use of the property, interest on the unpaid portion of the adjusted rates payable
shall be levied at the maximum rate permitted by prevailing legislation.

Rates Clearance Certificates:-

will be valid for up to 60 days;

no extension on a certificate will be granted. IF it expires a new application for clearance must be made;

if the valid period surpasses 30 June, the total annual debit for the following financial year will be payable;

21. ADIUSTMENT OF RATES PRIOR TO SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATION

21.1

In circumstances where a valuation has been carried out by the municipal valuer in pursuance of a
Supplementary Valuation (SV) in terms of section 78{1){d) ar 7B{1)(F) of the MPRA as a result, for example, of a
demolition having taken place on a property or a fire having destroyed buildings on a property, but the
Municipality has not yet included such valuation of the relevant property in a SV, such valuation shall be

2t
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21.2

21.2.1
21.2.2

20.3

22,

22.1

22.2

22.3

23.

submitted to the CFO for approval to levy rates on the property in accordance with such valuation, with effect
from the date of the occurrence of the event which caused a SV to be required.

If the owner of a property which has been subdivided or consolidated after the last general valuation wishes to
sell the consolidated erf, or one or more of the erven which have been subdivided off the parent erf, as the case
may be, applies to the Municipality for 2 clearance certificate in terms of section 118 of the Systems Act and if
the Municipality has not yet included such valuation of the relevant property/s in a SV, then:-

the municipal valuer shall conduct a valuation of the relevant property(ies} for purposes of a 5V; and

the valuation shall be submitted to the CFO for approval of the levying of rates on such property(ies) in
accordance with such valuation, with effect from the date on which the relevant subdivision or consolidation {as
the case may be) was registered in the Deeds Office.

Any valuations performed in terms of paragraph 15 shall be included in the next SV prepared by the City without
any amendments to the valuation and any abjections to such valuation may only be lodged once such SV is made
public in terms of section 49 of the MPRA,

FREQUENCY OF VALUATIONS

The Municipality shall prepare a new valuation roll at least every five (5) years as stated in the Amendments to
the Municipal Property Rates Act.

In accordance with the Act the Municipality, under exceptional circumstances, may request the MEC for Local
Government and Housing, to extend the validity of the valuation roll to five (7) years.

Supplementary valuations shall be done on a continual basis, but at least on an annual basis, in order to ensure
that the valuation roll is maintained,

REVIEW PROCESS

The Property Rates Policy must be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it complies with the strategic objectives of

the Municipality, as stipulated in the Integrated Development Plan and other applicable legislation.

This policy will come into effect on 01 July 2016

24,

IMPLEMENTATION

This policy will comes into effect on 1 July 2016

7
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Emihanjeni Municipality DRAFT CREDIT CONTROL POLICY 2006/17 FY

1. INTRODUCTION
The Debt Collection Policy must be read with the Customer Care and Management Policy.

2, OBJECTIVE
The objective of the Debt Collection Policy is to ensure that all revenues, rates and taxes, service levies, rentals
and any other revenue due to the Municipality is collected in good time and in a humane and a cost efficient
manner,

3. ARRANGEMENT FOR SETTLEMENT

3.1 If the domestic household's total gross financial income of all occupants over 18 years of age is less than the
threshold of R3 700, as determined by Council annually, such household is regarded as indigent and the
indigent policy will apply.

3.2 if a domestic household’s total gross income exceeds the threshold amount of R3 700, as determined by
Council annually, and should that household refuse or neglect 1o pay their bill with the Municipality, and is not
willing 1o pay according to the payment schedule as oullined below:

3.21. Current Account must always be paid plus

3.2.2 Reconnection fees plus
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3.2.3 Initial amount per payment schedule below:

DRAFT CREDIT CONTROL POLICY 2016/17 FY

[ OUTSTANDING AMOUNT

3 REPAYMENT TO RE-CONNECT SERVICES |

Up to R800

: Full amount plus reconnection

RB01 - R2000

| 40% Initial payment and arrears must be seitled within 6
months

R2001 — R4000

30% Initial payment and arrears must be setlled within
12 months

R4001 - R6000

| 25% Initial payment and arrears must be setiled within
24 months

R6001 - R10 000

15% Initial payment and arrears must be settled within
36 months

R10 001 and more

1

12% Initia! payment and arrears must be seitled within
42 months

And also agree to where possible

i pay the full current portion of the account in cash and sign an acknowledgement of debt; or

ii. provide a garnishee orderfemolument order/stop order (if he or she is in employment);

iii, sign Consent to Judgement;

iv. acknowledge that interest will be charged at the prescribed rale;

V. acknowledge that if the arrangemenls negotialed are later defaulted on, no further arrangements will be

possible and disconnection of waler and electricity will immediately follow, as will legal proceedings,
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33

34

3.5

3.7

the Municipality will not enter into an extended term of payment wilh this customer and reserve it's right to
restricl, block, disconnect or suspend the supply of water and electricity or other municipal services.
All business customers must pay their accounts in full on due date - exception can only be considered on a case-
by-case basis after written application from the individual business has been received, The Chief Financial Officer
will consider and approve such applications for arrangements from business within his/her discretion to @ maximum
of twelve instalments.
Down payments and instalments will be scaled according to the income of the household and the size of the down
payment and the lerms of the repayment will be determined by Council on an annual basis, as contained in the
tariff and rates schedule.
The Chief Financial Officer will consider and approve such application for arrangement, should such terms stated in
the schedule be exceeded. Customers with arrears will convert to a prepayment meler, the cost of which will be
paid off by adding it as a surcharge to the prepaid electricity cost, and repaying it with each purchase, at not less
than 10% of electricity until the debt is liquidated. Should the defaulter be a tenant, the owner will be held liable for
the cost of conversion to a prepayment meter.
Customers wishing to apply for arrangements for the settling of their accounts must provide:
i) praof of income, such as a pay slip of all members in the household elder than 18 years; or a state grant
slip, etc;
i) proof of unemployment as attested to by ithe Departrment of Labour;
iii) proof of address, physical and postal (if any), such as a telephone account, consumer {not municipal)
account; contact details, and
iv) personal details as required by Council on the Municipality's prescribed form.
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3.8

39

3.10

44
414

Customers with valid arrears arrangements will not be charged interest while agreed arrangements are met -
should one such instalment not be met, interest will be charged on alt arrear instalments as in clause 4.2.2 of this
policy.

Should a customer fall into arrears,

i) the full amount outstanding will become due and immediately payable;

iiiy restriction, disconnection, blocking or suspension of services processes will immediately begin;

i}  the arrears arrangement will be enforced and legal action will begin immediately;

iv) no new agreement may be entered into; and

v) if the customer has a prepayment meter installed, such outstanding amount will be collected by adding it as
a surcharge to the prepaid electricity cost at not less than 20% of each electricity purchase until the debt is
liquidated.

The Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Municipal Manager, may appoint a Debt Coilection Business 1o

collect all arrear amounls on accounts older then 60 days. A fixed commission of not more than 25% on a risk

basis will be paid on all arrear amounts recovered.

ENFORCEMENT MECHANISMS

INTERRUPTION OF SERVICES
Customers that are in arrears with heir municipal bill wifl have their supply of electricity and water and other
municipal services, resiricted, blocked, suspended or disconnected.
Council reserves the right to restrict or deny the sale of electricity or water coupons to customers who are in arrears
with their rates or any other municipal charges or fees.
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412

4.2
421

422

423

Upon the liquidation of arrears, or the conclusion of arrangements for term payment, the restricted service will be
reconnected as soon as conveniently possible, there after the conventional meter will be replaced by a prepayment
meter and the cost of the meter will be recovered through a deduction of not less than 20% of pre-paid sales or
cash payment,

The cost of the restriction or disconnection, and the reconneclion, will be determined by tariffs agreed by Council,
and will be payable by the consumer befare reconnection.

Households, classified as indigent, will be treated as per indigent policy.

Council may recover arrear amounts of prepayment customers through the deduction of a percentage of sales unil
the debt is liquidated. If services have been disconnected or restricted for an account that is in arrears and such
arrears has nol been paid or an acceptable amangement has not been made within 30 days after disconnection or
restriction, legal processes will commence which could involve final demands, summonses, court trials,
judgements, gamishee orders and/or sales in execution of property.

INTEREST

Interest will be raised as a charge on all accounts not paid by the due date except on those who accounts who
are classified as Indigent Households account and those who have made arrangements to pay their
outstanding accounts.

Interest will be charged on the lolal cutstanding capital baiance of the accounts (i.e. total capital levied for services
less interest charged), at a rate determined by Council annually as per tariff policy.
The decision to waive interest in specific instances can only be taken by the Chief Financial Officer.
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4.3 CONTACT
4.31 The Chief Financial Officer, in consultation with the Municipa! Manager, may appoint Debt Colleclors to assist,
within the constraints of affordability, make personal contact with all arrears debtors to encourage their payment,
and to inform them of the state of their arrears, and their rights (if any) to conclude arrangemenis or to indigence
O subsidies. and other related matters, and will provide information on how and where to access such arrangements
or subsidies.

Cireclorate of Finance shall maintain a schedule of debtors with large amounts oulstanding and will maintain
intensive contact with these debtors as in 4.3.1

Such contact is not a right for debtors that debtors enjoy — disconnection of services, and other collection
proceedings, will continue in the absence of such contact for whatever reason.

4.4 LEGAL PROCESS
44,1 INTERNAL LEGAL PROCESS
The Municipality will, after all enforcement mechanisms, as referred to in 4.1 to 4.3 above, have failed, proceed

with the legal process of issuing final demands and summonses. Should these actions fail, the legal process will
O be continued with the use of attorneys as referred to in 4.4.2,
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442 USE OF ATTORNEYS/ CREDIT BUREAUS

vi
vii

vili

The Chief Financial Officer will, when a deblor falls inlo arrears, immediately commence the debt collection
process against thal debtor, which process could involve final demands, summonses, court trials,
judgements, garnishee orders and/or sales in execution of property.

The Municipal Manager will exercise strict control over this process, to ensure accuracy and legality within it,
and will require regular reports on progress from the Chief Financial Officer.

The Chief Financial Officer will establish procedures and codes of conduct with outside parties, be they
attorneys, the courts, the sheriff and others and will require regular reporls on progress from them.
Garnishee orders, in the case of employed debtors, are preferred to sales in execution, but both are part of
the Municipality's armoury of debt collection procedures.

All steps in the credit control procedure will be recorded for the Municipality's records and for the information
of the debtor.

All costs of this process are for the account of the deblor.

Individual debtor accounts are protected and are not the subject of public information. Howaver, the
Municipal Manager and the Chief Financial Officer may release debtor information to Credit Bureaux. This
release will be in writing, and this situation will be included in the Municipality's agreement with its
customers.

Council will receive and consider reports on relevant matters, including cost effectiveness, of this process.
Council may sell the fixed property of default consumers via “EXECUTION OF SALE" who does not seltled
their Rales and Taxes and Municipal Services Accounts.
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4.5
4.5.1

452

453

52

53

54

55

USE OF COLLECTION AGENTS

The Chief Financial Officer will consider the use of agents, and innovative debt collection methods and producls,
Cost effectiveness, the willingness of agents to work under appropriate codes of conducl, and the success of such
agents and products will be both part of the agreement the Municipality might conclude with such agents or product
vendors and will be closely monitored by the Municipal Manager.

Customers will be informed of the powers and duties of such agents, and their responsibilities including their
responsibility 1o observe agreed codes of conduct,

Any agreement concluded with an agent or product vendor shall include a clause whereby breaches of the code of
conduct by the agent or vendor will see the contract terminated.

THEFT AND FRAUD
Any person (natural or juristic) found to be illegally connected or reconnected to municipal services, tampering with
melers, reticulation network or any other supply equipment or committing any unautherised service associated with
the supply of municipal services, as well as theft and damage to Council property, will be liable for penallies as
determined from time 1o time.
The Municipality will immediately terminate the supply of services to a customer should such conduct as outlined
above be detected.
The total bill owing, including penallies, assessment of unauthorised consumption and discentinuation and
reconnection fees, and increased deposits as determined by Council if applicable, becomes due and payable
before any reconnection can be sanctioned.
The Municipality will maintain monitoring systems and teams to detect and survey customers who are undertaking
such illegal actions.
Council may distinguish in its penalties between cases of vandalism and cases of theft.
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5.6
5.7

7.1

72

73

7.4

Subsequent acts of tampering will lead to penalties and deposils increasing in quantum.
The Municipality reserves the night lo lay charges and o lake any other legal action against both vandals and
thieves,

COST OF COLLECTION

All costs of legal process, including interest, penalties, service discontinuation costs and legal costs assaociated with
credit control are for the account of the deblor and should reflect at least the cost of the paricular action. This onus
is to be specifically outlined in Council's credit agreement with a future customer.

ABANDONMENT

The Municipal Manager, and through delegation the Chief Financial Officer, must ensure that all avenues are
utilized to collect the municipality's debt.

There are some circumstances that allow for the valid termination of debt collection procedures:

i. the insolvency of the debtor, whose estate has insufficient funds; and

il a balance being too small to recover, for economic reasons, considering the cost of recovery.

The decision to terminate the debt collection procedures in specific instances will only be taken by the Chief
Financial Officer.

The Chief Financial Officer will maintain audit trails in such an instance and document the reasons for the
abandonment and the writing-off of the abandoned debt.
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8

10

WRITE-OFF

Council will consider, on an annual basis, the writing ofi of service arrears, after the Chief Financial Officer has
submitted a report with the reasons, but not for {ampering charges or conneclionfreconnection fees or
legalfcollection costs or any other feefinstalment in terms of an existing agreement or for the purpose of seliing
properties within a period of 24 monihs after wrile-off of arrears.

BY-LAWS

The principle contained in this pelicy will be reflected in the various service by-laws as promulgaled and amended
by Council from time to time.

COMMENCEMENT
This policy takes effect on 1 JULY 2016
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CUSTOMER CARE AND MANAGEMENT POLICY

DEFINITIONS
For the purpase of this policy the following definitions will apply and any word or expressions o which a meaning has

been assigned in the Act shall bear the same meaning in this Policy, uniless the context indicales otherwise-

vi

vii

viti

Act: means the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000), as amended from time
to time,

apparatus: includes a building, structure, pipe, pump, wire, cable, meter, machine or any fitting,

billing: means proper formal notification on an account to persons liable for payment of amounts levied for
assessment rales and other taxes by die municipality and the charges of the fees for municipal services and
indicaling the net accumulated balance of the account,

council: the municipal council of the Municipality of EMTHANJEM!,

credit control and debt collection: means the functions relating to the collection of all money that is due and
payable to the municipality,

customer: means any occupier of any premises to which the municipality has agreed to supply or is actually
supplying services, or if ihere is no occupier, then the owner of the premises,

customer management: means focusing on the client's needs in a responsive and reciprocal refationship
between persons liable for these payments and the municipality, and when applicable, a service provider,
thereby limiting the need {or enforcement,

defaulter: means a person owing the municipality money in respect of taxes and/or municipal service charges
not paid on the due date for payment,

engineer: means a person in charge of the civit or electrical departments of the municipality,
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xi

i

il

Xiv

interest: constitutes a levy equal in legal priority to service levies and is equivalent to the prime banking rale

applicable from time to time.

municipal account: shall include levies or charges in respect of the following services and taxes:

« electricity consumption

» water consumption

» refuse removal

* sewerage services

« rates and taxes

« interest, and

« miscellanecus and sundry charges.

municipal manager: means the persen appointed by the Municipal Council as the Municipal Manager of the

municipality in terms of Section B2 of the Local Government Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998) and

includes any person

s acting in such position, and

« towhom the Municipal Manager has delegated a power, function or duty in respect of such delegated power,
function or dulty,

municipal services: (nose services, rates and taxes reflected on the municipal account for which payment is

required by the municipality,

municipal treasurer: means a person appointed by the Council to manage the Council's financial

administration,

occupier: means any person who occupies any premises or part thereof, without regard to the title under

which he or she occupies,
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XV

owner; means

the person in whom the legal litle to the premises is vested,

in a case where the person in whom the legal title is vested is insolvent or dead, or is under any form of

legal disability whatsoever, the person in whom the administration of and control of such premises is vested

as curalor, trustee, executor, administrator, judicial manager, liquidator or other legatl representative,

in any case where the Council is unable to determine the identity of such person, a persen who is entilled

lo the benefit of such premises or a building thereon,

in the case of premises for which a lease of 30 years or more has been entered into, the lessee thereof,

in relation to

» a piece of land delineated on a sectional plan registered in terms of the Sectional Titles Act 1986, (Act
95 of 1986), and without restricting the above the developer or the body comporate in respect of the
common property, or

= a section as defined in such Act, the person in whose name such section is registered under sectional
title deed and includes the lawfully appointed agent of such a person,

any legal person including but not limited to

» a company regislered in terms of the Companies Act, 1973 (Act 61 of 1973), Trust inter vivos, Trust
mortis causa, a Closed Corporation registered in terms of the Closed Corporations Act, 1984 {Act 69 of
1984}, a Voluntary Association.

o any Department of State.

» any Council or Board established in terms of any legislation applicable to the Republic of South Africa

o any Embassy or other foreign entity.
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21
22

23

24

25
26

xvi policy document: means the approved customer care, credil control and debt collection policies of the
Municipai Council and as amended from time 1o time,
xvii  premises: includes any piece of land, the external surface boundaries of which are delineated on
« a general plan or diagram registered in terms of the Land Survey Act, 9 of 1927) or in lerms of the Deeds
Registry Act, 47 of 1937, or
= a seclional plan registered in terms of the Sectional Titles Act, 35 of 1986, which is situated within the area
of jurisdiction of the Council.

GENERAL OBJECTIVES

The objectives of this policy are to;

provide a framework for cusiomer care

provide a framework within which the Municipality can exercise its executive and legislative authority with regard to
credit control and debt collection

ensure that all monies due and payable to the Municipality are collected and used lo deliver services in the best
interest of the community, residents and consumers and in financially sustainable manner

describe credit control measures and sequence of events

outline debt collection procedures and mechanisms: and

sel realistic targets for debt collection

PRINCIPLES THAT UNDERPIN A CUSTOMER CARE AND MANAGEMENT AND DEBT COLLECTION POLICY
The following principles are applied in the policy:
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31

3.2

33

3.4

KR ]
16

37

38

39

310
3.1
3.12
3.13
314
315

Customer Care and Management and Debt Collection are entirely interrelated issues - debt collection is part of
customer management.

Administrative integrity must be maintained at all costs — policy and execulion are legally separate and must also be
practically separate.

Communication of policies, rights and responsibilities, and systems of appeal, must be understandable, effective and
regular.

There must be legal causes betwaen the Municipality and its customer, and customer debt must arise out of a legal
framework and must be legally collectable.

Billing is to be accurate, timely and understandable.

The customer is entitled to efficient, effective and reasonable access to pay points and to a variety of reliable payment
methods.

The customer is entitled to an efficient, effective and reasonable response to appeals, and to suffer no disadvantage
during the process of a reasonable appeal.

Indigent households are to be identified and supported with appropriate policies and practices.

Enforcement of payment will be prompt, consislent, effective and humane.

Fraud and criminality will lead to loss of rights and severe penaities.

Incentives and disincentives can be used in collection procedures.

The collection process must be cost effective.

Coallection best practices will be pursued.

Targets for performance in both cuslomer service and debl collection will be set and strived for.

Resulls will be regularly and efficiently reported.
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3.16

4.1
411

42
421

422

423
424

Policies for Customer Care and Management and Debt Collection will be agreed by Council and Management, and
supported thereafier by these parlies.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATED AUTHORITY

Council:

Council must create, evaluate, review and adapt the Customer Care and Management and Debt Collection Policies
and related by-laws.

This political structure must oversee and monitor the implementation and enforcement of the Municipality’s policies
in this regard.

To maintain the credibility in the implementation of the policy and the attendant by-laws, Councillors should lead by
example by ensuring that their own accounts will not fall into arrears.

Ward committees, through their ward councillor, be involved in communicating the credit conirol and debt collection
programme and ensure that customer relations are of an acceptable standard to the community.

Accounting Officer:

The Municipal Manager (MM), as accounting officer, must implement and enforce this policy and any relevant by-
laws.

The Municipal Manager must establish and control the administration necessary to fulfil this policy, and report
efficiently and regularly to the Mayor and Executive Committee in this regard.

The Municipal Manager must collect all money that is due and payable to the Municipality.

The Municipal Manager may delegate authority in this regard to the Chief Financial Officer.
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5.1
5.1.9

5.2
521
522

CUSTOMER CARE AND MANAGEMENT POLICY

COMMUNICATION AND FEEDBACK

Council's Customer Care and Management and Debt Collection Policies must be available in suitable formats,

including all locally used languages, and must be made available by general publication and on specific request, and

will also be available at Council's cash collection points.

The Municipality will endeavour to distribute a regular newsletter, which will give prominence to customer care and

debt issues.

Ward Councillors will be required to hold regular ward meetings, at which customer care and debt issues will be given

prominence.

The press will be encouraged to give prominence to Council's Customer Care and Debt issues, and will be invited to

Council meetings where these are discussed.

Council aims to establish, within its financial means:

a) a central complainis/feedback office;

b) a ceniralized complaints database to enhance co-ordination of complaints, their speedy resolution and
effective communication with customers;

c) appropriate training for officials dealing with the public to enhance communications and service delivery,

CUSTOMER SIGN-ON AND AGREEMENTS

All prospective tenants will be required to sign a lease agreement prior {0 occupation of municipal property;

All prospective buyers will be required to sign a purchase agreement prior to occupation of the property, unless the
prospective buyer is the current {enant;
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523

5.24

525

526

527
528
52.9

5.3
5.3.1

532

All owners of property and tenants of municipal property will be required to sign agreements governing the supply of,
and cosl of, municipal services.

The Municipality will not enter into a separate agreement with a tenant of privately owned residential
properties, the owner will be responsible for the services on that particular erf(ven). The owner will be held
responsible for all outstanding fees, where applicable.

The Municipality will only allow a tenant to sign a separate agreement with the Municipality on business properties
and sectional titles, but the owner will be held overall responsible and liable for any arrears accrued. On default by
a tenant, the owner is the debtor of last resort, and the agreements must cover this specifically between the owner
and tenant.

Private property owners will not be allowed to apply to the Municipalily or to enter into an agreement with a tenant
for the supply of, and cost of municipal services. The private property owner will be responsible for the debt incurred
on that property.

Services, including occupation of property, where applicable, will only be rendered after the signing of the agreement.
Within a specified period (in the agreement) of change of ownership, meters will be read and an account posted

In the agreement, cusiomers will acknowledge liability for costs of collection and interest, in the event of delayed
payment.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLING

Customers will receive an understandabie and accurate bill from the Municipality, which bill will consolidate all service
costs for that property.

Accounts will be produced in accordance with the meter reading cycle and due dates are similarly linked.
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533

If meter readings on the accounts are faully {(overstated or understated} then the municipality must correct the
incorrect readings on the service account. The corrections must be process before the next monthly services account
reach the consumers.

5.3.4 When Council approved levies are incorrectly charged for any municipal service, then the correct approved levies

535

must be charged and the necessary comections or adjustments must made immediately on the account. Value Added
Tax (VAT) on accounts where applicable must also be enforced.
Accounts will be rendered monthly in cycles of approximately 30 days.

5.3.6 As the Municipality does not control delivery of accounts, it is the owner's, customer's and/or consumer’s responsibility

53.7

538

54
54.1

54.2

543

lo ensure limely payment in {he event of a bill not arriving

It is the owner's, customer's andfor consumer’s responsibility 10 ensure that the postal address and other contact
details are cormrect.

Settlement or due date is the fifth (7"} day of each month,

METERING
The Municipality will endeavour, within practical and financial limits, to provide adequale meters to every paying
customer for all measurable services.

All meters will be read monthly, if at all possible. If a meter is not read the consumption will be estimated in terms of
Council's operational procedures. The account following the reading of the metered consumption must articulate the
difference between the actual consumption and the average consumption, and the resulling credit or debit
adjustment.

Customers are entitled to request verification of meter readings and accuracy within reason, but may be held liable
for the cost thereof.
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544
545
546

5.5
551

5.6

5.6.1

56.2

5.7

An actual reading must be oblained once every six months,
Customers are to be informed of meter replacement.
Voluntary readings are permitted. but final readings and actual readings are the responsibility of the Municipality.

RIGHTS OF ACCESS TC PREMISES

The customer agreement, signed by the customer and the Municipalty, must include a clause in which the owner
and the occupier of premises give an authorized representative of the Municipality access at all reasonable hours lo
the premises in order o read, inspect, install or repair any meter or service connection for reticulation, or to
disconnect, stop or restrict, or reconnect, the provision of any service. The custorner will accept the cost of relocating
a meler if satisfactory access is not possible.

PROPERTY VALUATION

The Municipality, within its financial and administrative capacity, will maintain a register of all properties within its
jurisdiction. This register will be valued and regularly re-valued. Independent valuators will perform such revaluation,
and the process of initial valuation and subsequent revaluation will include opportunities for owners to appeal and be
heard.

Matters related to property valuation are more comprehensively dealt with in the property rates policy in accordance
with the Local Government: Property Rates Act 2004, Act no. 6 of 2004.

PAYMENT FACILITIES AND METHODS, and STOP ORDERS AND DEBIT ORDERS
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571

57.2

573

574

575

5.8

581

582

5.8.3

584

5.9

The Municipality must operate and maintain suitable banking and cash facilities. The Municipality is permitted to
consider the costs and benefits of such facilities; which facilities should be accessible to all users.

The Municipality will offer a range of payment options to customers, which will include cash and may include cheques,
credit cards, electronic payments, debit and slop orders.

The Municipality may, at its sole discretion, allocate a2 payment received belween service debts and/or overdue debt.
A debtor may not specify that the payment be for a specific portion of the account.

The Municipality may, with the consent of a customer, approach an employer to secure a debil or stop order
arrangement.

The customer will acknowledge, in the customer agreements that the use of agents in the transmission of payments
{0 1the Municipality is at the risk of the customer — also for the transfer time of the payment.

ENQUIRIES, APPEALS AND SERVICE COMPLAINTS

If a customer is convinced that his or her account is inaccurate; he or she can lodge an appeal in writing with the
Directorate Finance for recalculation of this account.

In the interim, the debtor must pay the average of the last three months account where history of the account
is available. Where no such history is available the debtor is to pay an estimate provided by the Chief Financial
Officer before payment due date until the matter is resolved.

The relevant department must investigate and inform the debtor within one month.

Failure to make such agreed interim payment or payments would make the cusiomer liable for disconnection,

OMBUDSPERSON
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5.9.1 Council should, if financially possible, employ an Ombudsperson, working under the direct control of the Municipal
Manager, where applicable
5.9.2 This person's duties are to attend to complaints routed to his or her office by Councillors or the community, and to
access these complaints, ensure readdress or resolution thereof, and make recormmendations on improvements of
O Council's systems as and when he/she believes such changes to be necessary.

510 BUSINESSES WHO TENDER TO THE MUNICIPALITY

5.10.1 The Supply Chain Management Policy must. inter afia, include the following:

i. When inviting tenders for the provision of services or delivery of goods, potential contractors may submit
tenders subject to a condition that consideration and evaluation thereof will necessitate that the tenderer obtain
from the Chief Financial Cfficer a certificale stating that alf relevant municipal accounts owing by the tenderer
or its directors, owners or partners have been paid or that suitable arrangements (which include the right to
sel off in the event of non-compliance) have been made for payment of any arrears;

ii. A municipal account 1o mean any municipal service charge, tax or other fees, fines and penalties, due in terms
of a contract or approved tariff or rate, which is outstanding after the due date normally appearing on the
consolidated bill or overdue in terms of the contract or any other due date that has passed,

i, Tender conditions must contain a condition allowing the Chief Financiat Officer to deduct moneys owing to the
Municipality from contract payments in terms of a reasonable arrangement with the debtor.

5.10.2 Council's Grants-in-Aid Policy must, infer afia, include that consideration thereof will be subject to the applicant
obtaining from the Chief Financial Officer a certified letier reflecting the status of the applicant’s municipal debt, if
any, and that the awarding of grants-in-aid will be subject to payment thereof or an arrangement to pay any arrear

_) municipal account.
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5.1 INCENTIVES FOR PROMPT PAYMENT

5.11.1 The Municipality may, lo encourage prompt payment and to reward good payers, assess incentives for prompt
payment. Should such incentives prove to be financially sustainable and of mutual benefit to the Municipality and its
customers, the Municipality will commission such incentives.

5.11.2 Such incentive schemes, if introduced, will be reflected in annual budgets as additional expenditure.

512 CUSTOMER ASSISTANCE PROGRAMMES
5.12.1 Woaiter Leaks Rebates
5.12.1.1 A customer will qualify for a water leak rebate if:
i the leak occurred underground and was not easily discernable from above ground;
i the leak had been repaired within 48 hours of detection;
i the custommer had only applied for one rebate in a 24-month cycle;
iv  acenrificate from a registered plumber, or a sworn affidavit (in the case of a private individual having repaired
the leak) must reach the Chief Financial Officer within 10 working days of the repair, and contain the following

delails:

. the dale of both invoice and repair;

. confirmation that the leak was not discernable from above ground;

. certifying that the burst occurred on a pipe listed on the Schedule of Approved Pipes and Fittings as

kept by the Director infrastructure and Housing Services.
5.12.1.2 The adjustment will be calculated based on the difference between the average consumption (ki) for the previous
year's corresponding periods and the pericd of the leakage, for a maximum pericd of three years.
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5.12.2 Fauity Meters
5.12.2.1 No Consumplion Registered
i Meter will be replaced, and if found tampered with, the relevant penalty will be imposed and must be paid,
otherwise the service will be restricled, blocked, disconnected or suspended.

O i An interim adjustment will be calculated based on the difference between the average consumption (ki) for
the previous year's corresponding periods and the period when the meter was not registering, for a maximum

period of three years.

i Thefinal adjusiment wil! be calculated and debited by using the average consumption for the first three months
on the new meter, for the period when the meter was not registering, for a maximum period of three years.

5.12.22 Assumed Faulty Meters

i Customers may request the testing of a meter and should the result of the test indicate the meter to be faulty,
an adjustment of the levy will be made in accordance thereof,

il Should the result of the testing indicate the meter not to be faulty, test within the limit of 2,5% in respect of an
electricity meter and 5% in respect of a water meter, the customer will be liable for the cost of the applicable
tariff payable in advance.

i~ The adjustment will be calculated based on the difference between the average consumption (kl} for the
previous year's corresponding periods and the period of the faulty metering, for a maximum period of three
years.

O

5.12.3 Rates And Instalments
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5.12 3.1 The property rates bill is payable in equal monthly instalments over 12 months at no interest cost or customers may
apply to pay annually on 30 September.

5.12.3.21f a monthly instalment is unpaid, the full bill outstanding is immediately due and payable.

5.12.3.3Matiers related to rates are more comprehensively dealt with in the Property Rates Policy in accordance with the
Local Government; Property Rates Act 2004, Act no. 6 of 2004

5.12.4 Sewerage And Cleansing

5.12.4.1 The sewerage and cleansing bill is annually payable on 30 September, but cuslomers may apply to pay or in equal
monthly instalments over 12 months at no interest cost.

5.12.4.1If three instalments are unpaid, the full bill oulstanding is immediately due and payable.

5.13 CLEARANCE CERTIFICATES

5131 areissued after receipt of the applicable fees and of the clearance certificate application form.

5.13.2 are only issued when all amounts due in connection with that property for municipal fees, surcharges on fees,
property rales and other municipal taxes, levies and duties have been fully paid.

5.13.3 Any instalment for rales refuse and sewerage is immediately payable.

5.13.4 A rates clearance certificate will be issued in terms of Section 118 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems
Act, 2000, Act No. 32 of 2000, and will be valid till 30 June, following the date of application received. Caselaw in
terms of 118 will alse be adhere to.

5.13.5 If an amount liable for rates levied in respect of a property which formed part of a Municipal Housing Scheme, is
unpaid by the owner and the property needs lo be transferred, a rates clearance certificate will only be issued upon
payment of the current account and after completion of an agreement for any municipal services in arrears, subject 1«.,,
to Council’'s Credit Control and Debt Collecting Policy. Transfers affected may be one of the following:
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(i} Transfer of a property from the EMTHANJEN|I MUNICIPALITY to the new owner,
(i) Transfer of a property from one spouse 1o the other;
(i) Transfer of a properly from the owner (parent) to a child.
5.13.6 The Chief Financial Officer wifl consider and approve such applications for clearance certificates.

6 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

6.1 CUSTOMER SERVICE TARGETS
Council lo create targets that would include:
i Response time to customer queries
i Dale of first account delivery to new cusiemers
iii Reconnection time lapse
iv Meter reading cycle

ADMINISTRATIVE PERFORMANCE
Council to create targets that will include:
i Cost efficiency of debt collection
i CQuery rates
iii Enforcement mechanism ratios.
Counci! will create a forum wherein these targets are assessed, the Municipality's performance evaluated and

O remedial steps taken.
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7.1.3
7.14

REPORTING TO COUNCIL

The Chief Financial Officer shall report monthly to the Municipal Manager in a suitable format to enable the Municipal
Manager to report to Council and other interested parties. This report shall reflect on:

cash flow information for the capital and operating accounts, and combined, showing Council's actual performance
against its cash flow budgets;

cash collection statistics, showing high-level debt recovery information (numbers of cusiomer; enquires; default
arrangement; growth or diminishing of arrear debtors, ideally divided into wards, business (commerce and industry)
and domestic, state, institutional and ather such divisions; and names and quantums) of major outstanding individual
debtors,;

Performance of all areas against targets agreed 1o in item 6 of this policy document and

Council s ongoing income and expenditure statements, comparing both billed income, and cash receipt income,
against ongoing expenditure in bath the capital and operaling accounts. If, in the opinion of the Chief Financial
Officer, Council will not achieve cash receipt income equivalent of the income projected in the annual budget as
approved by Council, the Chief Financial Officer will report this with motivation to the Municipal Manager who will, if
he agrees with the Chief Financial Officer, immediately move for a revision of the budget according to realistically
realizable income levels

8 STRUCTURES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
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Council shall regularly receive a report from the Chief Financial Officer, if necessary after consultation with suilable
consultants, on the manpower and sysiems requirements by the Directorale Finance which requirements take into
account Council's agreed targets of customer care and management, and debt collection, and, afier considering this
report, Council will, within reason, vote such resources as are necessary to ensure that the Directorate Finance has
the staffing and structures to meet Council's targets in this regard.

9 BY-LAWS
The principle contained in this policy will be reflected in the various service by-laws as promulgated and amended
by Council from time to time.

16 COMMENCEMENT
This policy takes effect on 1 JULY 2016.
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INDIGENT POLICY

INTRODUCTION
The Indigent Policy must be read along with the Customer Care and Management Policy.

2 PRINCIPLES THAT UNDERPIN AN INDIGENT POLICY
The following principles are applied in the policy:

» Administrative Integrity must be maintained at all costs ~ policy and execution are legally separate and must also
be practically separate.

~ Communication of policies, rights and responsibilities, must be understandable, effective and regular.

= Billing is to be accurale, limely and understandable.

~ The customer is entitled to efficient, effective and reasonable access to pay points, and to a variety of reliable
payment methods.

~ Poor households are to be identified and supported, with appropriate policies and practices.

» Enforcement of payment will be prompt, consistent, effective and humane.

~ Fraud and criminality will lead {0 loss of rights and severe penallies.

» Targels for performance in both customer service and debt collection will be set and sirived for.

~ Results will be regularly and efficiently reporied.

» Indigent Policy will be agreed to by Councit and management, and thereafter supported by these parties.
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3:d.
31.1
31.2

3.2
3241
3az

323
33

3.31

3.3.2

4.1
4.1.1

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The Council -

must creale, evaluate, review and adopt the Indigent Policy and related by-laws.

The Mayor must oversee and monitor the implementation and enfarcement of the municipality’s policies in this
regard.

The Municipal Manager -

as Accounting Officer, must implement and enforce this policy and any relevant by-laws.

must establish and control the administration necessary to fulfi! this policy, and report efficiently and regularly to the
Executive Commitiee in this regard.

may delegate authorily in this regard to the Chief Financial Officer (CFQ).

The Applicant Indigent -

must apply annually to be considered for the indigent equitable share, subsidy or rebate in terms of this and any
other policy of Council in this regard; and

must report any change in his/her circumstances which moves his/her household out of the eligibility brackets in
clause 4.1.2.

INDIGENT POLICY

Criteria

Council will provide an indigent subsidy, in line with nalional government regulations and guidelines, to assist the
poorest households in the community to receive a basket of basic municipal services either free or rebated, and
thereby make basic municipal services available to alt,

Page 3o 11



EMTHANIENT MURICIPALITY DRAFT BSIGENT POLKY 16 M T MTREF

412

4.2
421

422

43
431

432

Indigent subsidies are available only to domestic households where the total income of all occupants over 18
years of age is equal 1o lwo stale pensions(Qld Age or Disability Grants) plus Two Child Grant payments or less
than R3 700 per month (threshold), as contained in the tariff schedule, as annually determined by Council.

The subsidy will be available only to households legally occupying premises and legally consuming
municipal services.

All other consumers who are not households as mentioned above, do not qualify to be recognised as an
tndigent Household.

Funding

The source of funding for the indigent subsidy is the Equitable Share contribution to the Municipality made by the
government from the National Treasury. Council will determine the subsidy amount or percentage, per service
category, per household, on a year-to-year basis, taking into account the Equitable Share allocation. The subsidy
allocation must be contained in the tariff schedule and must be reviewed annually with the annual budget and

tariffs.

The subsidy will be widely publicised by the Council, the Municipality and civil society structures.

Services

Monthly subsidised services will be as follows:

. refuse removal;

. sewerage.

Subsidised services, on a free basic service (consumption basis) will be the following:
. electricity (SOkWh);
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433

434

4.4
4.4.1

. water (8 kt).

. Property Rates will be deall with as per Rates Policy as per exemplion of R28 000 per property.

Households that qualify for an indigent subsidy

i) will be required to consent fo a prepayment electricity meter, the cost of which will be recovered as a
surcharge on their subsequent elecltricity coupon cost; or a cash payment by the hausehold;
. The owner will be required to consent to a prepayment electricity meter, the cost of which will be

recovered as a cash payment by the owner, in those cases where the househaold is a tenant.

i) Households that exceed 8 Kl of water per month and are in arrears will have a restriction apparatus fitled to
their water supply.

iii) Households that exceed the 50kWh of electricity per month and are in arrears will have their electricity
suspended.

iv) Indigent households who's property valuation exceeds R28 000 will have to pay the difference in property
rates.

The indigent debtor will be responsible for payment of the difference or access consumption between the

subsidy received and the standard consumtion used by the indigent debtor.

Household Eligibility

Households become eligible for the rebate through an approved applicaton, annually, on a specific Municipal
application form, after which screening and ongoing auditing will occur. This form will require al least the following
data:

. Information of owner of household;

. Physical and postal address,;
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4.5

451

452

453

454

455

456

. Telephone details (if applicable);

. A list of all persons in the househoid, names and ages;

. Listed gross monthly income of all adulls {over 18}, with praof {pay slip, grant proof, etc);

. Ownership of business or second properties;

. Confirmation that he/she has had Municipality's Indigent subsidy explained to them; that they are aware that

the provision of fraudulent information is an offence;
. In the case of claims of unemployment amongst adults, proof attested by the Department of Labour in this
regard must be attached,
Exclusion
A household will be excluded from the subsidy if:
the household head owns a business or a second property;
the application was filled in dishonestly;
applicant reporis a change in his/her circumstances which moves his/her household out of the eligibility brackets in
clause 4.1.2;
an arrangement to pay arrears over time falls months or more into arrears with their current account and their
current arrangement in dishonoured;
on going audits suggest improvements in the financial circumstances of the household moving it out of the eligibility
brackets in clause 4.1.2.
the house is rented to someone who does not qualify or a shop is opened up it will lead to immediate
disqualification.
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4.6
4.6.1
462

463

4.7

471
472
473
4.7.4
4.7.5

4.8

Investigation

The Municipality reserves the right to verify the details provided in 4.4.1

The Municipality will undertake an ongoing inspection of the applicant household and any changes in that
household's circumstances must be reported.

Applicant must attest o the above before a Commissioner of Oaths and a representative of a civil society structure
must attest to the veracity of the application.

Write-off

Council will not consider, on an annual basis, the writing off of subsidised existing service arrears at the time of
enrolment as an indigent household,

not for tampering charges

or connection/reconnection fees

or legal/collection cost

or any other feefinstalment in terms of an existing agreement

or for the purpose of selling properties within a period of 24 months after the writing off. The amount that will be
required to be paid back by the seller before an clearance certificate will be issued.

Auditing

The indigent subsidy will be activated after the indigent application has been approved by the Executive Committee
of Council or by approval by the Municipal Manager or the Chief Financial Officer. An initial inspection of the
applicant household by the Municipality’s designated officials must be done within one month of application.
Follow-up inspections will be performed, within six months to determine changes in household circumstances.
Such inspectlions will be conducted by individuals appointed by the Chief Financial Officer to do so and they will
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51
511

make recommendations on whether the subsidy should be continued or discontinued. The Executive Committee of
Council, the Municipal Manager or Chief Financial Officer shall decide on the discontinuation of a subsidy.

DEBT COLLECTION RELATED TO THE INDIGENT

Enforcement Mechanisms

Customers who are Indigent and who are in arrears and whose usage on their municipal bill exceeds the
predetermined levels, will have their supply of electricity and water, and other municipal services, restricted,
blocked, suspended or disconnected.

The Municipality reserves the right to restrict or deny the sale of electricity or water coupons to indigent customers
who are in arrears with their rates or other municipal charges.

Upon the liquidation of arrears, or the conciusion of arrangements for instalment payment, the restricted,
suspended or disconnected service will be reconnected or unblocked as soon as conveniently possible.

The cost of the restriclion, blocking, suspension or disconnection, and the reconnection or unblocking, will be
determined by tariffs agreed by Council, and will be payable by the consumer before reconnection.

Households, classified as indigent, will nol be handed over for legal processes, including judgement and
summonses.

The arrear amount, including the cost of lhe resiriction, blocking, suspension or disconnection, and the
reconnection or unblocking, must be transferred to the electricity vending system and collected through the
deduction of not less than 20% of electricity purchases.
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5.2

521
522
5.2.3
524

5.3
531

53.2

533

534

Interast

Interest will NOT be raised as a charge on Indigent Households accounts not paid by the due date.

Interest will NOT be charged on the total outstanding capital balance of the accounts at a rate determined by
Council annually as per tariff policy. See the dett collection policy section that deals with interest

The decision lo waive interest in specific instances can only be taken by the Chief Financial Officer.

The charging of interest will cease from the dale the arrear debt is transferred as per 5.1.6 above or when an
agreement has been signed with a customer.

Personal Contact

The Municipality will endeavour, within the constraints of affordability, to make personal or telephonic contacl with
all arrear deblors lo encourage their payment, and to inform them of the state of their arrears, and their rights (if
any) to conclude arrangements or to indigent subsidies, and other related malters, and will provide information on
how and where to access such arrangements or subsidies.

The cost of the contacl, by telephone, e-mail or short message service (sms), will be determined by tariffs agreed
by Council, and will be payable by the consumer.

Directorate of Finance shall mainiain a schedule of deblors with large amounts outstanding and will maintain
intensive contact with these deblors as in 5.3.1.

Such contact is not a right that debtors enjoy — disconnection of services, and other collection proceedings, will
continue in the absence of such contact for whatever reason.
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62

6.3

6.4

65

71
72

7.3
7.4

THEFT AND FRAUD

Any person (natural or juristic} found to be illegally connected or reconnected to municipal services, tampering with
melers, reticulation network or any other supply equipment or committing any unauthorised act associated with the
supply of municipal services, as well as theft and damage to Council property, will be fiable for penallies as
determined from time to time. F
The Municipality will immediately terminate the subsidy and the supply of services lo a customer should such
conduct as outlined above be detected.

A customer who has his subsidy terminated as per 6.2 above, will not be eligible for a subsidy for the remaining
portion of the current and the following financial year.

The total bill owing, including penalties, assessment of unauthorised consumption and discontinuation and
reconnection fees, and increased deposits as determined by Council if applicable, becomes due and payable
before any reconnection can be sanctioned.

The debt collection process as outlined in the Debt Collection Policy wilt become applicable.

CLEARANCE CERTIFICATES

Are issued on request by the transferring attormey and on receipl of the applicable fees.

Are only issued when all amounts due in connection with that property for municipal fees, surcharges on fees,
property rates and other municipal taxes, levies and duties have been fully paid.

Any instalment for rates, refuse and sewerage is immediately payable.

The Municipality, as owner of municipal property, may issue a clearance certificate provided proper arangement :
for the payment of any outstanding amount has been made. L
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81
8.2
83

84

82

10

11

REPORTING TO COUNCIL

The Chief Financial Officer shall report monthly to the Municipal Manager in a suitable format to enable the
Municipal Manager to report to Council and other interested parties. This report shail reflect on;

Number of indigent households applied;

Amount of subsidy allocated per service category,

Amounl of debt accumulating and debt recovery information {numbers of customer; enquires; default arrangement;
growth or diminishing of arrear deblors; ideally divided into wards, domaestic, stale, institutional and other such
divisions),

Perormance of all areas against targets agreed to in item 9 of this policy document.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
The performance measured will be to identify the number of indigent households and o measure the percentage of
these households to whom the Municipality provides assistance.

Council will create a forum wherein these targets are assessed, Council's performance evaluated and remedial

sleps taken.

BY-LAWS

The principle contained in this policy will be reflecled in the various service by-laws as promulgated and amended
by Council from time 1o time.

COMMENCEMENT
This policy takes effect on 1 JULY 2016.
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ABBREVIATIONS

NCOZ3 Emthantem Mumcipaiity

AC Accounting Officer
0 ASB Accounting Standards Board
CFQ Chief Financial Gificer
HOD Directors/Head of Department
[(s74 Integrated Development Flan
MBRR Muricipal Budget and Reporiing Regulations, 2008
MFMA Municipal Finance Managerment Act
MTREF Mediuym Term Revenug and Expenditire Framework
SCM Supply Chain Management
VAT Value Added Tax

1 PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

1.1 The abjective of the budget policy 15 1o set out

ia)  The principles which the munic:pahty will follow i preparing each medium term revenue and expEnditure framework budget (MTREF),

ib}  The reiponitbititien of the mayor, the accounting officer, the chief financial officer and other Lenior managers in compiling the budgat;
ic) To control and infarm the bass, format and information included in the Budget decumentation; and

id} To establish and maintain procedures to ensure agherence to the Municipahty’s 10P review and budget proceises.

DEFINITIONS

In thus Budget Implementation Policy, unless the context otherwise (ndicates, a word of Expreston to which & meaning has been assigned in the Local Government. Municipal Finance
Management Act. 2007 (Act No 56 of 2003}, has the meaning so ayugned, and

@ “Accounting Offlcer”- means the Munigipal Manager;

“Afllocation”, means-
- a munscipality’s share of the lozal government's equstable share refetred 1o in section 214¢5) (a} of the Constitutan,

. =
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. an allocatron of maney to a municpahity in termy of section 214(1) {c) of the Conatitubyan,

» an allacation of meney to a municipakity I terms of a provincial budget; or

- any other allocalion of money to a muntcipality by an organ of state, including by another mumgpality, otherwise than 'n compliance wilh a commercial or other business transaction;
~“Annual Divislon of Revenue Act™ means the Act of Parkament, which must be enacted annruaily in terms of section 214 {1) of the Constitutton; @
"Approved budget,” means an arnual budget-

. approved by a municipal council, or

. includes such an arnual budget as revised by an adjustments budget In terms of section 28 of the MFMA;

“Baslc Municipal Service”™ means 3 muniapal service that s necessary to ensure an acceptable and reasonable quality of hfe and which, if not provided, would endanger public haatth
or safety or the environment;

. "Budget-related Policy™ means a policy of a munitipality affecung or affected by the annual budget of Lhe mumnipality, incleding-

. tha tariffs policy, which the municipabity must adopt in terms of saction 74 of the Municipal Systermns Act;

. the rates policy which the mumtigality must adopt in terms of legislation requlaling munic:pat property rates; or

. the credit control and debt collection policy, which the mursoipality rmust adopt in terms of section 96 of the Mumical Systems ACT,

"Budget transfer” freans transfer of funding within a function / vote.

"Budget Year” means the financiat year of the municipality for which an annual budget is to be approved in terms of section $18{1) of the MFMA
“chief financlal officer” maans a person des'gnated n terms of section 80{2) (3] of the MFMA;

“councillor™ means 4 member of a munig:pal council;

“creditor”, mears a person to whom money 15 owed by the municipality,

“eurrent year™ means the inancial year, which has already commenced, but not yet ended;

“delegation”, in rafation 10 3 duty. includes an instriction or request 10 perform of to assist i performing tne duty, @
“financlal recovery plan® means a plan prepared in {erms of section 141 of the MFMA;
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“financial statements®, means statements consisting of at leasts

a staterment of financial position;

a statement of financial performance;

a cash-flow statemaent;

any other statements that may be prescribed; and
any notes 10 these statements;

"financial year” means a twelve manths pericd commancing on I July and endging on 30 June each year;

"fMinancing agreement” Includes any loan agreement, lease, and instalment purchase contract of hire purchasa arrangement under which a municipakty undertakes to repay a long-
term debt over a perwod of Lime;

“fruitless and wasteful expenditure™ means expenditure that was made i vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exencised,

“Irregular expenditure™, means-

.

erpenditure incurred by @ mumcipatity or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is nat in accordance with, a requirement of the MFMA Act, and which has nat been condoned
in terms of sectlon 170 of the MFMA;

expenditure inCurred by a mumcipahty or mumicipal entity in contravention of, or that Is not m accordance with, 3 requirement of the Munictpal Systems Act, and which has not
been condoned in terms of that Act;

expendityre incurred by & municipalily i contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Public Qffice-Bearers Act, 1998 (4ct No. 20 of 1598), or
expenditure Incurred by & munmicipahty or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the supply chain management policy of the
municipality ¢r entity or any of the municipakly's by-laws giving effect to such policy, and which has not been condoned In terms of such policy or by-law, but excludes expenditure
by a municipality which falls within the definition of "unauthorised expendiura”,

Tinvestment”, in relation te funds of @ munigpality, means-

the placing on deposut of funds of a muntcpality with a financal institution; or
the acquisstion of assets with funds of a mumcipality not immediately requised, with the primary aim of presery ng those funas,

"lender”, moans a person who provides debt finance ta a municipality;

“local community” has the meaning assigned Lo it in seclion 1 of the Municipal Systems Act;

¥
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“long-term debt” means debt repayable over a penod exceeding one year;

“Municipal Structures Act™ means the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998);

“"Municipal Systems Act™ means the Local Government: Mumcipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000); @
“mayar® means the councillor elected as the mayor of the Municipalty m terms of section 55 of the Municipal Structteas Act;

“muntcipal council” or “council® means the council of a Murscipality referred to In section 18 of the Munioipal Structures Act;

“municipal debt Instrument” means any note, bond, debenture or other evidente of indebledness issued By a municipality, including dematenalised or electronic evidence of
ndebtedness inlended to be used (n trade;

“municipal entity” has the meaning assigred 1o W In secuon 1 of the Municipal Systems Act (refer ta the MSA for defimtion};

"municipality”-

. when referred to as a corperate body, means & mumicpality as descrbed (n section 2 of the Municipal Sy:lems Act, or

. when referred (o as a geographic area, means a municpal area determined in terms of the Local Government: Muaicipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998
“accounting officer™ means a person appointed In terms of secuion 82(1) (a) or (b) of the Municipal Structures Act;

~municlpal service™ has the meaning assigned to it 1 sectior 1 af the Municipal Systams Act (refer to the MSA for dehinition),

~municipal tarlfi™ means a tan(f for services which a municipahty may set lor the provision of a service to the local community, and includes a surcharge on such tanif,

“municipal tax” means praperty rates or other taxes, levies or duties that a municipality may impose,

"Natlonal Treasury” means tha Nauonal Treasury established by section 5 of the Public Finante Management Act

*atficial®, means- @

. an employee of 3 municrpahty or mumicipal entity
. a person seconded to 3 municpality or municipal entity 1o work as a member of the staff ¢f the municipaity or mumicpal entity, or
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] 2 person contracted by a muticipality of mun cipal entity 1o wark as a member of the staff of the municipality or rrumcipal entity otherwise than as an employee;

“overspending -

. means causing the operational or capital expenditure incurred by the municipaiity denng a financial year to exceed the (LAl amownt approgriated in that year's budget for its
eperatianal or capital expenditure, as the case may be;

- In relation to 8 vate, means causing expenditure under the vote to exceed the amount appropriated for that vate. or

- 0 relation te expenditure under section 26 of the MFMA, means Causing expenditure under that section to exceed the hmits allowed in subsection (5} of this secuon;

"past financial year” means the financial year preceding the current year,

“quarter® means any of the following periods i a inancal year:

. 1 Juty 10 30 Septembar;

- 1 Qctober to 3t December,

- 1 January to 31 March; or

* 1 April Lo 30 June;

“service dellvery and budget Impl tion plan” means a detaded plan approved by the mayor of a municipality in terms of section S3{1)(c){tl} of the MFMA faor implementing the
munmcipality's delivery of municipal senaces and its annual budget, and which must ‘ndicate-

. projections for @ach month of -

. revenue to be collected, by source; and

. aperational and capial expenciture, by vote;

. sarvice delivery targets and performance indicators for each quarter, and

. any other matters Lhat may be prescnbed, and includes any revisions of such plan by the mayor m terms of section 54(1) (€) of the MFMA.

“short-term debt” means debt repayable over a penod not exceeding oneg year,

“standards of generally recognised accounting practlce,” means an actounting practice complysng with standards zpplicable to municipalities or municipal entities as deterrined by
the Accounting Standards Board,

"unauthorised expenditure”, means any expendiure incurred by a municpality ctherwise than im actordance with sectian 15 or 11{3) of the MFMA, and includes-
. ovesspending of the total amount appropriated 'n the municipality's approved budget;
. averspending of the total amount appropriated for a vote in Lhe approved budget,
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. expenditure from a vole unrelated to the department or functional area coveren by the vote,

. expenditure of meney apprapniated for a specific purpose, otherwie than for thal specifc purpose:

. spending of an allocaton referred 1o paragraph (i), {&i] or {iv) of the definition of "allecation™ otherwise than in accordance with any condiions of Lhe allecabion; or

. a grant By the mumicipality otherwise than in accordance with the MFMA, “virement” means transfer of funas between functions / votes,

“vote™ meansi- .
. one of the main segments nto which a budget of a mumicipality is divided for the appropriation of monay for the different departments or functional areas of the municipahty; and

. which speafies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes of the department or functional area concerned.

In this documant unless the context otherwise indicates, words and expressions danating the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, words and espressions ganoting the male
sex shall include Lhe female sex and vice versa and reference Lo a natural persan hail include a legal perion and vice versa.

2 BUDGETING PRINCIPLES

The mur/cpality shall ensure that revenye projections In the budget are reahstic taking into account actual collection levels,
The muniaipality shall ensure that the budget refiects the net deprec:ation amount [gress depregiation less backlog depreciation) due to the ingroase of measurement of PPE,

Expenses may only ba Incurred in terms of the approved anhual budget (or adjustments bidget) ang within the limits of the amounts approprrated far each vele in the approved budget.
Vaote accessibility of supply chain management systems for small businesses must be Laken into account.

Muricipality shall prepare a mult:-year budget (three year) - mediumn term revenue and expenditure framework {MTREF]) and that be reviewed annually and approved by Councd,

E BUDGETING PROCESS

o | Planning lor the preparation of the budget

1.1 The Accounting Qfficer wilh the assistance of the Chef Financial Officer and the Manager responsible for 1DP shall o
draft the IDP process plan as well as the budget metable for the municipabty mctuding mumc pal entves for the ensuing financal year,

J31.2  The mayor shall table the IR process plan as well as the budget timetable Lo Council by 31 August each year for
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approval (10 months before the start of the next budget year),
0P process plan as well as the budget tmetable shall indicate the key deadlines far the review of the IDP a3 well
as the preparatton of the medium term revenue and expenditure framework {MTREF) budget and the sevifion of the annual budget, Such Larget dates shall follow the prescriptions
of the Municipal Finance Management Act as well as the guidehnes set by Natcnal Treasury.
The mayor shall convene a strategic workshop in September/{ictobar with the senior managers in crder to
determine tha IDP pricrities which will form the basis for the preparaton of the MTREF budget taking Into account the financial and political pressures facing the municipaity, The
mayoer shall tabla the IDP prionties with the draft budget Lo Counceil.
The Mayer shall table the Draft IOP and MTREF budget te council by 31 March {90 days bafore the start of the new
Budget year) together wilh the draft resolutions and pudget related palicies {palicies on tanff setung, credit control, debt collection, indigents, investment and cash management,
borrewings. etc.)
The Chief Financial Officer and sermsor managers undertake the Lechnical preparatean of the budget includeng -
3 1.6.1 Review pasl performance,
2.1.62 Prepareinitial preview assumptions;
31.6.3 Analyse past revenue trends and develop initial prajections;
Prepare the |DP and make necessary revisions;
Prepare mitial budget scenarios: -
The budget must be In the prescnbed format. and must be divided into capital and eperaung budget.
The budget must reflect the reabsticatly expected revenues and expenditure by major source for the budget year concerned. and
Esumated revenue and expendilure by vote for the budget vear: ang
The bugget must also cantain the information related to the twe financial yea™s followang the fnancial year to which the budget relates, as well as the actual reverues and
expenses for the prior year, and the estumated revenues and expenses for the current year,

Annexure A provides an oulline of the budget activibies. Lmeframes and respansibilitias,

3.2

XiZsl
322

1.3

Public participation proccss
Ciuning the consultation process administration should consult with political executive; and
Immediately after the draft annual budget has peen tabled, the municipality must convena hearings on the draflt budgat in April and nvite the public and stakehcider

Qrganisations, to make representation at the council hearings and to submit commends in respense to the draft budget,

Approval of the badget
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331 Council shall consider the next medium term expenditure framework hudget for approval not Iater than 31 May {30 days before the start ¢f the budget year);
132 The council resolutien, must contan budget policies and performance measures be adopted. and
133 Should the mumicipaiity fall to aporove the bhudget before Lha slart of Lthe budgal year, the mayoer mast inform the MEC for Finance that the hudget has not been approved.

3.4 Publicalion of the budget Q
141

Viithin 14 days after the draft annual budget has been tabled, the Director of Corporate Services must post the budget and other budget-related documentation onto the
municipal website so that it is accessible to the pubhc as well as send hard copies to National and Pravingial Treasury, and

342 The Chief Financial Officer must within 14 days submit the approved buaget in both printed and electronic formats to the Mational Treasury, the Provingial Treasury as well as
post it on the municipal website,

4 CONTENTS OF THE BUDGET

The budget consist of the follovaing key elements:

.1 Mayor's Report
4.2 Council Resolutions
4.3 The Council approves and adopts: -

4.3.1 Budgsat set out in various labias,
4.3.2 by standard classification,

4.3.3 by munmicipal vote,

4.3.4 by source and expenditura by type;
4.3.5 Policias, and

436 Tanffs.

4.4 Executive Summary .

44.1 Cperaung Revenve Framework
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44,11
44,12
4.4.1.3
4,414
4.4.1.5
4.4,1.6

4.4,2
4421
44,22
44,23
4.4.3
4.4,3,1
4.4,3.2
44,33
4.5
45.1
4.5.1.1
45.1.2
4513
4.5.1.4

4.5.2

4.5.3

Property Rates ;

Sale of Water and Impact of Taeddf Incraases,

Sale of Electnisity and [mpact of Tan!f Increases;
Sanitation and Impact of Tanlf Increases,

Waste Removal and Impact ¢f Taalf Increases; and
Overall /mpact of tanff increases on households.

Operating Expenditure Framework

Main aperational expenditure categories,

Prionity areas ie. repairs and maintenance, and

Free Baslc Services: Basic Soaal Services Packagea,
Capital expenditure

Focus area

Highlighted projects where majer investment in Capex & made
Fulyre operational cost of new Infrastructure

Supporting Decumentation

Budget Pracess Overview

1DP and Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
Frnancial Madelling angd Key Planning Drivers

Community Consultation

Querview of alignrment of annual budget witn IDP

Measurable performance abjectives and indicators

Qverview of budget related-policies

DRAPT JUDGET IMPLEHMUNTATION AND MONITORING POLITY

L1y
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45.4

4,55

456

4.5.7

4.5.8

459

45,10

4.5.11

4512

4.5.13

4514

45141
4.5.14.2

4.5.15

45151
45152
45.15.3
45154
45155

Monthly revenue cash Mow projections by month

[DP amendments

Amendments 10 Buoget related polhicies

Deatads of investments

Municipal entities = new and existing

Proposed service delivery agreements

Grants to external bodies

Centracts faving future budgetary implications

Capital expenditure details

Legisiation compliance status

Salary, allowances and benefits of:

Councillers
MM, CFQ, Director and Managers

Overview of budget assumptions

External factors

General inflation cutlook and its iImpact on the municipal activities
Credi rating outiack

Interast rates for borrgwing and investment of funds

Lollectian rate for revenue services

FLITYIR N S 8
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4.5.15.6 Growth or dechine in tax base of the municipahty

4.5.15.7 Salary increases

4.5.t5.8 Impact af naticnal, provncial and local pokicies

4.5.15.2 Abidity of the municipality 1o spend and deliver on the programmes, and

4.5.16  Mundipal manager's quality certiicate

5 OPERATING BUDGET

51 The municrpality shall Budget in each annual and adjustments budget for the contabution to:

5.1.1  provision for accrued leave enutlements equal to between 10 - Z0% of the accrued leave

51.2  enullement of officials as at 30 June af each hinanclal year,

5.0.3 provison for bad debts in accordance wilh its rates and tariffs policies

5.1.4 provision for Lhe obsolescence and detercration of stock m accerdance with its storas managemant palicy

5.1.5 Depreciation and finance charges shall be charged to or appartioned only between the departments or voles to which tha projects relate

5.1.6 A sufficient propartion of the operating budget companent of each annual and adjustments budget shall be set ascde for maintenance 1 accordance with the asset fmamtenance
plans of the Munlcpalities.

5.2 When conzidering the draft annual budpet, councit shall consider the Impact. which the proposed increases in rates and service tanffs will have on the monthly municipal actounts
of househotds.

5.3  The impact of such ncreases shall be assessed on the basis of a fair sample of randomly selected accounts.
5.4 The aperating budget shall reflect the impact of the capitat component on

5.4.1 depreciation charges

5.4.2 repanrs and maintenance expenses

5.4.3 inlerest payable on external barrowings
5.4.4 olher oparaling expenses,

LEN
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5.5  The chief financial officer shall ensure that the cost of indigency rekief is separately reflected in the appropaate votes.

[: 8 CAPITAL BUDGET

6.1 Expenditure of a project shall be included in the capial budget If it meets the asset definition and has a useful life
I excess of one year.

6.2 A mumcipality may spend money on a ¢apital project only iIf the money for the project has been apprepriated in
the capital budget,
6.3 The ervisaged sources of funding for the capital budgel must be properly conpdered and the Councl must be satisfied that this fending st avarable ana has not been commtted

lqr other purposes.
6.4 Befare approving 3 capital project, the Council must corsiger

6.4.1 the projected cost of the project over all the ensuing financial years until the project becomes operational,

6.4.2 future pperational tosts and any revenues, which may arise In respect of such project, Including the likely future /mpact on cperating budget (i.e. on property rates and serice
tardfs),

5.4.3 the tmpact on the present and future operating budgets of the munigipality in relation Lo finance charges to be incurred on external loans

6.4.4 depreciation of fixed assets,

6.4.5 maititenance of fixed assets, and

6.4.6 any other ardirary opérational expensas associated with any itemn on such £apdal budget,

6.5 Council shall approve the annual or adjustment capital budget only if it has been properly balanced and lully funded.

T
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7  FUNDING OF THE BUDGET

7.1 Operational Budget

The operatignal budget can only be funded from =

7.11 Realistically expected revenues.
7.1.1.1  Based on collection levels to date
7.1.1.2  Actual revenue celtected in previous financal years

7.1.2 Uncommitted accumudated surpluses to Lhe extent that the surpluses are cash backed.

7.2 Capital Budget

7.21 Revenue or Surplus

7.2.1.1  If any project is to be inanced from revenue this inancing must be inchuded in the cash budget to raise sulticient cash for the expenduure,
7.2.1.2  If the project 35 to be financed from surplus there must be sufficient cash avalable at tme of execution of the project.

722 External loans

7.2.2.1  External lpans can be raised only of it is [nked to the financing of an asset;

7.2.2.2 A copitdl project to be financed from an external loan can only be Included in the budget if the loan has been secured or if ¢an be reascnably assumed as being secured

7.2.2.3 The loan regemphion period should not exceed (he estmated fife expectancy of the asset, If this happens the interest payatle on the excess redemption penod shall
be declared as fruitless expenditure;

7.2.2.4  Interest payable on extarna! loans shall be included as a cost In the revenua budget;

7.2.2.5 Finance charges reldung to such loans shall be charged to or apportianed only between the departments or vates 1o which the projects relate.

7.2.3 Capital Replacement Reserve (CRR)

7.2.3.t  Council may establish a CRR far the purpose of financing capital projects and the acquisition of assets. Such reserve shall be established from the following sources aof revenue:
. unappropriated cash-backed surpluses to Lhe extent that such surpluses are net required for gperational purposes;

%
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7,2.3.2
7.2.3.3
1234

724
7.2.4.1
.
7.2.4.2
7.2.43

t1.2.4.8

Interest on the investments of the CRA, appropriated in terms of the investments policy.

additional amounts appropriated as contributions in each annual or adjustments budget; and

Zale of 1and and profit ar loss an the sale of assets.

Before any asset can be financed from the CAR the finanong may be available within the reserve and available as cash as this fund must  be cash backed;
11 there s insullicient cash available to fund the CRR this reseérve fund must then be adjusted ta equal the available cash;

Transfers to the CRR may be budgeted for in the cash budget.

Grant Funding

Non capnal expenditere funded from grants

must e budgeted for as part of the revenue budget,

Expenditure must be resmbursed trom the funding creditor and transferred to the operating and must be budgeted for as such,
Capital expenditure must be budgeted for in the capial budget,

Interest earned on mvestments of Conditional Grant Funding thall be capnalsed o the conditions state that mterest should accurnulate in the fund. If thare s no condition

stated the interest can Lthen be allotated directly Lo the revenue accounts.
Grant funding does not need 1o be cash backed but cash should be secured before spending can 1ake place,

7.3 Unspent Funds / Roll over of Budget

732

733

7.3.4

7.3.41
7.342
7.3.43
7.3.44

The approprration of funds in an annual or adjustments budget will lapse to the extent that they are unspent by the end of the relevant budget vear, but excegt for funds relating

to capitad expenditure,

Only unspent grant {If the conditians for such grant funding allows that) or loan funded capital budget may be relled cver to the next budget year.

Conditions of the grant fund shall be taken mto account in applying for such roll over of funds.

In order to apply for a rollover of unspent conditional grants the following must te submitted to Mational Treasury:

Muniopalities must subrmit their June conditional grant expenditure reports according to sectron 71 of MFMA reflecting all accrued expenditure on ¢ondstional grants
Submit the pre-audited 4FS indicattng the portion of each national cordibional allocation 3 received which remained unspent as at 30 June;

Formal letter addressed (10 the National Treasury requesting the roffover of unspent conditienal grants In terms of section 21{2} of the of DoRA
Mouivation of Commitrrent
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@, Evidence that work on each of the projects has commenced, namely esther of the following:
- Proof that the project tender was published and the peniod for tender Subrmssians ctosed before 30 June, or
. Proof that a contract for delivery of the proyect was signed before 10 June.
b. A progress report on the state of implementaton of each of the projects,
¢ The amount of funds commutted to each project, and the conditional allpcatian from which the funds come,
d.  Anindicaticn of the Ume-penod within which the funds are o be spent; and
@  Proof that the Chief Financial Officer 15 permanently appointed.
. National Treasury Lo confirm in wrnting approval or nat.
«  The munkipahty must return the remainng unspent condimonal grant funds Natianal Revenie Fund,
. Non return widl result in the offset against the murucipality's November equitable share aliocation
135 Adjustments to the rolled over budget shall be done dunng the 1st Adjustmeants budgel in the new financial year after taking «nto account expenditure up o the end of the
previgus linancial year.

136 Ng unspent operauing budget shad be rolled over to the next budgel year

i
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] VIREMENTS

Viremenls represents a flexible mechanism to affect budgetary amendments within a municipal financial year, and t5 the majar mechanism to align and take correclive {ficantial /
budgetary) action within a Dwectorate (Vota) or funcuional area duning a fimancial year,

8.1 Virement procedure requirements and restrictions .

8.1.1 In grder for a "vote™ to transfer funds from ene cost element, operating or capital project 19 anolher ¢ost element, operating or capital project, a4 saving has to be identdied
within the monetary mitatens of an [¢entfied cost element, operating or capital project allocations on the respective budgets.

B1.2 Sufficient, budgetary proviston should be avalable within the "grang” vote's cost element or capial praject concerned to give effect Lo the budgetary transfer (virement). In
additien, the transfermng function must clearly ndicate Lo which ¢cost alernent aperating, or capital project the budget prowvision will be transferred o and provide 3 clear

motivation for the transfer,

B.1.3 Any budgelary amendment of which the net impaci will be a change (o Lhe tgtal approved annual budget allogalion and any pther amendments not covered in this policy are
to be censidered for budgetary adoption via an Adjustments Budget (per MFMA Section 28).

5.1.4 In tarms of Section 17 of the MFMA 3 Municipality's budget Is divided inte an operating and capital budget and consequently no viremants are parmutted between Operating and
Capital Budgets other than through an Adjusiments Budget,

8.1.5 Viremenis are not permissible across, or between, votes without recommendation of the Directors and the Chief Financial Officer, sopport of the Municipal Manager and approval
of Council.

8.1.6 Virements between Trading- and Rate-funded functions are not allowed, due to the differing impacts on respective tantf- or Rates-borne services’ tuggets, unlass acopled via
an Adjustments Budget (MFMA Sectron 28).

8.1.7 A virement may nol create new policy, significantly vary current policy, or after the approved sutcomes / outputs as approved In the [DP for the current or subsequent years

{MFMA Sections 19 and 21}, @
8.1.8 virgments resulting in adjustments to the approved SDBIP need to be submitted with an Adjustments Budget to the Council with revesed targels and indicators for approval,
{MFMA Circular 13).
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8.1.9

8.1.10

8.L.11

8.1.12

8.1.13

No virerment may be made to cover/ allow lor unauthortsed, irreguiar or fruitless and wasteful expendsture {MFMA Section 32).

The virement that relales 10 an unfunded vacant posttion is sublect to the approval of the Accounung Officer. The budget for such posiion may only be transferred from
Employee related cost, If approved by the Municipal Manager.

No tranifers are permitied within the first three menths or the final manth af the financlal year without the support of Chief Financial Officer and approval by the Municipal
Manager,

All virements should be approved In line with the Counciks System of delegations.

Al rransfers within votes (directorates) or functiznal area must be reported by the Chief Financia! Officer 1o the Municipal Manager on a monthly basis.

8.2 Operating Budget Virements

8.2.1

Py

8.2.3

8.2.3.1
8212

8.2.4

8.2.41
8.2.4.2
8...4.3
8.2.4.4
8...4.5

No viremants are permetted between expenditure categories without the support of Chiel Financial Cfficer and approval by the Municipal Manager,

Salanes, Wages ang Allowarices Category

Virements are allowed between cost elements only If these virernents are withar thss expenditure category.
Virements i this expenditure category are subject to the approval of the Chief Financial Officer.

Remuneration of Councillors

Virements in thit expenditure fategory are allowed only If these virements are within this category,
Virements in this expendsture category a7e fibject Lo the approval of the Chief Financial Officer.

General Expenditure and Repairs and Maintenance (Primary)

Virements to and from cst elements within each category are allowed.

Virernents are allowed lrom General Expentiture to Repairs and Maintenance,

The following cost elements categones are net 10 be used as sources of virements, but virements arg allowed within each categary
Trammg related expenditire.

Bargalning Council provisions and skills development levies.
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8.2.4.6 Insurance related provisions.
8,2.4,7  Pensigner and Continyed Members.
8.2.4.8 Repairs an¢ Maintenance.

525 Contracted Services and Collection Costs g
Virgments to and from these elements are allowed,

6.3 Operating Projects And Capital Budget Visement

8.3.1 All virerments Lo capital projects will only be cansikdered for budgelary adoption via an Adjustments Budget (per MFMA Section 28},

8.1.2 nly virernents between existing projects approved by Council and within the same Directorate will be permudted subject to approval by the Municipal Manager.

6.3.3 Virements will only be considered if recommended by a director responsible for the vote or functionat area and supported by the Ciwefl Financial Officer.

g.2.4 Motivations for virements betwoen projects should clearly state the reason for the saving within the “giving” project, as well as the reason for the additional amount required.,

8.3.5 No virements, of which the affect will be to add “new” projects onto the Capaal Budget, will be allowed,

8.3.6 Virements may not cause an increase to the individual projects’ total project cost,

8.3.7 Virements in capital budget allocauons are ondy perrmsited within specitied action plans and not 2¢ross funding sowices and rmust in addiuon have comparable asset hfespan
classifications,

5.3.8 Implementation of the prgject may nol be prejudiced dua to the viremant of funds (1 €. must not hinder compiatian of the projact),

8.3.9 Virements will only be tonsidered upen submiss:on of revised business plans for both Lhe “giving™ and the “receiving™ operating and capntal project.

.‘;;
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9 ADJUSTMENT BUDGET

The MFMA 28(2) recogmnses that there will be Instances whera unlcreseen and unavoidable expenditure 1S required, as well as other circumstances which could necessitate the submissicn
of an Adjustments Budget:

1t ts compulsary to prépare an adjustments budget. -

9.1 when there is an under collection of revenue

9.2

when a desnwards adjustment of revenue and expengiture is required

The MFMA also recogmites that a voluniary adjustment budget can be prepared as a resull of the following: -

9.3

94

%5

9.7

.8

2.9

9.9.1.1
9912
59.1.3
99.1.4

Over-coflection of revenue = ko support existing budgeted pragrammes (MFMA 28(2) (b} to be submitted after midvear performance assessment and befare 28 February,

Unforeseen and unavordable expenditisre recommended by the Mayor [will be 3 prescribed framework) {MFMA 28{2) (c) must be reported to Council at its next meeting and be
Included in adjustments bugdget witha €0 days of expenditure being Incurred.

Virements - utilise 3awings i one vote {MFMA 28(2) (d) to be submitted alter midyaar performance assessment and before 28 February.

Under spending in prier financtal year - if unfareseen (MFMA 28(2) (e} should be completed after year énd But before 25 Augtest.

Coerect errors (MFMA 28{2) (f) to be submitied alter midyear performance assessment and before 28 February.

To ratify unauthorised expenditure and any other expenditure within 3 prescribed framework in terms of Unaulhorised Expendilure the Municipality may submit a Special
Adjustments Budget when submitting the Annual Report for consideration.

When an adjustments budget Is tableg, ot must be accompanied by —

an eaplanation haw the adjustrients budget affects the annual budget,

a motivalion of any matenal changes to the annual budget,

an explanation of the impact of any increased spending on the annual budget and the annual budgets for the next two financial years, and
any other supposting documentation that may be prescrbed.

)
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940

9.13

9.14

9.14.1
3.14.2
4.14.3
3.14.4

9.,14.5

9.15

The Municipality may not change tax and tanlfs unless in terms of a financtal recovery plan.

Formats of adjustiments budget
An adjustment bugget and supporting documentatian of 3 munscipakity must be in & the format specified in Schedule B of the MBRR and include all the required tables, charts
and explanatory information, wn view of any guidehnes wiued by Natonal Treasury

Funding of adjustment budgets
An adjusiments budget of a muricipality must be suitably funded. The supportive documentaton 10 actompany an adjustments budget in terms of section 28(5}) of the MFMA
must contain an explanation of how the adjustments budget 15 funded.

Submussion of tabled adjustments burgets

The municipal manager must comply with section28(7) of the MFMA together with saction 22(b){1) of the MFMA, within ten work. ng days after mayor has tabled an adjustments
budget in the muniopal countl. When submitting the tabled adfustmentls buoget to National Treasury and refevant pravingal treasury «n terms of section 28(7 ) of the MFMA,
munitipal manager must subrmit in both printed and electromic.

Approval of adjustments budgets
The mumcipal council must consider the full consequences, fscal or otherwise, of the adjustments budget and supperting documentatian, When approving an adjustments
budget, municipal counail must cansider and acopt separate resclutions dealing with each of the matters listed below

Approval of the adjustment budget;

Approval ef any adjustments permitted in terms of section 28(2) of the MFMA;

Appreval of the transfer of funds Lo a separate hank account for purpose contemplated sn section 12 of the MFMA:

Approval of rewvisions Lo the monthly and quarnierly service delivery targets and perfarmance indicators in the service debvery and budgel snplementation plan, i any, to
correspond with the approval of the adjustments bucget,

Approval of any amendments to budget related policies necessitated by the adjustments budget,

Quality Certification
When an adjustment budget and supporting documentation 15 tacled In councl, made public or submitted to another argan of stale, It must be accompanied by & quabiy
certificate complying with Schedule B and signed by the mumcpal manager,

411



EMTHANIENI MUNICIPALITY = DAAFY BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING POLICY FURTTIRE S

.18 Publication of approved adjustment budgets
Within five working days after the mumacipal council has approved an adjustments budget, the municipal manager must 1n agreement with section 21(A) of the Municipal System
Act make publc that approved adjustments budget and supporting gocumantation, as well as the resolytion referred 1o 1n tem 4, Schedule B, resclutions,
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10 BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION

10.1 Monitoring

12.1.1 The accounting officer with the assistance cf the chief linangial officer, Directors and other SeRicr managers (s responsitie for the implementation of the budget, and must take
reasonabie staps to ensure that!

1¢.1.1.1 funds arn spent In accordance with the budget:

$0.1.1.2 expenses are reduced f expacted revenues are less than projected, and

10.1.1.3 revenues and expenses are properly mondored.

11.1.2 The Accounting officer with Ute assistance of the chief financial officer must prepare any adiustments budget when such budget is necessary and submit it to the Mayor for
consideration and tabling o Council.

11.1.5  The Accountmg officer must report in wating to the Council any impending shortfalls i the annual revenue buoget. as well as any impending overspending. tagether with the
steps taken to prevent or rectify these problems.

10.2 Reporting
1021 Meothly budeet statements

The accountng officer with the assistance of the chief financial officer myst, not later than ten working days afer the end of each calendar month, submit to the Mayor and Prowncial and
Natianal Treasury a repoft in the prescribed format on the state of the municipality's budget for such catendar month, as well as on the state of the budget cumulatively for 1he financial
year ta data.

Thiz repart musk rétlect the following

10.2.1.1 actual reveénues per spurce, compared with budgeted revenues;

10.2.1.2 actual expenses per vote, compared with budgated expenses;

10.2.1.3 actual capital expenditure per vote, compared with budgeled expenses;

10.2.1.4 actual borrowings, compared with the borrowings envisaged 10 fund the capital budgat;

10.2.1.5 the amount of allocations recaved, compared with the budgeted amount;

10.2.1.6 actual expenses against allpcations, but extluding expenses i respect of the equitable share;

10.2.3.7 explanatons of any matenal varlances between the actual
revenues and axpenses as indicated atove and the projected revenues by source and expenses by vote as set cut in ine service delivery and budget implementation plan;

10.2.1.8 the remedial or carrective steps Lo be taken t3 ensufe 1hat the
relevant projections rema:n within the approved or revited budget, and
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10.2.1.% nrejections of the revenues and expenses for the remainder of the
firiancial year, togethar with an indication of how and where the onginal projections have been revised.

10.2.1.10 The report to the National Treasury must be both in electronic fonmat and in a signed written document

102.2 Quarterly reports
The Mayor must submit to Counal within thirty days of the end of each quarter a report on the implementation of the Budget and the financial state of affalrs of the municipality

=
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10.2.2.1 Mig-year budder angd performance 35sessment
10.2.3  The Accounting offiter must assess the budgetary perfermance of the munespality for the first hall of the finantal
year, 1aking into account all the manthly budget reports for the first six months, the service delivery performance of the municipahity as against the service delivery targets ana
performance md:cators which were set in the service dellvery and budget imzlementaticn plan,
10.2.3.1 The Accounling Cificer mwst then submit a report on such aisessment to the Mayer by 25 Jaauary each year and to Counctl, Provincial Treasury and National Treasury by 21
January each year. @
1¢.2,3.2 The Accounting Officer may (n such report make recommenkations after considerng the recommendation of the Chief Financial Officer for adjusting the annyal budget and for
revising the projections of revenues and expenses set out in the service detivery and bucget implementaticn plan.

11 APPROVAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE

The Chiel Financial Qfficer (SFQ) is responsible for the subrussion ¢f the Policy o Council to consider its adoption after consultation with the AQ, Council shall ingicate the effeclive date
for implementation of the policy,

This policy wiil be effective from 02 July 2016

12 POLICY AMENDMENT

The Budget Implementation and Manitoring Policy must be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it complies with the regulations and guidelines published by National Treasury. It
s imperauve that ths policy is assessed with the latest MFMA Budget Circulars as pubhshed from ttme (o ume by Nauanal Treasury.

13 RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER POLICIES

This policy needs to be read in conjunction with other refavant acopted pohcies of the mumopakty, ncluding the following

. Asset Disposal Pehcy;

- Asset Management Palicy;

. Credit Control and Bebx Collection Policy

. Delegation of Powers;

. funding, Borrewing and Reserves Policy;

- Intrastructure Investment and Capital Projects Policy.
. Long Term Financial Flan Policy;

_3:'
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. Management of Electricity and wWater Distribution Losses Policy,
] Praperty Rates folicy; and
- Tanlff, Indigent and Free Basic Services Policy.

14 REFERENCES

The following references were coiserved In Compiling this document

G Murzipal Finance Management Act, 2003

- Municipal Systems Act, 2000

- Mun:sipal transfer and disposal regulations. Government Gazette na 31346
. The Lacal Goverarment: Mumcpal Systems Act 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000);
. The Municipal Bugget and Reporting Regulations,

. #IFMA, Circulars 48, 51, 54, 55, 66, &7 and §7

15 POLICY IMPLEMENTATION

Procedures should be prepared and adopted by the AQ, in cansultation with the CFO and HOD{50)s. to give effect to this policy.

ANNEXURE A: BUDGET PROCESS TIMETABLE

1 A FRaME ACTIVIVY RESPOMSIHTIITY
- Heads of Departments 1o prapare and subme first draft operating and capitat budgets m line with the

SLLTLECALI RS LA 2 approved operatonal plans, budget guwtebnes and secured hinancing sources, ol
Rewssion of the current operational and capital hudget. CFO/ Directors

Compilation of the MFMA Sec 72 Report and submission to the Mayor, AQf CFO

10 December Year 1 =
Approval ol adjystments budget by Hayoral Cormtiiltee. AQf CFO
i Approval of adustinents budyet by Council, AC/ Mayor

10 Decamber Yaur T — 21 January Year 2

finanie Departinent 10 consalidate and prepare the irst drailt capital and cperating budgel in the igllcwng
larmats.

CFO/Manager Financial Services! Directors

Eid ]
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FLITHE RN |

High leve| cansolidated formiat

Line tern budget. and

Proposed Tanils.

Evalation of snd discussions on first dralt budget by Mayural Camnettee m hine with operatonal plans,
budget gurdeliws and IDP.

AQ{ CFOf Dweciors

21 Januery Year 2 - 4 Fabruary Yaar 2

Finance Department to consolidate and prepare the second dralt capits) and oparating budget.

CFO/Manages Accounting/ Directars

Evalyation of and discissions on second oraft by Mayaral Comnittee,

AD/ CfC

7 Febiruary Yaar 2 = 14 February Yeaar 2

Evabuation of and discuisions on second draft by Portfolio Committees.

Charpersons ol Porttola Commuttess/

Drectors

14 Februsry Year 2 = 4 March Year 1

Evaluation and discussions of preposals irom Poartfolio Committees by the Mayoral Commuttes.,

AQ| THQ

| 4 March Year 2 = 11 March Yesr 2

Findsie Depatiment 10 consohdate arnd prepare the thirg drait capital and operating budget,

CFO/Manager Accounting! Daaciary

Ewshiation and finalisation of the draét MTREF operational and capital hakigets by the Mayoral Commilies,

AQH CFO

11 March Year 2 - 31 March Year 2

Finance Departmant (o consolidate and prepare the (nal draft capital amd operating budgets.

CF0, Manager Accounting ' Directors

Evaluation of and divcussions cn final draft captal and cperating budget by Councl,

A/ Mayor H
Mayor 1
31 March Year 2 = 29 April Year 2 Censultation on linal drit budget Through farmal meetings with aN possible stakeholkders, i =1
AQY CFO i
| Finasir Department to consoldale and prepare 1ha hinal deatt capital and operating budgets. CFOQ/ Derectars
i 29 April Yeur 2 - 13 May Year 2
! Evaluation of and discussians on final draft by Mayoral {emmilee, AQICFD
Fiidnce Department to consalidate and prepare he final capital and operating budgets. CFQ/ Duretiors
13 May Year 2 = 31 May Yaar 2 s - . S——
Adoplign ot Budget by Council, | AO/ Mayer
31 May Year 2 = 13 Juna Year 2 Fuance Department 1o submit approved budgel to Provincial Treasusy and National Treasury. CFO |
PN T 2 = A e L R, |
Fmance Departiment to finabse all pre parations te ensure props=r and tmeous snpkementation of budget, .
Ebld AL inehsding prosulgation of tariis ! e

T [

= |
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TIMEFRAME Ve : RESFORSTBTLITY

Humicpal Manager (o submit deafy SDBIP's and draft performance agreements of il section 57 personnel a0

30 Juns Year 2 1o Mayoc

Mayor 10 apiprove SDBIP’s and note performance agreements, ALY Maynr

i
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1.1

1.2

1.3

CASH AND INVESTMENT POLICY

Introduction

As trustees of public funds, Councillors and officials have an obligation to ensure that cash resources are managed
as effectively, efficiently and economically as possible.
The Council of the Municipality has a responsibility to invest public funds carefully and has to report to the
community in this regard.
In terms of The Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No 56 of 2003), Chapter 3, Section 13 -
(1.} The Minister may prescribe a framework within which Municipalities must —
conduct their Cash Management and Investmenis; and
invest money not immediately required
(2} A Municipality must establish an appropriate and effective Cash Management and Invesiment Policy in
accordance with any framework that may be prescribed in terms of subsection (1).

Objective

The objective of the investment policy is to gain the highest possible return, without unnecessary risk, during
periods when excess funds are not being used. To establish this, it is essential to have an effective Cash Flow
Management Program.

Page 2 ol 20
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3.2

Responsibility/Accountability

In terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003, Chapter 8, Seclion 60, the Municipal Manager is the
Accounting Officer of the Municipality. However, he may delegate in terms of Section 79(1) cerain duties/tasks to
designated officials, referred to in section 77(1}, who would be accountable to him. The Municipal Manager is
therefore accountable for all transaclions entered into by his designates. One of the main functions of the
Municipal Manager is that of adequale and effeclive cash management. The duly to manage the municipalty's
cash and investments is delegated to the Chief Financial Officer.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible, as delegated, for establishing systems, procedures, processes and
training and awareness programmes to ensure efficient and effective banking and cash management. Sound cash
management includes the following:

Collecting revenue when it is due and banking it promptly;

Making payments, including transfers to other levels of government and non-government entities, no earlier than
necessary, with due regard for efficient, effective and economical programme delivery and the government's
normal terms for account payments;

Avoiding pre-payments for goods or services unless required by the contractual arrangements with the supplier:
Accepting discounts to effect early payment only when the payment has been included in the monthly cash flow
estimates provided to the relevant treasury,

Pursuing deblors with appropriate sensitivity and rigour to ensure that amounts receivable by the Municipality are
collected and banked promptly;

Accurately forecasting the institution’s cash flow requirements;

Timing the inflow and outflow of cash;

Recognising the time value of money, i.e. economically, efficiently, and effectively managing cash; and

Page 3 of 20
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33

34

35

36

Taking any other action that avoids locking up money unnecessarily and inefficiently, such as managing inventories
to the minimum level necessary for efficient and effeclive programme delivery, and selling surplus or under ulifised
assets.

The overall responsibility of investments rests with the Municipal Manager. However, the day to day handling of
investments is the Chief Financial Officer's responsibility.

In terms of Section 79(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 the powers and duties to do investments
are delegated to the Chief Financial Officer. In terms of Section 82 (1) of the MFMA, the Chief Financial Officer
may sub-delegate the duties and authority to do investmenis to any official in the budget and treasury office or to
the holder of a specific post in thal office. The Chief Financial Officer is accountable 1o the Municipal Manager for
the investments made by the Chief Financial Officer or his delegated officials

In the instance that the Chief Financial Officer has to do an invesiment, quotations are required from various
financial institutions. In the case of telephonic quotations, the following information is required:

. The name of the person who gave the quotation;
. The relevant terms and rates; and
. Other facts such as if interest is payable on a monthly basis or on maturation date

Where payments lo financial institutions in respect of investiments are lo be effected by cheque, the following

procedures apply:

. The Chief Financial Officer's clerk must complete a cheque requisition form and submit it to the Chief
Financial Officer or his delegaled official together with the supporting quotations;

. The Chief Financial Officer or his delegated official must authorise the requisition.

Page 4 0120
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3.7

4.1
411

All investment documents will require two signatories, namely the Municipal Manager, Chief Financial Officer or his
delegated official and one other official in the treasury office. Specimen signatures must be held by all financial
nstitutions that the Municipality deals with.

Cash Management
Adequate and effective cash management is one of the main functions of the Chief Financial Officer or his/her
Delegate.

Debtor Collections:

All funds due to the Municipality must be collected in good time and banked on a daily basis. Cash left in the safe

which poses a security risk, could result in higher insurance premiums to cover the additional risk and does not

earn inleresl. Large sums of money received must be deposited into the bank account on the same day the

payment is received.

It is important that il monies owing to the Municipality are correctly reflected in the debtors system. The following

conirol measures are necessary:

. A well managed deblors and banking control system will ensure thal funds owed 1o the Municipality are
received and banked; and

. It is also important to review debt coliection performance by comparing the debtors outstanding in relation to
total turnover and then comparing this to previous financial years, in order to determine whether the debt
colleclion process is deteriorating or improving.

All monies collected by the Municipality must be banked in the bank account of the Municipality.
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414

415

4.2
421

422

423

4.3

4.31

Moneys collected by some other agency on behalf of the Municipality shall be paid over to the Municipality or

deposited in the bank account of the Municipality in 2 manner prescribed by the Chief Financia! Officer.

The receipt of all monies collected by the Municipality shall be acknowledged forthwith by the issue of a numbered

official receipt.

Payment of Creditors

Due to the high bank charges with regard to cheque payments, it is essential {o limit the payment of creditors to

one payment per creditor per week, where possible. Exceplions, authorised by the Chiefl Financial Officer, with

regard lo emerging contractors can, however, be made, should the cash position affow for it. Should the facility be
available, payments should be done by electronic transfer — subject to strict control measures.

When considering the time to pay a creditor, proper consideration must be given to the conditions of credit terms of

payment offered:

. In cases where a cash discount is given for early settlement, the discount, if the relevant time scale is taken
into account, will in most cases be more than any investment benefit that could be received from temporarily
investing the funds.

. If discounts are ofiered for early setilement they musl be properly considered and utilised.

Besides this, the normal conditions of credit terms of payment offered by suppliers, must also be considered and

utilised 1o the full by paying on the due date and not earlier.

Receipt of Payments

Receipt of money over the counter:

Page 6 of 2
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4.3.2

Every amount of payment received by a Cashier or ather officer responsible for the receipt of money shall be
acknowledged at once by the issue of a numbered official receipt or cash licket; and

Every receipt form, which is cancelled, will be reaitached, in the correct place, in the receipt book. Where
computer generated receipls are used, the original receipt must be filed for audit purposes.

Receipt of Money by Post

When money (including postal orders and cheques) s received with the Council's mail, the Registry Clerk
shall record all payment remittances as and when received in the cheque register in the presence of a
wilness. Post-daled cheques received in the Council's mail must also be recorded in the cheque register.
The cheque register shall be regarded as the register of remittances received by post;

The cheque register together with all remittances received must be sent to a designated official in the
finance section, before close of cashier on the same day,;

The designated official on receipt of the cheque register together with the remiltances will code all
remittances and submit it to the cashier for receipting;

The Cashier will receipt all remittances and issue official receipts to the designated official;

The designated official will record all receipts in the cheque register and return same to registry. The
Registry Clerk must ensure that all receipts are recorded in the cheque register,

All documents relating to remittances received in the mail must be filed for audit purposes;

A separale register for post daled cheques will be maintained by the Registry Clerk and all post-dated
cheques must be stored safely in the Regisiry Safe; and

The Registry Clerk wilt ensure that all post-dated cheques, which become due are sent promptly to the
designated official for receipting and recording of receipts in the post-dated cheque register.
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44 Bank and Cash:
4.4.1 All names of bank accounts or investment accounts must be in the name of EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY.
4.4.2 New bank accounts may be opened if required and approved by the CFOQ.

4.4.3 All bank accounts rmust be accounted for in the accounting system
4.4.4 All bank and cash should be made in terms of the Cash Management Policy.

4.5 Management of Inventory
Cash management must be improved by seeing lo it thal adequate invenlory control is exerted over all goods kepl
in inventory. For this purpose an Inventory Management Palicy must be developed.

4.6 Management of Debt
The Municipality may only incur debt in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act. 2003, Chapter 6. The
Municipality may incur two types of debt, namely short term and tang term debt.
461 Short term debt.
4.6.1.1 The Municipality:—
. may incur shori-term debt only in accordance with and subject to the Provisions of the MFMA, Section 45(1),
and only when necessary to bridge -
(a) shortfalls within a financial year during which the debt is incurred, in expectation of specific and
realistic anticipated income to be received within that financial year; or
(b}  capital needs within a financial year, 1o be repaid from specific funds to be received from enforceable

e

allocations or long-term debt commitments.

) may incur short-term debt only if —
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(a) aresolution of the Municipal Council, signed by the Mayor, has approved the debt agreement; and
(b)  the Accounting Officer has signed the agreement or other document which creales or acknowledges

the debt.
. Must pay off short term debt within a financial year; and
(_) " May not renew or refinance its short term debt.
46.1.2 No lender may extend credil to the Municipality for the purpose of renewing or refinancing debt that must be

paid off in terms of the above, unless such extension was agreed and approve by the Council. If a lender
wilfully extends credit o the Municipality for the purpose of renewing or refinancing debt, the Municipality is
not bound by the contract in terms of which the credit was extended to the Municipality.

4.6.2 Long term deht.

4621 The Municipality may incur long term debt in terms of Section 46(1) of the MFMA only for the purpose of
capital investment in properly, plant or equipment 1o be used for the purpose of achieving the objects of local
government as set oul in Section 152 of the Constitution, and only if -

(a) aresolution of the Municipal Council, signed by the Mayor, has approved the debt agreement; and

{b) the Accounting Officer has signed the agreement or olher document which creates or acknowledges the
debt.

(c)  the Accounting Officer of the Municipality has complied with Section 21A of the Municipal Systems Act, by
making public an information statement setting out the particulars of the proposed debl, the purpose for
which the debt is to be incurred and the particulars of any security to be provided, at least 21 days prior to

pm— the meeting of the Council at which approval for the debt is to be considered.
(_) 4622 Section 152 of the Constitution reads as follows: “The objects of lacal government are:

. To provide democralic and accountable government for local communities;
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5.1
511

. To ensure the provision of services to cormmunities in a sustainable manner;

. To promote social and economic development;

. To promote a safe and healthy environment; and

. To encourage the involvement of communities and community organisations in the matters of local

government.”

Investments
Legal Requirements
The way in which surplus funds and other municipal funds can be invested, is controlled in terms of legislation:

. GRAP ACCOUNTNG STANDARDS;
. Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act 2003, Act No 56 of 2003, section 13(1}
The Minister, acting with the concurrence of the Cabinet member responsible for local government, may prescribe
a framework within which municipalities must -
(a) Conduct their cash management and investments; and
(b)  Invest money not immediately required. Invest only with --
. Depasits with banks registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 {(Act No. 94 of 1990}

. Securities issued by the National Government;

. Deposits with the Public Investment Commissioners as contemplated by the Public Deposits Act,
1984 (Act No. 45 of 1984);

. Deposits with the Corporation for Public Deposits as contemplated by the Cerporation for Public

Deposits Act, 1984 (Act 46 of 1984}
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. Listed corporate bonds with an investment grade rating from an intemationally recognized credit
rating agency.

. Bankers, acceptance certificates or negoliable cerificates of deposits of banks registered in terms of
the Banks Act, 1990 (Act 94 of 1990);
. Guaranteed endowment policies with the intention of establishing a sinking fund;

. Repurchase agreements with banks registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1980{Act 94 of 1990)

) Any other instruments or investments in which a Municipality was under a law permitied to invest
before the commencement of the Local Government Transition Act, 1996: Prowided that such
instruments shall not extend beyond the date of maturity or redemption thereof.; and

. Any other investimenis determined by the Minister of Finance and published in the Government
Gazetle.

52  Cash Flow Estimates
5.2.1 Before money can be invested, the Chief Financial Officer must determine whether there will be surplus funds
available during the term of the investment, He/she must fix the term of the investment.
5.2.2 Inorder to be able to make investments for any fixed term, it is essential that cash flow estimates be drawn up.
5.2.3 When drawing up cash flow estimates, it is essential that the Chief Financial Officer take note of the following:
. Be aware of the expecled cash flow and when it is likely lo take place, as well as the timing with regard to
cash outflow, as far as both the operating and the capital budgets are concemned,
. By ulilising the available information and expertise, the Chief Financial Officer or his/her delegate must
assess the timing with regard to when, for how long and the amount to be invested; and
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5.3

54

. Daily cash flow estimates must provide for daily call investments and investment withdrawals, whereas long-

term investments must be based on projections further into the future.

From lime to time the Councit will have surplus funds available which are not needed immediately and which could
be invested. Depending on circumstances some funds could be invested for a long term whilst others would only

be short-term investments. Surplus funds in the current account may also be invested for shorl periods (days).

Generally investments are done every month when prior investments malure and funds are available for re-

investiment. Investiments may be made by the Chief Financial Officer as follows:

. Long term investments should be made with financial institutions of minimum BBB raling (where BBB refers
to lower risk institutions});

. Short term investiments should be made with an financial institutions of minimum B raling (where B refers to
higher risk institutions);

. All avaitable funds should not be placed with a single institution, the invested amount should, where
possible, be spread equally to all relevant institution’s; and

. The total amount invested at an institution may not exceed 10% of the relevant institution’s shareholder's
funds (Capital and Reserves).

Investment Ethics
The following ethics musi apply when dealing with financial institutions and other interested parties:
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6.1

6.2

6.3

64

72

7,3

The Municipal Manager and Chief Financial Officer will be responsible for the investment of funds, and hefshe has
to steer clear of outside interference, regardless of whether such interference comes from individual Councillors,
agents or any other institution,

Under no circumstances may he/she be forced or bribed inlo making an investment. No official may accept any gift
unless that gift can be deemed so small that it would net have an influence on histher work or was not intended to
do so, and can merely be seen as goodwill. A certificate in respect of the gift should be furnished to the Chief
Financial Officer, The gift should not be in lieu of a commission.

The Chief Financial Officer must act according to his/her discretion and must report any serious cases of payment
in kind or gifts, to the Municipal Manager. Excessive gifts and hospitality should, however, be avoided.

Interest rates offered should never be divuiged to ancther institution.

Investment Principles

Exposure to a Single Institution:

Money, especially large sums of money, must be invested with more than one institution, in order to limil risk
exposure of the Municipality. All available funds should not be placed with a single institution, the invested amount
should, where possible, be spread equally to all relevant institutions. I legislation permits, the Chief Financial
Officer must try to plan the distribution of the investments o caver different types of investments.

Risks and Return

It can be accepied as a general rule that the larger the return, the greater the risk.

Borrowing Money for Reinvestment

The Municipality may not borrow money for reinvestment, as this would mean interest rates would have to be
estimated in advance, which can be seen as speculation with pubhc funds.
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74

75

8.2

83
84

85

Registered Financial institutions

If the Chief Financial Officer invesls with financial institutions, he/she must ensure that such institutions are
registered in terms of the Banks Act 94 of 1990 and that they are approved financial instilutions - as approved by
the Reserve Bank, from time to time. An updated list of the approved financial institulions should be obtained
regularly.

Growth-related Investments

When making growih-related investments, the Chief Financial Officer must obtain a guarantee that at least the
capital amount invested is safe, and musl exercise due diligence in this regard.

Investment of Funds by the Municipality:

The investment register must be examined on a daily basis to identify investments falling due within the two weeks
following and start the investmenl process such as iooking at alternatives, cash flow requirements and timely
reporting to the Municipal Manager and Council.

Prior to the investment of monies, the Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), must determine whether there will be surplus
funds available, as well as to fix the term for which such money should be invested.

In order to be able to make investments for any fixed term, it is essential that cash flow forecasts be drawn up.

In the instance surplus funds are available for investment, the Chief Financial Officer shouid contact the various
banking institulions for interest rate quotations and prepare a manual or computerised list of the quotations
indicating the amounts to be invested, the rates quoted and the maturity values (maximum return).

Based on the resulls of 8.4 abave, and the value of the prospective investment, the Chief Financial Officer should,
autherise the investment. All relevant information must be filed together with the investment documentation.

Call Deposits and Fixed Deposits
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9.1

7.2

93

94

Quotations should be obtained from a minimum of three financial institutions, bearing in mind the limits of the term
for which it is intended 1a invest the funds. Should one of the institutions offer a belter rate for a term, other than
what the Municipality had in mind, the other institutions which were approached, should also be asked lo fix a rate
for that long a term.

Quotations must be obtained electronically, otherwise per facsimile or emails, as rates can generally change on a
regular basis and time is a determining faclor when investments are made. It is however prudent to obtain written
{e-mail acceptable) quotations. No verbal quole or quotes received after closing date and time may be considered.
The person responsible for requesting quotations from institutions must record the following.

- Name of institution;

. Name of person quoting rales;

. Closing dale and time;

. Period of the investment;

. Relevant terms; and

. Other facls i.e. are interest payable monthly or on maturation date.

Once the required number of quotes has been obtained, a decision must be 1aken regarding the best terms offered
and the institution with which funds are going o be invested. The best offer must under normal circumstances be
accepted, with thorough consideration of investment principles. The Chief Financial Officer must note any deviation
if such best offer is not accepted. No attempt must be made to make institutions compete with each other as far as
their rates and terms are concerned.

If institutions have been asked for a quotation with regard to a specific package, the institution must be requested
to give the best rate in their quotation. They must also be informed that, once the quotation has been given, no
further bargaining or discussions will be entered into in that regard.
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95
96

10.

1.
1A

The above procedure must be followed for all investments.

The Chief Financial Officer must make sure that the investment document received is a genuine document, issued
by an approved institution, and the investment capital must be paid over only to the institution with which it is to be
invesled and not to an agent.

Other External Deposits

Other investment possibilities, which are subject to the applicable legisiation and are available to the Municipality,
include debentures and other securities of the State as well as other Municipalities or statutory bodies in the
Republic, instituted under and in terms of any law. With regard to such investments, the principles and practices set
out above must apply.

Control of Investments
An Investment Register must be kept of all investments made. The following facts must be indicated:

. Name of institution;
. Type of investment;
. Capital invested

. Date invested;

. Term of investment
. Interest rate;

. Maturalion date;

. Interest eamed;

. Interest received;
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11.2

11.3

12
12.1

. Interest capitalised.

The Investment Register and accounting records must be reconciled on monthly basis.

The Investment Register must be examined on a forinightly basis to identify investments falling due within the next
two weeks, It must then be established as what 1o do with the funds bearing in mind the cash flow requirements.
Interest, correctly calculated, must be received in good time, together with any distributable capital. The Chief
Financial Officer must check that the interest is calcutaled correctly.

Investment documents and certificates must be kept in a safe place. The following documents must be

safeguarded:

. Fixed deposil letter or investment certificate;

. Receipt for capital invesied,

. Copy of electronic transfer or cheque requisition;

. Excel schedule of comparative investment figures;

. Commission certificate indicating no commission was paid on the investment; and
. Interest rate quoled.

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for ensuring that the invested funds are secure and, should there be a
measure of risk, that such risk be rated realistically.

General Investment Practice

General

After determining whether there is cash available for investment and fixing the maximum term of investment, the
Chief Financial Officer must consider the way in which the investment is to be made. As rates can vary according
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to money market perceplions with regard to the terms of investment, quotations must be requested electronically,

within term limitalions, and these must be setf ocut on a schedule.

12,2 Commission Cerlificate

The Auditor General requires the financial institution, where the investment is made, to issue a certificate for each

investment made. This certificale must state that no commission has, nor will, be paid to any agent or third party, or

(o any person nominaled by the agent or third party.

12.3 Reporis;

12.3.1 The Council must be given a monthly report on all borrowings and investments. With specific reference lo:

(@) Borrowings: {For each individual loan)

Name of institution;

Date of initial borrowing/loan received (in respect of existing loans}
Balance beginning of month;
Loans received during month;
Loans redeemed during month;
Balance at end of the month;
Interest rate;

Interest paid during month;
Maturity date;

Type of loan;

Tota! Amount,

(b)  Investments: (For each individual Investment)

Name of Institution invested with;
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. Date of investment;

. Type of investment,
. Period of investment,
. Interest rate;

. Maturity date;

* Interest eamed during month;

. Balance of investment at beginning of month;

. Investments made during month;

. Investments withdrawn during month;

. Balance of Investments at end of the month;

. Ailocation of investments {0 reserves and other funds
. Source of investment;

. Appropriation of investments.

12.3.2 The Municipality musl within 30 days after an invesiment with currency of 13 months or longer has been made,
publish in a local newspaper in circulation within its area of jurisdiction, full details of any investments so made.

12.4 Cashin the Bank

12.4.1 Where money is kept in current accounts, it would be possible to bargain for more beneficial rates with regards o
deposits, for instance call deposits. Fixed term deposits can increase these rates.

12.4.2 The most important factor is that the cash in the current account must be kept to an absolute minimum. (Not more
than R 5 000 000 at end of each month in cash book)

12.5 Creditworthiness

Page 19 of 20



EMTIHANJENTI MUNICIPALITY DRAFY CASH AND INVLESTMENT POLICY 20kH 2T MTIERF

126

13.

14.
4.1
14.2

15,

When investments are placed with smaller registered institutions, the Chief Financial Officer has to see to it that the
Municipality is not exposed to 100 much risk, He/she has to ensure that the creditworthiness and performance of
the institution is to histher satisfaction, before investing money in the institution. The Chief Financial Officer is
enlitled to information from which the creditworthiness of financia! institutions can be determined. This must be
abtained and analysed annually.

GRAP

It is of utmost importance that the Chief Financial Officer applies GRAP in the compilation of the budgets and
financial statemenits of the Municipality as well as the financial systems in use.

Investment Managers
If the Council will benefit from it, it is permitted to make use of Investment Managers as defined in the Municipat
Investrment Regulations.

Oversight Role of Council
The Council reserves its right to maintain oversight over the implementation of this Policy.
For the purposes of such oversight the Accounting Officer must-

(a)  within 30 days of the end of each financial year; submit a report on the implementation of this Policy, o the
Council; and.

(b)  when ever there are serious and material problems in the implementation of this Policy, immediately submit
a report to the Council.

COMMENCEMENT

This policy takes effect on 1 JULY 2016.
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ABBREVIATIONS
NCO073 Emthanjeni Municipality
AMP Asset Management Plan
AO Accounting Officer
ASB Accounting Standards Board
CFO Chief Financial Officer
CMIP Comprehensive Municipal Infrastructure Plan
CoGTA Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs
CRC Current Replacement Cost
DRC Depreciated Replacement Cost
EPWP Expanded Public Work Program
EUL Estimated Useful Life
GIAMA Government-wide Immoveable Asset Management Act
GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practise
HOD(50)} Head of Department (Senior Official)
1AMP Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
iDP Integrated Development Plan
iIMM International Infrastructure Management Manual
IS0 International Standards Organisation
MFMA Municipal Finance Management Act
MSA Municipal Systems Act
QODRC Optimised Depreciated Replacement Cost
OHSA Occupational Health and Safety Act
PPE Property, Plant and Equipment
RUL Remaining Useful Life
RV % RV % Residual Value Percentage
SDBIP Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan
VAT Value Added Tax
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1 PURPOSE OF THIS DOCUMENT

This document indicates the policy framework for the management of Municipal movable and immovable Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE), investment property, intangible, biological assets and heritage assets.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL FRAMEWORK

The South African Constitution requires municipalities to strive, within their financial and administrative capacity, to achieve
the following objects:

. providing democratic and accountable government for local communities;

. ensuring the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;

. promoting social and economic development;

0 promoting a safe and healthy environment; and

. encouraging the involvement of cormmunities and community organisations in matters of local government,

The manner in which a municipality manages its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE}, investment property, intangible assets
and heritage assets are central to meeting the above challenges. Accordingly, the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (MSA) section
2(d) specifically highlights the duty of municipalities to provide services in a manner that is sustainable, and the Municipal
Finance Management Act {(MFMA) requires municipalities to utilise and maintain their assets in an effective, efficient,
economical and transparent manner, The MFMA specifically places responsibility for the management of municipal assets with
the Accounting Officer (AO).

The QOccupational Health and Safety Act (OHSA) requires municipalities to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment, and in particular, to keep its PPE safe.

2.2 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The MFMA requires municipalities to comply with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), in line
with international practice.

The Accounting Standards Board (ASB) has approved a number of Standards of GRAP. When compiling the asset register in
accordance with the accounting standards, the requirements of GRAP 17 cannot be seen in isolation. Various other accounting
standards impact on the recognition and measurement of assets within the municipal environment and should be taken into
account during the compilation of a GRAP compliant asset register, The applicable standards of GRAP are noted in section 8.

2.3 MANAGEMENT OF INFRASTRUCTURE AND COMMUNITY ASSETS

Effective management of infrastructure and community facilities is central to the municipality providing an acceptable standard
of services to the community. Infrastructure impacts on the quality of the living environment and opportunities to prosper.
Not only is there a requirement to be effective, but the manner in which the municipality discharges its responsibilities as a
public entity is also important, The municipality must demonstrate good governance and customer care, and the processes
adopted must be efficient and sustainable, Councillors and officials are custodians on bebalf of the public of infrastructure
assets, the replacement value of which amounts to several hundred million Rand.

Key themes of the latest generation of national legislation introduced relating to municipal infrastructure management include:
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. long-term sustainability and risk management;

. service delivery efficiency and improvement;

» performance menitoring and accountability;

. community interaction, transparent processes and reporting;

. priority development of minimum basic services for all; and

. the provision of financial support from central government in addressing the needs of the poor,

Legislation has also entrenched the Integrated Development Plan {IDP) as the principal strategic planning mechanism for
municipalities. However, the IDP cannot be compiled in isolation - for the above objectives to be achieved, the IDP needs ta
be informed by robust, relevant and holistic information relating to the management of the municipality’s infrastructure.

There is a need to direct limited resources to address the most critical needs, to achieve a balance between maintaining and
renewing existing infrastructure whilst also addressing backlogs in basic services and facing on-going changes in demand.
Making effective decisions on service delivery priorities requires a team effort, with inputs provided by officials from a number
of departments of the municipality.

CoGTA has prepared guidelines in line with international practice, that propose that an Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
(1AMP} is prepared for each sector (such as potable water, roads etc.). These plans are used as inputs into a Comprehensive
Municipal Infrastructure Plan (CMIP} that presents an integrated plan for the municipality covering all infrastructure. The
arrangements outlined in the CoGTA guidelines are further strengthened by the provision of National Treasury’'s Local
Government Capital Asset Management Guidelines. This is in line with the practice adopted in national and provincial spheres
of government in terms of the Government-wide Immoveable Asset Management Act (GIAMA),

Accordingly, the asset register adopted by a municipality must meet not only financial compliance requirements, but also set
a foundation for improved infrastructure asset management practice.

Recognised good practice in the management of infrastructure assets from across the globe has been increasingly documented
over the past 10 to 15 years. In 2000, the World Bank cited practice in Australasia as representative of best practice and this
has been captured in the International Infrastructure Management Manual (IIMM), and regularly updated with case studies
from across the globe, including South Africa. In 2008 the British Standards Institute issued PAS 55 (a publicly available
specification on asset management). There is now an initiative by the International Standards Organisation (ISO) to draw on
these documents to establish an international standard for infrastructure asset management (ISO 55000 series) that is
expected to be issued in 2014. Progressive entities are expected to set compliance with the proposed ISO as a benchmark
for practice,
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3 OBJECTIVES

The objective of this policy is far the municipality to:

. implement prevailing accounting standards; and

. apply asset management practice in a consistent manner and in accordance with legal requirements and

recognised good practice.

4 APPROVAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE

The CFO is responsible for the submission of the Policy to Council to consider its adoption after consultation with the AQ,
Council shall indicate the effective date for implementation of the policy.

5 DELEGATIONS AND KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Accounting Officer
The Accounting Officer (AQ} is responsible for the management of the assets of the municipality, including the safeguarding
and the maintenance of those asseis,

The AO shall ensure that;
. The municipality has and maintains a management, accounting and information system that accounts for the assets

of the municipality;

. The municipality’s assets are valued in accordance with the standard of generally recognised accounting practice;
. That the municipality has and maintains a systemn of internal control for assets, including an asset register; and
. The HOD{S0)s and their teams comply with this policy.

The Accounting Officer of the municipality shall be the principal custodian of the entire municipality’s assets, and shall be
responsible for ensuring that this policy is effectively applied on adoption by Council. To this end, the AQ shall be responsible
for the preparation, in consultation with the Chief Financial Officer {CFO)} and Heads of Department (Senior Official}
[HOD({S0)), of procedures to effectively and efficiently apply this poticy.

This policy should be applied with due observance of the municipality’s policy with regard to delegated powers. Such
delegations refer to delegations between the AC and other responsible officials as well as between Council and the Executive
Mayor and the Council and the AD. All detegations in terms of this policy must be recorded in writing.

In accordance with the MFMA, the AQ of the municipality and all designated officials are accountable to him / her. The AQ is
therefore accountable for all transactions entered into by his / her delegates. The overall responsibility of asset management
lies with the AD. However, the day to day handling of assets should be the responsibility of all officials in terms of delegated
authority reduced in writing. The AQ may delegate or otherwise assign responsibility for performing these functions but will

remain accountable for ensuring these activities are performed.
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Chief Financial Officer
The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) is responsible to the AD to ensure that the financial investment in the municipality’s assets

are safeguarded and maintained.

The CFO, as one of the Director's of the municipality, shall also ensure, in exercising his financial responsibitities, that:

Appropriate systems of financial management and internal control are established and carried out diligently;

The financial and other resources of the municipality are utilised effectively, efficiently, economical and
transparently;

Any unauthorised, irregular or fruitless or wasteful expenditure, and losses resulting from cnminal or negligent
conduct, are prevented;

All revenue due to the municipality is collected, for example rental income relating to immovable assets;

The systems, procedures and registers required to substantiate the financial values of the municipality’s assets are
maintained to standards sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the Accounting Standards;

Financial processes are established and maintained to ensure the municipality’s financial resources are optimally
utilised through appropriate asset plans, budgeting, purchasing, maintenance and disposal decisions;

The AQ is appropriately advised on the exercise of powers and duties pertaining to the financial administration of
assets;

The Senior management team are appropriately advised on the exercise of their powers and duties pertaining to the
financial administration of assets; and

This policy and support procedures are established, maintained and effectively communicated.

In terms of section B2 read with section 81{1){e) of the MFMA the CFO may delegate or otherwise assign responsibility for

performing these functions but will remain accountable for ensuring these activities are performed. The CFO shall be the fixed

asset registrar of the municipality, and shall ensure that a complete, accurate and up-to-date computerised fixed asset register

is maintained. No amendments, deletions or additions to the fixed asset register shall be made other than by the CFO or by

an official acting under the written instruction of the CFO.

Directors
Directors report directly to the AQ shall ensure that:

The municipal resources assigned to themn are utilised effectively, efficiently, economically and transparently;
Procedures are adepted and implemented in conformity with this policy to produce reliable data to be input to the
municipal fixed asset register;

Any unauthorised, irregular or fruitless or wasteful utilisation, and losses resulting from criminal or negligent
conduct, are prevented;

The asset management, processes and controls can provide an accurate, reliable and up to date account of assets
under their control;

They are able to manage and justify that the asset plans, budgets, purchasing, maintenance and disposal decisions
optimally achieve the municipality’s strategic objectives; and

Manage asset life-cycle transactions to ensure that they comply with the plans, legislative and municipal
requirements.

Directors may delegate or otherwise assign responsibility for performing these functions but they shaill remain accountable

for ensuring these activities are performed.
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6 POLICY AMENDMENT

This policy should be reviewed annually to ensure continued compliance with the relevant legislation and accounting
standards. Changes to this document shall only be applicable if approved by Council. Any proposals in this regard shall be
motivated by the CFO in consultation with the AD and respective Directors. The recommendations of the CFO shall be
considered for adoption by Council.

7 RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER POLICIES

This policy, once effective, will replace the pre-existing Asset Management with respect to the scope of assets covered by this
policy.

This policy needs to be read in conjunction with other relevant adopted policies of the municipality, including the following:

. Delegation of Powers;

. Accounting Policy;

. insurance Policy;

. Enterprise Risk Management Policy;

. Disaster Management Policy;

. Supply Chain Management Policy;

. Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy;

. Tariff Policy;

. Property Rates Policy;

. Funding and Reserves Policy;

. Borrowing Policy;

. Cash Management and Investment Policy

. Long Term Financial Plan Policy;

. Infrastructure Investment And Capital Projects Policy;
. Indigents Policy;

. Provision of Free Basic Services Policy;

. Budget Implementation and Monitoring Policy;

. Managing Electricity and Water Distribution Losses; and
. Asset Disposal Policy.

8 REFERENCES

The following references were observed in compiting this document:

. Asset Management Framework, National Treasury, 2004

. Guidelines for Infrastructure Asset Management in Local Government, Department of Provincial and Local
Government, 2006

. Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003

. Disaster Management Act, 2002

. Municipal Systems Act, 2000

. Municipal Structures Act, 1998

. Accounting Standards Board

. MFMA Circular 18 & 44

. Local Government Capital Asset Management Guidelines, National Treasury, 2008

. Government Gazettes (30013 & 31021)

. Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (1-14, 16, 17, 19, 21, 23-27, 31 and 100-104)
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. Interpretations of the standards of GRAP issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) (IGRAP 1- 17)
. Directives issued by the ASB

* Municipal transfer and disposal regulations, Government Gazette no.31346

. Accounting guideline issued by National Treasury retating to intangible assets

® Government Gazette, 30 May 2005, No. 27636 on disposal

9 POLICY FORMAT

Figure 1 gives an overview to the format of presentation of this policy document, and how it links to a separate document
that provides the procedures. Procedures should be prepared and adopted to give effect to this policy.

Figure 1 - Interaction between the policy and the procedures

Extracts from the
accounting standards and
Definitions and Rules their interpretation for
application in the
municipality

A statement that reflects
the specific policy adopted
Policy statement by the municipality, in line
with the applicable
accounting standards

Policy
document

Allocation of key

Responsibililies responsibility areas to give
effect to the adopted policy

r i Actions to effectively

Procedures | ; implement the key

document | AT | responsibility areas
i indicated in the policy
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10 POLICY FOR FIXED ASSET ACCOUNTING

10.1 RECOGNITION OF IMMOVABLE AND MOVABLE ASSETS

(a) Definitions and rules

Asset

An asset is defined as a resource controlled by an entity, as a result of past events; future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the entity,

Fixed Asset
A fixed asset {also referred to as a "non-current asset”) is an asset with an expected useful life greater than 12 months.

p_pg

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rentals to others, or for administrative purposes; and are expected to be used during more than one reporting period. This
includes items necessary for environmental or safety reasons to leverage the economic benefits or service potential from
other assets. Insignificant items may be aggregated. Property, plant and equipment are broken down into groups of assets
of a similar nature or function in the municipality's operations for the purposes of disclosure in the financial statements.

Immovable PPE

Immoveable PPE are fixed structures such as buildings and roads. A plant that is built-in to the fixed structures and is an
essential part of the functional performance of the primary asset is considered an immovable asset (though it may be
temporarily removed for repair).

Movabie PPE
Movable assets are the stock of equipment owned or leased by the municipality such as office equipment and furniture, motor
vehicles and mobile plant.

Investment property

Investment property is defined as praperty (land and/or a building, or part thereof) held (by the owner or the lessee under a
finance lease) to earn rentals or capital appreciation, or both (rather than far use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administration purposes or sale in the ordinary course of operations). Examples of investment property are
office parks that are rented out. There is no asset hierarchy for investment property; each functional item will be individually
recorded. Land held for a currently undetermined use is recognised as investment property until such time as the use of the
land has been determined.

Intangible assets
1dentifiable non-monetary assets, without physical substance are intangible assets, for examples licenses or rights (such as
water licenses), servitudes and software,

An asset meets the criterion of being identifiable in the definition of an intangible asset when it:

(a) is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the municipality and sold, transferred, licensed, rented
or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability, or

(b) arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or other legal rights (excluding
rights granted by statute), regardless of whether those rights are transferable and separable from the municipality
or from other rights and obligations.
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Biolpgical Assets

Biological assets are living animals or plants as per the definition in the GRAP on Agriculture,

Capital Spares (Major Spare Parts}

Spares and materials used on a regular basis in the ordinary course of operations are usually carried as inventory (i.e. they
are not usually considered fixed assets) and are expensed when consumed. Major spares that constitute an entire or significant
portion of a component type, or a specific component, defined in the immovable PPE asset hierarchy are considered capital
spare parts and are recognised as an item of PPE as they are expected to be used for more than one period or they can only
be used in connection with an item of PPE,

Useful Life
The period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity, or the number of production units expected
to be obtained from the asset by an entity.

Major inspections

A condition of continuing to operate an item of PPE may be to perform regular major inspections for faults regardless of
whether parts of the item are replaced (for example, Cccupational Health and Safety Act no. 85 of 1993 requires lifting
equipment to be inspected once a year). When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item of PPE as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the
cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is de-recognised, This occurs regardless of whether the cost
of the previous inspection was identified in the transaction in which the item was acquired or constructed. If necessary, the
estimated cost of a future similar inspection may be used as an indication of what the cost of the existing inspection component

was when the item was acquired or constructed.

ltems used irrequfarly

Tangible items that are used in the production or supply of goods or services on an irregular basis (such as standby equipment}
are recognised as items of PPE,

Controf

An item is not recognised as an asset unless the entity has the capacity to control the service potential or future economic
benefit of the asset, is able to deny or regulate access of others to that benefit, and has the ability to secure the future
economic benefit of that asset. Legal title and physical possession are good indicators of control but are not infallible,

Past transactions or avents
Assets are only recognised from the point when some event or transaction transferred control to an entity.

Probability of the flow of benefits or service potential

The degree of certainty that any economic benefits or service potential associated with an item will flow to the municipality is
tased on the judgement. The CFO shall exercise such judgement on behalf of the municipality, in consultation with the
respective HOD{S0).

Economic benefits

Economic benefits are derived from assets that generate net cash inflows,

Service Potential
An asset has service potential if it bas the capacity, singularly or in combination with other assets, to contribute directly or
indirectly to the achievement of an objective of the municipality, such as the provision of services.
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Leased assets

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee (in this case, the municipality} the right to use an asset for
an agreed period of time in return for a payment or series of payments, Leases are categorised into finance and operating
leases. A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset, even
though the title may not eventually be transferred (substance over form). Where the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are substantially transferred to the municipality, the lease is regarded as a finance |ease and the asset recognised by
the municipality, Where there is no substantial transfer of risks and rewards of ownership to the municipality, the lease is
considered an operating lease and payments are expensed in the income statement on a systernatic basis (straight line basis
over the lease term},

L7} ian
The department that controls an asset, as well as the individual (asset custodian) or post that is responsible for the operations
associated with such asset in the department, is identified by the respective HOD(SQ), recorded, and communicated on
recognition of the asset.

Reli m ri n

Items are recognised that possess a cost or fair value that can be reliably measured in terms of this policy,

{b) Policy statement

The municipality shall recognise all movable and immovable assets existing at the time of adoption of this policy and the
development of new, upgraded and renewed assets on an on-going basis. Such assets shall be capitalised in compliance with
prevailing accounting standards,

(¢} Responsibilities

. The CFO, in consultation with the AQ and Directors, shall determine effective procedures for the recognition of
existing and new assets.

. Every Director shall ensure that all assets under their control are correctly recognised as assets,

. The CFO shall keep a lease register with the following minimum information: name of the lessor, description of the

asset, fair value of the asset at inception of the lease, lease commencement date, lease termination date, economic
useful life of the asset, lease payments, and any restrictions in the lease agreement,

10.2 CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS

(a) Definitions and rules

£i. asset ca ri

. Property, plant and equipment (which is broken down into groups of assets of a similar nature or function in the
municipality's operations) (GRAP 17);

. Intangible assets (GRAP 31);

. Heritage assets (GRAP 103};

. Biological assets {GRAP 101/27);

. Capital Finance Lease assets {GRAP 13); and
. Investment property (GRAP 16).

Class of PPE

A class of PPE is defined as a group of assets of a similar nature or function. The total balance of each class of assets is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

PPE A hierar
An asset hierarchy is adopted for PPE which enables separate accounting of parts {(components) of the asset that are
considered significant to the municipality from a financial point of view, and for other reasons determined by the municipality,
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including risk management {in other words, taking into account the criticality of components) and alignment with the strategy
adopted by the municipality in asset renewal (for example the extent of replacement or rehabilitation at the end of life). In
addition, the municipality may aggregate relatively insignificant items to be considered as one asset. The structure of the
hierarchy recognises the functional relationship of assets and components.

PPE: [nfrastructure
Infrastructure assets are immoveable assets which are part of a network of similar assets that jointly provide service potential.

PPE: nity Prope
Community property is immoveable assets contributing to the general well-being of the community, such as community halls
and recreation facilities.

BPE: Qther e,
Buildings that are used for municipal operations such as administration buildings and rental stock or housing not held for
capital gain.

PPE: Other A
Movable assets are by nature stand-alone assets which are not directly attached or associated with an item of immovable
assets and are utilised in an enabling or assisting role on a day-to-day basis.

Heritage assets

Heritage assets are assets of cultural, environmental, historical, scientific, technelogical or artistic significance and are held
indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations, such as monuments, nature reserves, and works of art. Some
heritage assets have more than one purpose, e.g. an historical building which, in addition to meeting the definition of a
heritage asset, is also used as office accommodation. The CFQ, on behalf of the municipality, must use his / her judgement
to make such an assessment. The asset should be accounted for as a heritage asset if, and only if, the definition of a heritage
asset is met, and only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If a significant portion is used for production, administrative purposes or supply of services or goods,
the asset shall be accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on PPE.

Investment property

Investment property is defined as property (land and/or a building, or part thereof) held {(by the owner or the lessee under a
finance lease) to earn rentals or capital appreciation, or both {rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administration purposes or sale in the ordinary course of operations). Examples of investment property are
office parks that are rented out. There is no asset hierarchy for investment property; each functional item will be individually
recorded. Land held for a currently undetermined use is recognised as investment property until such time as the use of the

{and has been determined.

Intangibl t
Identifiable nen-monetary assets, without physical substance are intangible assets, for examples licenses or rights (such as
water licenses), servitudes and software.

An asset meets the criterion of being identifiable in the definition of an intangible asset when it:

(c) is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the municipality and sold, transferred, licensed,
rented ar exchanged, either individually or together with a refated contract, asset or liability, or

(d) arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements} or other legal rights (excluding
rights granted by statute), regardless of whether those rights are transferable and separable from the municipality
or from other rights and obligations.
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However, if the municipality is of the opinfon that even though a servitude may meet the definition of an intangible asset, it
is essential to the operation of a tangible asset. For example, where the municipality would not be able to construct or operate
infrastructure on land that it does not own without acquiring certain rights from the landowner. Therefore the municipality
may be of the apinion that it would be more appropriate to include the cost of the servitude in the cost of the tangible asset
rather than recognising a separate intangible asset. In such cases servitudes will be accounted for as PPE by applying GRAP
17, and componentisation may be required as the values, nature and the useful life of the servitude and the tangible asset
are different.

Servitudes

Where municipalities establish servitudes as part of the registration of a township, the associated rights are granted in statute
and are specifically excluded from the standard on intangible assets. Such servitudes cannot be sold, transferrad, rented or
exchanged freely and are not separable from the municipality. Consequently such servitudes are not recognised in the asset

register.

Servitudes that are created through acquisition (including by way of expropriation or agreement) can be recognised as aither
intangible assets or PPE at cost. The municipality may include the cost of the servitude in the cost of the PPE if it is essential

to the construction or operation of the asset (such as in the case of pipes).

Biological Assels

Biological assets are living animals or plants as per the definition in the GRAP on Agriculture.

Non-current a held for sals

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is considered to be “held for sale” if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. An immovable asset classified as a "non-current asset heid for
sale” shall be reclassified as a current asset, and will therefore be taken off the Asset Register. This provision does not apply
to immovable assets that are abandoned.

To be classified as “held for sale”, the asset must be available for immediate sale (i.e. to be completed within a year) in its
present condition, and it must be highly probable that the sale will take place (management must be committed to a plan to
seli the asset and an active programme to locate & buyer must have been initiated), If the municipality acquires an immovable
asset exclusively for the purpose of selling it, it shall be classified as a “non-current asset held for sale” at its acquisition date
only if all the above requirements are met.

An extension of the period required to complete the sale does not preciude an asset from being classified as held for sale if
the delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the municipality’s control and there is sufficient evidence that the
municipality remains committed to its plan to sell the asset. However, if the municipality has classified an asset as held for
sale, but the criteria are no longer met, the municipality shall cease to classify the asset as held for sale.

If the criteria are only met after the reporting date, the municipality shall not classify the immovable asset as held for sale in
those financial statements when issued. However, when those criteria are met after the reporting date but before the
authorisation date for the financial statements to be issued, the municipality shall disclose a description of the immovable
asset; a description of the facts and circumstances of the sale, or leading to the expected disposal, and the expected manner
and timing of disposal; and if applicable, the segment in which the asset (or disposal group) is presented. Non-current assets
held for sale are not similar to inventory. Inventory refers to assets held for trading purposes, assets manufactured or
purchased to be sold for a profit. If a management decision has been made to sell a non-current asset, that asset will be
classified as a non-current asset held for sale.
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{b) Policy statement

Asset hierarchies shall be adopted for each of the asset groups, separately identifying items of PPE at companent level that
are significant from a financial or risk perspective, and, where applicable, grouping items that are relatively insignificant.
Investment Property and Intangibie assets are not required te be componentised.

PPE shall be disclosed in the financial statements at the sub-category level.

A committee to be nominated by Council will consider the recegnition of assets as heritage assets and motivate their
recommendation for adoption by Council.

Annexure A indicates the hierarchy structure for immovable assets while Annexure B indicates the hierarchy structure for
maovable assets.
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Figure 2 - Decision tree - Classification of assets
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(c) Responsibilities

. The CFO shall ensure that the classification of immovable assets adopted by the municipality complies with the
statutory requirements,

. The CFO shall consult with the Directors responsible for PPE to determine an effective and appropriate asset
hierarchy for each asset class of PPE to component level and record such in the asset management procedures
document,

. Every Director shall ensure that all immovable assets under their control are classified correctly within the
classification adopted by the municipality.

. Every Director shall advise the CFO when assets should be re-classified.

10.3 IDENTIFICATION OF ASSETS

(a) Definitions and rules

Immovable asset codin

An asset coding system is the means by which the municipality is able to uniquely tdentify each immovable asset {at the
lowest level in the adopted asset hierarchy} in order to ensure that it can be accounted for on an individual basis.

ri i m
A barcoding systemn will be used for movable assets as the means by which the municipality is able to uniquely identify each
movable asset in order to ensure that it can be accounted for on an individual basis, which will also assist with the subsequent
verification process of movable assets.

{(b) Policy statement
A coding system shall be adopted and applied that will enable each asset of immovable assets (with PPE at the lowest level
in the adopted asset hierarchy) to be uniquely and readily identified. Similarly a barcoding system shall be adopted for

movable assets.

{c) Responsibilities

. The AO shall develop and implement an immovable asset coding system in consultation with the CFO and other
Directors to meet the policy objective.

. Directors shall ensure that all the immovable assets under their control are carrectly coded,

. Directors shall ensure that all the movables assets under their control are barcoded.

10.4 ASSET REGISTER

(a) Definitions and rules

Asset register

A fixed asset register is a database with information refating to each asset. The fixed asset register is structured in line with
the adopted classification structure. The scope of data in the register is sufficient to facilitate the application of the respective
accounting standards for each of the asset classes, and the strategic and operational asset management needs of the

municipality.

Procurement of a

All assets acquired must be in terms of the capital budget and assets must be procured in such a way that:

. a proper need for the asset was identified;

. procurement documentation supports the format adopted for the asset register and the asset hierarchy; and
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. proper and approved procurement procedures are adhered to in terms of the Supply Chain Management Policy.
Authorisation for procurement should be as per the Municipalities’ delegation of authority and payment for assets should be
in accordance with the financial policies and regulations of the Council.

Updating data in the asset register
The fixed asset register is updated by an Asset Management Administrator only when authorised and instructed to do so by
the CFQ. The Asset Management Administrator is precluded from being a custodian of any asset.

(b) Policy statement

A fixed asset register shall be established to provide the data required to apply the applicable accounting standards, as well
as other data considered by the municipality to be necessary to support strategic asset management plannming and operational
management needs. The asset register shall be updated and reconciled to the general ledger on a regular basis, which will
be reconciled to the financial statements at year end.

{c) Responsibilities
. The CFO shall define the format of the fixed asset register in consultation with the AQ and the Directors shall
ensure that the format complies with the prevailing accounting standards and disclosure requirements.

. Directors shall provide the CFO with the data required to establish and update the asset register in a timely fashion.
. The CFO shall establish procedures to control the completeness and integrity of the asset register data.
. The CFO shall ensure proper application of the control procedures.

10.5 MEASUREMENT AT RECOGNITION

(a) Definitions and rules

Measuremen fi nition of PP

An itermn of PPE that qualifies for recognition is measured at cost. Where an asset is acquired at no or nominal cost {for example
in the case of donated or developer-created assets), its cost is deemed to be its fair value at the date of acquisition. In cases
where it is impracticable to establish the cost of an item of PPE, such as on recognising PPE for which there are no records,
or records cannot be linked to specific assets, its cost is deemed to be its fair value.

Measurement at recognition of investment property

Investment property will be measured at cost including transaction cost at initial recognition. However, where an investment
property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where the investment property was acquired for no or nominal
value), its cost is its fair value at the date of acquisition,

Measurement at recaqgnition of intangible assets

Intangible assets will be measured at cost at initial recognition. Where assets are acquired for no or nominal consideration,
the cost is deemed to equal the fair value of the asset on the date acquired.

Measurement at recognition of heritage assets
Heritage assets will be measured at cost at initial recognition. Where assets are acquired for no or nominal consideration, the
cost is deamed to equal the fair value of the asset on the date acquired.
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If the municipality holds an asset that might be regarded as a heritage asset but which, on initial recognition, does not meet
the recognition criteria of a heritage asset because it cannot be reliably measured, relevant and useful information about it
shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as follows:

. A description of the heritage asset or class of heritage assets.
. The reason why the heritage asset or class of heritage assets could not be measured reliably,
. On disposal of the heritage asset or class of heritage assets, the compensation received and the amount recognised in

the statement of financial performance.

M £ r ition of bi ical
Biological assets shall be measured on initial recognition and at each reporting date at its fair value less costs to sell.

Fair value

Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Market based evidence by appraisal can be used where there is an active and
liquid market for assets {for example land and some types of plant and equipment). In the case of specialised buildings {such
as community buildings) and infrastructure where there is ng such active and liquid market, a depreciated replacement cost
{DRC) approach may be used to identify the fair value, The appraisal of the fair value of assets is normally undertaken by a
member of the valuation profession, whe holds a recognised and relevant professional qualifications and appropriate
knowledge and experience in valuation of the respective assets.

reci; replacem
If no evidence is available to determine the market value in an active and liguid market of an item of property, the fair value
of the item may be established by reference to other items with similar characteristics, in similar circumstances and location.
In many cases, the depreciated replacement cost of an asset can be established by reference to the buying price of a similar
asset with similar remaining service potential in an active and liquid market. In some cases, an asset’s reproduction cost will
be the best indicator of its replacement cost. For example, in the event of loss, a parliament building may be reproduced

rather than replaced with alternative accommodation because of its significance to the community.

Costs associated with heritage assets

Costs incurred to enhance or restore a heritage asset to preserve its indefinite useful life should be capitalised as part of the
cost of the asset. Such costs should be recognised in the carrying amount of the heritage asset as incurred.

Changes in_the existing decommissioning or restaration cost included in the cost of an_item

Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning cost or restoration cost as a result of changes in the estimated
timing or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential required to settle the
obligation, should be treated as follows:

10.5.1 If the cost model is used -

. Changes in the liability shall be added to or deducted from the cost of the related asset.

. If the amount deducted from the cost of the asset exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess shall be
recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

. If the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the municipality should consider whether this is an
indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. In this case the municipality should test the asset for
impairment.

10.5.2  If the revaluation model is used -
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. A decrease in the liability shall be credited to the revaluation surplus, except that it shall be recognised in the surplus
or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit on the asset that was previously recognised in the surplus
or deficit; and

. an increase in the liability shall be recognised in surplus or deficit, except that it shall be debited to the revaluation
surplus to the extent that any credit balance may exist in the revaluation surplus in respect of asset,

. If the decrease in liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been recognised if the asset has been
carried under the cast model, the excess shall be recognised immediately in the surplus or deficit.

. If the change in liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the reporting date, Any
such revaluation shall be taken into account in determining the amounts to be taken to surplus or deficit and net
assets as discussed above. If a revaluation is necessary, all assets of that class shall be revalued.

. The change in the revaluation surplus arising from the change in the liability shall be separately identified and
disclosed on the face of the statement of changes in net assets.

finance feases

At the commencement of a lease term, the municipality (the lessee) shall recognise a finance lease as an asset and liability
in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The discount rate to be used in calculating
the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease contract, if this is practicable to
determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate shall be used. Any initial direct cost of the lessee is added to the
amount recognised as an asset,

Self-constructed immovable PPE

Self-constructed assets relate to all assets constructed by the municipality itself or ancther party on instructions from the
municipality. All assets that are constructed by the municipality should be recorded in the asset register and each component
that is part of this imrmovable PPE should be depreciated over its estimated useful life for that category of asset,

Proper records are kept such that all costs associated with the construction of these assets are completely and accurately
accounted for as capital under construction, and upon completion of the asset, all costs (both direct and indirect) associated
with the construction of the asset are summed and capitalised as an asset.

Construction of future investment property
If property is developed for future use as an investment preperty, such property shall in every respect be accounted for as
investment property,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the municipality from borrowed funds. The items that are classified
as borrowing costs include at interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings, amortisation of premiums
or discounts associated with such horrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings; finance charges in respect of finance leases and foreign exchange differences arising from foreign currency
barrowings when these are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Borrowing costs shall be capitalised if related to
construction of a qualifying asset (one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale) and external funding is sourced to fund the praject.
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In the following cases it is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs:

. it is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link
the borrowing requirement of the municipality directly to the nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or
current. In such case, the municipality shall expense those borrowing costs related to a qualifying asset directly to
the statement of financial performance.

. In exceptional cases the municipality is allowed to expense borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. It may be difficult for the municipality to identify a direct
relationship between an asset and borrowing costs incurred because the financing activity is controlled centrally and
it will not always be possible to keep track of the specific borrowing costs which should be allocated to the qualifying
asset. As a result the reasonable effort and cost rnay outweigh the benefit of presenting the information, making it
mappropriate to capitalise the borrowing cost.

Non-curren held for sal
Immovable assets classified as non-current assets held for sale shall be measured at the lower of its carrying value and its
fair value less cost to sell immediately before meeting the criteria for such classification.

In the event that a non-current asset held for sale ceases to meet the criteria for such classification, it is recognised in the

asset register and measured at the lower of:

. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had the asset not been classified as held for sale, or

» its recoverable amount or recoverable service amount at date of the subseguent decision not to sell.

The municipality shall include any required adjustrment to the carrying amount of an immovable asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale in revenue of the continuing operations in the period in which the critzria to be held for sale are no
longer met. The municipality shall present that adjustment in the same caption in the Statement of Financial Performance
used to present a gain or loss,

Deferred pavment

The cost of an asset is the cash equivalent at the recognition date, If the payment of the cost price is deferred beyond normal
crecht terms, the difference between the cash price equivalent (the total cost price is discounted to the asset’s present value
as at the transaction date) and the total payment is recognised as an intarest expense over the period of credit unless such
interest is recognised in the carrying value of the asset in accordance with the Standard on Borrowing Costs, GRAP 5.

Exchanged PPE assets

In cases where assets are exchanged, the cost is deemed tec be the fair value of the acquired asset and the disposed asset is
de-recognised. If the acquired asset is not measured at its fair value, its cost price will be the carrying amount of the asset
given up.

Cost of an item of PPE

The capitalisation value comprises of;

)] the purchase price,

(i} any directly attributable costs necessary to bring the asset to its location and condition necessary for it to be operating
in the manner intended by the municipality, and

(iii)  an initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

VAT is excluded (unless the municipality is not allowed to claim input VAT paid on purchase of such assets - in such an
instance, the municipality should capitalise the cost of the asset together with VAT).
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Directt Ti fi

Directly attributable costs are defined as:

(b)

Cost of employee benefits arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the item of immovable PPE and
intangible assets.

costs of site preparation (in the case of PPE assets);

initial delivery and handling costs (in case of PPE infrastructure, PPE commumity assets and PPE heritage assets) ;
installation and assembly costs, cost of testing whether the immovable PPE or associated intangible asset is
functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling any item produced while bringing the asset to
that location and condition;

commissioning (cost of testing the asset to see if the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds
from selling any item produced while bringing the asset to its current condition and location)

professional fees (for example associated with design fees, supervision, and environmental impact assessments) (in
the case of all asset classes); and

proper transfer taxes (in the case of all asset classes).

Policy statement

PPE, intangible assets, heritage assets and investment property that qualify for recognition shall be capitalised at cost.

Interest on deferred payments will be expensed. Biological assets that qualify for recegnition shall be capitalised at fair vatue
less costs to sell.

In cases where complete cost data is not availabie or cannot be reliably linked to specific assets:

The fair value of PPE infrastructure, community property and building property shall be adopted on the basis of
depreciated replacement cost;

If the cost of heritage assets cannot be measured reliably, this shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements together with a description of the nature of the asset; and

Investment property and intangible assets shall be measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. If no fair value
can be allocated to the intangible asset, the asset will not be recognised as an asset.
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Figure 3: Measurement at initial recognition
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{c) Responsibilities

. The CFQ, in consultation with the AQ and Directors, shall determine effective procedures for the capitalisation of
assets on recegnition.

. Every Director shall ensure that all assets under their control are correctly capitalised.

. Every Director shall advise the CFO of any deferred payments from the municipality, providing the relevant details
of such.

10.6 MEASUREMENT AFTER RECOGNITION

(a) Definitions and rules

Optigns
Accounting standards allow measurement after recognition on immovable assets as follows:

. PPE, heritage assets and intangible assets: on either a cost or revaluation model;
. Biological assets: fair value less costs to sell; and
. Investment Property: either cost model or the fair value model.

Different models can be applied, providing the treatment is consistent per asset class.

Cost model

When the cost model is adopted, the asset is carried after recognition at its cost less any accurnulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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Revaluation model

When the revaluation model is adopted an asset is carried after recognition at a re-valued amount, being its fair value at the
date of revaluation less any subseguent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair value at the reporting date. When revaluations are conducted, the entire class of assets should
be re-valued. The appraisal of the fair value of assets is normally undertaken by a member of the valuation profession, who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualifications and appropriate knowledge and experience in valuation of the
respective assets.

If the carrying amount of an asset is increased as 2 result of a revaluation, the increase shall be credited directly to a
revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the carrying amount of an asset is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in surplus or
deficit. However, the decrease shail be debited directly in net assets to the extent of any credit balance existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised directly in net assets reduces the amount accumulated
in net assets under the heading revaluation surplus.

When an asset is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is treated in one of the following

ways:

. Restated propartionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equais its
revalued amount. This method is often used when an asset is revalued by means of applying an index to its DRC.

. Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of

the asset.

The revaluation surplus is transferred to the Accumulated Surpluses/ {Deficits) Account on de-recognition of an asset. An
amount equal to the difference between the new (enhanced) depreciation expense and the depreciation expenses determined
in respect of such asset before the revaluation in question may be transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the
municipality’s Accumulated Surplus/Deficit Account. If this option is selected, an adjustment of the aggregate transfer is
made at the end of each financial year.

Investment property

When the fair value model is adopted, all investment property should be measured at its fair value except when the fair value
cannot be determined reliably on a continuing basis. The fair value of the investment property shall reflect market conditions
at the reporting date. It shall be valued on an annual basis. All fair value adjustments shall be included in the surplus or deficit
for the financial year. If a municipality selects the cost model to measure all of its investment property, it does so in accordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e,, at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

Statutory inspections
The cost of a statutory inspection that is required for the municipality to continue to operate immovable PPE is recognised at
the time the cost is incurred, and any previous statutory inspection cost is de-recognised.

xpens apitali
Expenses incurred in the enhancement of PPE (in the form of improved or increased services or benefits flowing from the use
of such asset), or in the material extension of the useful operating life of assets are capitalised. Such expenses are recognised
once the municipality has beneficial use of the asset {be it new, upgraded, and/or renewed} - prior to this, the expenses are
recorded as work-in-progress. Expenses incurred in the maintenance or repair (reinstatement} of PPE that ensures that the
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useful operating life of the asset is attained, are considered as operating expenses and are not capitalised, irrespective of
the quantum of the expenses concerned.

=2pares

The location of capital spares shall be amended once they are placed in service, and re-classified to the applicable PPE asset
sub-category. Depreciation on the capital spares will commence once the items are placed in service as this is when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of aperating in the manner intended by management.

Major inspection
Major inspections will be recognised at the value of the major inspection.

(b) Policy statement
Measurement after recognition shall be on the following basis:

. PPE: cost model or revaluation model {selected based on municipalities policy)

. Heritage: cost model or revaluation model {selected based on municipalities policy)

. Investment property: cost modef or fair value model (selected based on municipalities policy)
. Intangible assets: cost model or revaluation model (selected based on municipalities policy)
. Biological assets: fair value less cost to sell

An increase in asset value as a result of revaluation shall be reflected in a Revaluation Reserve, while fair value adjustments
will be recognised in surplus / deficit.

The restatement method will be applied to proportionately restate the accumulated depreciation to be in line with the gross
replacement cost or CRC of the revalued asset or the elimination method will be applied and the accumulated depreciation
will be eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset (therefore accumulated depreciation becomes zero) and the
net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset or DRC of the revalued asset.
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Figure 4: Measurement after recognition

PPE

!

Cost method
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!

Revaluation method
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2016/2017 MTERF

Cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses,

Fair value less subsequent
depreciation and
accumulated impairment

losses.

On revaluation date, accumulated
depreciation can be treated in the
following ways:

Restated proportionately

with the change in the gross
carrying amount of the asset
after revaluation equals its
revalued amount; or
Eliminated against the gross

carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount restated
to the revalued amount of the
asset.

Figure 5: Measurement after recognition

Heritage assets
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impairment losses.
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Figure 6: Measurement after recognition

Investment property

! )

Cast method fair value method
Cost less accumulated Fair value is the price at
depreciation and accumulated which the property could be
impairment losses. exchanged between

knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length
transaction,

!

Fair value shall reflect
the market conditions at
the reporting date,

Figure 7: Measurement after recognition

Intangible assets

' '

2016/2017 MTERF

All fair value
adjustments shall
be included in the
surplus / deficit for
the financial year,

Cost method Revaluation method
Cost less accumulated Fair value at the date of
amortisation and accumulated revaluation less subsequent
impairment josses. depreciation and
accumulated impairment
losses.

v

. Fair value shall reflect the
market conditions at the
reporting date.

. If the fair value of a revalued
intangible assets can no longer
be determined by reference to
an active market, the asset
shall be carried at its cost less
any accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.
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Figure 8: Measurement after recognition

Biological assets
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Fair vatue less cost to sell

measurable.

If fair value cannot be measured
reliably, that asset shall be
measured at cost less any
[ accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses,
until the fair value becomes reliably

!

L

Active market exists: Active markgt does !’lot exists, use Any gain / loss
»  Use the quoted price the most reliable estimate: arising on the
»  Most recent market transaction change in fair value
price, provided there were no I less cost to sell
significant change in economic shall be included in
circumstances between the date the surplus / deficit
of the transaction and the for the financial
In the case where no market- reporting date;
: ! ' year.
neiEre SO «  Market prices for similar assets
H o
are available, use the < with adjustments to reffect
present value of expected differences: and
net cash flows from the »  Sector benchmarks, such as the
asset discounted at a current value of cattle expressed per
market-determined rate. kilogram of meat.
{c) Responsibilities
. The CFQ, in consultation with the AOQ and Directors, shall determine effective procedures for the on-going
capitalisation of assets after recognition.
. Every Director shall ensure that all capital expenses associated with assets under their control are correctly
capitalised.
. Every Director shall ensure that revaluations and fair value adjustments are conducted where applicable to

immaovable infrastructure under their control.

10.7 DEPRECIATION

{a) Definition and rules
Depreciation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its remaining useful life. The amortisation

of intangible assets is identical.

Land and servitudes are considered to have unlimited life; therefore they are not depreciated. Heritage assets and investment

property are also not depreciated.

Depreciable gmount

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, ar other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
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Residual value

The residual vaiue is the estimated amount that the municipality would currently obtain from disposal of the asset after
deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its
useful life.

The residual values of assets are indicated in Annexure C and D in the form of a percentage. In the case of assets measured
after recognition on the cost madel, the percentage is of the initial cost of acquisition, In the case of assets measured after
recognition on the revaluation model, the percentage is of the revalued cost.

ngibl; with an i i ful life
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life will not be amortised. Impairment testing shall be performed on these assets
on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the assets might be impaired, comparing its recoverable amount
with its carrying amount.

Remaining useful life
The remaining useful life (RUL) of a depreciable PPE asset is the time remaining until an asset ceases to provide the required

standard of performance or economic usefulness.

The remaining useful life of all depreciable immovable PPE assets at initial recognition is the same as the expected useful life
indicated in Annexure C above. The remaining useful life of all depreciable movable PPE assets that are new, or are considered
to have been renewed, at initial recognition is the same as the expected useful life indicated in Annexure D.

Annual review of ramaining useful life

The remaining useful lives of depreciable PPE are reviewed every year at the reporting date. Changes may be required as a
result of new, updated or more reliable information being available. Changes may also be required as a result of impairments
(as contemplated in Section 10.8 of this policy}. Depreciation charges in the current and future reporting periods are adjusted
accordingly, and are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Depreciation method

Depreciation of PPE is applied at the component level. A range of depreciation methods exist and can be selected to model
the consumption of service potential or economic benefit (for example the straight line mathod, diminishing amount method,
fixed percentage on reducing balance method, sum of the year digits method, production unit method). The approach used
should reflect the consumption of future econamic benefits or service potential, and should be reviewed annually where there
has been a change in the pattern of consumption.

Depreciation charge
Depreciation starts once an asset is available for use, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an assets ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset
is classified as held for sale {in accordance with the standard of GRAP on Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations) and the date the asset is de-recognised.

Carrving amount
The carrying amount is the cost price / fair value amount after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses,
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Capital spares
Depreciation on capital spares will commence once the items are placed in service as this is when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Finance lease

Depreciable assets financed through a finance lease will give rise to a depreciation expense and finance cost which will occur
for each accounting period. The depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets shall be consistent with the policy of
depreciable owned assets, and the depreciation recognised shall be calculated in accordance with the Standard on Property,
Plant and Equipment, GRAP 17, If there is no reasonable certainty that the municipality will obtain ownership by the end of
the lease term, the asset shall be fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life. If there is certainty
that the municipality will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset will be fully depreciated over the asset’s
useful life.

(b) Policy statement

All PPE, except land, servitudes and heritage assets, shall be depreciated over their remaining useful lives. All intangible
assets, other than intangibles with an indefinite useful life, shall be amortised over their remaining useful lives,

The method of depreciation / amortisation shall be reviewed on an annual basis, though the straight fine method / diminishing
amount method / fixed percentage on reducing balance method / sum of the year digits method / production unit method
chall be used in all cases unless Council determines otherwise. Investment Property on the fair value method will also not be
depreciated. The existence, remaining useful lives and residual values shall also be reviewed at each reporting date.

{c) Responsibilities

. The Director shall ensure that a budgetary provision is made for the depreciation of the immovable PPE in the
ensuing financial year, in consultation with the CFQ.

. The CFO shall indicate a fixed annual date for the review of the remaining useful life of immovable PPE under the
control of the respective Directors.

. Every Director shall annually review the remaining useful life as well as the expected useful life and residual values
stated in Annexures C and D and the depreciation method of PPE that are under their control and motivate to the
AQ and CFO any adjustments if these are required, in the judgement of the Directors,

. Changes should not be made on a continuous basis because the accounting principle of consistency would be
violated.

. The CFO shall report changes made to the remaining useful life of immovable PPE in the asset register to the AD and
Council.

. The CFO shall ensure that depreciation charges are debited on a monthly basis and that the fixed asset register is

reconciled with the general ledger.

10.8 IMPAIRMENT

(a) Definition and rules

Impairment

Impairment is defined as the loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the
systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation.

Indications of impairment
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The municipality must review assets for impairment when one of the indicators below occurs or at least at the end of each
reporting period. In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, an entity shall consider as a
minimum the following indicators:

10.8.1 External sources of information:

. decline or cessation in demand;

. significant long-term changes in the technological, legal or government palicy environment;

. the carrying amount of the net assets of the entity is more than its market capitalisation;

. market interest rates have increased during the period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate

used in calculating an asset’s value in use and decrease the asset's recoverable amount materially; or
. a halt in construction could indicate an impairment. Where construction is delayed or postponed to a specific date in
the future, the project may be treated as work in progress and not considered as halted.

10.8.2 Internal sources of information:

J evidence of physical damage;
. evidence of obsolescence;
. significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place during the period, or are expected to take

place in the near future, in the extent to which, or a manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to be used,
including an asset becoming idle, plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date, and reassessing
the useful life of an asset as finite rather than indefinite;

. cash flow for acquiring an asset or maintenance cost thereafter is higher than originally budgeted;
. the actual net cash flow or operating profit or loss flowing from an asset are significantly worse than those budgeted;
. a significant decline in budgeted net cash flow or operating profit, or a significant increase in the budget loss, flowing

from the asset; or
. operating losses or net cash outflows for the asset, when current period amounts are aggregated with budgeted

amounts for the future.

10.8.3 Other indications, such as loss of market value.

mpairment of proj i nstructi

In assessing whether a halt in construction would trigger an impairment test, it should be considered whether construction
has simply been delayed or postponed, whether the intention to resume construction in the near future or whether the
construction work will not be completed in the foreseeable future. Where construction is delayed or postponed to a specific
future date, the project may be treated as work in progress and is not considered as halted,

Intangibie assets
The municipality must test all intangible assets associated with immovable PPE not yet available for use or which have an

indefinite useful life for impairment. This impairment test may be performed at any time during the reporting period provided
it is performed at the same time every year,

nvestment property on the fair value madel
Investment property that is measured at fair value is specifically excluded from the scope of GRAP 21 and GRAP 26
{impairment standards). Any impairment would be reflected in the annual review of fair value,

Recoverable amount
The events and circumstances in each instance must be recorded. Where there are indications of impairment, the municipaiity

must estimate the recoverable service amount of the asset and also consider adjustment of the remaining useful life, residual
value, and method of depreciation.
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Impairment lpss
An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating unit or asset is defined as the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable service amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use,

An impairment loss of a cash-generating unit (smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows) or asset is the amount by
which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use.

Non- nerating uni

Non-cash-generating units are those assets (or group of assets) that are not held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return. This would typically apply to assets providing goods or services for community or social benefit. The
recoverable service amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less cost to sell and its value in use. It may be possible to
determine the fair value aven if the asset is not traded in an active market. If there is no binding sales agreement or active
market for an asset, the fair value less cost to sell is based on the best information available to reflect the amount that an
entity could obtain. However, sometimes it will not be possible to determine the fair value less cost to sell because there is
no basis for making reliable estimates of the amount obtainable. For non-cash generating assets which are held on an on-
going basis to provide specialised services or public goods to the community, the value in use of the assets is likely to be
greater than the fair value less cost to sell. In such cases the municipality may use the asset’s value in use as its recoverable
service amount. The value in use of a nen-cash generating unit/asset is defined as the present value of the asset's remaining
service potential.

This can be determined using any of the following approaches:

. the Depreciated Replacement Cost {(DRC) approach (and where the asset has enduring and material over-capacity,
for example in cases where there has been a decline in demand, the Optimised Depreciated Replacement Cost
(ODRC) approach may be used);

. the restoration cost approach (the Depreciated Replacement Cost less cost of restoration) - usually used in cases
where there has been physical damage; or

. the service units approach (which could be used for example where a production units model of depreciation is
used).

Where the present value of an asset’s remaining service potential {determined as indicated above) exceeds the carrying vaiue,
the asset is not impaired.

Cash-generating units are those assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates
a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity, Holding an asset
to generate a "commercial return” indicates that an entity intends to generate positive cash inflows from the asset {or from
part of the cash-generating unit of which the asset is a part} and earn a commercial return that reflects the risk involved in
holding the asset. When the cost model is adopted, fair value is determined in accordance with the rules indicated for
measurement after recognition. Costs to sell are the costs directly attributable to the disposal of the asset (for example agents
fees, legal costs), excluding finance costs and income tax expenses. The value in use is determined by estimating the future
cash inflows and outflows from the continuing use of the asset and net cash flows to be received or (paid) for the disposal of
the assets at the end of its useful life, including factors to reflect risk in the respective cash-flows and the time value of

money.
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Judgement

The extent to which the asset is held with the objective of providing a commercial return needs to be considered to determine
whether the asset is a cash generating or non-cash generating asset. An asset may be held with the primary objective of
generating a commercial return even though it does not meet that objective during a particular reporting period. Conversely,
an asset may be a non-cash-generating asset even though it may be breaking even or generating a commercial return during
a particular reporting period. In some cases it may not be clear whether the primary objective of holding an asset is to
generate a commercial return. In such cases it is necessary to evaluate the significance of the cash flows. It may be difficult
to determine whether the extent to which the asset generates cash flows is so significant that the asset is a non-cash-
generating- or & cash-generating asset. Judgement is needed in these circumstances.

R it impairmen

The impairment loss is recognised as an expense when incurred (unless the asset is carried at a re-valued amount, in which
case the impairment is carried as a decrease in the Revaluation Reserve, to the extent that such reserve exists). After the
recagnition of an impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the asset Is adjusted for future periods to allocate the asset’s
ravised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life,

When no future economic benefit is likely to flow from an asset, it is de-recognised and the carrying amount of the asset at
the time of de-recognition, less any economic benefit from the de-recognition of the asset, is debited to the Statement of
Financial Performance as a "Loss on Disposal of Asset”.

In the event of compensation received for damages to an item of PPE, the compensation is considered as the asset’s ability
to generate income and is disclosed under Sundry Revenue; and the asset is impaired/ de-recognised.

Reversing an_impaijrment loss

The municipality must assess each year from the sources of information indicated above whether there is any indication that
an impairment loss recognised in previous years may no longer exist or may have decreased. In such cases, the carrying
amount is increased to its recoverable armount (providing that it does not exceed the carrying amount that would bave been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior periods). Any reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as a
credit in surplus or deficit.

{b} Policy statement
Impairment of assets shall be recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance when it occurs or at least
at every reporting date. Ad-hoc impairment shall be identified as part of normal operational management as well as scheduled

annual inspections of the assets.

The municipality considers the following asset classes to be cash generating:
. note asset classes

All assets refating to these classes are held with the primary abjective of generating a commercial return. Consequentiy the
municipality adopts the impairment treatment for cash generating units in the impairments of its PPE and associated intangible

assets that relate to these classes.

The municipality considers all other following classes:
. note asset classes

All these asset classes are considered to be assets whose primary objective is to provide goods and services for community
or social benefit, and where positive cash flows are generated, these are with the view to support the primary abjective rather
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than for financial return to equity holders. Conseguently the municipality adopts the impairment treatment for non-cash

generating units in the impairments of its PPE and associated intangible assets that relate to these asset classes.

(¢} Responsibilities

. The CFQ shall indicate a fixed annual date for the review of any impairment that may have occurred on assets under
the control of the respective Directors.

. The Directors shall review any impairment on the PPE under their control at the annual review date, and from time
to time as a result of any events that come to their attention that may have a material negative effect on the
performance of these assets. The Directors shall motivate to the CFQ proposed changes to the performance of such
assets and the necessary impairments that needs to be recognised on such assets,

. The Directors should evaluate all the immovable PPE for impairment, taking into consideration any discussions with
the senior accountants and operating managers.

. The Asset register administrator should update the fixed asset register with the information received, relating to the
impairment, from the financial management system where the impairment journals have been processed.

. The CFO shall report changes made to the carrying values of these assets in the asset register to the AO and Council.

10.9 DE-RECOGNITION

(a} Definition and rules

Exempt assets

Capital assets transferred to another municipality or to a municipal entity or to a national or provincial organ of state in
circumstances and in respect of categories of assets approved by the National Treasury, provided that such transfers are in
accordance with a prescribed framework in terms of the Municipal Asset Transfer Regulations.

Non-exempt assets
Assets other than exempt assets,

De-recognition

Assets are de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or
disposal, Where assets exist that have reached the end of their useful life yet they pose potential liabilities, the assets will
not be de-recognised until the obligations under the potential liabilities have been settled.

The gain or laoss arising from de-recognition of an item of immovable assets shall be included in surplus of deficit when the
item is de-recognised.

PPE that is associated with the provision of basic services cannot be disposed without the approval of Council.

Government Gazette no.31346, Municipal asset transfer regulations, sets out the regulations regarding municipal asset
transfers and disposals, for example type of assets that need approval to be disposed or transferred, timeframes, possible
public participation requirements, considerations in approving the transfer or disposal and Council approval.

Read in conjunction with the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) it is clear that 2 municipality may not transfer

ownership as a result of a sale or other transaction or otherwise permanently dispose of a capital asset needed to provide the

minimum level of basic municipal services unless that transfer is te an organ of state, and the following conditions must be

met:

. Ownership in the capital asset (including replacements, upgrading and improvernents made by the organ of state)
must immediately revert to the municipality should the organ of state for any reason cease to or is unable to render

the service;
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. The organ of state may not without the written approval of the municipality:

. Transfer, dispose of or encumber the capital asset (including replacements, upgrading and improvements made by
the organ of state} in any way;

. Grant a right to another person to use, control or manage the capital asset (including replacements, upgrading and
improvements made by the organ of state);

. The transfer agreement must reflect the conditions above; and

. The organ of state must demonstrate the ability to adequately maintain and safeguard the asset.

if the combined value of any non-exempt capital assets a municipality intends to transfer or dispose of in any financial year
exceeds 5% of the total value of its assets, as determined from its latest available audited AFS, a public participation process
must be conducted to facilitate the determinations of the municipal council, in relation to all the non-exempt capital assets
proposed to be transferred or disposed of during the year.

Council may delegate the following powers and responsibilities to the AQ:

. The decision as to whether the non-exempt capital asset is needed to provide a basic service;
. The power to approve in-principle that the non-exempt capital asset may be transferred or disposed of; and
. The authority to approve in-principle of the granting of a right to use a capital asset, This delegation does not extend

however, to cover long-term high-value transactions.

Disposal of assets should be at fair value, If payment for the item is deferred, the consideration received is recognised initially
at the cash price equivalent (the total proceeds discounted to the present value as at the transaction date). The difference
between the nominal amount of the cansideration and the cash price equivalent is recognised as interest revenue.

isposal Managemen m
An effective system of disposal management for disposal or letting of assets, including unserviceable, redundant or obsolete

assets, must be provided for in the Supply Chain Management Policy.

This must specify the ways in which assets may be disposed of, including by:

. transfer the asset to another organ of state in terms of a provision of the MFMA enabling the transfer of assets;
. transferring the assets to another organ of state at market related value or, when appropriate, free of charge;
. selling the asset; or

* destroying the asset.

PPE may be sold only at market related prices except when the public interest or the poor demands otherwise, When assets
are traded in for other assets, the highest possible trade-in price must be negotiated.

Revaluation madel

The revaluation surpius is transferred to the Accumulated Surpluses/ (Deficits) Account on de-recognition of an asset. An
amount equal to the difference between the new (enhanced} depreciation expense and the depreciation expenses determined
in respect of such immovable asset before the revaluation in question may be transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to
the municipality’'s Accumulated Surplus/Deficit Account. An adjustment of the aggregate transfer is made at the end of each
financial year.

(b) Policy statement

Fixed assets for which no future economic benefits or service potential are expected shall be identified and methads of disposal
and the associated costs or income considered by Council. The carrying amount of the asset shall be de-recognised when no
future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or its disposal. Wheare assets exist that have reached
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the end of their useful life yet they pose potential liabilities, the assets will not be de-recognised until the obligations under
the potential liabilities have been settled.

Where an asset being de-recognised was previously revalued, the revaluation surplus is transferred to the Accumulated

Surpluses/ {Deficits) Account on de-recognition of an asset.

(c) Responsibilities

. Fixed assets shall be de-recognised only on the recommendation of the Directors controlling the asset, and with the
approval of the AO.

. Every Directors shall report to the CFO on assets which such Directors wishes to have de-recognised, stating in full
the reason for such recommendation, indicating whether or not the assets are associated with the provision of basic
services. The CFO shall consolidate all such reports, and shall promptly make a submission to the Disposals
Committee with a copy to the AQ an the PPE to be de-recognised, the proposed method of disposal, and the
estimated cost or income from such disposal. The Disposals Committee shall consider the submission and make
recommendations to the Council for adoption.

. Assets that are replaced in the nominal course of the life-cycle renewal should be de-recegnised and removed from
the asset register.

. The AD, in consultation with the CFO and other Directors shall formulate norms and standards from the replacement
of all PPE.

10.10 INSURANCE OF ASSETS

{a) Definition and rules
Insurance provides selected coverage for the accidental loss of asset value.

Generally, government infrastructure is not insured against disasters because relief is provided from the Disaster Fund through
National Treasury, The municipality can however elect to insure certain infrastructure risks, though approval must be obtained
from the Council, The CFO must conduct a risk assessment of all assets and after considering the risks involved, report to
Council, which assets must be insured. The risk assessment must be based on a loss probability analysts and if there is no
capacity within the municipality to conduct the analysis, the CFO should be authorised to obtain external professional
assistance,

The municipality may elect to operate a self-insurance reserve, in which case the CFO shall annually determine the premiums
payable by the departments or votes after having received a list of assets and insurable values of al! relevant assets from the
HOD{S0)s concerned. This will be reflected in the accumulated surplus and will be cash backed,

Assets must be insured internally or externally and coverage must be based on the loss probability analysis. All insurance
claims must be assessed by an official, charged with the responsibility for the insurance of assets, to determine whether the
damage to the assets can be recovered from possible third parties involved. If the damage was caused by an identifiable
third party the CFO should compile a report advising the AQ of the facts thereof and any possible further action.

(b} Policy statement

The municipality should adhere to the disaster management plan for prevention and mitigation of disaster in order to be abile
to attract the disaster management contribution during or after disaster. The Council shall decide on insurance cover for
assets each financial year based on the recommendation from the AO after consultation with the CFQ.
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(c) Responsibilities

. The AO will consuit with the CFO on the basis of insurance to be applied to each type of asset: either the carrying
value or the replacement value of the immovable asset concerned, The approach shall take due cognisance of the
budgetary resources of the municipality, and where applicable asset classes shall be prioritised in terms of their risk
exposure and value.

. The AQ shall advise Council on the insurance approach taken.

. In the event that the CFO is directed by Council to establish a self-insurance reserve, the CFO shall annually submit
a report to the Council on any reinsurance cover which it is deemed necessary to procure for the municipality’s self-
insurance reserve.

11. POLICY FOR SAFEGUARDING

(a) Definitions and rules
The municipality applies controls and safeguards to ensure that assets are protected against improper use, loss, theft,

malicious damage or accidental damage.

The existence of assets is physically verified from time-to-time, and measures adopted to control their use, as follows:

. All above ground assets should be verified for existance and any changes in condition at least once a year. These
inspections should be formally recorded and signed off and, where possible, shall be worked into the routine
maintenance inspections, These inspechions may be prioritised on a risk basis to give emphasis to assets approaching
the end of their useful life and assets with a high value in relation to total assets (the threshold for high value will be
determined by the CFO), whereas a sample basis may be adopted for lang life or multiple assets of a similar nature;

. Performance data shall be reviewed for buried assets to identify possible changes in candition; and

. A detailed road condition survey shall be conducted every 5 years,
Every Director shall at lzast once during every financial year undertake a comprehensive verification of ali movable PPE
controlled by or used by the department concerned. Every Director shall promptly and fully report in writing to the CFQ, in

the format determined by the CFO, all relevant results of such verification.

This repott in respect of the annual physical verification of movable assets shall:-

. Confirm the location of the asset;

. Confirm the physical description of the asset;

- Confirm the level of utilisation of the asset;

. Indicate the assessment of the condition of the asset (Condition Grade);
. Indicate the expected useful life of the asset (RUL); and

. The existence or absence of any physical impairment of the asset.

The municipality may allocate day-to-day duties relating to such control, verification and safekeeping to asset custodians,
and record such in the asset register.

(b} Policy statement

An asset safeguarding plan shall be prepared for all assets indicating measures that are considered effective to ensure that
all immovable assets under control of the municipality are appropriately safeguarded from inappropriate use or loss, including
the identification of asset custodians for all assets. The impact of budgetary constraints on such measures shall be reported
to Council, The existence, condition and location of these assets shall be verfied annually (in line with the assessment of

impairment).
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(c¢) Responsibilities
. Each Director shall prepare and submit to the CFO, upon request, an annual asset safeguarding plan for the assets
under the control of their respective departments, indicating the budget required.

. The CFO shall confirm the available budget, and in consultation with the respective Directors, determine the impact of
any budget shortfall. The CFO shall report the impacts to the AQ for review, and advise Council,

. Each Director shall implement the safeguarding plan within the rescurces made available,

. Each Director shall report, within the time frame indicated by the CFO, the existence, condition, location and

appropriate use of assets under the control of their respective departments at the review date.

. Every Director shall at least once during every financial year undertake a comprehensive verification of all movable
PPE controlled by or used by the department concerned.

. Every Director shall promptly and fully report in writing to the CFO, in the format determined by the CFQ, all relevant
results of such movable asset verification.

. Every Director shall at least once during every financial year undertake a comprehensive verification of
all movable PPE controlled by or used by the department concerned.

. Every Director shall promptly and fully report in writing to the CFO, in the format determined by the CFQ, all relevant
results of such movable asset verification.

. Malicious damage, theft, and break-ins must be reported to the AC or delegated person within 48 hours of its
occurrence or awareness by the respective Directors.

. The ADC must report criminal activities to the South African Police Service.

12.  POLICY FOR LIFE-CYCLE MANAGEMENT OF IMMOVABLE PPE ASSETS

(a}) Definitions and rules

rvic fiv
Immovable PPE assets (such as infrastructure and community facilities) are the means by which the municipality delivers a
range of essential municipal services. Consequently the management of such assets is critical to meeting the strategic
objectives of the municipality and in measuring its performance.

Asset management
The goal of asset management of immovable PPE is to meet a required level of service, in the most cost-effective manner,

through the management of assets for present and future customers.

The core principles are:

. taking a life-cycle approach;

. developing cost-effective management strategies for the long-term;

. providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance;

. understanding and meeting the impact of growth through demand management and infrastructure investment;
. managing risks associated with asset failures;

. sustainable use of physical resources; and

. continuous improvement in the immovable PPE asset management practices.

{b) Policy statement

The municipality shall provide municipal services for which the municipality is responsible, at an appropriate level, and in a
transparent, accountable and sustainable manner, in pursuit of legislative requirements and in support of its strategic
objectives, according to the following core principles:

Effective governance
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The municipality shall strive to apply effective governance systems to provide for consistent asset management and
maintenance planning in adherence to and compliance with all applicable legislation to ensure that asset management is
conducted properly, and municipal services are provided as expected.

To this end, the municipality shall:

. continue to adhere to all constitutional, safety, health, systems, financial and asset-related legislation;
. regularly review updates and amendments to the above legislation;
. review and update its current policies and by-laws to ensure compliance with the requirements of prevailing legislation;
and
. effectively apply legislation for the benefit of the community.
ustainabi rvi fiv

The municipality shall strive to provide to its customers services that are technically, envircnmentally and financially
sustainable.

To this end, the municipality shall:
. identify a suite of levels and standards of service that canform with statutory requirements and rules for their
application based on long-term affordability to the municipality;

. identify technical and functional performance criteria and measures, and establish a commensurate monitoring and
evaluation system;

. identify current and future demand for services, and demand management strategies;

. set time-based targets for service delivery that reflect the need to newly construct, upgrade, renew, and dispose
infrastructure assets, where applicable in line with national targets;

. apply a risk management process to identify service delivery risks at asset level and appropriate responses;

. prepare and adopt a maintenance strategy and plan to support the achievement of the required performance;

. allocate budgets based on long-term financial forecasts that take cognisance of the full life-cycle needs of existing and
future infrastructure assets and the risks to achieving the adopted performance targets;

. strive for alignment of the financial statements with the actual service delivery potential of the infrastructure assets;
and

. implement its tariff and credit control and debt collection policies to sustain and protect the affordability of services by

the community.

Social and economic development
The municipality shall strive to promote social and economic development in its municipal area by means of delivering

municipal services in a manner that meet the needs of the various customer user-groups in the community,

To this end, the municipality shall:
. regularly review its understanding of customer needs and expectations through effective consuitation processes

covering all service areas;

. implement changes to services in response to changing customer needs and expectations where appropriate;

. foster the appropriate use of services through the provision of clear and appropriate information;

. ensure services are managed to deliver the agreed levels and standards; and

. create Job opportunities and promote skills development in support of the national Expanded Public Work Program
(EPWP).

Custadianship
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The municipality shall strive to be a responsible custodian and guardian of the community’s assets for current and future
generations,

To this end, the municipality shall:

. establish a spatial development framework that takes cognisance of the affordability to the municipality of various
development scenarios;

. establish appropriate development control measures including community information;

. cultivate an attitude of responsible utilisation and maintenance of its assets, in partnership with the community:

. ensure that heritage resources are identified and protected; and

. ensure that a long-term view is taken into account in infrastructure asset management decisions.

Transparen

The municipality shall strive to manage its infrastructure assets in a manner that is transparent to all its customers, both now
and in the future.

To this end, the municipality shali:

. develop and maintain a culture of regular consultation with the community with regard to its management of
infrastructure in support of service delivery;

. clearly communicate its service delivery plan and actual performance through its Service Delivery and Budget
Implementation Plan (SDBIP);

. avail immovable PPE asset management information on a ward basis; and

. continuously develop the skills of councillors and officials to effectively communicate with the community with regard

to service levels and standards.

ost-effectiven nd efficien
The municipality shall strive to manage its infrastructure assets in an efficient and effective manner.

To this end, the municipality shall:

. assess life-cycle options for proposed new infrastructure in line with the Supply Chain Management Policy;

. regularly review the actual extent, nature, utilisation, criticality, performance and condition of infrastructure assets to
optimise planning and implementation works;

. assess and implement the most appropriate maintenance of infrastructure assets to achieve the required network
perfermance standards and to achieve the expected useful life of infrastructure assets;

. continue to secure and optimally utilise governmental grants in support of the provision of free basic services;

. implement new and upgrading construction projects to maximise the utifisation of budgeted funds;

. ensure the proper utilisation and maintenance of existing assets subject to availability of resources;

. establish and implement demand management plans;

. timeously renew infrastructure assets based on capacity, performance, risk exposure, and cost;

. timeously dispose of infrastructure assets that are no longer in use;

. review management and delivery capacity, and procure external support as necessary;

. establish documented processes, systems and data to support effective life-cycle infrastructure asset management;

. strive to establish a staff contingent with the required skills and capacity, and procure external support as necessary;
and

. cenduct regular and independent assessments to support continuous improvement of infrastructure asset management
practice,
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(c)

13.

Responsibilities

Upon adoption of this policy by Council, the AO shall meet regularly with the CFO and Directors to take measures to
effectively implement this policy, and to report to Council on progress made at a frequency indicated by Council.
Directors shall develop, and update at regular intervals to be determined by the AD in consultation with the CFO and
Directors, an Asset Management Plan (AMP) for each service involving immovable PPE that shall assess levels and
standards of service, future demand, risk, determine a lifecycle plan for a minimum 10 year planning horizon, and
identify management practice improvement needs (3 year horizon). The AMPs will be submitted through the AD to
Council for adoption. AMPs shall be used to informn the preparation of a CMIP and budgets through the IDP process.
The time frame for the first time implementation of this will be determined by the AO in consultation with the CFO and
Directors,

The CFO shall, in consultation with Directors, determine grading scales for the measurement of asset condition,
performance, cost-of-operation, and utilisation for that are common and applicable to all services. Where necessary,
the Directors shall interpret the grading scales for the immovable PPE assets under their control. HOD(SO)s shall
determine the grading of all immovable PPE assets under their control at a level of accuracy considered appropriate to
the municipality’s resources, at intervals to be determined by the AD in consultation with the CFO and HOD{S0O)s.
Directors shall prepare, and review at regular intervals to be determined by the AO in consultation with the CFO and
Directors, an Operations and Maintenance Strategy and Plan, and submit such, through the AQ, to Council for adoption.
The municipality shall engage contractors when necessary to support in the implementation of maintenance actions
and adopt a system that assists in managing such maintenance. The time frame for the first time implementation of
this will be determined by the AQ in consultation with the CFO and Directors.

Directors shall determine detailed service performance measures (differentiated, where applicable for identified
customer groups), and submit such, through the AO, to Council for adoption and inclusion in the Services Delivery and
Budget Implementation Plan. Directors shall establish a monitoring regime, and report actual performance each
financial year, The time frame for the first time implementation of this will be determined by the AD in consultation
with the CFO and Directors.

The AQ shall establish procedures to ensure that legislative requirements regarding the management of immovable
PPE assets, including but not limited to health and safety, and environmental protection, are decumented and advised
to Directors. Directors shall address legislative needs in their strategies and plans, and shall enforce implementation,
Review the municipality’s Risk Management framework to ensure that it is effective for the management of physical
risks to infrastructure and buildings, Impertant actions shall be identified and implemented. The Directors shall report
risk exposure relating to their respective assets each financial year,

POLICY IMPLEMENTATION

Procedures should be prepared and adopted by the AQ, in consultation with the CFO and HOD(S0)s, to give effect to this
policy. This will be effective as from 01 July 2016
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ANNEXURE A: IMMOVABLE ASSET HIERARCHY

The following asset categories, sub-categories and groups shall be used at the highest level of the classification structure for
immovable assets:

Table 1 -~ Asset categories, sub~categories and groups
CATEGORY SUB-CATEGORY GROUP
| Emthanjeni municipality’s hierarchy

ANNEXURE B: MOVABLE ASSET HIERARCHY

The following asset categories, sub-categories and groups shall be used at the highest level of the classification structure for
movable assets:

Table 2 - Asset categories, sub-categories and groups -
£.1t CATEGORY SUB-CATEGORY
] Emhanjenl municipality’s hlerrcy :
ANNEXURE C: EXPECTED USEFUL LIVES AND RESIDUAL VALUES OF IMMOVABLE ASSETS

' i Residual
ASSET TYPE COMPONENT TYPE EUL
{%)
Emthanjeni municipality’s component list indicating EUL and RV
ANNEXURE D: EXPECTED USEFUL LIVES AND RESIDUAL VALUES OF MOVABLE ASSETS
Compaonents 1 Description EUL years RV %

Emthanjent municipality’s component list indicating EUL and RV

@
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TARIFF POLICY

1 DEFINITIONS

For ihe purpose of this Policy any word or expressions 1o which a meaning has been assigned in the Act shall bear
the same meaning in this Policy unless the context indicates otherwise-

Trading Services: Are services that the Council has classified as trading services and the tariffs have been
compiled with the intention that the Council realises a surplus on the delivery of the services.

Economic services: Are services that the Council has classified as such and the tariffs have been compiled with
the intention that the total costs of the services are recovered from customers,

Community services: Are services that the Council has classified as such and the tariffs have been compiled with
the intention that the cosls of the services cannot be recovered from public service charges and are of a regulatory
nature.

Fixed costs: Are costs that do not vary with consumption or volume produced?

Variable costs; These are costs that vary with consumption or volume produced.

Total cost: Is the sum of all fixed and variable costs.

Flat rates: Are the unit tarifis thal are calculated by dividing the tolal costs by volume used.

Two-part tariffs: Are tariffs that are raised to cover the fixed and varable costs separately. The fixed cosis are
recovered by dividing the total fixed costs by the number of customers per category and the variable cosls are
recovered by dividing the total variable costs by the volume consumed.

Units consumed: Are the number of units consumed of a particular service and are measured in terms of the unils
of measurement reflect in Section 6.
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PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY

The council wishes to achieve the following objectives by adopting this tariff policy:

a.

To comply with the provisions of section 74 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32
of 2000).

To prescribe procedures for calculating tariffs where the EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY wishes lo appoint
service providers in terms of section 76(b} of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of
2000).

To give guidance to the Councillor responsible for finance regarding tariff proposals that must be submitted
to Council annually during the budget process.

3 TARIFF PRINCIPLES

31 The Council wishes to record the following tariff principles:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

Alt users of municipal services will be treated equitably. The various categories of customers will pay the
same charges based on the same cost structure’.

The amount payable will be in proportion to usage and based on the tariff structure adopted for the approved
calegory of consumer,

Indigent households will have access to basic services through lifeline tariffs or direct subsidisation in
accordance with the Integrated Development Plan?.

Tariffs will reflect the total cost of services?.

Tariffs will be set at a leve! that facilitates the sustainability of services *

U Section 732 of the Eocal Govermment Municipal Systems Act, 2000 0A1 32 of 200K,
S Section 7H2) ) 6) and (1)
b Section 720
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iz

3.3

4
3.5

Sustainability will be achieved by ensuring thal:

(a) Cash inflows cover cash outflows. This means that sufficient provision for bad debts will be made in
accordance with accounting policy.

(b}  Access to the capital market is maintained. This will be achieved by providing for the repayment of capital,
maintaining sufficient liquidity levels and realising surpluses on trading services.

Provision will be made in appropriate circumstances for a surcharge on a tanff. This will be necessary far major

breakdowns in infrastructure and periods of droughts when a resinction of usage is required®.

Providing for penalties to prohibit exorbitant use will encourage efficient and effective use of resources.

The extent of rebales on lariffs will be disclosed. This will be achieved by publishing the true costs of the service

and the rebate as well as the source of the rebate.

CATEGORIES OF CUSTOMERS
The tariff structure of the EMTHANJENI MUNICIPALITY makes provision for the following categories of customers®

. domestic;

. commercial;
. industnal;

. agricultural;
. institutional;
. rural;

4 Section 7H2)(e)
Section TU0)

5

Segtion 7-H3)
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» municipal,

» within municipal boundaries;

. not within municipal boundaries; and
. special agreements.

4.2 Where there is a substantial difference between the standard of services provided within a specified category, the
Council may, after the presentation of a report by the Municipal Manager or the relevant department, determine
differentiated tariffs within the specified category.

s EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATION AND COST ELEMENTS

The Chief Financial Officer shall, subject to the guidelines of the Directorate of Finance and Executive Committee
of the Council, make provision for the following classification of services:;

51  Trading services:
()  Electricity;
(i) Water.

5.2 Economic services:

(i) Refuse removal;
(i)  Sewerage disposal:
(i)  Recreation Resoris.

53 Community services:

] Air pollution;
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i)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)
x}
xi)
xii)
Xiii}
xiv)
xv)
xvi)
xvii}
xviii}

xix)
xx)
xxi}
xxii)
xxiii)
XXiv)
Page 6of 15

Building control;

Cemeteries,

Chiid care facilities;

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public;

Facilities for accommodation, care and burial of animals;
Fencing and fences;

Fire fighting services;

Fixed billboards and the display of advertisements in public places;
Local economic development;

Licensing and control of underiakings that sell food to the public;
Licensing of dogs;

Local amenities;

Local sport facilities;

Local tourism;

Municipal parks and recreation,

Municipal planning;

Municipal public works, only in respect of the needs of municipalities in the discharge of their responsibilities
and to administer functions specially assigned to them under the Constitution or any other law;

Municipal roads;
Noise poliution;
Parking;
Pounds;

Pest control;
Public places;

oy
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54

55

5.6

xxv} Storm water management system in built-up areas;
xxvi) Street lighting;

xxvil) Street trading;

xxviti} Trading regulations;

xxix) Traffic.

Subsidised services:

(i) Libraries;

{ii) Primary health care.
(i)  Proclaimed roads

Expenditure classification

e BT MTLCREF

Subjective classification into various expenditure groups as contained in the Nalional Treasury guidelines and

General Recognised Accounting Practises.

Cost elements

The following cost elemenis will be used to calcilate the tariffs of the different services:

(i Fixed costs which consist of the capital costs (interest) on external loans as well as depreciation whichever

are applicable on the service and any other costs of a permanent nature as determined by the Chief

Financial Officer from time to time.

(i) Variable cost: This includes ail other variable costs that have reference to the service.

(i) Tolal cost is equal to the fixed cost plus variable cost.
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6 DEPOSITS

The raising of deposits is permissible where cerlain levies are made in arrears and payable wilh new apptication for

the relevant service:

a)

b)

c}
d)

Electricity: Two times the average monthly consumption of the past 3 months with 2 minimum as
determined annually according to the tariff schedule, where applicable.

Water: Two limes the average monthly consumption of the past 3 months with a minimum as determined
annually according lo the tariff schedule, where applicable.
Other services: As and when required.

See lariff schedule for 2016/2017 financial year,

7 TARIFF TYPES

7.1 Insetting service charges the Council shall

*

accurately reflect costs to achieve economic efficiency,

ensure equity and fairmess between different types and calegories of consumers;
ulilise appropriale metering andfor supporting technology; and

be transparent.

In determining the type of tariff applicable to the type of service the Council shall make use of the following options or a

combination of the same:

(i)

Page 8 of IS

Single tariff: This tariff shall consist of a fixed cost per unit consumed. All costs will therefore be recovered
through unit charges at the lavel of breakeven consumption. Surpluses on trading services may be allowed
subject lo Council approval.
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v

(vi)

{vii)

{viii)

Page 9 of IS

Cost related two part tariff: This tariff shall consist of two parts. Management, capital, maintenance and
operating costs will be recovered by grouping certain components together e.g. management, capital and
maintenance costs may be grouped together and be recovered by a fixed charge, independent of
consumption for all classes of consumers, while the variable costs may be recovered by a unit charge per
unit consumed.

Inclining block tariff: This tarifi is based on consumption levels being categorised inlo blocks, the tariff
being determined and increased as consumption levels increase. This lanfl will only be used to prohibit the
exorbitant use of a commodity. The first step in the tanffs will be calculated at break-even point.
Subsequent steps will be calculated to yield profils and to discourage excessive use of the commodity.
Declining block tariff: This taniff is the opposite of the inclining block tariff and decreases as consumption
levels increase. This tariff will only be used during special agreements and incentives.

Availability charges: Payable in respect of erven not connected to Council's exsting infrastructure. Once
Council provided a connaction, normal tariffs as per respeclive service are payable.

Correction of water and eleclricity service accounts: Where customers have been over charged or
under charged for water services and or electricity {prepaid and conventional meters) services and all other
services or rates and taxes levied, the municipality must rectify the over charges or under charges for the
water and electricity services and all other services or rates and taxes, immediately when it becomes aware
af such an over or under charges, applicable.

Qutside Municipal Area: These tariffs shall apply to consumers who are not residing within the municipal
boundaries but are making use, on application, of certain services.

Recoverable work: These tariffs shall apply to consumers who are making use, on application, of certain
recoverable cervices. The tanff will be calculaled at actual cost plus a surcharge as determined with the
actual tariffs.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

REBATES

Rebates are allowed in accordance with the tariff and rate schedule as well reflected in the specific policy as
determined by Counci! annually.

UNIT OF MEASUREMENT

The following unils of measurement will, where possible and applicable, be used to delermine tariffs:

Water

Water will be measured with a water meter and meters will be read and consumption will be levied on a monthiy
basis unless the service is rendered through a pre-payment device:

(1)  Cost per unit (kilolitres consumed); or

(2)  Basic cost plus cost per unit charge (kilolitres consumed); or

(3) When consumption is not measured a flat rate will be applicable.

Electricity

Electricity will be measured with an electricity meter and meters will be read and consumption will be levied on a
monthly basis unitess the service is rendered through a pre-payment device:

(1)  Maximum demand plus kWh consumed; or

(2} Basic cosis or Fixed costs plus kWh consumed; or

(3)  Cost per unit {(kWh consumed); or

(4) KVA,

Refuse removal

The annual amount levied is due and payable in monthly payment account. On written request the amount may be
raised annually. The levy is payable by ihe registered owner and recoverable with clearance certificate.
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9.4

9.5
951

952

9.6
9.6.1

Sewerage

Annual amount levied 1s due and payable in monthly payment account. On written request the amount may be

raised annually. The levy is payable by the registered owner and recoverable with clearance certificate:

. Basic charge - based on the number of properties within those calegories of customers and fixed cost
associated with the service.

. Additional charge —~ based on the area and variable costs of the service,

. Additional charge — based on the number of properties within those categories of customers and variable
costs of the service

. When number of properties is not available a flat rate based on the average consumplion per categories of
consumers will be applicable.

Assessment Rates

Assessment rate is calculated taking into account the iotal net expenditure from the other services less the revenue
envisaged based on the total rateable vaiuations. The assessment rate must be calculated in such a manner that
the Council realise a net surplus when adopling its tanffs.

Assessment rales are calculated according to market valuation of property. Annual amount levied due and payable
with September account. On written request the amount may be raised monthly. The levy is payable by the
registered owner and recoverable with clearance certificate.

Social benefits

The Council, in order lo measure social benefits enjoyed by the community, has approved of the under mentioned
standards to achieve cosl recovery and {o measure service delivery, where possible. These measures will be used
to ensure that the service is affordable to the Councit, business and households. The measures will be used to
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determine whelher the infrasiructure provided is managed effectively and to indicate whether any of the services

should be curtailed.

9.6.2 Measures indicated should be calculated annually and used as a guideline to ensure meaningful reporting. Actual

RAFT TARIFF POLICY

unit costs must be compared with budgeted costs.

20t 17 MTERF

CLASSIFICATION  BY |

Refuse removal and disposal

FUNCTION UNIT OF QUTPUT
COUNCIL
Aarfields Number of landings Subsidised
Ant Gaflery and Museum Number of altendance Community
Poputalion
Engineenng Administration Percenlage of Municipal | Community
expendilure
Number of plans submitied
Building Section Value of buildings Subsidised
Municipal value of buildings
Number of bookings o
Caravan Park . Subsidised
Number of siles
Number of burials .
Cemeteries Subsidised
Number of graves
Civic and olher halis Number of bookings Subsidised
. Number of removals
Cleansing, X .
Population Economic

Number of properties

Corporate Services

Faopulation
Parcenlage of tolal expendilure

Communily {Charged out)

Council General

Populalicn
Percenlage of total expendilure

Community (Charged out)
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DRAFT TARIFF POLICY

2016 17 MTERF

Number ol units purchased

Elactricily Number of units sold Trading
Number of connections
Estates Number of properties Economic

Financial Services

Percentage of municipal

expenditure

Communily (Charged out)

Population
Number of call-ouls
Fire Number of properties Subsidised
Population
Grant-in-aid Percentage of rates income Community
Health Number of attendance
- Clinics Population Subsidised
. Other
Housing Number of dweillings
{Selling and letting Economic
schemes)
Number of members
Libraries Number of beok in stock Community
Population
Licensing Number of licences Subsidised
Number of industrial properties .
Marketing Community

Number of industries

Municipal Manager

Percentage of municipal
expendilure

Community (Charged out)

Populalion
Parking Number of bays Community
Parks and recreation Number of properties Community

Page 13 of 15



ESMTHANIENIMUNICIPALITY

DRAFT TARIFF POLICY

Mo LTMIERF

Population

Personnel administration

Number of municipal slaff

Community {Charged out)

Population
Number of users .

Recreation resorls i Economic
Population

Roads and Stormwaler Length of roads )

. . . . Community

(including sidewalks} Population

Secunity and Civil Defence Number of installations Community
Number of connections

Sewerage reticulalion (Disposal) Sewerage punfied Economic
Population

Streel lighting Number of streel lighting Commurnity

) Number of attendance L
Swimming pools Subsidised

Population

Number of stock items heid

Economic (iully charge

Slores Value of slock
out)
Number of orders
) Number of properlies .
Town Planning . Community
Population
. Number of regisierad vehicles
Traffic ) Subsidised
Population
) Number of properties .
Valuations . Community
Value of municipal valuations
Number of units sold
Cost per unit supplied
Water Length of maing Trading

Kilolitres purilied
Cost per kilolter purified
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10 BY-LAWS

The principle contained in this policy will be reflected in the various service by-laws as promulgated and adjusted
by Councit from time to time,

11 COMMENCEMENT
This policy takes effect on 1 JULY 2016,
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